PLEASE CHECK THE TOWN WEBSITE (WWW.BRIDGTONMAINE.ORG) FOR MEETING CANCELLATION NOTICES.
BRIDGTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING AGENDA

DATE: Tuesday, April 12,2022
TIME: 5:00 P.M.

PLACE: Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Room, 10 Iredale Street, Bridgton
Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.
https://www.gotomeet.me/BridgtonMaine/bos
You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679
United States: +1 (571) 317-3116
Access Code: 189-387-141
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/189387141

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Minutes

a. February 28, 2022
b. March 1, 2022

(o March 22, 2022

Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items (Each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes.)

Committee/Liaison Reports
a. Recycling Committee Application from Patty Howard
b. Resignation of Nelle Ely from the Community Development Advisory Committee

Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information

Storm Drain Project Proposal by The Lake Region Interact Club

MSAD 61 Notice of Public Hearing on May 2, 2022 at Lake Region Vocational Center
Warrant to Call MSAD 61 District Meeting on May 10, 2022 at Lake Region High School
Request from Emergency Management Director Todd Perreault for a Workshop with the Board
of Selectmen on April 15™ at 2PM to Review the EOP and Other Plans

/o o

5:30 P.M. Public Hearing

a. To Accept Written and Oral Comments on a Special Amusement Permit Application from
Bridgton Highlands Country Club (379 Highland Road)
b. To Accept Written and Oral Comments on a Special Amusement Permit Application from

Stella’s on the Square (6 North High Street)

Action Items Following Public Hearing
a. Special Amusement Permit to Bridgton Highlands Country Club

b. Special Amusement Permit to Stella’s on the Square
New Business
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations

Board of Selectmen Page 1 of 3 April 12, 2022



b. Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval

1. Business Licenses
a. Medical Marijuana Caregiver Retail Store Permit to Maine Only Cannabis Shop
Located at 316 Portland Road, Suite 4
b. Medical Marijuana Multiple Registered Caregiver Facility to Green Topper
Grower’s Inc. Located at 27 Sandy Creek Road
c. Victualer’s License to Chao Thai Restaurant Located at 244 Main Street
d. Victualer’s License to Sammy’s Scoops Located at 187 Main Street
e. Victualer’s License to Mack’s Place, Inc. Located at 66 Portland Road
2, Abatements & Supplementals as Recommended by the Assessor’s Agent
3. Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District Annual Report
4. Accept Payment and Approve Quitclaim Deed to Crabtree Mtn Realty Trust/Dexter
Lee, Map 3, Lot 29
5. Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates Commitment #262
6. 2022-2024 Election Clerk Appointments
7. MSAD 61 Documents Related to May 24, 2022 Election
a. Warrant and Notice of Election Calling Maine School Administrative District No.
61 Budget Validation Referendum
b. Warrant and Notice of Election Calling Maine School Administrative District No.
61 Referendum
8. Documents Related to Annual Town Meeting
a. Memo from Community Development Director on Proposed Ordinance
Amendments
b. Bridgton Planning Board Recommendation on Amendment to Shoreland Zoning
C. Certification of Proposed Ordinances and Orders

1. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance
Ordinance,” be enacted?

2. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Dog
Control Ordinance,” be enacted?

3. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the Town of Bridgton Curfew
Ordinance,” be enacted?

4, Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton
Consumer Fireworks Ordinance,” be enacted?

5. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Municipal Solid Waste
Pay-Per-Bag Ordinance,” be enacted?

6. Shall an ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing
a Moratorium on Commercial Solar Energy Facilities,” be enacted?

7. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code
and Official Shoreland Maps to Correct Brrors and Add a Limited
Commercial (L.C) Shoreland Zoning District,” be enacted?

8. “Do you favor voting on all business to be transacted at future annual
town meetings by secret ballot election rather than traditional in-person
town meeting? (Note: This is a non-binding advisory question.)”

d. YES or NO Board Recommendation on Referendum Questions on Ballot 1-8

(Optional)

e. Approval of Annual Town Meeting Warrant (secret ballot)
f. Open-Ended or Capped Warrant Articles for Budget Items qr 11Em 3 18 NOT APPROVED)
c. Selectmen’s Concerns

d. Town Manager’s Report/Deputy Town Manager’s Report

10.  Old Business (Board of Selectmen Discussion Only)
a. Wastewater Status Update

Board of Selectmen Page 2 of 3 April 12, 2022




11.

12

13.

14.

Treasurer’s Warrants

Public Comments on Non-Agenda ltems (Each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes, )

Dates for the Next Board of Selectmen’s Meetings

April 14,2022 at 4:00 P.M. — Comprehensive Plan Workshop

April 26, 2022
May 10, 2022
May 24, 2022
June 14, 2022

Adjourn

Board of Selectmen

i Future Agenda Items:

1. Workshop for Review of Committees

Page 3 of 3

April 12,2022




Town Manager’s Notes
Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
April 12,2022

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of Minutes
a. February 28, 2022

Suggested motion: Move to approve the February 28" Meeting Minutes.
b. March 1, 2022

Suggested motion: Move to approve the March Ist Meeting Minutes.
¢. March 22, 2022

Suggested motion: Move to approve the March 227 Meeting Minutes.
5. Committee/Liaison Reports

a. Patty Howard has submitted an application for appointment to the Recycling

Committee. Please see the memo from the Recycling Committee in your packet
endorsing the candidate. A copy of her application may also be found in your packet.
Suggested motion: Move to appoint Patty Howard to the Recyeling Commiitee.
Nelle Ely has submitted a resignation letter from the Community Development
Advisory Committee. A copy is in your binder.

Suggested motion: Move to accept with regret the resignation of Nelle Ely from the
Community Development Advisory Committee.

6. Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information
a. The Interact Club at Lake Region High School is proposing to paint stencils next to

the storm drains throughout Town to inform the public that they drain to Stevens
Brook. Please see the Storm Drain Proposal provided to the Board.

Suggested motion: Move to approve the Lake Region Interact Club’s storm drain
project proposal. Said project to be overseen by the Public Services Director or his
designee.
The voters of the Town of Bridgton have been served notice by the School Board of
MSAD No. 61 that they shall conduct a Public Hearing om May 2, 2022, at the Lake
Region Vocational Center to issue bonds in an amount not to exceed $744,950,
Informational-no action required,

The voters of the Town of Bridgton have been served notice by MSAD No. 61 with
the Town of Bridgton Maine School Administrative District No. 61 Warrant to Call
Budget Meeting (copy in your binder). Informational-no action required.

EMA Director Todd Perreault is requesting a workshop with the Board on April 15%

at 2:00pm to review the Emergency Operations Procedure Manual and other related
plans. ‘

7. Public Hearings (5:30PM)
(Note: 1) Open Public Hearing- a) Anyone to speak in favor; b} in opposition; ¢) offer
comments neither for nor against; 2) close Public Hearing)

a.

To accept written and oral comments on a Special Amusement Permit from Bridgton
Highlands Country Club.

b. To accept written and oral comments on a Special Amusement Permit from Stella’s

on the Square.

4. Action Items Following Public Hearing
a. Suggested Motion: Move to approve a Special Amusement Permit to Bridgton

RAP, Jr.

Highlands Country Club.

1 TM Notes




b. Suggested Motion: Move to approve a Special Anusement Permit to Stella’s on the

Square.

[0. New Business
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations
b.  Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval

RAP, Jr.

. Business licenses:

a.Medical Marijuana Caregiver Retail Store Permit to Maine Only Cannabis
Shop.

Suggested motion: Move to approve a Medical Marijuana Caregiver
Retail Store Permit to Maine Only Cannabis Shop.

b.Medical Marijuana Multiple Registered Caregiver Facility Permit to Green
Topper Grower’s, Inc.

Suggested motion: Move to approve a Medical Marijuana Multiple
Registered Caregiver Facility Permif to Green T opper Grower’s, Inc.

c. Victualer’s License to Chao Thai Restaurant. :
Suggested motion: Move to approve a Victualer’s License to Chao Thai
Restaurant.

d.Victualer’s License to Sammy’s Scoops.

Suggested motion: Move fo approve a Victualer’s License (o Sammy’s
Scoops.

e. Victualer’s License to Mack’s Place, Inc.

Suggested motion: Move fo approve a Victualer’s License to Mack’s
Place, Inc.

. For your approval, please see the list of real estate/personal property tax

abatements and supplements being recommended by the Assessor’s Agent. The
provided information notes the requested abatement-supplement/value/tax.
Suggested Motion: Move to approve the recommended April 12, 2022, tax
abatements totaling 83,274.99 and supplements fotaling $713.31.

. In your binder, please find Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 2021-March 31,

2022: Affordable Housing Increment Financing District. It requires Board
approval before it can be signed by the Chair and submitted.

Suggested Motion: Move to approve the Annual Report for Tax Year April 1,
2021-March 31, 2022: Affordable Housing Increment Fi inancing District.
Crabtree Mountain Realty Trust/Dexter Lee, pursuant to the Town’s Tax Acquired
Policy and Procedures revised 01/22/08 (a copy of which is in your binders), is
requesting that the Town quitclaim Map 3 Lot 29 back to him having paid the
required fees (please refer to the copy of the receipt in your binders). The property
has been inspected by the Code Enforcement Officer and a memo provided.
Suggested Motion: Move o accept payment and approve a Municipal Quitclaim
Deed to Crabtree Mountain Realty Trust/Dexter Lee Jor property described as
Map 3 Lot 29 Town of Bridgion Tax Maps.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3406 (copy of statute in your packet), please refer to
Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates: #262 in your packet.

Suggested motion: Move to commit the January 1, 2022, to March 30, 2022,
Sewer User Rate Commitment #262 comprising 3 pages totaling $3,765.29 to the
Treasurer for collection. L
Pursuant to MRS Title 21-A § 503, the Municipal Officers shall appoint election
clerks to serve for two-year terms. In your binder is the list for appointment
nominated by the Major Parties and recommended by the Town Clerk.

2 TM Notes




Suggested Motion: Move to approve the candidates Jor appointment as election
clerks recommended by the Town Clerk
7. MSAD ‘

8. MSAD No. 61 has served the Municipal Clerk with the Town of Bridgton
Maine School Administrative District No., 61 Budget Validation
Referendum Warrant and Notice of Election (copy in your binder).
Suggested Motion: Move to sign the Town of Bridgton Maine School
Administrative District No. 61 Budget Validation Referendum Warrant
and Notice of Election.

b. MSAD No. 61 has served the Municipal Clerk with the Town of Bridgton
Maine School Administrative District No. Referendum Warrant and
Notice of Election (copy in your binder),

Suggested Motion: Move to sign the Town of Bridgton Muaine School
Administrative District No. 61 Referendum Warrant and Notice of
Election.

8. Documents relating to Annual Town Meeting:

a. In your packet, please find a memo from the Community Development
Director regarding the proposed ordinance amendments. \

b. In your packet, please find the Planning Board recommendations
regarding the Amendment to Shoreland Zoning.

¢.& d. Pursuant to MRS 30-A §2528 Secrer Ballot (see copy in your binder),
you are voting on the following Referendum Questions to be placed before
the voters for consideration on June 14, 2022. The Selectboard may offer
their recommendation to recommend or not recommend Secret Ballot
Referendums.

L. Suggested Motion: Move to certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 1“Shall an ordinance entitled “Town of
Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance” before the voters
Jor their consideration on June | 4, 2022, o
Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
L

it.  Suggested Motion: Move to certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 2 “Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments
to Town of Bridgton Dog Conirol Ordinance”, be enacted?”
before the voters for their consideration on June 14, 2022,
Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
2

lii.  Suggested Motion: Move to certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 3 “Shall an ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the
Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance”, be enacted?” before the
voters for their consideration on June 14, 2022.

Suggested Motion: Move fo recommend passage of Question
3.

iv.  Suggested Motion: Move to certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 4 “Shall an ordinance entitled. “Amendments
fo Town of Bridgton Fireworks Ordinance”, be enacted?”
before the volers for their consideration on June 14, 2022,

Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
4.

RAP, Jr. 3 ' TM Notes




V. Suggested Motion: Move fo certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 5 “Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of
Bridgton Municipal Solid Waste Pay-Per-Bag Ordinance”, be
enacted?” before the voters for their consideration on June 14,
2022,

Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
5.

vi.  Suggested Motion: Move to certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 6 “Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of
Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on
Commercial Solar Energy Facilities”, be enacted?” before the
voters for their consideration on June 14, 2022.

Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
6.

vil.  Suggested Motion: Move fo certify and place Referendum
Ballot Question 7 “Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments
to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official Shoreland Maps to
Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (LC) Shoreland
Zoning District Ordinance”, be enacted?” before the voters for
their consideration on June 14, 2022.

Suggested Motion: Move o recommend passage of Question
7.

vill.  Suggested Motion: Move to place Referendum Ballot Question
8 “Non-Binding Advisory Question regarding Town Meeting
voting™ before the voters for their consideration on June 14,
2022.

Suggested Motion: Move to recommend passage of Question
8.

e. Suggested motion: Move to approve the June 14, 2022, Annual Town
Meeting Warrant as presented.

f. A warrant article seeking an appropriation can be stated in an open-ended
form or include a cap or limit. In the latter, the appropriation may be
amended reducing the amount, but may not be increased. Please refer to
pertinent section of the MMA “Town Meeting & Elections Manual” found
in your binder.

Suggested Motion: Move to designate “capped” warrant arficles Jfor
appropriations.
1. Old Business
a. Wastewater Update

RAP, Jr. 4 TM Notes




Board of Selectmen
WORKSHOP/MEETING

Downstairs Meeting Room February 28, 2022
9:00a.m.

Board Members Present:  Carmen Lone, Chairman; Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman;
G. Frederick Packard; Robert McHatton and Paul Tworog. Absent: None

Administration Present: Robert A. Peabody Jr., Town Manager; Georgiann M. Fleck, Deputy
Town Manager; Holly Heymann, Finance Director; Jenna Domer, Deputy Finance Director and
Nikki Hamlin, Administrative Assistant,

The meeting was also virtual so the public could monitor but could not participate in the budget
meeting process unless they made a request to the Chairman for permission to speak.

1. Call to Order
Chairman Lone called the meeting to order at 9:00a.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance
The Board recited the Pledge of Allegiance

3. Budget Workshop
a. Introduction and overview of the proposed budget

Review of Cost Centers with Department Heads

Account 071 Recreation
Gary Colello, Recreation Director, was present representing Recreation.

Recreation Director Colello gave the Board a PowerPoint presentation.

Member Tworog said how do you support the salary increases for you and the Deputy? Town
Manager Peabody said Recreation Director Colello is salary and does not just put in 40 hours, he
averages 50 or more hours a week. He is dedicated to the programs and creates new programs to
enhance recreation. You also have to take into consideration what recreation does for economic
development of the Town. Member Tworog said maybe we need to look at the programs and
determine if we want to continue to offer some of the programs as a way to keep costs in line with
surrounding towns like Casco. Town Manager Peabody said you can’t base a department and their
increases on surrounding Towns because they may not have the resources like we have such as the
number of public beaches and the programs we offer which are unique to Bridgton which is based
on the need specifically of our Town. Member Tworog said maybe we need to determine what
the basic need is. Member McHatton said 1 look at the people that work for the Town, the
departments they represent and how they represent them, the resources they offer and the programs
they offer and recreation is a huge part of our Town and people have come to rely on it.

Pageiof8




The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
071, Recreation, in the amount of $525,308. (4 Approve / 1 Oppose - Tworog)

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the increase in salary for the Recreation Director. (4
Approve / 1 Oppose - Tworog)

The Consensus of the Board was fo decrease the request for a salary increase Jfor the Deputy
Recreation Director from the 43% increase to a 25% increase.

Account 077 Ham Complex

David Madsen, Public Services Director and Gary Colello, Recreation Director, was present
representing Ham Complex.

Town Manager Peabody said there was a vote several years ago by the citizens of Bridgton to take
on the Ham Complex and the Board recently supported that by a unanimous vote.

Member Tworog said I am concerned with the request for 2 employees and the perception of
distorting the needs of the facility. Chairman Lone said this is the first year of the operation of
this facility so we really don’t know the needs and costs yet. A budget has been put together based

on the Department Heads experience and what the basic needs are going to be to operation this
facility.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said why didn’t you include this in the Recreation budget? Public
Services Director Madsen said we discussed that option but decided it was important to keep it

separate to show costs for this particular department,

The Consensus of the Board was to reduce account line 1-1020 “hourly” firom 375,982 to §58,302
by reducing the recreation hours from 2080 to 1040.

The Consensus of the Board was fo reduce account 4-4280 “Contracted Services” Jrom §25,000
to $18,000.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 077, Ham Complex, from 8§115,724 to
$91,044. NOTE: A reduction in the salary line 1-1020 will also change account 2-2010 FICA.

Account 018 Town Hall
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Town Hall.

Public Services Director Madsen said in account line 5050 “building repair” we can carry forward
excess funds from the previous year.

The Consensus of the Board was to reduce account 5-5050 “building repair” from 813,000 to
86,500.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 018, Town Hall, from $35,975 to $29,475.

Page 2 0f8



Account 015 Municipal Complex
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Municipal Complex,

The Consensus of the Board was (o approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
013, Municipal Complex, in the amount of $115,838.

Account 051 Public Works
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Public Works.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager s recommendation for Cost Center
031, Public Works, in the amount of $881,013.

Account 052 Town Garage
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Town Garage.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
052, Town Garage, in the amount of $30,562.

Account 053 Vehicle Maintenance
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Vehicle Maintenance,

The Consensus of the Board was 10 approve the Town Manager s recommendation for Cost Center
053, Vehicle Maintenance, in the amount of $378,487.

Account 054 Transfer Station
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Transfer Station.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
054, Transfer Station, in the amount of $667,072.

Account 073 Cemeteries
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Cemeteries.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommendation for Cost Center
073, Cemeteries, in the amount of $58,192.

Account 74 Parks
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing Parks.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said will the town be able to do our own beach testing once the lab is
built? Public Services Director said we will access that possibility once the lab is built.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager s recommendation for Cost Cenfer
074, Parks, in the amount of $222,780.

Page 3 of 8




Account 076 Pondicherry Park
David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present representing the Pondicherry Park budget.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
076, Pondicherry Park, in the amowunt of $5,400.

Account 294 Capital Expenditures

Bob A. Peabody Jr., Town Manager, and David Madsen, Public Services Director, was present
representing Capital Expenses.

Member Tworog said we both agree that the 2022 budget shows over a million dollars. Town
Manager Peabody said that includes a carry forward. Member Tworog said will the carry forward
get spent or carried forwarded again? Town Manager Peabody said it will get spent.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said what was wrong with the boiler (7103)? Public Services Director
Madsen said the boiler needs to be replaced. I am going to carry forward any remaining balance
to cover the purchase.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommendation for Cost Cenfer
294, Capital Expenditures, in the amount of $625,000.

014 Community Development

Linda LaCroix, Community Development Director, was present representing Community
Development.

Community Development Director LaCroix said account 5-5160, cell phone, should be $480 NOT
$207.

Chairman Lone said regarding 4-4030, Memberships, I would suggest that you determine which
ones are more important. Community Development Director LaCroix said most of these have
been historically cairied forward. Chairman Lone said most of these are not for the municipality.
Community Development Director LaCroix eliminated Economic Development Council of Maine
$100; Maine Philanthropy Center $250; Maine Community Development Association $100 and
Other memberships to be determined $250.

Member Tworog said what keeps legal fees under control? Town Manager Peabody said some

things that require legal opinions can’t be controlled but ultimately the Department Head is
responsible.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said have you considered a Bridgton app, that would eliminate paper
brochures but still a way to promote Bridgton. Community Development Director LaCroix said
we could do a digital app. Chairman Lone said what does it take to get a digital app going? Vice
Chairman Zaidman said T would think whoever hosts our website could assist with that. Chairman
Lone said the Comprehensive Plan is the big project for the next two years.

Member Tworog said under Community Events I am not in favor of supporting Music on Maine
because that is a for profit endeavor and we already support the event with other Town resources.

Page 4 0f8



The Consensus of the Board was to decrease the new account, Community Events, by $10,500

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 014, Community Development, firom
$221,750t0 $210,803.

013 Code Enforcement Officer
Brenda Day, Code Enforcement Officer, was present representing Code Enforcement Office.

Account 1-1020 - Hourly - There was an error in the market adjustiment amount for the
Administrative Assistant/LPL. Therefore, the description and amount were reflective in increasing
the line from .30 to $24.00.

Account 7-7300, Vehicle - David Madsen, Public Services Director, said I confirmed with Scott
Smith, Mechanic, that the current vehicle the Code Enforcement Officer uses can be used for
another year. This line was reduced from $35,000 to $0.00

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 013, Code Enforcement, from $191,953 to
8157,292.

022 Boards
Brenda Day, Code Enforcement Officer, was present representing Boards.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said several Board of Selectmen members have, or are turning in, their
iPads so these can be repurposed.

Consensus of the Board was to reduce account 3-3050 from $4,200 to $0.00

Vice Chairman Zaidman said most classes are being held remotely so there is little to no travel
needed.

The Consensus of the Board was to reduce account 6-6190 from $250 to $0.00

The Consensus of the Board was fo decrease account 022, Boards, from 326,014 to $21,564

017 Town Clerk
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk, was present representing Town Clerk.

Member Tworog said we have an adequate amount of staff but we could consider cutting their
hours by 10% by closing Friday afternoon and not having office hours, Employees would get the
same amount of pay and sometimes they would rather do that than a pay increase.

Vice Chairman Lone said I think it is unfortunate that the budget reflects a 15% increase and 10%.
I have no problem with a 9% increase. How many elections do you do? Town Clerk Chadbourne
said definitely 3. Vice Chairman Zaidman said what if this goes to the voters and they turn it
down? Member McHatton said I can defend any, and all, raises that are requested We as a Board
have the responsibility of employee retention and paying them for what they do,

Page 5 of 8




Town Manager Peabody said if you decide to do secret ballot you get upwards of 1,000 people not
just 40-70 deciding on the overall budget.

Member Tworog said present the warrant with individual accounts so the taxpayers know what
they are voting on.

Account 4-4030 “Memberships” was decreased from $1,050 to $250.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 017, Town Clerk, from $250,751 to
8247259,

012 Assessing
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk, was present representing Assessing.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
012, Assessing, in the amount of $58,000.

016 General Assistance
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk, was present representing General Assistance.

Town Clerk Chadbourne said the stipend’s have not been increased for at least 6 year therefore I
am requesting an increase to $5,000 for the Administrator and $1,000 for the Assistant.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommendation for Cost Center
016, General Assistance, in the amount of $23,484.

031 Police Department
Phil Jones, Police Chief, was present representing the Police Department

Member McHatton said how many cruisers does the department currently have? Chief Jones said
7.

Member McHatton said how many police officers in the department? Chief Jones said 10.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said in account 7-7300, Vehicles, you are requesting $72,713. Chief
Jones said that includes 26,713 for equipment and 46,000 for vehicle for a total of 72,713.

Chairman Lone said in account 7-7200 you show a police K9 unit for $8,000 which I am not in
favor of. Chief Jones said drugs are an issue and having the presence of a K9 is a deterrent. It
also is beneficial when we are searching an area. It also diffuses a difficult situation when a K9
shows up. There is value to having a K9 unit on the force. Vice Chairman Zaidman said who
would run the program? Chief Jones said it would be one of my current officers. Vice Chairman
Zaidman said if they are called out special it would result in overtime. Chairman lone said what
does the $8,000 cover? Chief Jones said the dog and one officer. Vice Chairman Zaidman said
what happened to the K9 unit the department had? Chief Jones said there have been two, One dog
retired and the other one the officer left the force and it was decided not to continue the program.

Discussion ensued regarding account 7-7200 and speed control signs.

Page60f8



The Consensus of the Board was: Chairman Lone said 1 don’t agree with adding two more signs
or the K9 unit; Member McHatton said I agree with adding two more signs and a K9 unit, Member
Tworog said I don’t agree with two more signs, I think the current one could be moved around;
Member Packard said I agree with adding two more signs but not the K9 unit.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 031, Police Department, from §1,003,568 fo
3997 568.

032 Fire Department
Glen Garland, Fire Chief, was present representing the Fire Department

Fire Chief Garland said I did budget for confined space equipment and I also plan on some funding
through grants,

Fire Chief Garland said once budget is over, I would like to schedule a workshop with the Board
to discuss equipment and trucks.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
032, Fire Department, in the amount of $352,111.

033 Animal Control
Phil Jones, Police Chief, was present representing Animal Control

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
033, Animal Control, in the amount of $24,327.

049 Other Public Safety
Bob A. Peabody JIr., Town Manager, was present representing Other Public Safety.

Town Manager Peabody said account 4-4330, Ambulance Services, is contractual.

Town Manager Peabody said account 6-6130 Hydrants, Bridgton Water District is requesting a
10% increase from the Public Utilities Commission.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
049, Other Public Safety, in the cinount of $346,744.

035 Health Officer
Bob A, Peabody Jr., Town Manager, was present representing Health Officer,

The Consensus of the Board was fo approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
035, Health Officer, in the amount of 84,114.

019 Finance

Holly Heyman, Finance Director, and Jenna Domer, Deputy Finance Director, were present
representing Finance.

Page 70of 8




Finance Director Heymann said | would like to take advantage of additional training, account 4-
4060 - Training/Sch, because I am new to municipality financing.

Finance Director Heymann said account 4080 Auditing Services, should decrease over time
because efficiency will improve.

Member Tworog said efficiency on weekly payroll could be improved. Finance Director Heymann
said our staff depends on weekly paychecks and Police Department and Public Works has
differentials that I am not sure the software could accommodate. Deputy Finance Director Domer
said we did look into Paycheck and Bangor Daily. Bangor Daily was approximate $30,000 more
than what it is costing to do the payroll in house. Currently 6 hours is spent on payroll processing.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
019, Finance, in the amount of $173,667.

291 Insurances
Holly Heymann, Finance Director, and Jenna Domer, Deputy Finance Director, were present

representing Insurances.

Finance Director Heymann said [ did not factor in the costs for a K9 and motorcycle unit which
we were quoted $1,900.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
291, Insurances, in the amount of $§192,603.

292 Employee Benefits
Holly Heymann, Finance Director, and Jenna Domer, Deputy Finance Director, were present

representing Insurances.

Finance Director Heymann said accounts 2-2040 HRA,; 2-2050 Retirement and 2-2055 Maine
PERS are all salary driven.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
292, Employee Benefits, in the amount of $9582,862.

The meeting adjourned at 5:11p.m.

Respectiully submitted,

Georgiann M. Fleck, Deputy Town Manager

Page 8o0f8



Board of Selectmen

WORKSHOP/MEETING
Downstairs Meeting Room March 1, 2022
9:00a.m.

Board Members Present: Carmen Lone, Chairman, Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman;
G. Frederick Packard; Robert McHatton and Paul Tworog. Absent: None

Administration Present: Robert A. Peabody Jr., Town Manager; Georgiann M. Fleck, Deputy
Town Manager; Holly Heymann, Finance Director; Jenna Domer, Deputy Finance Director and
Nikki Hamlin, Administrative Assistant.

The meeting was also virtual so the public could monitor but could not participate in the budget
meeting process unless they made a request to the Chairman for permission to speak.

1. Call to Order
Chairman Lone called the meeting to order at 9:00a.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance
The Board recited the Pledge of Allegiance

3. Budget Workshop
a. Introduction and overview of the proposed budget

Review of Cost Centers with Department Heads and Outside Agencies

Account 011 Administration
Bob A. Peabody Jr, Town Manager, was present representing Administration

Member Tworog said are there other Towns that have a Deputy Town Manager and an Executive
Assistant? It is no reflection on people’s performances, but I think we need to keep costs down
and that includes salary increases. Member McHatton said I disagree with Member Tworog
because with today’s market, it is important to keep our good people at the increases proposed,
We have done market increases for other positions and we need to stay consistent. Member
Packard said I agree, we need to understand that these are the “cogs that make the wheels” run so
I think we should support what they are asking for.

The Consensus of the Board was fo approve the Town Manager's recommendation for Cost Center
011, Administration, in the amount of $396,266.

029 Other General Government
Bob A. Peabody Jr, Town Manager, was present representing Other General Government

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommmendation for Cost Center
029, Other General Government, in the amount of $65,000.

Page lof 6



034 Civil Emergency
Todd Perreault, Emergency Management Director, was present representing Civil Emergency

Chairman Lone said tell us about the Drone program you have budgeted for in account 3-3050
Small Equipment.

EMA Director Perreault said a drone is capable of transporting medical supplies, assist in search
for missing persons, accidents and structure fires with thermal imaging to name a few of the
benefits to a drone. EMA Director said just this past year there were 49 missing person reporfs.
Town Manager Peabody said EMA Director Perreault has proposed the drone program the past
few years and | have eliminated funding the program, however, now it has gone beyond just a
novelty so [ thought it would be beneficial Board discussion. Member Tworog said we just
eliminated the K9 unit with 49 missing persons. Vice Chairman Zaidman said what are the costs
associated with a drone program? EMA Director Perreault said the drone would be $4,000 and
training would be $2,400. Member Tworog said this is definitely a 2 or 3 year approach. Chairman
Lone said what is the life expectancy of a drone? EMA Director Perreault said the same a
computer.

Consensus of the Board was 3 Approve / 2 Oppose (Chairman Lone and Member Tworog)

EMA Director Perreault said account 4-4270 Comm & Tech includes an upgrade for new radios
which all departments will have to do in a few years because technology is going to change. We
will go to more megahertz and currently we are restricted to channels and the frequency will
increase. My suggestion is to leave all radios under EMA and start a radio reserve because this is
not going to be an inexpensive endeavor.

Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 4-4270 from §3,650 to $300 and set up a reserve
account with the difference of $3,350 for the future purchase of upgrading radios.

EMA Director said we should consider an emergency command vehicle to be on-site during
events. Chairman Lone said don’t we have the availability of United Ambulance? EMA Director
said yes, but if they are already on a call there is a delay for them to respond. Vice Chairman
Zaidman said maybe EMA Director Perreault could work on grant funding for the purchase of a
vehicle.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 034, Civil Emergency, from 841,127 to
$27,777 and set up a reserve account with a beginning balance of $3,350.

072 Library
Jayne Hamaty was present representing the Library.

Ms. Hamaty said we are requesting an increase from $84,000 to $90,000 because of the costs
associated with the increase in utilities and what is required for maintaining a historic building
inside and outside and elevator upgrade with phone. The Library has a positive presence in the
community and we also provide free Wi-Fi and a courtyard. Member McHatton said how did the
fundraising go with the Four on the Fourth? Ms, Hamaty said $24,000 went to the library and we
are hoping to increase that to $31,000 this year.

Page 2 of 6



The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Center
(72, Library, in the amount of $90,000.

075 Bridgton Community Center
Marcia Sullivan was present representing Bridgton Community Center.

Chairman Lone asked the Board if she should recuse herself because she is the director of the
facility. Consensus of the Board was no.

Ms. Sullivan said the increase in funding would cover the cost of a new director, allow the building
to be open addition hours and improve and expand our partnership.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for Cost Cenfer
075, Bridgton Community Center, in the amount of $97,429.

293 Outside Agency Services

293-9-9515 Lifeflight
Ashley McMillan was present representing Lifeflight

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 293-9-
95135, Lifeflight, in the amount of $1,303.

293-9-9504 LR Chamber

Angie Cook was present representing LR Chamber

Ms. Cook said the Chamber has moved from Portland Road to Main Street. Member Tworog said
are there any plans fo put together an app for Bridgton? Ms. Cook said I am currently working on
that and we improved the website which lists events, we are creating a Bridgton information map
that people can download for free and we installed a big screen television which will display
advertising and events.  Vice Chairman Zaidman said is that for members only? Ms. Cook said
no, we are going to work out a purchase possibility.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 293-9-
9504, LR Chamber, in the amount of $4,800. 4 Approve / | Oppose (Vice Chairman Zaidman
supported last year's request of $3,500).

293-9-9510 Southern Maine Agency on Aging
Therese Johnson was present representing Southern Maine Agency on Aging.

Ms. Johnson said this program covers, domestic violence programs, nutrition such as Meals on
Wheels, wellness checks and socialization and Medicare counselling services. The reports says
that 24 people in Bridgton were served but that does not inciude intervention of the phone and
multiple visits. This year we partnered with Northern Light Health,

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 293-9-
9510, Southern Maine Agency of Aging, in the amount of $2,500.

Page3 of 6



293-9-9502 LEA Milfoil and 293-9-9503 LEA Boat Inspection and 293-9-9505 LEA Subsidy
Colin Holime was present representing LEA Milfoil, LEA Boat Inspection and LEA Subsidy.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for:
293-9.9502 LEA Milfoil - §1,500

293-9-9503 LEA Boat Inspection - $2,900

293-9-9505 LEA Subsidy - $1,950

293-9-9514 Sexual Assault Prevention
Nicole Watkins was present representing Sexual Assault Prevention

Vice Chairman Zaidman said what are the number of people Bridgton that you serve? Ms. Watkins
said I do not have specific numbers.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 293-9-
9514, Sexual Assault Prevention, in the amount of 8750

293-9-9506 Lake Region Bus and 293-9-9507 Regional Transport
Don Libby was present representing Lake Region Bus and Regional Transport

Vice Chairman Zaidman said how many riders do you have? Mr. Libby said currently approximate
8,000 but pre-covid it was 11,000.

I just started in July but we are considering tying into an app that will be upgraded which includes
a tracker app and the Wi-Fi has been upgraded on all of the buses. Once we get back to adding
the fourth ridership, which was eliminated during COVID, we will do a Saturday travel.

Chairman Lone said the hospital eliminated their service which is unfortunate.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for:
293-9-9506 Lake Region Bus - §8,500
293-9-9507 Regional Transport $1,500.

293-9-9508 Opportunity Alliance
There were no representative(s) present representing Opportunity Alliance.

Chairman Lone said they have a variety of services including mental health services, emergency
housing and case management. I don’t know how they break out the numbers but they are active
in assisting people mostly in Portland. Jana Richards works in the area of youth/teens and spends
a lot of time in the High School. They have a small presence in Bridgton with services on line or
you need to go to Portland.

The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 293-9-9508, Opportunity Alliance, from
85,000 to §2,000.

293-9-9509 Tri-County Mental Health
There were no representative(s) present representing Tri-County Mental Health.

Page 4 of 6




The Consensus of the Board was to decrease account 293-9-9509, Tri-County Mental Health, from
$3,000 to $1,000.

293-9-9511 Through These Doors
There were no representative(s) present representing Through These Doors

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommendation for 293-9-
9511, Through These Doors, in the amount of $2,000.

293-9-9512 Bridgton Historical Society
Carrie Cushing was present representing the Bridgton Historical Society

Ms. Cushing said we are working to increase our membership. Funding for maintenance of the
facility is coming from grants. We are going to make improvements at the Fire House Museum
and hopefully at the end of the summer we will have the hose drying facility.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 293-9-
9512, Bridgton Historical Society, in the amount of $6,000.

293-9-9516 Rufus Porter
Karla Leandri, Executive Director, was present representing Rufus Porter.

Executive Director Leandri said we are coming off of a banner year with over 1,200 visitors which
includes those that attended our programs. We had an intern who started children’s program and
is interested in continuing the program. As you can see from the proposal, it has been a couple of
years since we have asked for funding. Chairman Lone said do you work with the Town of
Bridgton Recreation Department? Executive Director Leandri said no.

Member McHatton said are you doing an additional expansion? Executive Director Leandri said
yes, that includes displaying our murals.

Consensus of the Board was to deny the request for funding submitted by Rufus Porter in the
amount of $6,620.

293-9-9517 Easy Riders
Blaine Chapman was present representing Easy Riders

The request for funding supports the increase in fuel. WE built our own drag last year which costs
$6,500. We started a Facebook page which has taken off in popularity.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said I would like to increase their request from $2,500 to $3,000.

The Consensus of the Board was to increase the request for funding from $2,500 to $3,000 for
account 293-9-9517 Easy Riders.

299 Other Town Wide
Bob A. Peabody Jr., Town Manager, was present representing Other Town Wide.

Page50f6




The Consensus of the Board was fo approve the Town Manager’s recommendation for 299, Other
Town Wide, in the amount of $11,770,227.

010 Revenues
Bob A. Peabody Jr., Town Manager, was present representing Other Town Wide.

Vice Chairman Zaidman said are we considering funding the Senior Tax program? Town Manager
Peabody said that is up to the Board but I will have Holly Heymann, Finance Director, confirm
with the auditors the viability and legality of setting up a reserve account for this purpose.

The Consensus of the Board was to approve the Town Manager's recommendation for 010,
Revenues, in the proposed amount of $4,427,013 as set forth.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:15p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Georgiann M. Fleck, Deputy Town Manager

Page60f6



Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
March 22, 2022; 4:00 P.M\.

Board Members Present: Carmen E. Lone, Chairman; Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice-Chairman;

Robert J. McHatton, Sr.; G Frederick Packard (Remote Attendance)

Board Member Absent: Paul A. Tworog

Administration Present: Town Manager Robert A. Peabody, Ir.; Town Clerk Laurie Chadbourne;
Community Development Director Linda LaCroix, Recreation Director Gary Colello; Police Chief Philip Jones;
Fire Chief Glen Garland; Code Enforcement Officer Brenda Day; Public Services Director David Madsen

1. Call to Order
Chairman Lone called the meeting to order at 4:00 P.M,

2. Pledge of Allegiance
The Board recited the “Pledge of Allegiance.”

3. 4:00 P.M. Public Hearing
To Accept Written and Oral Comments on the Community Development Advisory Committee
Recommendations to the Selectboard for Funding of 2022-2023 Community Development Block Grant
Appilications
Chairman Lone opened the public hearing to accept written and oral comments on the Community

Development Block Grant Applications at 4:03 P.M. There were no public comments. Chairman Lone closed the
public hearing at 4:05 P.M.

4. Action Items Following Public Hearing

Affirmation of Board’s Support to Accept the Community Development Advisory Committee

Recommendations to the Selectboard for funding of 2022-2023 Community Development Block Grant

Applications

Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to affirm the 2022-2023 Community Development Block
Grant Funding Projects; second from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose

5.5:00 P.M. MSAD 61 Budget Presentation: Al Smith, Superintendent
This item was addressed later in the meeting. > o

~

6. Approval of Minutes

a. March 8, 2022 (10:30 A.M. Meeting)

b. March 8, 2022 (5:00 P.M. Meeting)

c. March 14, 2022

Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman for approval of the March 8, 2022, March 8, 2022, and
March 14, 2022 Board Meetings; second from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose K
7. Public Comments on Non-Agenda items

Frank Johnston voiced concerns about the condition of the road on the southern portion of Wildwood
Road. He said that he has been a resident for over 60 years and this is the worst he has seen it. Town Manager
Peabody responded that upcoming budget is for paving intown but that he will meet with the Public Services

Director and the engineer to assess the condition and cost for the following budget, The Board thanked Mr.
Johnston.

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 6 vtarch 22, 2022



8. Committee/Liaison Reports ;
There were no Committee/Liaison reports. f

9. Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information

a. Conservation Project: Matt Markot, Executive Director Loon Echo Land Trust
This item was addressed later in the meeting.

b. Pay Per Bag Presentation
This item was addressed later in the meeting.

10. New Business

a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations _,
1. Solar Farm Recommendations: Planning Board -!_
This item was addressed later in the meeting.
2. Reconsider Marijuana Moratorium: Planning Board
This item was addressed later in the meeting.
3. Proposed Amendments to the Land Use Ordinance: CEO Brenda Day
This item was addressed later in the meeting.
4, Select Board Approval of the 2022/2023 Budget
This item was addressed later in the meeting.

b. Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval
1. Use of Town Owned Property Permit to Emily Baker, AM Enterprise for an Earth Day Event on
April 23, 2022 from 3PM until 6PM at the Depot Street Parking Lot
Emily Baker, AM Enterprise was present requesting use of the Depot Street Parking Lot near the
Community Center for an Earth Day Event on April 23, 2022 from 3PM until 6PM. Ms. Baker responded to
several questions asked by the Board. Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to approve the use of

Depot Street Parking Lot on April 23, 2022 from 3PM to 6PM for an Earth Day Event by AM Enterprise; second
from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose

2. Victualer’s Licenses
e. Curbside Food Truck (Earth Day Event at Depot Street Parking Lot)

Motion was made by Selectman McHatton to approve a Victualer’s License to Curbside Food Truck for

the Earth Day Event at the Depot Street Parking Lot on April 23, 2022 from 3PM until 6PM; second from Vice- -
Chairman Zaidman. 4 approve/0 oppose

2. Victualer’s Licenses
a. Bridgton Highlands Country Club LLC (379 Highland Road)
b. Stella’s on the Square (6 North High Street)
c. Bridgton Big Apple #1107 (16 Portland Street)
d. Bridgton Big Apple #1000 (93 Main Street)
Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman for approval of Victualer’s Licenses to Bridgton Highlands

County Club, Stella’s on the Square, Bridgton Big Apple #1107, and Bridgton Big Apple #1000; second from
Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose

e. Curbside Food Truck (Earth Day Event at Depot Street Parking Lot)
This item was addressed earlier in the meeting.

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6 March 22, 2022



3. Certificate of Sewer User Rates Commitment #261 -
Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to commit the December 1, 2021 to February 28, 2022

Sewer User Rate Commitment #261 totaling $14,288.66 to the Treasurer for collection; second from Selectman
McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose

c. Selectmen’s Concerns
This item was addressed later in the meeting.

d. Town Manager’s Report/Deputy Town Manager’s Report
This item was addressed later in the meeting.

11. Old Business
a. Wastewater Status Update :
This item was addressed later in the meeting. ?
]
b. Red Zone Update: Community Development Director Linda Lacroix
Community Development Director Linda LaCroix reported that she met with Redzone officials to discuss
the work Redzone did to help solidify an application for funding to provide a fixed wireless broadband to cover
the full geographic are of both Bridgton and Fryeburg with robust and affordable internet services using their
new 5-G technology. The total cost for the system is $3,484,635. The intention is to fund the cost through a

grant from one of multiple programs available now. Bridgton will work with Fryeburg on this, with Redzone
assisting as well.

¢. Ameresco Project Update: Community Development Director Linda Lacroix

Community Development Director Linda LaCroix reported that the updated operating date is summer
of 2023 which is about five months past the original date.

12, Treasurer’'s Warrants . 4

Motion was made by Selectman McHatton for approval of Treasurer’s Warrants numbered 94, 95, 96;
97 and 98; second from Vice-Chairman Zaidman. 4 approve/0 oppose ] r

5. MSAD 61 Budget Presentation S

Superintendent Al Smith, Board Members Karla Swanson, Lee Bearse and Janice Barter were present.
Superintendent Smith reviewed the proposed school district budget. The Board thanked Mr. Smith.

9. Correspondence and Other Pertinent Information

a. Conservation Project: Matt Marcott :

Matt Marcott was present and reported Loon Echo Land Trust is working with two separate land owners
to purchase conservation easements on approximately 1,300 acres of undeveloped land, most of which is in
Naples, but a small portion is in Bridgton {36 acres) and Sebago. The easements will protect the conservation
values of the properties. The properties will remain in private ownership, meaning their tax status will not
change. They are seeking financing to purchase these easements from muitiple sources and the Town will not
be asked to contribute financially. The request is to sign two letters of support which will significantly enhance
the prospect for funding the purchases of these conservation easements Motion was made by Selectman
McHatton to table this to the next meeting after land ownership is determined; second from Vice-Chairman
Zaidman. Discussion ensued regarding ownership of the land. Selectman McHatton withdrew his motion.

Motion was made by Selectman McHatton to sign the letters of support; second from Vice-Chairman Zaidman.
4 approve/0 oppose

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6 March 22, 2022

—




b. Pay Per Bag Presentation oo
Steve Lisauskas, Vice-President of Government Affairs for Waste Zero presented information on the pay
as you throw program. He reported that this is the most effective avaitable means of reducing municipa! solid
waste. While communities require residents to pay for most utilities based on how much they use, trash remain’s
the last unmetered utility in most cities and towns across the county, Their solutions enable cities and towns
to eliminate or reduce flat fees for trash services and replace them with variable pricing, based on the amount
of trash residents throw away. The company distributes top quality official municipal trash bags to selected
grocery, hardware, and convenience stores, along with other local retailers. The company also provides
materials, resources, and media engagement to help residents become better recyclers and learn about
program details and results, In summary, Waste Zero services are designed to comprehensively manager the
day-to-day activities associated with a waste reduction program, including supply and distribution, resident
education, communication, customer service and financial reporting. The Board thanked Mr. Lisauskas.
S _ﬁ;)‘,
10. New Business 3
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations B0
1. Solar Farm Recommendations: Planning Board
Planning Board Chairman Deb Brusini recommended a solar farm moratorium to assure solar farms Wlth
undesirable characteristics do not come under Planning Board review prior to completion of solar farm specifid
performance standards. These include considerations of the size, number, location of solar farms and their,
resulting impact on property values, views, de-forestation, etc. Motion was made by Chairman Lone to put
forth a solar farm moratorium to the voters; second from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose. - - =
, .
Planning Board Chairman Deb Brusini recommended a line item in the Consolidated Land Use Ordinance
restricting solar farm installations to 20 acres or less be considered as another referendum question;

Community Development Director Linda Lacroix added that it would be confusing to have both a moratorium
and an amendment on the same ballot,

2. Reconsider Marijuana Moratorium: Planning Board :
Chairman Lone removed this item from the agenda. : it

3. Proposed Amendments to the Land Use Ordinance: CEO Brenda Day L

Code Enforcement Officer Brenda Day requested that the Board seek voter consideration to change
limited residential to limited commercial in the inner and outer corridor districts (Rt 302 corridor from CMP to
Naples Line); incorporate comprehensive wetlands definitions. This is to rectify an inappropriate Shoreland
designation for a section of Town targeted for development in the Comprehensive Plan and in the Land Use
Ordinance (zoning). Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to put forth amendments to the Land Use
Ordinance to the voters; second from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose

4. Select Board Approval of the 2022/2023 Budget :

Town Manager Peabody reviewed the budget as presented through the budget hearings and then
reviewed the budget adjustment worksheets as submitted by Department Heads after the Board requested
further reduction. Board Members appreciated the efforts and thanked the Department Heads for revisiting
each line item. Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to approve the budget adjustment worksheet as
presented by the Town Manager; second from Selectman McHatton. 4 approve/0 oppose Motion was made

by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to approve the amended budget; second from Selectman McHatton, N
4 approve/0 oppose

=

Py
[

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6 March 22, 2022



c. selectmen’s concerns '
¢ Selectman Packard had no concerns. ' -

¢ Vice-Chairman Zaidman asked if money will be set aside for senior property tax relief to which Towé’i
Manager Peabody responded that he is working on the wording for a warrant article at Town Meetlng
* Selectman McHatton had no concerns.

¢ Chairman Lone asked for a status of the light poles to which Town Manager Peabody reported that theré

have been three poles that have been damaged and will be paid for by the people that caused the
damage in the amount of $12,000 to $15,000 plus installation. '

d. Manager’s report
Town Manager Peabody read the following into the record:
“Deputy Town Manager’'s Report, March 22, 2022
General: Please make sure to refer to the Town of Bridgton's website, www.bridgtonmaine.org to subscribe

for email alerts. These include Meeting Agendas and Minutes; Public Notices; Career Opportunities; Events;
Wastewater Project and Main Street Project Updates.

Public Services Department: Construction of the wastewater treatment plant has begun! Heavy equipment
has been moved onto the site and show has been cleared to prepare the site for the upcoming construction. A
pre-construction meeting was held on March 15, : "

Bridgton Recreation: Register for Spring sport NOW! Lacrosse, baseball, and softball. Girls Youth lacrosse may
be canceiled because sign ups are too low! Please check out our comprehensive website at

www . bridgtonmaine.org for questions and/or additiona) information please contact Recreation Director, Gary
Colello, at 647-1126.

Town Clerk’s Department: Nomination papers are available for the following: {1)
Selectman/Assessor/Overseer of the Poor 3-year term: (2) Planning Board Regular Member 3-year term: {1)
Planning Board Alternate Member 3-year term: (1) MSAD #61 Director 3-year term: {1) Water District Trustee
3-year term. The nomination paper filing deadline is the close of business hours on April 15, 2022, To date: 2
have taken out papers for Board of Selectmen; 2 for Planning Board Regular; 1 for Planning Board Alternate; 1
for MSAD 61; 2 for Water District Trustee. Please contact Town Clerk, Laurie Chadbourne at 207-647-8786 or
ichadbourne@bridgtonmaine.org with any questions.

Until next time, be safe and be well.
Respectfully submitted, :
Georgiann M, Fleck, Deputy Town Manager”

OTHER

Vice-Chairman Zaidman suggested that a candy dish, water glass or something similar be given out for
awards instead of plaques. The Board agreed that would be a good idea.

11. Old Business
a. Wastewater Status Update
Town Manager Peabody provided a brief wastewater status update.

13. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items

Representing the Planning Board, Chairman Deb Brusini asked the Board if they would like to hold a
workshop session before sending the standards for solar farm off to fegal to which the Board opted to meet
with the Planning Board prior to a regular meeting in April or May.

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6 March 22, 202.2‘_ ,




14. Dates for the Next Board of Selectmen’s Meetings
April 12, 2022
April 14, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. — Comprehensive Plan Workshop
April 26, 2022

15. Adjourn

Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to adjourn the meeting at 7:25 P.M.; second from
Selectman McHatton. 3 approve/0 oppose (Selectman Packard was absent for this vote)

Respectfully submitted,

Laurie L, Chadbourne
Town Clerk

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6 March 22, 2022



TOWN OF BRIDGTON COMMITTEE APPLICATION
3 Chase Street, Suite 1
Bridgton, Maine 04009
207-647-8786
www.bridgtonmaine.org

Interested in participating on the /f//’j & ///75 Commitiee.

Applicant’s Name: ﬂm% /754/);2/(/
Address: _ 14 /Q/ﬁ/ﬁﬂ e /
Phone (Day): JOK- p2- 7398 (Evening)
b-mail address: _0/A0) 9372 gman/- com

Personal background information (education, related experience, etc.)

Aobrer afr | o, 4 1 /M St @///ddq Attler c)f Ahss /é(,/%ﬁgﬂ

Occupation: /é%/f {’//

What goal and objectives do you have for this Committee? Jo 12 v 1S 7é
wid My assombd gests

i

Other Information: 2 _ /z:é?fV?(/ IS g S Spr7 /ﬁ/ ﬁt‘—”f 277 f 4TS v

U o) S pubst sty 4 szt ?/ﬁé’/ﬂ%gz oA F
V& /g/%(?/ L7y

Availability for Meetings:  [@Late Afternoons EX”Evenings E'Weekdays

g//% %’z/a ﬂz) J | & [r20=2

/ Applicant’s Signature Date




To: Board of Selectmen
From: Recycling Committee
Re: Recommendation of Patti Howard to join the Recycling Committee

The Bridgton Recycling Committee is fortunate that a new full-time resident, Patti
Howard, has chosen to volunteer her time to help our town. As a retiree from the
waste to energy industry in Massachusetts, her 30 years of experience in this field
will bolster our committee as we seek to convince town citizens that Pay Per Bag
will be good for all of us. A member of MA Recycle, she worked as a liaison
between MA towns and the waste industry to reduce and manage trash and
recycling. I and the other members of the Bridgton Recycling Committee look
forward to accessing Patti’s experience and knowledge especially during this
critical time before the June referendum on Pay Per Bag and beyond. For these
reasons, we heartily recommend Patti to be a part of our committee and look

forward to her formal approval by the Board of Sclectmen at the April 12* board
meeting.

Sally Chappell, Chairperson

Bridgton Recycling Committee




April 4, 2022

Board of Selectmen
Town of Bridgton

3 Chase Common, Suite 1
Bridgton, ME 04009

Dear Board of Selectmen and Bridgton Residents,

I am reluctantly submitting my official resignation from the Community Development Advisory
Committee.

The fond memories of serving this committee and my town for at least two decades are vivid.
The town of Bridgton is my passion. Coming from military service, it is the place I call home.

I am grateful for the opportunities to serve my beloved town, to engage with the people of
Bridgton, and to contribute to a better Bridgton.

Respectfully,
i .
Nelle Ely C

53 Portland Road
Bridgton, ME 04009



Laurie Chadbourm_e_

From: Christina Gaumont <christina.gaumont@lakeregionschools.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 5, 2022 2:42 PM

To: Laurie Chadbourne

Subject: Storm Drain Project

Attachments: Storm Drain Project Propsal .pdf

You don't often get email from christina.gaumont@Ilakeregionschools.org. Learn why this is important

|
i
|
Hello Laurie,

The Interact Club of Lake Region High School is hoping to be added to the select board meeting agenda for Tuesday,
April 12th. Attached is our proposal.

Please let me know if you have any questions, and thank you for your time.

Best,
Christina

Christina Gaumont, M.S.Ed.
She/Her/Hers

Humanities Teacher

Social Studies Department Head
Interact Club & Yearbook Advisor
Lake Region High School

(207) 693-6221



. Storm Drain Project Proposal =

The Lake Region Interact Club

Storm Drain Project

Bridgton, Maine

Contact Information:

Christina Gaumont, Interact Club Advisor, christina.gaumont@lakeregionschools.org
Abigail Earle, Interact Ciub Advisor, abigail.carle@lakeregionschools.org

Abigail Elsaesser, Interact Club President, abigail.elsaesser@lakeregionschools.org

Project description

The Interact Club of Lake Region High School is proposing to paint stencils next to the storm drains throughout town to
inform community members that the storm drains in town drain to Stevens Brook. The Interact Club would like to begin
by painting the storm drains in the following arcas: Main Street (37), Depot Street (7), near the Community Cenier (4), and
near the library (1). The stencil used will be approximately 18” by 18” and will be painted using a yellow or white paint
that is recommended for roadways. All funding and materials for this project will be provided by The Lake Region Interact
Chub and the Lakes Environmentat Association.

Proposed Stencil

Project Objective

The goal of this project is to inform members of the public that the storm drains throughout the community drain to
Stevens Brook, which drains to the lake, We hope that if the public is aware of this it will reduce the amount of litter and
waste that ends up in the storm drains, which will ultimately help to protect the environment, animals, and people in the
community.

Implementation schedule
The Interact Chub will distribute information to the public two weeks prior {0 the project. The actual painting will occur

after the Bridgton Public Works Department has completed the street sweeping for the spring season, after Memorial Day
Weekend.

Sustainabhility
The Interact Club plans to make this an annual or biennial project, repainting the stencils as they fade.

Why is this important?

We believe the storm drain project is important because it will help inform the public about the importance of not dumping
toxic substances or littering into the roadways and drains. The water from the lake is used by the wildiife and people of the
communily for various purposes, and we believe that it is crucial that the water is kept clean,

Thank you for your consideration!
The Lake Region Interact Club




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO: Angela Stover, a resident of Maine School Administrative District No. 61: In the name
of the State of Maine you are hereby required to notify the voters of the Town of Bridgton of the
Public Hearing described in this Notice of Public Hearing,

TO THE VOTERS OF THE TOWN OF BRIDGTON: Take notice that the School Board of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61 shall conduct a Public Hearing in accordance with
the following schedule:

DATE TIME LOCATION OF PUBLIC HEARING

May 2, 2022 6:30 p.m. Lake Region Vocational Center, 1879
Roosevelt Trail, Naples, Maine

The Public Hearing shall be conducted on the following article which will be the subject of a
referendum vote on May 24, 2022,

Article 1: Do you favor authorizing the School Board of Maine School Administrative
District No. 61 {the “District™) to issue bonds and other evidences of indebtedness
in the name of the District in an amount not to exceed $744,950 through the State
of Maine’s zero interest rate/loan forgiveness School Revolving Renovation Fund
Program for Priority 1 Health, Safety and Compliance renovations, repairs, and
improvements to Lake Region High School (including asbestos mitigation and
ADA accessibility), Lake Region Middle School ( including indoor air quality and
ADA accessibility), and Stevens Brook Middle School (including ADA
accessibility and other life safety) (collectively, the “Project”)?

A. Zero Interest/Loan Forgiveness Program: The Maine Department of
Education has approved the District for loans in the amount of $744,950
through the State’s zero interest rate/loan forgiveness School Revolving
Renovation Fund Program for the Project.

B. Loan Forgiveness: The Maine Department of Education will forgive 30% (up
to an estimated $223,485) of the total approved loan amounts.

C. Interest Free Loan. The District will be obligated to repay approximately 70%
(up to an estimated $521,465) of the total approved loan amount over a ten-
year term. The State of Maine has agreed to lend these funds and to permit
repayment at zero interest.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




Signed and dated at Naples, Maine on April 4, 2022.

LIl B — e (M

Sela @ .Nt\\r-\(/\‘\ | 74/2(1/ $etue

L4

Y
A majm‘@ of the S1:l1/001 Board of Maine School Administrative District No. 61

A true copy of the Notice of Public mw Qmw
Hearing, attest:

Angela 0veﬂﬂ1dént of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61



WARRANT TO CALL
MAINE SCHOOIL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 61

BUDGET MEETING
(20-A MLR.S. § 1485)

TO:  Angela Stover, a resident of Maine School Administrative District No. 61 (the “District”)
composed of the Towns of Bridgton, Casco and Naples, State of Maine.

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify the voters of each of the
municipalities within the District, namely, the Towns of Bridgton, Casco, and Naples, that a
District Budget Meeting will be held at Lake Region High School, 1877 Roosevelt Trail, Naples,
Maine at 6:30 p.m. on May 10, 2022 for the purpose of determining the Budget Meeting Articles
for the 2022-2023 fiscal year set forth below.

ARTICLE 1A: To elect a moderator to preside at the meeting.

ARTICLES 1 THROUGH 11
AUTHORIZE EXPENDITURES IN COST CENTER CATEGORIES

ARTICLE 1: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Regular
Instruction.
School Board Recommends $ 10,844,856

ARTICLE 2: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Special
Education.
School Board Recommends § 5,934,292

ARTICLE 3: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Career and
Technical Education.
School Board Recommends $ 1,945,863

ARTICLE 4: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Other
Instruction. :
Schooi Board Recommends $ 728,979

ARTICLE §: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Student and
Staff Support. _
School Board Recommends $ 2,730,270

ARTICLE 6: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for System
Administration.
School Board Recommends $ 1,011,793

ARTICLE 7: To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for School
Administration.
School Beard Recommends § 1,680,899




ARTICLE 8:

ARTICLE 9:

ARTICLE 10:

ARTICLE 11:

To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Transportation
and Buses.
School Board Recommends $ 1,934,956

To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Facilities
Maintenance.
School Board Recommends $ 3,416,258

To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for Debt Service
and Other Commitments.
School Board Recommends $ 1,855,853

To see what sum the District will be authorized to expend for All Other

Expenditures, including Community Use of Facilities.
School Board Recommends $ 50,000,

ARTICLES 12 THROUGII 14

RAISE FUNDS FOR THE PROPOSED SCHOOL BUDGET

ARTICLE 12:  To see what sum the District will appropriate for the total cost of funding
public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential
Programs and Services Funding Act and to see what sum the District will raise
and assess as each municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding
public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential
Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine Revised
Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688.
Recommended amounts set forth below:

Total Appropriated Total Raised (and District assessments by

(by municipality): municipality):

Town of Bridgton: $ 7,920,598 Town of Bridgton: $ 6,981,714

Town of Casco: $ 5,313,793 Town of Casco: $ 4,477,044

Town of Naples: $ 7,211,138 Town of Naples: $ 5,304,452

Total Appropriated Total Raised

(sum of above) $20,445,529 (sum of above) $16,766,210

Explanation: The District’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is
the amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount ihat the District must
raise and assess in ovder io receive the full amount of state dollars.



ARTICLE 13:  To see what sum the District will raise and appropriate for the annual

payments on debt service previously approved by the District voters for non-
state-funded school construction projects or non-state-funded portions of
school construction projects in addition to the funds appropriated as the local
share of the District’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education
from kindergarten to grade 12.

School Board Recommends $ 1,855,853

Explanation: Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual
payments on the District’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects that are

not approved for state subsidy. The bonding of this long-term debt was previously approved by
the District voters.

ARTICLE 14:  (Written ballot required.) To see what sum the District will raise and

appropriate in additional local funds (Recommend $4,759,265) which
exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model by $
4,759,265 as required to fund the budget recommended by the School Board.

The School Board recommends $4,759,265 for additional local funds and gives the following
reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model by $4,759,265:

1.

2.

N

$586,811 is the Teacher Retirement piece at 4.16% that was previously paid by
the State.

Co-curricular and Extra-curricular activities: The State has supported an average
of 10% statewide; SAD 61 receives about 9%.

Additional staffing district wide: staffing above the EPS minimums in the
following areas: teachers, clerical, educational technicians (permanent
substitutes), guidance and administration and seven workshop days per teacher
and four workshop days per educational technician are not covered under the EPS
formula.

Substitute pay: The State allocates half a day per student. This does not cover
long term absences due to lengthy medical leaves for long-term illnesses or for
maternity leave where substitutes are paid at a higher rate.
Operations/maintenance of seven (7) District facilities.

Transportation: (includes special education transportation). This amount would
encompass late buses, summer school, bus driver workshop days and our bus
safety program,

Special Education: This additional amount is partly due to year old student
information, summer school, scheduling and reduced financial support at the
Federal and State levels.

Technology: This includes the District initiative to provide laptops to every
student grades six (6) through twelve (12), (of which grades seven (7), eight (8)
and teachers grades seven (7) through twelve (12), are paid by the State); make
laptops and iPads available at the K-5 grade level and to support technology
integration into the core learning areas including, English, Math, Science and
Social Studies.




Explanation: The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the
District’s local contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to
grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounts
raised for the annual payment on non-state funded debt service that will help achieve the
District’s budget for educational programs.

ARTICLE 15 RAISES FUNDS FOR OTHER PROGRAMS SUPPORTED BY THE
SCHOOL BUDGET

ARTICLE 15:  (Written ballot required). In addition to the amount in Article 14, to see
what sum the District will raise and appropriate in additional local funds to
keep District facilities open for community and other programs on Saturdays
and school vacations (Recommend $50,000) which exceeds the State’s
Essential Programs and Services funding model by $ 50,000 as required to
fund the budget recommended by the School Board.

The School Board recommends $50,000 for additional local funds and gives the following
reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model by $50,000:
The cost to keep SAD 61 facilities open for community and other uses on Saturdays and school
vacations is not included in the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model.

Explanation: The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the
District's local contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to
grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounis
raised for the annual payment on non-state funded debt service that will help achieve the
District’s budget for educational programs.

ARTICLE 16 SUMMARIZES THE PROPOSED SCHOOL BUDGET

ARTICLE 16:  To see what sum the District will authorize the School Board to expend for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023 from the
District’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services
Funding Act, non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local
funds for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A,
section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, state subsidy and other
receipts for the support of schools.
School Board Recommends § 32,134,019

ARTICLE 17 AUTHORIZES THE ADULT EDUCATION PROGRAM
AND RAISES THE LOCAL SHARE

ARTICLE 17:  Shall the District appropriate $555,607 for adult education and raise $284,868
as the local share, with authorization to expend any additional, incidental, or
miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the well-being of the adult
education program?

School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.



ARTICLE 18 AUTHORIZES EXPENDITURES OF
GRANTS AND OTHER RECEIPTS

ARTICLE 18: In addition to amounts approved in the preceding articles, shall the School
Board be authorized to expend such other sums as may be received from
federal or state grants or programs or other sources during the fiscal year for
school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not
require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated?

School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.

ARTICLE 19 AUTHORIZES A TRANSFER TO AND EXPENIMTURE FROM THYE
CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

ARTICLE 19:  Shall the School Board be authorized to transfer $400,000 from available
undesignated fund balances to the Capital Reserve Fund and to expend
$500,000 from the Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of building a District
Storage Facility near the Bus Garage on the Lake Region High School
campus?

School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.

ARTICLE 20 AUTHOQRIZES A TRANSFER TO AND EXPENDITURE FROM THE
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

ARTICLE 20:  Shall the School Board be authorized to transfer $200,000 from available
undesignated fund balances to the Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund and to
expend $200,000 from the Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund for the
purpose of building a District Storage Facility near the Bus Garage on the
Lake Region High School campus?

School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.

ARTICLE 21 ESTABLISHES AND AUTHORIZES A TRANSFER TO THE
REGULAR INSTRUCTION RESERVE FUND

ARTICLE 21:  Shail the School Board be authorized to establish a Regular Instruction
Reserve Fund and to transfer $300,000 from available undesignated fund
balances to that reserve fund?

School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.




ARTICLE 22 AUTHORIZES CONTINGENCY FUND TRANSFERS

ARTICLE 22: Shall the School Board be authorized to transfer the District’s unallocated
balances in excess of 3% of the prior fiscal year’s budget, as determined by
audit, to the District’s non-lapsing contingency fund for periods of financial
emergency pursuant to section 1482-B(3) of Title 20-A; and shall the District
delegate authority to the School Board to expend sums in the contingency
fund when the School Board determines by public vote that an emergency
need exists, and to transfer sums in the contingency fund to the District’s

general fund for use in school operating budgets approved by District voters?
School Board Recommends a “Yes” vote.

Given under our hand this day, April 4, 2022, at Naples, Malne

2 R M/ >«/M¢zao( M

9 3 ¥ mezw@mu O
S NS e

A majority of the School Board of*}

istrative District No. 61. A true copy of
the Warrant, attest:

‘ \\Y\\l\h_‘

Maine School Administrative District No. 61




Georgiann M Fleck

From: Todd Perreault

Sent: Friday, March 25, 2022 3:25 PM
To: Georgiann M Fleck

Subject: Workshop

I would like to request a meeting with the selectboard on Friday April 19 1 at 2 if possible to review the EOP and other
plans.

Thank you

Todd

Get Outlook for Android

~




Laurie Chadbourne

From; Laurie Chadbourne
Sent: Friday, March 11, 2022 10:44 AM
To: Bridgton News
Subject: public hearing
Town of Bridgton

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Municipal Officers of the Town of Bridgton will hold a Public Hearing at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 to

accept oral and written comments on a special amusement permit application from Bridgton Highlands Country Club (379
Highland Road) for live music and entertainment.

Piease advertise on March 31, 2022,
Kindly confirm receipt.

Thank you,
Laurie

Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk

Town of Bridgton

3 Chase Street, Suite 1

Bridgton, ME 04009

Voice (207) 647-8786 Fax (207) 647-8789
www.bridgtonmaine.org

L b




Laurie Chadbourne

From: lLaurie Chadbourne

Sent; Friday, March 11, 2022 9:48 AM
To: Bridgton News

Subject; public hearing

Town of Bridgton
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Municipal Officers of the Town of Bridgton will hold a Public Hearing at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 to
accept oral and written comments on a special amusement permit application from Stella’s on the Square (6 North High
Street) for live music and entertainment.

Please advertise on March 31, 2022.
Kindly confirm receipt.

Thank you,
Laurie

Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk

Town of Bridgton D
3 Chase Street, Suite 1 - {F
Bridgton, ME 04009

Voice (207) 647-8786 Fax (207) 647-8789

www, bridgtonmaine.org




/

TOWN OF BRIDGTON W*/V/

TO: Board of Selectmen Q | MEMO

FROM: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk
RE: Business Licenses
DATE: April 6, 2022

April 12,2022 Select Board Agenda Item 8. Action Items Following Public Hearing

a. Bridgton Highlands Country Club
379 Highland Road
Special Amusement Permit
CEO [X Fire [X] Police XI Town Clerk

b. Stella’s on the Square
6 North High Street
Special Amusement Permit
CEO Fire Police [X] Town Clerk

Complete applications are on file at the Town Clerk’s Office and available for Select Board review.

Town Clerk’s Office * 3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, ME 04009 * lchadbourne@bridgtonmaine.org




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
TO: Board of Selectmen

FROM: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Tow rk
RE: Business Licenses
DATE: April 6, 2022 Q

April 12, 2022 Select Board Agenda Item 9.b.1. Business Licenses

a. Maine Only Cannabis Shop
316 Portland Road, Suite 4

Medical Marijuana Caregiver Retail Store Permit
CEO [XI Fire X] Police [X]I Town Clerk

b. Green Topper Grower’s Inc.
27 Sandy Creek Road

Medical Marijuana Multiple Registered Caregiver Facility
CEO [X Fire Xl Police X] Town Clerk

¢. Chao Thai Restaurant
244 Main Street
Victualer’s License
CEO Fire Police Town Clerk

d. Sammy’s Scoops
187 Main Streef
Victualer’s License
CEO Fire Police Town Clerk

e. Mack’s Place, Inc.
66 Portland Road
Victualer’s License
CEO Fire Police Town Clerk

Complete applications are on file at the Town Clerk’s Office and available for Select Board review.

Town Clerk’s Office * 3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, ME 04009 * [chadbowrne@@bridgtonmaine.org




1S UOPERHOIN [ G0y

pIEoEq JoUIPaR] D) uEnLIEYD) 321/ ‘VLWPIEZ Y WUI[D)

Soiom], "y ned _ UBHLIRY)) QUOT " USUWIE))

7707 ‘71 [UdY U0 UstII09[ag/sI0SSasSy U0ISpLg 9y Aq paaoidde a1e sjusuIeleqe Xe) JO 181] payoEne Sy

66°FLTES P66°61CS S[EI0L
"m0 JUGLw 343 O} Ju0s SEA J|1q XEl [eRFL0 ST 0L EVIS 08565 | [PIUEq TURwpIg V9TOG-6100 00L Sd | 0T0T-610C
ToWAO JHOLM SU 03 JUSS SEM {[1q XEJ [BWZLO YT +°938T8 COT6IS o PR BRIl Y9T00-6100 00LT 3 120Z-0T0Z
IoUmO JUOL BIR OF JUSS SEA J[1q ¥E) TRMEL0 s | L5°E80% 091°618 A [RluE( "URgaL | V9T00"6100 0047 Jd | TTOE-150%T
“I51¥2 10U 520D 10] YL 00'765% 000°0FS EUEBN "TULOOL] [-¥1100-8000 £56r Id | 610T-8102
151X J0U SA0pP 10] 2L 00°009¢ C00"0tS EHE[A] THISDL] [-¥{100-8000 te6F 9 0zT0T-610¢
ISR 10U S0P 0] YL 66'009% 00T°0FS CUEA TR 1-V1100-8000 £o6F 9o | [202-070L
ISIXD 10U S0P 10} YL 96't65% 00T0rS TURN TR 1-V 11008000 €e6r 9o | TTOCTIC0L
“OT0Z/ 177 01 101 paso[s Sem ssoulsng L T8Yes 099°1§ U SUIAANG 6# dd 6 dd | [Z0T-0202
1200 P2IDARI0D FU: O3 POSSISSE SEM PUE] L 18°8¥VI$ PEQOIS MIIPUY "D{SIBSNIS Y9£00-$000 5868 I | 61028102
UoSEoy | Xel PREgy INEA PAIRAY By ORI | #0030y TED 4 NEJ

-a8ed
a1 Jo wonoq Y Je feaoidde Jo smieudis moA uodn Juas 2q (] PaIs]| srkedxe) o) 0} SI9)R] [ENPIAIPY] "2]qe) oYl Aq pajtoddns ore pue Aea SJUSTIjEqR
XE] [ETIPIAIPUL 91} JOJ SJUNOIUE PUE SUOSEIX 3], "PSPUSLULIOIAT Sk M0[9q PIISI] SIUSWSIeqe Xe) 3y} aao01dde 01 UOUIIO9]9S/S10SSISSY S} Sunsanbar aIe o

68L8-L¥9-L0T X8I 98L8-L¥9-L0T FUOUJ (60010 QUIBN ‘TOISPU T 1§ “1§ 38eYD ¢

200 BuIssessy NOLOATId 40 NMOL

INNANVIOWHIA




SUPPLEMENTAL TAX CERTIFICATE
Title 36 M.R.S.A. Section 713

We, the undersigned, Assessors of the Municipality of Bridgton, hereby certify that the
foregoing list of estates and assessments thereon, recorded in page 1 through 1 of this
book, were either invalid, void or omitted by mistake from our original invoice and
valuation and list of assessments dated the 13th day of July, 2021, that these lists are
supplemental to the aforesaid original invoice, valuation and list of assessments dated
the 13th day of July, 2021, and are made by virtue of Title 36, Section 713, as
amended.

Given under our hands this 12th day of April 2022.

MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR(S)

Carmen E. Lone, Chairman

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman

Paul A. Tworog

G. Frederick Packard

Robert J. McHattan Sr.

*Attach this form to the inside of the valuation book with a list of persons and their
estates,



1€°EELS
"I2UAM0 SUOIM 311 O] 1428 SBAL [[1q XEl [BurSuo 1] L 0LE1S
“29uUMm0 SUOIM DY) O JUDS SEAL 11q X2l [eUISLI0 YT ++'98TS
JAUMO SUOIM I} OF 1UAS SEM (]I XE] {RUISHIO H L8'E8eS

085S 0 05 08s'ss
091'61§ s 08 0917618
0961s  0F o8 091618

UOSERY . NEJ [BI MU 32U u3s a0U: 1dURND M3 BUIP|ING MAU. PHE[ MU

S[E)0 ]

17 senuiadold sunsiag
77 sanussdorg AUNSId(]
311 Auztumo& umsm._om

_..m=.=o

Y9T00-6100°
Y9T00-6100,

VOTO0-6100
jopdewr

00LT 3
0oLt Y

60LT Y
junoyae

T S T
Sl LT T e [T T D R I i Sl i

Juswijiwiwo) [ejuawaiddng

2w wEC0T-Z L~y uoibpug Jo umo]




SUPPLEMENTAL TAX WARRANT
Title 36 M.R.S.A., Section 713

County of Cumberland

To Raobert A. Peabody, Jr., Tax Collector of the Municipality of Bridgton, within said
County of Cumberland

GREETINGS:

Hereby are committed to you a true list of the assessments of the estates of the persons
hereinafter named. You are hereby directed to levy and collect each of the persons
named in said list his respective portion, therein set down, of the sum of: Seven
hundred thirteen and thirty one cents ($713.31), it being the amount of said list; and
all powers of the previous warrant for the collection of taxes issued by us to you and
dated 13th day of July, 2021 are extended thereto; and we do hereby certify that the list
of assessments of the estates of the persons named in said list is a supplemental
assessment faid by virtue of Title 36, Section 713, as amended and the assessments
and estates thereon as set forth in said list were either invalid, void or omitted by

mistake from the original list committed unto you under our warrant dated 13th day of
July, 2021,

A'Given under our hands this 12th day of April 2022.

MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR(S)

Carmen E. Lone, Chairman

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman

Paul A. Tworog

G. Frederick Packard

Robert J. McHattan Sr.

*Submit this form to the Tax Coilector with a list of persons and their estates.



Annual Report for Tax Year Aptil 1, 2021 — March 31, 2022_
Affordable Housing Tax Increment ¥inancing District
Submission Deadline of Apsil 30, 2022

Municipality: Town of Bridgton, Maine

Municipal official submitting this repott:

Carmen Lone

Printed name

Signature

Title:

Mailing address:

Phone numbet:
Email address:

Chair Bridgton Selectboard

Date

3 Chase Street, Bridgton, ME 04009

207-803-99858 (Town Office)

selectmanlone@bridgtonmaine.org

Name of Affordable Housing Development District:

15 Harrison Road Municipal Affordable Housing Development and Tax Increment

Date the municipal legislative body approved this Report (not the District):

, 20

In submitting this report, the legislative body of the municipalily certifies that the public purpose of the affordable
honsing district is being met and that the vequired honsing affordability and other conditions of approva, ineluding
Jimitations on uses of tax: bicrement revenses for approved development project costs, set forth in the Cerlificate of
Approval isswed by Maine State Fonsing Anthority for the District and the related Affordable Housing
Development Program are being maintained,

Status of affordable housing within the District: ““Affordable” means for honsebolds earning no more
than 120% area median incomse.

Type of housing unit | # of Existing | # of Existing | - # of Planned | # of Planned
oo o affordable oy -market units affordable units | market units -~
Sl aaie e
Rental (family) 448 (town-wide) | 897 (town-wide) 0 estimated 34
Rental (senior) in above in above 48 (in district) in above
Owned home/condo |3159 (town-wide); 3413 (in above) 0 estimated 89

02-07-2022




Please list property sales within the District (NOTE: impact on affordability is not required by
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above):

$0 The planned affordable housing project has a start date of June 2023 based on funding award.

Please describe any changes from what was desctibed in the approved Development
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope ot timing of development
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice.

No changes within the District from what was described pending construction of the project.

02-07-2022



Crabtree Mountain Realty
Account: 228

Map:3 Lot:29

To Whom It May Concern,

t am writing this letter in hopes with the payment of $1,805.44 that | will be able to reclaim my
property. Due to COVID-19 and the resuiting hardships, | was unable to pay the taxes owed.

With the amount enclosed to bring the past due current, | am hoping that | will be able to keep
my land. Going forward, 1 will pay my taxes quarterly, in the amount owed, on or before said due date.

Thank you for your understanding.

Dexter Lee

-F-a3033-




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
THREE CHASE STREET, SUITE #1
BRIDGTON, MAINE 04009

Phone- 207-647-8786
Fax- 207-647-8789

MEMO

TO: Board of Selectmen

CC: Robert A. Peabody, Jr. Town Manager
FROM: Brenda Day, Code Enforcement Officer
RE: Tax Acquired Property

67 Fosterville Rd Map 3 lot 29
DATE: April 4, 2022

On April 4, 2022, I did a drive by inspection at 67 Fosterville Rd. located on
Tax Map 3 Lot 29.

This is land only which currently has a RV park on it.

I have made the property owner aware that if they stay in the RV for more
than 120 days, they will need to install a septic system.

My recommendation is to release the deed back to Crabtree Mtn Realty
Trust/Dexter Lee.



QUITCLAIM DEED
Without Covenant

‘The Town of Bridgton, a body corporate and politic in the County of Cumberland and State of Maine, for
consideration paid, RELEASES to Crabtree Mountain Realty Trust, with a mailing address of P.O. Box
372, Swan’s I[sland, ME 04685, without Quitclaim Covenant, all its right, title, and interest in and to a certain
lot or parcel of land, together with any buildings or improvements thereon, situated at 67 Fosterville Road in the
‘Town of Bridgton, County of Cumberland and State of Maine, being identified as Tax Map 3, Lot 29 on the
2021 Assessors’ Tax Commitment.

Meaning and intending to convey all the same premises which the said Grantor acquired by virtue of a Tax Lien
assessed against Crabtree Mountain Realty Trust and in favor of the Town of Bridgton, recorded on July 22, 2019
and recorded in Book 35818, Page 97 in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds, and a Tax Lien assessed against
Crabtree Mountain Realty Trust and in favor of the Town of Bridgton, recorded July 28, 2020 and recorded in Book
36979, Page 285 in said Registry of Deeds.

Witness my hand and seal this 12% day of April 2022.

Inhabitants of the
TOWN OF BRIDGTON
By: Carmen E. Lone, Chairman
Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice-Chairman
Municipal Officers

G. Frederick Packard

Robert J. McHatton, Sr.

Paul A. Tworog
STATE OF MAINE
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND ss. April 12, 2022

Then personally appeared the above-named Municipal Officers of the Town of Bridgton, Carmen E. Lone,
Glenn R. Zaidman, G. Frederick Packard, Robert J. McHatton, Sr., and Paul A. Tworog, and acknowledged the

foregoing to be their free act and deed in their said capacity, and the free act and deed of the Inhabitants of said
Municipality.

Before me,

Laurie Chadbourne
Notary Public, State of Maine
My Commission Expires November 14, 2026




CERTIFICATE OF COMMITMENT OF SEWER USER RATES
COMMITMENT #262

April 2022
Route 3

To: Robert A. Peabody, Jr., the Treasurer of the Municipality of Bridgton, Maine.

Attached is a true list of the sewer rates established by us pursuant to 30-M.R.S. § 3406 for
those properties, units and structures on Route 3, required by local and State Law to pay a
sewer rate to the municipality, for the period beginning 1 Jan 2022 and ending 30 March
2022. This list is comprised of 3 pages which are attached to this certificate.

The date on which the rates included in this list are due and payable is 27 May, 2022.
You are hereby required to collect from each person named in the attached list, his or her
respective amount as indicated in the list; the sum-total being $ 3,765.29. You are hereby
required to charge interest at a rate of 6.0% per annum on any unpaid account balance.
You are hereby authorized to collect these rates and any accrued interest by any means
legally available to you under State Law.

Given under our hands this 27% day of April 2022.

Carmen Lone, Chair

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice-Chair

G. Frederick Packard

Paul Tworog

Robert McHatton, Sr.



LI 22 RIYE

Lo e e

Page 1
Seq Previous Current Cons Water Sewer Total Acet Name Location
Book # 3 i -
. ¥ 53500 54700 1200 0.00 140.68 140.68 339 HARTIGAN, LISAM 1 KANSAS RD,
0024-00928
*2 16385 19544 3159 0.00 307.85 307.85 530 MCIVER 295 MAIN ST.
PROPERTIES, LLC
0024-0102
*3 0 1861 1861 0.00 460,15 460.15 535 PARA, LLC 292 MAIN ST,
0024-0034
*4 0 i210 1210 0.00 141.03 141.03 534 PARA, LLC 292 MAIN ST.
0024-0034
*5 40775 62715 21940 0.00 1,160.91 1,160,591 536 N.R.E. GROUP, LLC 320 MAIN ST.
0024-0046
*6 5360 5805 445 0.00 114.33 114.33 547 MORSE, ELIZABETH 4 MEADOW ST.
F.
(1024-0014
*7 23240 28055 4815 0.00 266.84 266,84 714  NUMBERG, 342 MAIN ST,
ANTHONY )
0024-0048
*8 56000 98300 2300 0.00 179.07 179.07 568 MERRILL, ANGELA M 366 MAIN ST,
0024-0050
*9 78300 79000 700 0.00 123.23 123.23 778 MERRILL, ANGELA M 366 MAIN ST,
0024-0050
*10 0 6093 6093 0.00 31145 311.45 572 WARNER, JESSICA 1 GREEN ST,
0024-0068
*12 110900 111300 400 0.00 112.76 112.76 717 KIMBALL, DAN 3 PINE ST,
0024-0022
*13 97600 98100 500 0.00 116.25 116.25 718 MCLAUGHLIN, 3 PINE ST.
MICHAEL
0024-0022
*14 92605 95750 3145 0.00 208.56 208.56 570 STUART, THOMAS ] 377 MAIN ST,
0024-0096
*16 18470 19140 670 0.00 122.18 122,18 602 GRIGSBY, GREGORY 411 MAIN ST,
B
0024-0094
Boolt 3 Total: 0.00 3,765.29 3,765.29
Total: 0.00 3,765.29 3,765.29
Consumption Report
- - = - Sewer - -~ - -
Book SEWER RESRV EDL 4 5 6 7 8 g Toral
3 48,438 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,438
Total: 48,438 0 ] @ G LH 0 @ @ 48,438

* = Qverride



BUUBRL B G NG G
9:27:35 AM
Calculation Sumnmary Report
Water Sewey
Override 0.00 Override 0.00
Flat 0.00 Flat 0.00
Units 0.00 Units 2,074.80
Consumption 0.00 Consumption 1,690.49
Miscellaneous 0.00 Migcellaneous 0.00
Adjustments 0.00 Adjustiments 0.00
Tax 0.00 Tax 0.00
Total 0.00 Total 3,765.29
User Category Summary
Watker Sewer
Category Count Cons Amount Category Count Cons
1 SEWER METER 14 48438

U/ LULE
Page 2

Amount
3,765.29

* = Qverride



TOWN OF BRIDGTON

TO: Board of Selectmen

RE: Election Clerk Appointments

FROM: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk/Registrar of Voters
DATE: April 6, 2022

M.R.S. Title 21-A § 503-A states that the Municipal Officers shali appoint election clerks to
serve for two-year terms. To follow is a list of election clerks for appointment (as nominated by the
Municipal Committees of the Major Parties and as recommended by the Town Clerk):

Albrecht, Ashley / Republican
Bollen, Peter / Democrat
Castleman-Ross, Carrye / Democrat
Chapman, Nancy / Unenrolled
Codd, Patrick / Republican
Collins, D, Steve / Democrat
Curtis, Elizabeth / Democrat

Day, Sean / Republican

Dean, Karen / Democrat
Ferguson, Jamie / Democrat
Flaherty, Lawrence / Democrat
Fiaherty, Ursula / Democrat
Fianigan, Deborah / Democrat
Grigsby, Gregory / Democrat
Hagerman, Roxanna / Republican
Hubka, Mary / Democrat
Johnson, Ann / Democrat

Jones, Jeffrey Republican

Lopez, Tracey / Republican

2022-2024 Election Clerks
Name / Party Affiliation

Morris, Betsy / Democrat
Mortenson, Charles Peter / Democrat
Ordway, Laura / Democrat
Pelletier, Robert / Republican
Rock, Melissa / Democrat

Rock, Susan / Democrat

Ryan, Barbara / Democrat

Ryan, Robert / Democrat
Simpson, Charles / Democrat
Stockwell, Susan / Democrat
Stoddard, Dorothy / Republican
Tworog, Mary / Unenrolled
Waterhouse, Nancy / Republican
Wilkinson, Claire / Republican
Wilkinson, Robert / Republican
Wiser, Marguerite A. / Democrat
Wiser, Marita / Demacrat
Yindra, Jan / Republican




WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION CALLING
MAINE SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 61
BUDGET VALIDATION REFERENDUM
(20-A ML.R.S § 1486)

TO: Angela Stover, a resident of Maine School Administrative District No. 61 (the “District”)
composed of the Towns of Bridgton, Casco and Naples, State of Maine.

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby ordered to serve upon the municipal clerks of each of
the municipalities within the District, namely the Towns of Bridgton, Casco and Naples, an attested copy
of this warrant and notice of election, Service shall be in hand within three (3) days of the date of this
warrant and notice of election. The municipal clerks of the above municipalities shall immediately notify
the respective municipal officers. The municipal officers shall meet forthwith and countersign this warrant
and notice of election. The municipal officers shall provide below for the respective municipal clerks to
post or have posted this warrant and notice of election.

TOWN OF BRIDGTON
DISTRICT BUDGET VALIDATION REFERENDUM
WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION

Cumberland County, ss. - State of Maine

TO: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk of Bridgton: You are hereby required in the name of the

State of Maine to notify the voters of this municipality of the election described in this warrant and notice
of election.

TO THE VOTERS OF BRIDGTON: You are hereby notified that a District budget validation
referendum election will be held at the Bridgton Town Hall, 26 North High Street in the Town of Bridgton
on Tuesday, May 24, 2022, for the purpose of determining the following articles:

Article 1A:  To elect a moderator to preside at said meeting.

Article 1: Do you favor approving the Maine School Administrative District No. 61 budget for the
upcoming school year that was adopted at the latest District budget meeting?

Article 2: Do you wish to continue the budget validation referendum process in Maine School
Administrative District No. 61 for an additional three years?

INFORMATIONAL NOTE ON ARTICLE 2:

A “YES” vote will require Maine School Administrative District No. 61 to continue to conduct a
Referendum to validate its annual school budget for the next three years.

The voting on the forgoing except Article 1A shall be by secret ballot referendum. The polls must be
opened immediately after election of the moderator at 8:00 a.m. and closed at 8:00 p.m.



The Registrar of Voters shall hold office hours while the polls are open to correct any error in or change

a name or address on the voting list; to accept the registration of any person eligible to vote and to accept
new enroliments.

A person who is not registered as a voter may not vote in any election.

Given under our hand this day, April 4, 2022, at Naples, Maine

il SR T~ %@ﬁc

de.\_’?;@,\m S G@m@omnm%u

A majority of the School Board of Maine School Administrative District No. 61

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of

gela Qtover Redtdert of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61

Countersigned this day of , 2022 at Bridgton, Maine

A majority of the municipal officers of Bridgton, Maine

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of
Election attest:

Laurie L. Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk
Bridgton, Maine




RETURN

Cumberland County, ss.
State of Maine

TO: The Schoel Board of Maine School Administrative District No. 61
UrT L2022

L]

Pursuant to the within warrant and notice of election, directed to me, I have served in hand upon the
municipal clerk of Bridgton, an attested copy of this warrant and notice of election, directing the municipal
officers of said municipality to call a Maine School Administrative District No. 61 budget validation

referendum at said time and place for the purposes t thm

_Angela Stdver, Resident of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61

RETURN
Cumberiand County, ss. State of Maine
TO: To the municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton
I certify that I have notified the voters of the Town of Bridgton of the time and the place of the Maine
School Administrative District No. 61 budget validation referendum by posting an attested copy of the

within warrant and notice of election as follows:

DATE TIME LOCATION OF POSTING

being public and conspicuous places in said municipality and being at least seven days next prior to
election day.

Dated at Bridgton, Maine: , 2022,

Laurie L. Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk
Bridgton, Maine



WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION

CALLING MAINE SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 61 REFERENDUM
(20-A MLR.S. §§ 1501:04)

TO:  Angela Stover, a resident of Maine School Administrative District No. 61, composed of
the Towns of Bridgton, Casco, and Naples, State of Maine.

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby ordered to serve upon the municipal clerks of
each of the municipalities within Maine School Administrative District No. 61, namely, the
Towns of Bridgton, Casco, and Naples, an attested copy of this warrant and notice of election.
Service shall be in hand within three (3) days of the date of this warrant and notice of election.
The municipal clerks of the above municipalities shall immediately notify the respective
municipal officers. The municipal officers shall meet forthwith and countersign this warrant and
notice of election. The municipal officers shall provide below for the respective municipal
clerks to post or have posted this warrant and notice of election.

TOWN OF BRIDGTON
MAINE SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE DISTRICT NO. 61 REFERENDUM
WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION

Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

TO: Laurie Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk of the Town of Bridgton: You are hereby required
in the name of the State of Maine to notify the voters of this municipality of the election
described in this warrant and notice of election.

TO THE VOTERS OF THE TOWN OF BRIDGTON: You are hereby notified that a Maine
School Administrative District No. 61 referendum election will be held at the Bridgton Town
Hall, 26 N. High Street in the Town of Bridgton at 8:00 A.M. on Tuesday, May 24, 2022 for the
purpose of determining the following articles:

Article 1A:  To choose a moderator to preside at said meeting.

Article 1: Do you favor authorizing the School Board of Maine School Administrative
District No. 61 (the “District”) to issue bonds and other evidences of indebtedness
in the name of the District in an amount not to exceed $744,950 through the State
of Maine’s zero interest rate/loan forgiveness School Revolving Renovation Fund
Program for Priority 1 Health, Safety and Compliance renovations, repairs, and
improvements to Lake Region High School (including asbestos mitigation and
ADA accessibility), Lake Region Middle School  including indoor air quality and
ADA accessibility), and Stevens Brook Middle School (including ADA
accessibility and other life safety) (collectively, the “Project™)?

A. Zero Interest/Loan Forgiveness Program: The Maine Department of
Education has approved the District for loans in the amount of $744,950
through the State’s zero interest rate/loan forgiveness School Revolving -
Renovation Fund Program for the Project.

B. Loan Forgiveness: The Maine Department of Education will forgive 30% (up
to an estimated $223,485) of the total approved loan amounts.



C. Interest Free Loan. The District will be obligated to repay approximately 70%
(up to an estimated $521,465) of the total approved loan amount over a ten-
year term. The State of Maine has agreed to lend these funds and to permit
repayment at zero interest.

The voting on Article 1 shall be by secret ballot referendum. The polls will be opened
immediately after the election of the Moderator following commencement of the meeting at
8:00 A.M. and closed at 8:00 P.M.

The Registrar of Voters will hold office hours while the polls are open to correct any error in or
change a name or address on the voting list, to accept the registration of any person eligible to
vote, and to accept new enroliments.

A person who is not registered as a voter may not vote in any election.

Given under our hand this day, April 4, 2022 at Naples, Maine.

;\M :

For. Crares

I et
—Yarka

7~ A VRN

A majority of the School Board of Maine School Administrative District No. 61

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of
Election, attest:

Resident of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61

Countersigned this day of , 2022 at the Town of Bridgton,
Maine.

A majority of the municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of
Election, attest:

Lauric Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk
Town of Bridgton



RETURN

Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

TO: The Sch&c\)i B{ﬁ:d of Maine School Administrative District No. 61
,2022

Pursnant to the within warrant and notice of election, directed to me, | have served in hand upon
the municipal clerk of the Town of Bridgton, an attested copy of this warrant and notice of
election, directing the municipal officers of said municipality to call a Maine School
Administrative District No. 61 referendum at said time and place and for the purposes therein

stated.
AT
Angela Styver
Resident of
Maine School Administrative District No. 61
RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

TO: The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton

I certify that T have notified the voters of the Town of Bridgton of the time and place of the
Maine School Administrative District No. 61 referendum by posting an attested copy of the
within warrant and notice of election as follows:

DATE TIME LOCATION OF POSTING

being public and conspicuous places in said municipality and being at least seven days next prior
to election day.

Dated at the Town of Bridgton: , 2022

Laurie Chadbourne, Municipal Clerk
Town of Bridgton, Maine



To:
cc
From:
RE:
Date:

Town of Bridgton
Office of the Community Development Director

MEMORANDUM

Selectboard

Town Manager, Deputy Town Manager

Linda LaCroix, Community Development Director

June 2022 Town Meeting Proposed Ordinance Amendments
3/30/2022

Dear Selectboard,

In your packet for the April 12, 2022 meeting you will find the following proposed ordinance
amendments:

1.

Ordinance Establishing A Moratorium On Commercial Solar Energy Facilities. Please note that
after discussions with legal we have included a retroactivity clause to the draft moratorium you
reviewed at your last meeting. Included in your packet is email correspondence from Counsel on
this matter, which also addresses questions brought up at the last meeting concerning

applicability to private solar projects intended to serve a single entity: the moratorium will not
apply to such projects.

Amendments To Bridgton Land Use Code And Official Shoreland Zoning Maps To Correct
Errors And Add A Limited Commercial {Lc) Shoreland Zoning District. This final version has
additional edits to the draft you reviewed at your last meeting to correct typos and clarify
certain maps. included is correspondence from Counsel noting each of the changes.

Amendments To The Town Of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance.
Amendments To The Town Of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance.

Repeal Of The Town Of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance. On legal review we learned that a curfew
ordinance of any kind applying to youth is problematic unless it can be shown that there is a

significant concern. Counsel recommended repealing. We have included the email from iegal
with explanation.

3 Chase Street, Bridgton, Maine (4008
207-803-9956 {direct line} 207-595-3560 {mobile)
LLaCroix@BridgtonMaine.org



Linda LaCroix

S T i S

From: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>

Sent: Friday, March 25, 2022 3:34 PM

To: Linda LaCroix

Subject: RE: Solar Moratorium

Attachments: Bridgton Moratorium - Commercial Solar Energy Facilities (with retroactivity
clause).DOCX

Linda, if the Board wants a retroactivity clause, please use this version instead and ask the Board to select a
retroactivity date and fill in the blank with that date in paragraph 2 (the “Date of Applicability”). | would
recommend that this date correspond to either the date of the Board meeting when the Board directed
staff/legal to prepare a moratorium or the date the Board places the ordinance question on the warrant.

Thanks,
Aga

Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon

Attorney

207.253.0532 Direct | 207.713.6824 Cell
ADixon@dwmlaw.com

84 Marginal Way, Suite 600, Portiand, ME 04101
800.727.1941 | 207.772.3627 Fax | dwmlaw.com

DrummondWoodsum

ATTORANEYS AT LAW

The information transmitted herein is intended only for the person or entily to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged
material. Unintended transmission shall not constitute waiver of any privilege, including, without limitation, the attorney-client privilege if applicable. Any
review, refransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the e-mail and any attachments from any computer.

From: Linda LaCroix <llaCroix@bridgtonmaine.org>

Sent: Friday, March 25, 2022 12:12 PM

To: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Solar Moratorium

Ps — yes please | am certain the board will want the retroactivity clause as the risk you describe was discussed.

Linda L. LaCroix

Community Development Director

Town of Bridgton, 3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, Maine 04009
www.bridgtonmaine.org (207) 803-9956 (office) (207) 595-3560 (mobile)

From: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2022 5:28 PM

To: Linda LaCroix <llaCroix@bridgtonmaine.org>

Subject: RE: Solar Moratorium




P.S. Just curious, who drafted the moratorium for the Town?

From: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon

Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2022 5:25 PM

To: 'Linda LaCroix' <llaCroix@bridgtonmaine.org>
Cc: Victoria Hill <vhill@bridgtonmaine.org>
Subject: RE: Solar Moratorium

Hi Linda,

Attached is a revised moratorium ordinance that attempts to address the concern you flagged in your email,
below. In short, this moratorium would not stop the review of (i) residential solar facilities or (ii) small
commercial facilities with a nameplate capacity of 125 kW (DC) or less. For reference, I've attached a
document | prepared for another municipal client not so long ago that illustrates what 125 kW looks

like. Please let me know if this addresses the concern.

Note that this moratorium has a date of applicability of June 14, 2022, and there is no retroactivity
clause. Please flag for the BOS that this means that solar developers could submit an application prior to June
14 and, if the application is deemed complete by the Planning Board, the application would become a

“pending proceeding”—meaning it would not be affected by the moratorium. If the BOS wants a retroactivity
clause, let me know and | can insert it.

Thanks,
Aga

Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon
Attorney

207.253.0532 Direct | 207.713.6824 Cell
ADixon@dwmlaw.com

84 Marginal Way, Suite 600, Portland, ME 04101
800.727.1941 | 207.772.3627 Fax | dwmlaw.com

DrummondWoodsum

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The information transmitted herein is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged
material. Unintended transmission shall not constitute waiver of any privilege, including, without limitation, the attorney-client privilege if applicable. Any
review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the e-mail and any attachments from any computer.

From: Linda LaCroix <llaCroix@bridgtonmaine.org>

Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2022 3:25 PM

To: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>
Cc: Victoria Hill <vhill@bridgtonmaine.org>

Subject: Solar Moratorium

Greetings Aga — Last night the PB brought forward a proposed solar farm moratorium for Selectboard review and
approval to put on the June warrant. Now we are under crunch time ...



First the proposed article: Selectboard was fine with the language, pending legal review, with the exception of the
definitions of solar farm and commercial. What does not seem to be distinguished very well in the proposed definitions
is the difference between someone purchasing solar panels under the net metering program whereby they can hook up
to 14 locations on a single property to the grid under the program to serve those structures, and a commercial solar
farm sending power to the grid under a purchasing agreement with the receiving entity (CMP). The Selectboard would
like that language looked at to ensure that the reference to commercial solar farm clearly indicates the sale to a

receiving entity vs installation of panels to serve structures ona private property, even if a commercial business. | hope |
am making sense here ...

Timing is such that we would need to be able to notice a PB public hearing by March 31 in order to be able to have that
hearing at 4pm April 12, followed by the selectboard moving the moratorium question to the warrant. While they don’t
need it to move the question forward on the 12" we do need to have final language available on the date of notice for
the PB public hearing. Indeed the PB public hearing could also be delayed (I think) however the selectboard wants the
final document early enough to review prior to the 12t when they put the questions forward.

So in all your spare time are you able to review the proposed moratorium and get a final version to us by the 31°*? Thank
you as always.

Linda L. LaCroix

Community Development Director

Town of Bridgton, 3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, Maine 04009
www.bridgtonmaine.org (207) 803-9956 (office) (207) 595-3560 (mobile)

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this email as
spam.



COMMERCIAL SOLAR FACILITIES: BACKGROUND

Solar Lingo. Here are some frequently tossed-out words that have specific industry or legal meaning.
Familiarity with these terms will help you understand the choice of words in the draft amendments.

- Distributed generation resource (DGR) means a facility that generates electricity from renewable
sources.

- Utility-scale solar or grid-scale solar typically refers to farms have a system size of 1 MW or more
(SEIA definition) or 5 MW or more (NREL definition, Maine’s definition). Note that, generally
speaking, solar farms with a system size of 20 MW or above are required to compete in the wholesale
power markets with other generators like coal and natural gas. The Maine Legislature directed the
PUC to procure contracts for grid-scale renewables for roughly 500 MW.

_ Community solar or distributed solar or net energy billing typically refers to the state laws that
incentivize the purchase of solar energy by off-site customers who otherwise might not have access
to solar generation. Nationwide, the average community solar facility has a capacity of 2 MW. Under
Maine’s net energy billing law, community solar capacity is limited to 5 MW or less. In Maine, there
are two categories of net energy billing incentives:

o For residential customers, a customer can install solar panels on his/her home and is billed on

the difference between the kWh delivered to the residence and the kWh delivered to the
grid.

o For commercial and institutional customers, net energy billing refers to a system of monetary
credits (the “tariff rate”) that a customer receives and applies against its utility bill for
renewable electricity delivered to the grid in which the customer has a financial interest
(usually, a power purchase or net energy billing credits agreement).

In addition to expanding net energy billing, the Maine Legislature directed the PUC to procure up to
375 MW of community solar projects.

- Micro-grids are self-sufficient systems that serve a discrete area, such as a college campus, apartment
complex, industrial park. Usually, these have on-site energy storage (batteries) and are “behind the

meter” systems—meaning, they can be disconnected from the grid and can thus operate
independently.

- Behind-the-meter systems are paired with the energy load of a facility and supply that facility directly
with electricity.

Solar Farm Size: Solar Array Development Area (acreage) vs. Solar Farm Size (kW or MW).

Roughly speaking, a 1 MW solar farm in Maine typically requires about 5 acres of land if it is ground-
mounted and does not use solar trackers (size depends on the technology used). Note that, while solar

trackers can produce up to 30% more electricity than a farm without trackers, farms with solar trackers
use up more land area.

Projects in Maine arising from the new net energy billing law will range from 1 to 5 MWs, which would
require roughly 5 to 30 acres.

Using information about system performance and average annual electricity consumption per household
in each state, the SEIA calculates that, on average, a IMW solar farm would power roughly 125 homes in
(see https.//www.seia.org/initiatives/whats-megawatt) or a large school district in Maine.




The table, below, provides examples of solar farms constructed in Maine in recent years, and their
corresponding acreages (see also https://www.revisionenergy.com/projects/ and

https://www.nrcm.org/programs/climate/clean-energy/solar-power-in-maine/ for more examples). Note

that rooftop mounted solar panels typically don't take up the entire roof but sometimes the inverters and

battery systems are also installed on the roof.

Solar Farm Solar Farm Output (MW)

Solar Array Development Area

Whatley Farm 13.5 kW (45 panels)
(Topsham)

Roof-mounted

Red Brick House | 19.5 kW (60 panels)
(Brunswick)

Fore Street 29 kW (578 panels)
Garage (Portland)

Fedco Seeds 55 kW (176 panels)
(Clinton)

Camden Schools | 123 kW (351 panels)

Ground-mounted




Brunswick Air 1.5 MW (microgrid; 4,576 Approx. 5 acres
Base (MRRA) panels) Supplies energy to roughly 2 milion sf of
commercial/industrial space

GERNER 2 5

Landfill Project 1 MW (2,992 panels)
(South Portland)

Proximity to the Grid. The closer, the better. Project sites within a mile from an existing connection point
will be most competitive. The cost of connecting a solar farm to the grid increases based on circuit size or
distance from a substation. Upgrading connection lines can exceed $500,00 per mile.

MPUC Categorization of Distributed Generation Resources. The MPUC, under its Chapter 324 rules for
interconnection, uses the following categories to determine the level of technical/engineering review that
solar farms and other renewable facilities must undergo before being allowed to connect to the grid:

e Level 1: inverter-based generating facilities with a power rating of <25 kw
e Level 2: power rating of 2 MW or less
e Level 3: power rating of 10 MW or less

GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS WHEN REGULATING SOLAR FARMS

Towns without land use zoning typically regulate solar farms by including new provisions in their site plan
review ordinances. The approaches to regulation vary but, in general, the ordinances tend to focus on



application submission requirements, dimensional requirements (especially height limits and setbacks),

and performance standards {including technical and financial capacity, acreage and/or system size
restrictions, and decommissioning requirements).

Limits on Home Ruie Authority. Municipalities may broadly regulate solar farms under their home rule
authority, with one clear exception: Under Title 33, Chapter 28-A (§§ 1422 et seq.), ordinances may not
prohibit a person from installing or using a solar energy device on residential property, unless the
property is in common ownership with third parties or common elements of a condominium.

How Some Municipalities Categorize Solar Farms. Towns likewise take a varied approach in establishing
thresholds to determine which solar farms are allowed as of right (without a permit), which require site
plan review, and which ones are prohibited, Because nameplate capacity of solar farms will vary based
on factors such as location and the type of technology being used, it is preferable to locally regulate the
land use impacis of solar farms on the basis of the surface area or impervious area (acreage/square
footage) of a solar farm, rather than its nameplate capacity. For example:

- Freeport is in the process of amending its zoning ordinance. The most recently available draft would
allow as of right accessory solar arrays (roof- or ground-mounted, for onsite consumption), require
site plan review for solar farms with a development area of up to 30 acres {with fewer requirements
for farms less than 2 acres), and prohibit farms with a development area greater than 30 acres.

- Belfast categorizes solar farms as follows:
s large: 4+ acres, 1 MW
e  Medium: 20,000 sf—4 ac; 125 kw — 1MW
e Small: 20,000 sf; <125 kw (accessory use)

- Thorndike categorizes solar farms as follows:
s Accessory; 1750 sf surface area; 10 kW DC or less
s Principal/medium scale: »1750 sf— 40,000 sf surface area; 10— 250 kw
e Principal/large scale: >40,000 sf; >250 kw

- The Audubon Model Ordinance categorizes solar farms as follows:
¢ Small-scale: < 15,000 sf {1/3 acre}
¢  Medium-scale: <2 acres
o large-scale: 2+ acres

OVERVIEW OF PRELIMNINARY DRAFT AMENDMENTS
TO THE BLUE HILL COMMERCIAL SITE PLAN REVIEW ORDINANCE

» Thresholds for Permitting, Prohibitions, The attached draft bifurcates solar farms into two permitted
categories {accessory solar energy systems and local-scale solar farms) and one prohibited category
{large-scale solar farm). 1 have inserted the following thresholds for these categories as a starting
point for discussion:

o Accessory solar energy system: A “behind-the-meter” system serving the principal use or
structure on site. No size limits for roof-mounted systems: if ground-mounted, the solar land
area {defined term) must not excead 1/3 acre.



o

Local-scale solar farm: A solar farm whose solar land area doesn’t exceed 1 acre. This would
include: (1) any accessory sofar energy system whose solar land area exceeds 1/3 acre; {2)
any other type of “behind the meter” system such as a microgrid; and (3) any off-site system
serving the grid. May be roof- or ground-mounted.

Large-scale solar farm: A solar farm whose solar land area exceeds 1 acre. Prohibited.

These thresholds are structured to simplify the process for residential and commercial roof-mounted
project and facilitate “behind-the-meter” projects that support energy independence.

Dimensional Requirements. The current ordinance sets a 10-foot setback for permitted structures
and uses, except for campgrounds which have a more restrictive setback. | have inserted a setback
provision parallel to the campground requirements for the Board’s consideration. Ordinances also
frequently regulate maximum height of solar panels. 1was unable to locate a maximum height
requirement for any proposed structures, so | did not include this dimensional requirement for solar

farms.

Additional Performance Standards:

O

Decommissioning. Note that most community scale solar projects have a decommissioning
plan built into the lease agreement with the landowner. It should not be a significant burden
for a commercial solar developer to satisfy this requirement. 1 have suggested a hasic
decommissioning requirement that does not require any performance guarantees.

Safety. | have suggested some minor additional language to give the Board clear authority to
require signage, emergency contact information, fencing, Knox boxes, and similar safety
measures at the facility.

Technica! and financial capacity. | have suggested a general provision applicable to any
project requiring site plan review to address technical/financial capacity.



Linda LaCroix

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi everyone:

Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>

Monday, March 28, 2022 440 PM

Linda LaCroix; Brenda Day; bridgtonpb2@gmail.com

Grady R. Burns

Shoreland Zoning Materials for Tonight's Hearing

2022-03-28 LUC and SZ Map Amendments to Correct Errors and Add LC District.PDF

Please download and print the attached document, which contains the updated shoreland zoning

amendments.

This document should be introduced into the public hearing record tonight (this can be done by any member
of the Planning Board) and the PB should vote to incorporate the additional amendments shown in this draft
into the PB’s recommendation to the Select Board.

When you introduce this document into the record, you can summarize the additional changes as follows:

e Cover Page inserted

e Clarifying note on bottom of page ii

e Statutory requirement for pre-construction photographs of the shoreline vegetation and development
site, added to p. 7 (along with state law reference)

o (No further changes to edits on p. 54, 55, 56, or 57)

e Additional footnote inserted in LC district, “D. Commercial” and two footnotes corrected in GD-I and
GD-Il district, “E. Industrial” on p. 58

e New section “W. Photographic Record” added on p. 76 to comply with state law requirement for post-
construction photos of the shoreline vegetation and development site

e (No further changes to edits on p. 111, 112, or 136)

e Appendix A and B, and the official shoreland zoning maps have been annotated to clarify that only SZ
Maps D2 and D3 are proposed to be replaced.

Please also ask Laurie to certify this version.

Call my cell if you need anything else for tonight’s meeting.

Thanks,
Aga

Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon

Attorney

207.253.0532 Direct | 207.713.6824 Cell
ADixon@dwmlaw.com

84 Marginal Way, Suite 600, Portland, ME 04101
800.727.1941 | 207.772.3627 Fax | dwmlaw.com



Linda LaCroix

a e

From: Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon <ADixon@dwmlaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2022 2:09 PM

To: Linda LaCroix

Subject: Curfew ordinance - questions, and recommendation
Hi Linda,

I'm reviewing the Town’s curfew ordinance and wondering if the Town truly needs this ordinance. Juvenile
curfew ordinances raise significant constitutional concerns because they effectively restrict the right to free
movement. Minors who are not in state custody possess the fundamental right to free movement, just like
adults do. When a Town imposes a juvenile curfew ordinance, it limits this freedom of movement. While it
can be done in a constitutional manner, courts require municipalities to justify the differential treatment of
minors’ constitutional rights and to narrowly tailor the ordinance to address the specific issues in the
community.

It appears to me that the Town’s ordinance was enacted a few years before a number of cases, in the late
1990s, were brought in courts throughout the country striking down these types of ordinances. It also looks
like the Bridgton was based on a model ordinance from Texas that was enacted before the lawsuits in the late
1990s. If that is indeed the situation, and if the Town does not have convincing evidence/data that (1) there is
a juvenile crime problem in Bridgton that (2) would be curbed by a curfew ordinance, then | would
recommend repealing the ordinance.

If you do have such convincing evidence, please let me know what it is and I'll revise the ordinance to make
sure it is narrowly tailored to address the evidence-based problem.

Thanks,
Aga

Agnieszka A. (Pinette) Dixon
Attorney

207.253.0532 Direct | 207.713.6824 Cell
ADixon@dwmlaw.com

84 Marginal Way, Suite 600, Portland, ME 04101
800.727.1941 | 207.772.3627 Fax | dwmlaw.com

DrummondVWoodsurm

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The information transmitted herein is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged
material. Unintended transmission shall not constitute waiver of any privilege, including, without limitation, the attorney-ciient privilege if applicable. Any
review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delele the e-mail and any attachments from any computer.



March 30, 2022
To: Bridgton Select Board:

Carmen Lone, Chairman

Glen Zaidman, Vice-chairman
Robert McHatton

Fred Packard

Paul Tworog

Bridaton Planning Board Recommendation on Amendments to Shoreland Zoning

The Planning Board held a public hearing 3/28/22 concerning amendments to the Shoreland
Zoning section of the Land Use Code, summarized as follows:

a) To change the Shoreland Zoning Limited Residential district residing within the Inner and
Quter Corridor Land Use districts to a Limited Commercial district. As the current
Shoreland zoning does not include a Limited Commercial district, it is in effect being added
as a new Shoreland District, but only in the the Inner and Outer Corridors.

b) Correct errors/omissions in the November enactment of the Code, as directed by Maine
DER if you want a listing of these, it can be provided.

There were no public comments on the amendments.

The Planning Board recommends placing the amendments as written in the March 28, 2022
Administrative draft on the June Annual Town Meeting warrant.

Regards,

Deb Brusini
Chairman, Bridgton Planning Board

Cc:  Bridgton Planning Board
Linda LaCroix
Brenda Day




To: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk of the Town of Bridgton:

We hereby direct you to forward the following Referendum Ballot Questions to the -
voters for their consideration on June 14, 2022.

Question 1. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance,” be enacted?
{Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 2. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance,”
be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 3. Shali an ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance,” be enacted?
(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 4. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks
Ordinance,” be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 5. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Municipal Solid Waste Pay-Per-Bag
Ordinance,” be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 6. Shall an ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on .
Commercial Solar Energy Facilities,” be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 7. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official

Shoreland Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial {LC) Shoreland Zoning District,” be
enacted?

(Note: A “Yes” vote will enact the ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and
Official Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (LC) Shoreland Zoning
District, " and will change the zoning of some properties or portions of certain properties from the Limited
Residential (LR) shoreland zoning district to the Limited Commercial (LC) shoreland zoning disirict.

Copies of the text of the ordinance, including the current and proposed Official Shoreland Zoning Maps,
are available from the Town Clerk.)

Question 8. Do you favor voting on all business to be transacted at future annual town meetings by
secret ballot election rather than traditional in-person town meeting? (Note: This is a non-binding
advisory question.)

Dated: April 12, 2022

Municipal Officers/Board of Selectmen:

Carmen E, Lone, Chairman Robert J. McHatton, Sr. George Frederick Packard

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice-Chairman Paul A. Tworog



CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “TOWN OF
BRIDGTON SENIOR TAX ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance” to be voted on at a referendum election of
the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot article:

Question ___: Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance,”
be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said
proposed ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the
warrant calling the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the
referendum election on June 14, 2022,

Dated: April 12, 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance” is
attached hereto.

Attest:

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton



RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

I certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Senior
Tax Assistance Ordinance” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




TOWN OF BRIDGTON SENIOR TAX
ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON
JUNE 14, 2022



Town of Bridgton
Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance

Senior Property Tax Assistance

1.1 Purpose.

The purpose of this ordinance is to establish a program to provide property tax assistance to persons 70
years of age and over who have resided in the Town of Bridgton for at Jeast twenty (20) continuous years.
Under this program, the Town of Bridgton will provide refund payments to those individuals who
maintain a homestead in the Town of Bridgton and meet the criteria established by this ordinance.

1.2 Definitions.
As used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

BENEFIT BASE
Property taxes paid by a qualifying applicant during the tax year on the qualifying applicant's
homestead or rent constituting property taxes paid by the resident individual during the tax year on a
homestead.

HOMESTEAD
For purposes of this ordinance, "homestead” shall have the same meaning as defined in 36 M.R.S.A.
§ 5219-KK (1)XC). Generally, a homestead is a dwelling owned or rented by the person seeking tax
assistance under this ordinance or held in a revocable living trust for the benefit of that person. The
dwelling must be occupied by that person and that person's dependents as a home.

INCOME
Total household income as determined by the total (gross) income reported on the applicant's most
recent federal income tax return (line 22 of Form 1040; line 15 of Form 1040A; line four of Form
1040EZ), plus the total (gross) income reported on the most recent federal income tax return of each
additional member of the houschold if filing separately. If the applicant and/or any member of the
household do not file a federal income tax return, income shall be the cumulative amount of all
income received by the applicant and each additional member of the household from whatever
source derived, including, but not limited to, the following items:

A. Compensation for services, including wages, salaries, tips, fees, commissions, fringe benefits and
similar items;

B. Gross income derived from business;

C. Gains derived from dealings in property (capital or other);
D. Inteiest;

E. Rents from real estate;

F. Royalties;
IlPage



G. Dividends;

H. Alimony and separate maintenance payments received;

Annuities;

Pensions;

K. Income from discharge of indebtedness;

L. Distributive share of partnership gross income;

. Income from an interest in an estate or trust;

M
N. IRA distributions;
O

. Unemployment compensation; and

P. Social security benefits.

QUALIFYING APPLICANT

A person who is determined by the Town Manager or his designee, after review of a complete
application under § 1.4 of this ordinance, to be eligible for a refund payment under the terms of this
ordinance.

RENT CONSTITUTING PROPERTY TAX

Fifteen percent of the gross rent actually paid in cash or its equivalent during the tax year solely for
the right of occupancy of a homestead. For the purposes of this ordinance, "gross rent" means rent
paid at arm's length solely for the right of occupancy of a homestead, exclusive of charges for any
utilities, services, furniture, furnishings or personal property appliances furnished by the landlord as
part of the rental agreement, whether or not expressly set out in the rental agreement,

1.3 Criteria for participation.
In order to participate in the property tax assistance program, an applicant shall demonstrate all of the

following:

A. The applicant shall be 70 years of age or more at the time of application.

B. The applicant shall have a homestead in the Town of Bridgton at the time of the application and for
the entire year prior to the date of application.

C. The applicant has been a resident of the Town of Bridgton for at least twenty (20) continuous years
immediately preceding the date of application for participation in the Program.

D. The applicant shail meet the application and eligibility criteria set forth in §§1.4 and 1.5 of this

ordinance.

1.4 Application and payment procedures.

A,

Persons seeking to participate in the property tax assistance program shall submit an application to
the Town Manager no later than August 1 of the year for which the refund is requested. Applications
are required for every year the applicant seeks to participate in this program. The application form
for the program shall be made available upon request in the Town Manager's office and shall

2|Page



include, at a minimum, the applicant's name, homestead address and contact information. Attached
to all applications shall be proof of household income.

Applicants shall also submit proof of property taxes paid or rent constituting property taxes paid
during the tax year on the individual's homestead in the Town of Bridgton.

The Town Manager, or his designee, shall review and determine if the application is complete and
accurate and if the applicant is otherwise eligible to participate in the program. The Town Manager
shall notify an applicant if an application is determined to be incomplete, The Town Manager's
decision on eligibility to participate in the program shall be final.

1.5 Determination of eligibility and amount,

A.

(M

)

@
(b)
©
(d)

Eligibility under this ordinance is designed to provide greater benefits proportionally to applicants
with lower income in relation to their benefit base. Applicants with income greater than an amount
equal to 80% of the current United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
metropolitan area median family income shall not be eligible for benefits under this ordinance.
Eligible applicants will receive a benefit totaling the amounts set forth in Subsection A (1) and (2) as
follows, provided that the cumulative maximum benefit allowed shall be $750:

The total amount of any increase to the applicant's benefit base from the most recent tax year to the
current tax year; and

Benefits based on a calculation of the applicant's benefit base as a percentage of their income
[(Benefit/Income) x 100 = Benefit base as percent of income. |

If the benefit base as a percent of income is greater than 10%, the applicant will receive $350;
If the benefit base as a percent of income is 8% to 10% of income, the applicant will receive $250;
If the benefit base as a percent of income is 6% to 7% of income, the applicant will receive $150;

If the benefit base as a percent of income is 5% or less, the applicant will receive $50.

1.6 Limitations on payments.

A.

The Town Manager shall report to the Board of Selectmen for its approval at its first meeting in
September each year the projected payments and number of eligible applicants requesting assistance
from the program fund.

Payments under this ordinance shall be conditioned upon the existence of sufficient monies in the
program fund for the year in which participation is sought. If there are not sufficient monies in the
program fund to pay all qualifying applicants under this ordinance per the calculations set forth in §
1.5, payments shall be limited to the amounts available in the fund and may be prorated accordingly.
In the event that a lack of funding results in no payment or less than the full payment to a qualifying
applicant, the request and/or unpaid balance will not carry over to the next year.

1.7 Creation of program fund.

The program fund from which payments shall be made under the terms of this ordinance shall be created
as follows:

A. The Boatd of Selectmen, pursuant to the Town of Bridgton’s Reserve Accounts Policy (approved

04/15/15 as amended), shall establish the Senior Property Tax Assistance Reserve.

3jPage



B. An appropriation for funding the program shall appear as a Warrant Ordinance for approval at the
Annual Town Meeting,.

1.8 Timing of payments.

A person who qualifies for payment under this program shall be mailed a check for the benefit amount for
which he/she is eligible under § 1.5 no later than 14 days from the date of Board of Selectmen approval of
the applications for the year in which participation is sought.

1.9 One applicant per household,

Only one qualifying applicant per household shall be entitled to payment under this program each year.
Eligibility shall be determined based on total household income, The right to file an application under this
ordinance is personal to the applicant and does not survive the applicant's death, but the right may be
exercised on behalf of an applicant by the applicant's legal guardian or attorney in fact. If an applicant
dies after having filed a timely complete application that results in a determination of qualification, the
amount determined by the Town Manager shall be disbursed to another member of the household as
determined by the Town Manager. If the applicant was the only member of a household, then no payment
shall be made under this ordinance,

4|Page



CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “AMENDMENTS TO THE
TOWN OF BRIDGTON DOG CONTROIL, ORDINANCE” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Dog Control QOrdinance™ to be voted on at a referendum
election of the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot question:

Question . Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Dog Control
Ordinance,” be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of the ordinance are available from the Town Clerk)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said proposed
ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the warrant calling

the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the referendum
election on June 14, 2022,

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Dog Control
Ordinance,” is attached hereto.

Attest:

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

I certify that T have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town
of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance,” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN OF BRIDGTON
DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE

Administrative Draft
March 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON
JUNE 14, 2022

The Town of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance is proposed to be amended by adding the
words shown in underline (underline) and by removing the words shown in strikethrough

(strikeethrongh), as follows:




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE

SECTIONJARTICLE I._-AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

Section 1.1. Authority

This ordinance shall be known as the Town of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance, and is referred to
herein as “this Ordinance.” The Town of Bridgton is referred to herein as “the Town.” This
Ordinance is adopted pursuant to Article VIII, Part Second, of the Maine Constitution: 30-A
M.R.S. § 3001 et seq.; and 7 M.R.S. § 3950,

Section 1.2. Purpose

The purpose of this eOrdinance is to require that alI dogs in the Town be licensed and under
reasonable control degs-through e : daton-in O in order to protect the
health, safety, and general weIfare of ﬁs—the Town’s residents and visitors,

SECTION2ARTICLE I1. DEFINITIONS-AS USEDIN-THIS ORDINANCE UNLESS THE
CONTEXT-OTHERWISEINDICATES

The following definitions apply to this Ordinance, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
Any reference to a state law includes amendments thereto and successor provisions.

Section 2.1.6: “AT LARGE” shatl-means off the premises of the owner and not being-under the
control of any person by-means-efwhose personal presence and attention would reasonably control;

or-ability te-manipulate-and-command the conduct of the dog._“Reasonable control,” for purposes
of this Ordinance, shall mean that the dog is (i) located within a vehicle: (ii) on a lease, cord, chain,
or other similar restraining device not more than eight (8) feet in length: (iii) under voice control

or command provided that such control is effective and strictly maintained; or (iv) confined within

a secure cage or enclosure.

Section 2.2.B: “DANGEROUS OR NUISANCE DOG” shall-means a-dog-which has bittena

apprehension-ef-eminent-bedily-harm-(i) a dog that inflicts bodily injury on an individual or a

domesticated animal who is not trespassing on the premises of the owner: (ii) a dog that causes a
reasonable and prudent person who is not on the owner’s premises and is acting in a reasonable
and nonaggressive manner to fear bodily injury by assaulting or threatening to assault that person
or person’s domesticated animal; or (iii) a dog that causes damage to property or crops not owned
by the owner while the dog is not on the owner's premises. “ Jangerous or nuisance dog” does not
include (i) a dog certified by the State of Maine and used for law enforcement use: (ii) a dog that
injures or threatens to assault an individual who is on the owner’s premises if the dog has no prior




history of assault and was provoked by the individual immediately prior to the injury or threatened

assault: (iii) a dog that inflicts bodily injury on an individual who is committing a crime against an
individual or property owned by the owner.

Section 2.3. “DOG” means (i) a member of the genus and species known as Canis familiaris: (ii)
a wolf hybrid, as defined in 7 M.R.S. § 3907(30); or (iii) any canine, regardless of generation,
resulting from the interbreeding of a member of Canis familiaris with a wolf hybrid. “Dog”
includes both male and female dogs, whether or not neutered or spayed.

Section 2.4. “LIVESTOCK” has the same meaning as in 7 M.R.S. § 3907( 18-A).

Section 2.4.B. “OWNER” shall-means any person, firm, association, or corporation owning,
keeping, or harboring a dog._The provisions of this Ordinance that apply to the owner of a dog
shall apply equally to any person having its custody or possession.

Section 2.5. “PREMISES” means the residence or residences, including buildings and land and
motor vehicles, belonging to the owner of a dog.

ARTICLE III. LICENSE REQUIRED

Section 3.1. All dogs kept, housed. harbored, or maintained by their respective owners in the
Town of Bridsten—shall be licensed when the dog becomes six (6) months old and annually

thereafter on January | of each vear, in accordance with the-appropriatetaws-of-the-State—of
Maine;7 M-R-S-A-M.R.S.-3921 Chapter 721 and this Ordinance.

Section 3.2. AlllLicense applications to the Town shall be accompanied by a fee as provided in
the Town of Bridgton Uniform Fee Ordinance_except applications that are exempt from the
payment of license fees pursuant to 7 M.R.S. §§ 3923-A(3) and 3921.

SECTION4ARTICLE 1V. BISTURBING THE PEACERESPONSIBILITIES OF
OWNERS

Section 4.1. It shall be unlawful for i i i an owner to

cause ot permit sueh-their dog to disturb the peace of any person. _Any owner erleeper-causing
or permitting theira dog to bark, howl, or yelp continuously for twenty (20) minutes or
intermittently for one (1) hour or more shall be in violation of this section, except that this provision
shall not apply to dogs engaged in herding livestock or to agricultural guard dogs engaged in
protecting livestock or warning the owners of danger to the livestock.

Section 4.2. It shall be unlawful for any deg-owner exkeeper-to cause or permit sueh-their dog to
disturb-the-peace by-biteing, chascing, or damageing the property of any person.



Section 4.3. It shall be unlawful for any owner to cause or permit their dog to get into or open any
garbage bags, bins, or other containers, or to cause garbage to be strewn from such containers. The
owner must clean up and dispose of any strewn garbage,

Section 4.4. An owner must promptly remove and properly dispose of their dog’s feces left on
any sidewalk, street, beach, public property, or private property other than the property of the
owner or of a person who has consented to the presence of the dog on the person’s property.

Section 4.5. A handicapped owner, who, by reason of the handicap. is physically unable to comply
with the requirements of Section 4.3 or Section 4.4 is exempt from those requirements.

SECTION-SARTICLE V. RUNNING-DOGS AT LARGE

Section 5.1. All dogs must be under the owner’s reasonable control when off the owner’s property
while within the Town limits.

Section 5.2. It shall be unlawful for any dog, licensed or unlicensed, to run-be at large within the

Town limits, except a dog which is engaged in legal sexeept-whenused-for-hunting-purpeses.

SECTION-6ARTICLE VI. CONFINEMENT OF CERTAIN-DANGEROUS OR
NUISANCE DOGS

Section 6.1.B- Any person who is assaulted or threatened with bodily injury by a dog, witheut

prevecation-or any person witnessing aa-unprovekedsuch an assault or threatened assault against
a person or domesticated animal, or any person with knowledge of such an assault or threatened
assault against a minor, or a person whose property or crops have been damaged by a dog may file
a written complaint with a Peliee-Officerlaw enforcement officer or Aanimal Econtrol Qofficer of
the Town, within 30 days of the incident, that the dog is a dangerous or vieieus nuisance dog. For
the purposes of this section “domesticated animal” includes, but is not limited to, livestock.

Section 6.2. Procedures regarding the investigation and disposition of complaints of dangerous or
nuisance dogs and the method of restraint, confinement, or disposal shall-beare prescribed and
required-by Maine-Statutes—Annetated,Title-7 M.R.S.A —Seetion—§ 3952-A-and-suceeeding
amendments.

SECTION-ZARTICLE VII. IMPOUNDING

Section 7.1. Any Town law enforcement officer orPelice-Officer; Aanimal Geontrol Oofficer o

Constable—within—the-Town—of Bridgton—shall seize, impound, or restrain any dog that is in

violationing of this eOrdinance or Sstate law.



Section 7.2. A dog found in-vielatien-of Seetion-5at large pursuant to Article V shall be delivered
to the-its owner when ible-if the-owner-eo b g I L

if known or. if the owner is not known, to the animal shelter designated
by the Town’s municipal officers.

Section 7.3. When a dog of known ownership is found in-vielatien-ef Seetion-5at large pursuant
to Article V and is apprehended by a Town law enforcement officer or animal control officer three
(3) or more times in a six (6) month period, an-the law enforcement officer or Aanimal Econtrol

Oofficer orperson-actingin-that-eapacity;mayshall take the dog to the designated animal shelter
and notify the Qowner in accordance with Section 87.6.

SECTION 8. IMPOUNDMENT

Section 7.4. When impounding any dog, the law enforcement officer or aAnimal Econtrol
Oofficer exPelice-Officer-shall at the time of such impoundment list in writing thea number and
description of any violations¢s) of this Ordinance or state law, and shall make a complete registry
of the date of impoundment, breed, color, sex, license number, name and address or telephone
number of the owner, if known, and general condition of the dog as can be reasonably ascertained.

Section 7.5. A copy of this-the registry record described in Section 7.4 shall be furnished to athe

designated animal shelter designated-by-the Town-of Bridgton-with written instructions setting
forth conditions under which the dog may be released.

Section 7.6. When a dog is impounded under the provisions of this Article_VII, the_law
enforcement officer or Aanimal Econtrol Oofficer,Pelice-Officer;-or-person—in—control-of-the
Animal Shelter shallwhen possible; shall notify the owner or-keep-if the owner can be ascertained.
Failure to give such notice shall in no way impose any liability upon the Town ef Bridgten-or its

designated animal shelter for the destruction or transfer to another of any dog so impounded and
not reclaimed.

Section 7.7. If the-an owner of an impounded dog does not claim the dog within six (6) days
following impoundment, ownership of the dog is vested in the animal shelter and thea-the animal

shelter may dispose of the animal by adoption or otherwise in—a-proper-and-humane—manner
consistentwith-State-lawsin accordance with 7 M.R.S. §§ 3911-B and 3913.

SECTION9 IMPOUNDMENTFEES

Section 7.8. An 0Owners may reclaim theis-an impounded dog by any time within six (6) days
following impoundment by (i) paying all impoundment fees, including and any actual fees incurred
by the animal shelter for food, shelter, veterinary care, and any other fees re uired by state law for
each day that the dog has been sheltered: (ii) fisst-licensing the dog, if applicable, according to
Section-3-abeveArticle I1I, and by-(iii) paying to the Town any penalties imposed on the owner
for violations of the provisions of this Ordinance, in accordance with Article VII[feeforeach
offense-as-provided-inthe a-of Bri iform Eee-Ordinance. All licenses must be secured

c
he o a-he-re a
a%e

O

priortoreclamation—Eees and penalties must be paid, and a receipt of same presented to the animal



shelter, prior to the release of the impounded dog. AM-License fees and court fines shall be

deposited by the Town in the separate account as required by 7 MRSAM.R.S.;-Seetion-§ 3945.

SECHONHARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

Section 8.1. It shall be the duty of the Town Clerk to administer the licensing provisions of this
Ordinance and the municipal duties set forth in 7 MLR.S. §8§ 3941-3945 and 3949.

Section 8.2. It shall be the duty of all Musnieipal Police-OfficersTown law enforcement officers
to enforce all the provisions of this Ordinance and to perform the duties imposed by applicable
state law. Further, there shall be appointed ea-one or more qualified Aanimal Ccontrol Oofficerfs)
who shall have the primarye responsibility of enforcing this Ordinance and of performing the
duties imposed by applicable state law, including without limitation 7 M.R.S. § 3947.

Section 8.3. Upon a determination that an owner is in violation of any provision of this Ordinance,
a Town law enforcement officer or animal control officer shall have the authority to issue a
summons. Execution of the summons may lead to imposition of a fine. All files so assessed shall
be recovered for use by the Town. The Town shall be entitled to recover any attorney’s fees
incurred in recovering fines assessed under this section.

SECTHONI2ARTICLE IX. PENALTIES

Section 9.1. Any-person—found-inA violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance or
applicable state lawshall-be—guiltyof is a civil violation and—liable—to—punishment-by—a
finepunishable by a fine of net-te-exeeed-fifty($50:00) for the first offense, and $100 for a second
or subsequent offense.




Section 9.2. Upon notification to the owner erkeeper-eandof the persistence of the-a violation,

each day of such a violation shall constitute a separate offense and subject the owner erkeeper-to
the fine as stipulated for a second or subsequent offense for each day the violation exists. Adl-fines

a d ch h avered-to o a n-of B on-and-dene ad 11 = " At EEE!
0 a-SHato Sy S3S = o Sa O oR—aRa-GEPo = a patd d Sies

ARTICLE XSECTION-14, SEVERABILITY CEAUSEMISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such part shall be deemed
severable and the invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance.

Section 10.2. This Ordinance shall not affect the requirement to comply with any other law,
ordinance. rule, or regulation. When this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction on owners of
dogs than provisions of any other law, ordinance, rule, or regulation, the provisions of this
Ordinance shall control.

Enacted: __June 9, 1999_(repealing and replacing The Control of Dogs Ordinance, enacted in

March 1973 and re-enacted with amendments June 3, 1993).

RevisedAmended:  November 3, 2009; ad-June 11, 2019; June 14, 2022.







Town of Bridgton

Dog Control Ordinance

Jave alu,

BRIGTEN

Enacted: June 9, 1999 (repealing and replacing The Control of Dogs Or dinance, enacted in
March 1973 and re-enacted with amendments June 3, 1993).

Amended: November 3, 2009; June 11, 2019; June 14, 2022.



TOWN OF BRIDGTON
DOG CONTROL ORDINANCE

ARTICLE I. AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

Section 1.1. Authority

This ordinance shall be known as the Town of Bridgton Dog Control Ordinance, and is referred to
herein as “this Ordinance.” The Town of Bridgton is referred to herein as “the Town.”
This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to Article VIII, Part Second, of the Maine Constitution;
30-A M.R.S. § 3001 et seq.; and 7 M.R.S. § 3950.

Section 1.2. Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to require that all dogs in the Town be lcensed and under

reasonable control in order to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the Town’s residents
and visitors.

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply to this Ordinance, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
Any reference to a state law includes amendments thereto and successor provisions.

Section 2.1. “AT LARGE” means off the premises of the owner and not under the control of any
person whose personal presence and attention would reasonably control the conduct of the dog.
“Reasonable control,” for purposes of this Ordinance, shall mean that the dog is (i) located within
a vehicle; (ii) on a lease, cord, chain, or other similar restraining device not more than eight (8)
feet in length; (iii) under voice control or command provided that such control is effective and
strictly maintained; or (iv) confined within a secure cage or enclosure.

Section 2.2. “DANGEROUS OR NUISANCE DOG” means (i) a dog that inflicts bodily injury
on an individual or a domesticated animal who is not frespassing on the premises of the owner;
(if) a dog that causes a reasonable and prudent person who is not on the owner’s premises and is
acting in a reasonable and nonaggressive manner to fear bedily injury by assaulting or threatening
to assault that person or person’s domesticated animal; or (iii) a dog that causes damage to property
or crops not owned by the owner while the dog is not on the owner's premises. “Dangerous or
nuisance dog” does not include (i) a dog certified by the State of Maine and used for law
enforcement use; (ii) a dog that injures or threatens to assault an individual who is on the owner’s
premises if the dog has no prior history of assault and was provoked by the individual immediately
prior to the injury or threatened assault; (iii) a dog that inflicts bodily injury on an individual who
is committing a crime against an individual or property owned by the owner.

Section 2.3. “DOG” means (i) a member of the genus and species known as Canis familiaris:
(if) a wolf hybrid, as defined in 7 MLR.S. § 3907(30); or (iii) any canine, regardless of generation,
resulting from the interbreeding of a member of Canis familiaris with a wolf hybrid. “Dog”
includes both male and female dogs, whether or not neutered or spayed.




Section 2.4. “LIVESTOCK?” has the same meaning as in 7 M.R.5S. § 3907(18-A).

Section 2.4. “OWNER” means any person, {irm, association, or corporation owning, keeping, or
harboring a dog. The provisions of this Ordinance that apply to the owner of a dog shall apply
cqually to any person having its custody or POSSession.

Section 2.5. “PREMISES” means the residence or residences, including buildings and land and
motor vehicles, belonging to the owner of a dog.

ARTICLE III. LICENSE REQUIRED

Section 3.1. All dogs kept, housed, harbored, or maintained by their respective owners in the
Town shall be licensed when the dog becomes six (6) months old and annually thereafter on
January 1 of each year, in accordance with 7 MLR.S. Chapter 721 and this Ordinance.

Section 3.2. License applications to the Town shall be accompanied by a fee as provided in the
Town of Bridgton Uniform Fee Ordinance except applications that are exempt from the payment
of license fees pursuant to 7 MLR.S. §§ 3923-A(3) and 3921.

ARTICLE IV. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNERS

Section 4.1. It shall be unlawful for an owner to cause or permit their dog to disturb the peace of
any person. Any owner causing or permitting their dog to bark, howl, or yelp continuously for
twenty (20) minutes or intermittently for one (1) hour or more shall be in violation of this section,
except that this provision shall not apply to dogs engaged in herding livestock or to agricultural
guard dogs engaged in protecting Tivestock or warning the owners of danger to the livestock.

Section 4.2. It shall be unlawful for any owner to cause or permit their dog to bite, chase, or
damage the property of any person.

Section 4.3. It shall be unlawful for any owner to cause or permit their dog to get into or open any
garbage bags, bins, or other containets, or to cause garbage to be strewn from such containers. The
owner must clean up and dispose of any strewn garbage.

Section 4.4. An owner must promptly remove and properly dispose of their dog’s feces left on
any sidewalk, street, beach, public property, or private property other than the property of the
owner or of a person who has consented to the presence of the dog on the person’s property.

Section 4.5. A handicapped owner, who, by reason of the handicap, is physically unable to comply
with the requirements of Section 4.3 or Section 4.4 is exempt from those requirements.

ARTICLE V. DOGS AT LARGE

Section 5.1. All dogs must be under the owner’s reasonable control when off the owner’s property
while within the Town limits.




Section 5.2. It shall be unlawful for any dog, licensed or unlicensed, to be at large within the
Town limits, except a dog which is engaged in legal hunting,

ARTICLE VI. CONFINEMENT OF DANGEROUS OR NUISANCE DOGS

Section 6.1. Any person who is assaulted or threatened with bodily injury by a dog, or any person
witnessing such an assault or threatened assault against a person or domesticated animal, or any
person with knowledge of such an assault or threatened assault against a minor, or a person whose
property or crops have been damaged by a dog may file a written complaint with a law enforcement
officer or animal control officer of the Town, within 30 days of the incident, that the dog is a
dangerous or nuisance dog. For the purposes of this section “domesticated animal” includes, but
is not limited to, livestock.

Section 6.2. Procedures regarding the investigation and disposition of complaints of dangerous or
nuisance dogs and the method of restraint, confinement, or disposal are prescribed by 7 M.R.S.A
§ 3952-A.

ARTICLE VII. IMPOUNDING

Section 7.1. Any Town law enforcement officer or animal control officer shall seize, impound, or
restrain any dog that is in violation of this Ordinance or state law.

Section 7.2. A dog found at large pursuant to Article V shall be delivered to its owner if known
or, if the owner is not known, to the animal shelter designated by the Town’s municipal officers.

Section 7.3. When a dog of known ownership is found at large pursuant to Article V and is
apprehended by a Town law enforcement officer or animal control officer three (3) or more times
in a six (6) month period, the law enforcement officer or animal control officer shall take the dog
to the designated animal shelter and notify the owner in accordance with Section 7.6.

Section 7.4. When impounding any dog, the law enforcement officer or animal control officer
shall at the time of such impoundment list in writing the number and description of any violations
of this Ordinance or state law, and shall make a complete registry of the date of impoundment,
breed, color, sex, license number, name and address or telephone number of the owner, if known,
and general condition of the dog as can be reasonably ascertained.

Section 7.5. A copy of the registry record described in Section 7.4 shall be fumnished to the
designated animal shelter with written instructions setting forth conditions under which the dog
may be released.

Section 7.6. When a dog is impounded under the provisions of this Article VII, the law
enforcement officer or animal control officer shall notify the owner if the owner can be ascertained.
Failure to give such notice shall in no way impose any lability upon the Town or its designated
animal shelter for the destruction or transfer to another of any do g so impounded and not reclaimed.




Section 7.7. 1f an owner of an impounded dog does not claim the dog within six (6) days following
impoundment, ownership of the dog is vested in the animal shelter and the animal shelter may
dispose of the animal by adoption or otherwise in accordance with 7 M.R.S. §§ 3911-B and 3913.

Section 7.8. An owner may reclaim an impounded dog by any time within six (6) days following
impoundment by (i) paying all impoundment fees, including and any actual fees incurred by the
animal shelter for food, shelter, veterinary care, and any other fees required by state law for each
day that the dog has been sheltered; (i) licensing the dog, if applicable, according to Article III,
and (iii) paying to the Town any penalties imposed on the owner for violations of the provisions
of this Ordinance, in accordance with Article VIIL All licenses must be secured and all fees and
penalties must be paid, and a receipt of same presented to the animal shelter, prior to the release
of the impounded dog. License fees and court fines shall be deposited by the Town in the separate
account as required by 7 M.R.S.§ 3945.

ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

Section 8.1. It shall be the duty of the Town Clerk to administer the licensing provisions of this
Ordinance and the municipal duties set forth in 7 M.R.S, §§ 3941-3945 and 3949,

Section 8.2. It shall be the duty of all Town law enforcement officers to enforce all the provisions
of this Ordinance and to perform the duties imposed by applicable state law. Further, there shail
be appointed one or more qualified animal control officers who shall have the primary
responsibility of enforcing this Ordinance and of performing the duties imposed by applicable state
Jaw, including without limitation 7 M.R.S. § 3947.

Section 8.3. Upon a determination that an owner is in violation of any provision of this Ordinance,
4 Town law enforcement officer or animal control officer shall have the authority to issue a
summons. Execution of the summons may lead to imposition of a fine. All files so assessed shall
be recovered for use by the Town. The Town shall be entitled to recover any attorney’s fees
incurred in recovering fines assessed under this section.

ARTICLE IX. PENALTIES

Section 9.1. A violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance or applicable state law is a civil

violation punishable by a fine of $50 for the first offense, and $100 for a second or subsequent
offense.

Section 9.2. Upon notification to the ownex of the persistence of a violation, each day of such a
violation shall constitute a separate offense and subject the owner to the fine as stipulated for a
second or subsequent offense for each day the violation exists.

ARTICLE X. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such part shall be deemed
severable and the invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance.




Section 10.2. This Ordinance shall not affect the requirement to comply with any other law,
ordinance, rule, or regulation. When this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction on owners of
dogs than provisions of any other law, ordinance, rule, or regulation, the provisions of this
Ordinance shall control.

Enacted:  June 9, 1999 (repealing and replacing The Control of Dogs Ordinance, enacted in
March 1973 and re-enacted with amendments June 3, 1993),

Amended: November 3, 2009; June 11, 2019; June 14, 2022.




CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “REPEAL OF THE TOWN OF
BRIDGTON CURFEW ORDINANCE” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Repeal of the Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance” to be voted on at a referendum election of the
Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot question:

Question _ Shall an ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance,”
be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of the ordinance are available from the Town Clerk)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said proposed
ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the warrant calling
the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the referendum
election on June 14, 2022.

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance,” is
attached hereto.

Attest:
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




|

RETURN

Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

I certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Repeal of the Town of
Bridgton Curfew Ordinance,” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Lautie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton



REPEAL OF THE TOWN OF BRIDGTON
CURFEW ORDINANCE

Administrative Draft
March 28, 2022

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON
JUNE 14, 2022

The Town of Bridgton Curfew Ordinance is proposed to be repealed in its entirety by removing the
words shown in strikethrough (strikethrough), as follows:







)

H







CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “AMENDMENTS TO THE
TOWN OF BRIDGTON CONSUMER FIREWORKS USE ORDINANCE” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entifled “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance” to be voted on at a
referendum election of the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot question:

Question . Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Consumer
Fireworks Use Ordinance,” be enacted?

(Note: Copies of the text of the ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said proposed
ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the warrant calling

the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the referendum
election on June 14, 2022.

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town of Bridgton Consumer
Fireworks Use Ordinance,” is attached hereto.

Attest:
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




RETURN

Cumberland County, ss. ' State of Maine

1 certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled, “Amendments to the Town
of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance,” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN OF BRIDGTON
CONSUMER FIREWORKS USE ORDINANCE

Administrative Draft
March 24, 2022

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON
JUNE 14, 2022

The Town of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance is proposed to be amended by
adding the words shown in underline (underline) and by removing the words shown in

strikethrough (strikethrough), as follows:




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
CONSUMER FIREWORKS USE ORDINANCE

ARTICLE I. AUTHORITY: PURPOSE

Section 1.1. Authority
-Purpese

This ordinance shall be known as the “Town of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance”
and is referred to herein as “this Ordinance.” This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to Article VIII,
Part Second, of the Maine Constitution; 30-A M.R.S. § 3001 ef seq.; and 8 M.R.S. § 223-A(2).

Section 1.2. Purpose

The purpose of this artiele-Ordinance is to regulate the heurs-thatuse of consumer fireworks may
be-used—in-the Town of Bridgton. This Ordinance does not regulate State-——permitted fireworks
shows.

ARTICLE III. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply to this Ordinance, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
Any reference to a state law includes amendments thereto and successor provisions.

Section 2.1. “Combustible Material” means a gas, solid, or liquid that can be ignited and burned.

Section 3:12.2. —CensumerFirewerks

As-used-in-this-Ordinanece;Consumer Fireworks” has the same meaning as in 8 M.R.S. § 221-

A(1-A) and means-any-firewesk-that-is authorized by the State of Maine for sale to the general
public.
Seetion-3:2—Weekend




ARTICLE MVIII. FIME-OFE-DAY-THAT CONSUMER USE OF FIREWORKS MAY-BE
BHLEEZED

Section 43.1._Age Requirement

No person under the age of 21 may sell, purchase, or use Consumer Fireworks.

- Section 3.2. Day and Time of Use

A.

Holiday Use. Consumer fFireworks may be utilized-used between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and

12:30 A.M. the following day on the felewing-specific dates listed below:

A)1.  The4™efluly 4th

B)-The-weekend following the-4"-day-of July

&2 The3+*-efDecember 31st

By-3. The Fridays, Saturdays. and Sundays immediately before and after July 4th

Weekend Use. Except as provided in Section 3.2(A)(3). Consumer Fireworks may be used

between the hours of 5:00 P.M. and 10:00 P.M. on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays, and

Section 43.3. Location

A. A person may use eConsumer £Fireworks only on that person’s propetty or on the property of

another person who has consented in writing to the use of eConsumer fFireworks on that
property. If the user is a tenant, written consent must be obtained from the landlord. The
written perssissien-consent shall contain the name and contact information for the property
owner and, as applicable, the landlord.

No person shall use, display, discharge, fire, or cause to be exploded Consumer Fireworks

within 50 feet of any Combustible Material or within 50 feet of any buildings or structures,

with the exception of parking lots and temporary or permanent docks connected to the
shoreland.

ARTICLE IV. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT: PENALT¥IES

Section 54.1._Administration and Enforcement

This Ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the Bridgton Police Department.




Section 4.2. Penalties

In addition to any applicable penalties imposed pursuant to 8 M.R.S. § 223-A, a v¥¥iolation of any
of the provisions of this Ordinance shal-beis a civil violation punishable by a fine of $756 for the
first offense, $250300 for the second offense, and $500 for the third or subsequent offenses.

ARTICLE VI. EXCEPHIONSMISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.1._Exceptions

Pursuant to 8 M.R.S. § 227-B, Fthis Ordinance does not regulate, restrict, prevent, or prohibit
fireworks displays, as defined in 8 M.R.S. § 221-A, or the issuance of a fireworks by-a-persen{s)
whe-has-been-issued-a-display permit pursuant to Fitle-8 M-R-S-A-M.R.S. § 227-A.

Section 6.2. Filing

The Town Clerk shall provide to the State Fire Marshal a copy of this Ordinance within 60 days
of its adoption or amendment.

Section 6.3. Severability

If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such part shall be deemed severable and the
invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance.

Enacted: __June 11, 2013,
Amended: June 14, 2022.




Town of Bridgton

Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance

Jave aly,

BRmfz'éON

Enacted: June 11, 2013.
Amended: June 14, 2022.



TOWN OF BRIDGTON
CONSUMER FIREWORKS USE ORDINANCE

ARTICLE I. AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

Section 1.1. Authority

This ordinance shall be known as the “Town of Bridgton Consumer Fireworks Use Ordinance”
and is referred to herein as “this Ordinance.” This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to Article VIIL,
Part Second, of the Mame Constitution; 30-A M.R.S. § 3001 ef seq.; and 8 M.R.S. § 223-A(2).

Section 1.2. Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to regulate the use of consumer fireworks the Town of Bridgton.
This Ordinance does not regulate State-permitted fireworks shows.

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply to this Ordinance, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
Any reference to a state law includes amendments thereto and successor provisions.

Section 2.1. “Combustibie Material” means a gas, solid, or liquid that can be ignited and burned.

Section 2.2. “Consumer Fireworks” has the same meaning as in 8 M.R.S. § 221-A(1-A) and is
authorized by the State of Maine for sale to the general public,

ARTICLE III, CONSUMER USE OF FIREWORKS
Section 3.1. Age Requirement
No person under the age of 21 may sell, purchase, or use Consumer Fireworks.

Section 3.2. Day and Time of Use

A. Holiday Use. Consumer Fireworks may be used between the hours of 9:00 AM, and
12:30 A.M. the following day on the specific dates listed below:

1. July 4th
2. December 31st
3. The Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays immediately before and after July 4th

B. Weekend Use. Except as provided in Section 3.2(A)(3), Consumer Fireworks may be used
between the hours of 5:00 P.M. and 10:00 P.M. on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays, and
Sundays.




Section 3.3. Location

A. A person may use Consumer Fireworks only on that person’s property or on the property of
another person who has consented in writing to the use of Consumer Fireworks on that
property. If the user is a tenant, written consent must be obtained from the landiord.
The written consent shall contain the name and contact information for the property owner and,
as applicable, the landlord.

B. No person shall use, display, discharge, fire, or cause to be exploded Consumer Fireworks
within 50 feet of any Combustible Material or within 50 feet of any buildings or structures,

with the exception of parking lots and temporary or permanent docks connected to the
shoreland.

ARTICLE IV. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES
Section 4.1. Administration and Enforcement

This Ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the Bridgton Police Department.
Section 4.2. Penalties

In addition to any applicable penalties imposed pursuant to 8 M.R.S. § 223-A, a violation of any
of the provisions of this Ordinance is a civil violation punishable by a fine of $75 for the first
offense, $300 for the second offense, and $500 for the third or subsequent offenses.

ARTICLE V. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.1. Exceptions

Pursuant to 8 M.R.S. § 227-B, this Ordinance does not regulate, restrict, prevent, or prohibit
fireworks displays, as defined in 8 M.R.S. § 221-A, or the issuance of a fireworks display permit
pursuant to 8§ M.R.S. § 227-A.

Section 6.2. Filing

The Town Clerk shall provide to the Siate Fire Marshal a copy of this Ordinance within 60 days
of its adoption or amendment.

Section 6.3. Severability

If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such part shall be deemed severable and the
invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance.

Enacted: June 11,2013,
Amended: June 14, 2022.







CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “TOWN OF BRIDGTON
MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE PAY-PER-BAG ORDINANCE” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Town of Bridgton Municipal Solid Wastce Pay-Per-Bag Ordinance” to be voted on at a referendum
election of the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot article:

Question ___: Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Municipal Solid Waste Pay-Per-
Bag Ordinance,” be enacted?

BE IT FURTHER ORDERLED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said
proposed ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the
warrant calling the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the
referendum election on June 14, 2022,

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Municipal Solid Waste Pay-Per-Bag
Ordinance” is attached hereto.

Attest:

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

I certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Municipal
Solid Waste Pay-Per-Bag Ordinance™ at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




TOWN OF BRIDGTON MUNICIPAL SOLID
WASTE PAY-PER-BAG ORDINANCE

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON
JUNE 14, 2022



TOWRN OF BRIDGTON MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE PAY-PER-BAG ORDINANCE
Section 1. Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish a Pay-Per-Bag system for disposal of
municipal solid waste (MSW), as defined in Section 4. Municipal solid waste is a primary
health, safety, and environmental concern to all residents, and it is essential that the
community develop a cost-effective, fair, and efficient MSW disposal program. A Pay-Per-
Bag program promotes equity and fairness by linking the cost of MSW disposal to the
amount of waste generated by a person, household, or business. Through
implementation of the Pay-Per-Bag program, the Town of Bridgton encourages all
residents and businesses to minimize their refuse through recycling and composting.

Section 2. Authority

This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to and in accordance with Article VIII, Part Second of
the Constitution of the State of Maine and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001 et seq.

Section 3. Scope

This Ordinance applies to the disposal of MSW, as defined in Section 4, in the Town of
Bridgton.

Section 4. Definitions

The following terms shall have the following definitions for purposes of this Ordinance.
Any undefined term shall have its common, ordinary meaning.

Commercial hauler — A person, firm, corporation, or other entity that collects,
recycles, or hauls MSW for a fee,

Compost — A residual that has undergone biological decomposition of organic
residuals under predominantly aerchic conditions and controlled temperatures
between 110° and 160° F.

Designated bag — An approved bag, issued by the Town of Bridgton pursuant to
this Ordinance, in which MSW must be disposed of at the transfer station.

Municipal solid waste {MSW) — Solid waste generated by or emanating from
ordinary residential household or commercial sources, except prohibited waste.
MSW includes, but is not limited to, food scraps, garbage, trash, rubbish, and
refuse.



Person — An individual, corporation, trust, estate, partnership, association, joint
venture, or other legal entity.

Prohibited waste — (1) Hazardous waste, hospital waste, infectious waste, human
or animal fecal waste, flammable liquids, pesticides, herbicides, fungicides, paint
waste and pigments, construction and demolition debris, special waste,
laboratory chemicals, biohazard materials, and hot ashes, as any of these terms
are defined by federal or state law; and (2) any other material so designated by
the municipal officers.

Recyclable material — (1) Paperboard, newspaper, glass, magazines, junk mail,
cardboard, plastic and aluminum cans and foil; and (2) any other material so
designated by the municipal officers.

Transfer station — The municipal facility located in the Town of Bridgton for the
collection and disposal of solid waste for trucking to a waste facility.

Section 5. Designhated Bag Required

A. No person may dispose of MSW, other than recyclable material and compost, at
the transfer station unless it is in a designated bag.

B. Commercial haulers may pick up MSW, other than recyclable material and
compost, only in a designated bag.

Section 6. Administration and Fees

A. The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton shall administer and enforce this
Ordinance.

B. The municipal officers shall annually set the fee for designated bags.

C. No later than six months after the effective date of this Ordinance, the municipal
officers shall issue an order establishing when and where designated bags will be
made available.

Section 7. Enforcement and Penalties

Any violation of this Ordinance is deemed to be a nuisance. The municipal officers or their
duly authorized representatives are responsible for enforcing the provisions of this
Ordinance. The municipal officers are authorized to institute any and all actions, legal or
equitable, that are necessary or appropriate in carrying out this responsibility. Any person
who violates or continues to violate any provision of this Ordinance after receiving notice




of such violation is subject to such fines, penalties, actions and orders as are ordered by
the municipatl officers.

Section 8. Severability; Other Laws; Effective Date

A. If any provision of this Ordinance is determined to be unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

B. This Ordinance does not relieve a person of the obligation to complying with all
other applicable federal, state, or municipal laws, rules, ordinances, or policies.

C. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the later of (1) the enactment of this
Ordinance by the legislative body of the Town of Bridgton and {2} the issuance of
an order by the municipal officers in accordance with Section 6.C.



CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “TOWN OF BRIDGTON
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON COMMERCIAL SOLAR ENERGY
FACILITIES” AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on Commercial Solar Energy Facilities”
to be voted on at a referendum election of the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following
secret ballot article:

Article  : Shall an ordinance entitled, “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium
on Commercial Solar Energy Facilities,” be enacted?
(Note: Copies of the text of the ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said
proposed ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the
warrant calling the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the
referendum election on June 14, 2022,

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium
on Commercial Solar Energy Facilities” is attached hereto.

Attest:

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine

1 certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance
Establishing a Moratorium on Commercial Solar Energy Facilities” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM
ON COMMERCIAL SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES

Administrative Draft
March 29, 2022

PREPARED FOR TOWN REFERENDUM TO BE HELD ON JUNE 14, 2022




TOWN OF BRIDGTON
ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM
ON COMMERCIAL SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES

Section 1. Title; Authority.

This ordinance, duly enacted by the legislative body of the Town of Bridgton (the “Town”) and
entitled “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on Commercial Solar Energy
Facilities” is referenced herein as the “Moratorium Ordinance.”

This Moratorium Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Town’s home rule authority under
Article VII, Part Second, of the Maine Constitution and 30-A M.R.S.A §§ 3001, 4356, and any
other enabling statutes.

Section 2. Necessity.

The Town makes the following findings:

A,

Pursuant to L.D. 1711, the Maine Legislature enacted amendments to the state’s net energy

billing program for customers of investor-owned utilities, which amendments are codified
at 35-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3209-A and 3209-B.

The amended net energy billing program incentivizes utility customers to make financial
investments in the construction of commercial distributed generation resources, including
solar photovoltaic power electrical generation facilities (“Solar Facilities”), in order to
receive, for electricity delivered to the electric grid from such facilities, monetary credits
to reduce the customers’ utility bills.

As a result of the amended net energy billing program, developers have expressed interest
in and aggressively pursued the development of Solar Facilities throughout the State of
Maine, including in the Town.

The Town’s ordinances, including without limitation the Town of Bridgton Land Use
Code, are insufficient to prevent serious public harm that could result from the siting,
installation, and operation of additional Solar Facilities within the Town.

In particular, the siting, installation, and operation of Solar Facilities within the Town raises
legitimate and substantial questions about the impact of such facilities on the Town,
including questions as to compatibility of such facilities with existing and permitted land
uses in the Town; potential adverse environmental effects, including cumulative effects, of
such facilities; and the lack of plans and other financial assurances that such facilities will
be properly constructed and decommissioned.

As a result of the foregoing issues, the siting, installation, and operation of Solar Facilities
within the Town has potentially serious implications for the health, safety, and welfare of
the Town and its residents and visitors.




G. The Town needs time to evaluate the need for and to prepare reasonable ordinance
provisions or amendments governing the siting, installation, operation, and
decommissioning of Solar Facilities within the Town and to secure voter approval for such
ordinance provisions or amendments.

H. The Town, with assistance from the Planning Board, Code Enforcement Officer, and other
departments, intends to study the Town’s Land Use Code and other Town ordinances to
determine the land use and other regulatory implications of the siting, installation,
operation, and decommissioning of Solar Facilities within the Town, and to consider what
additional or different locations, approvals, and performance standards, if any, might be
appropriate for such facilities.

L. 1t is anticipated that such a study, review, and development of recommended ordinance and
code amendments will take not more than 180 days from the Effective Date of this
Moratorium Ordinance.

J. In the judgment of the municipal officers and the legisiative body of the Town, the
foregoing findings constitute an emergency within the meaning of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4356
requiring immediate legislative action.

Section 3. Moratorinm.

The Town does hereby declare a moratorium on (a) the siting, installation, construction,
expansion, or licensing of any Commercial Solar Energy Facility within the Town; (b) the
acceptance or processing of any application, proposal, or request for a Commercial Solar Energy
Facility that is pending on or after the Date of Applicability; and (c) the issuance of any license,
permit, approval, or any other action or decision by a board, officer, official, employee, agent, or
department of the Town related to a Commercial Solar Energy Facility. During the time this
Moratorium Ordinance is in effect, no officer, official, employee, office, administrative board, or
agency of the Town shall accept, process, approve, deny, or in any other way act upon any
application for any type of license, permit, or approval related to a Commercial Solar Energy
Facility.

Section 4. Definition.

For purposes of this Moratorium Ordinance, “Commercial Solar Energy Facility” is defined as an
assembly or installation of solar collectors and associated mounting hardware, electricity storage
equipment, transmission and distribution lines, and related infrastructure that uses solar
photovoeltaic (PV) technology (including solar panels, arrays, or modules) to collect convert, store,
and/or deliver electricity for off-site consumption, and which is intended for the production of
income; provided, however, that this Moratorium Ordinance shall not apply to a Commercial Solar
Energy Facility with a nameplate capacity of 125 kW (DC) or less.




Section 5. Effective Date.

This Moratorium Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the
legislative body of the Town (the “Effective Date”) and shall remain in full force and effect for a
period of 180 days from the Date of Applicability, unless extended, repealed, or modified in
accordance with applicable law.

Section 6. Date of Applicability,

Notwithstanding 1 M.R.S.A. § 302 or any other law to the contrary, and regardiess of the Effective
Date, this Moratorium Ordinance shall govern and apply to all proceedings and applications for a
Commercial Solar Energy Facility that were or are pending before the Town’s Code Enforcement
Officer or Planning Board on or any time after March 22, 2022 (the “Date of Applicability”) and,
to the extent allowed by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3007(6), shall nullify the issuance of any final approval
of the Code Enforcement Officer or the Planning Board made on or at any time after the Date of
Applicability that authorizes the operation of a Commercial Solar Energy Facility.

Section 7. Conflicts; Savings Clause.

Any provisions of the Town’s ordinances that are inconsistent with or conflict with the provisions
of this Moratorium Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent applicable for the duration of this
moratorium. If any section or provision of this Moratorium Ordinance is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such a declaration shall not invalidate any other section or
provision.

Section 8. Viclations.

If any Commercial Solar Energy Facility is located or operated in the Town, in violation of this
Moratorium Ordinance, each day of any continuing violation shall constitute a separate violation
of this Moratorium Ordinance and the Town shall be entitled to all rights available to it pursuant
to 30-A M.R.S.A, § 4452, including, but not limited to, fines and penalties, injunctive relief, and
its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in prosecuting any such violations.




CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE ENTITLED “AMENDMENTS TO
BRIDGTON LAND USE CODE AND OFFICIAL SHORELAND ZONING MAPS TO CORRECT
ERRORS AND ADD A LIMITED COMMERCIAL (1.C) SHORELAND ZONING DISTRICT,”
AND ORDER

The municipal officers of the Town of Bridgton hereby CERTIFY to the municipal clerk of the Town of
Bridgton, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002, that attached hereto is a true copy of the proposed ordinance
entitled “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors
and Add a Limited Commercial (LLC) Shoreland Zoning District” to be voted on at a referendum election
of the Town of Bridgton on June 14, 2022 under the following secret ballot question:

Question __ : Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (LC) Shoreland Zoning
District,” be enacted?

(Note: A “Yes” vote will enact the ordinance entitled, *'Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code
and Official Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (LC)
Shoreland Zoning District,” and will change the zoning of some properties or portions of certain
properties fiom the Limited Residential (LR) shoreland zoning district to the Limited Commercial
(LC) shoreland zoning district. Copies of the text of the ordinance, including the current and
proposed Official Shoreland Zoning Maps, are available from the Town Clerk.)

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3002(1), that the municipal clerk shall keep
this certified copy as a public record and shall make copies of said proposed ordinance available for
distribution to the voters of the Town of Bridgton from the time of this certification. Copies of said
proposed ordinance shall also be attested by the municipal clerk and posted in the same manner as the
warrant calling the referendum election on June 14, 2022 and shall be made available to the voters at the
referendum election on June 14, 2022.

Dated: , 2022

A majority of the municipal officers
of the Town of Bridgton

A true copy of the proposed ordinance entitled “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (L.C) Shoreland Zoning
District” is attached hereto.

Aftest:
Laurie Chadbourne, Town Cletk
Town of Bridgton




RETURN
Cumberland County, ss. State of Maine
I certify that I have posted an attested copy of the proposed ordinance entitied “Amendments to Bridgton

Land Use Code and Official Shoreland Zoning Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commerciai
(LC) Shoreland Zoning District” at

being conspicuous public places within the Town of Bridgton on , 2022, which is
at least seven (7) days next prior to the date of the June 14, 2022 referendum election.

Laurie Chadbourne, Town Clerk
Town of Bridgton




AMENDMENTS TO BRIDGTON LAND USE CODE AND
OFFICIAL SHORELAND ZONING MAPS TO CORRECT ERRORS
AND ADD A LIMITED COMMERCIAL (LC) SHORELAND ZONING DISTRICT

Administrative Draft
March 28, 2022

PREPARED FOR PLANNING BOARD PUBLIC HEARING
PURSUANT TO 30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 4352 AND 4403(2) ON MARCH 28, 2022
AND TOWN MEETING REFERENDUM ON JUNE 14, 2022

The Town of Bridgton Land Use Code is proposed to be amended by adding the text shown in
underline form, and by removing the text shown in strikethreusgh form, and the Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps are proposed to be amended to change the zoning of the certain
properties or portions of certain properties from the Limited Residential (LR) shoreland
zoning district to the Limited Commercial (LC) shoreland zoning district, as shown in
Appendix B.



Town of Bridgton
[L.and Use Code

Jeve aligy,

BR'!‘%PN

Enacted 11/02/2021
Amended 06/14/2022




A ROAD MAP FOR USING AND UNDERSTANDING THE BRIDGTON LAND USE CODE

STEP 1. How is your property zoned?
Identify the land use district where your property is located
(refer to the Town’s Official Land Use District Maps).

v

STEP 2. Check the Schedule of Uses in Section IlI-2.
Review the definitions in Section 1X-3 to make sure the use matches the activity you wish to conduct.
In your land use district, is the activity you wish to conduct ...

... allowed with a building permit
or site plan approval?
(marked “P” or “S” in the schedule)

v v v

... allowed without a permit?
(marked “Yes” in the schedule)

... not listed or prohibited?
(marked “No” in the schedule)

STEP 3. Is your property also in the shoreland zone? . L
Identify the shoreland zoning district where your property is located Sk ) Retls |
(refer to the Town’s Official Shoreland Zoning Maps). STOP. Do not eonduct the activity. I

— Ifyes, go to step 4. Call the C.qd:e Enwf@r(;e.m:trfnt Officer
— If no, go to step 5 (skip step 4). s .to d-ista_u--gs_ }mLii‘ o-p:-tior_-‘l-s,._ e

STEP 4, Check the Schedule of Uses in Section IV-2.
Review the definitions in Section IX-3 to make sure the use matches the activity you wish to conduct.
In your shoreland zoning district, is the activity you wish to conduct ...

... allowed with a building permit
... allowed without a permit? ‘ or site plan approval? || ... hot listed or prohibited?
(marked “Yes” in the schedule) 1 (marked “CEQ” or “LPI” or “PB” ; (marked “No” in the schedule)

in the schedule) 5

v v
| (N

Carry out the activity in STOP. Do not conduct the activity.
compliance with applicable Call the Code Enforcement Officer
standards. to discuss your options.

b 4

STEP 5. What permits or approvals do you need to carry out the activity?

If your activity is allowed with a building permit ... If your activity is allowed with site plan review ...
(marked “P” or “CEO” or “LPI” in the schedules) (marked “S” or “PB” in the schedules)
' — Find the relevant standards in Chapters IV | | — Find the relevant standards in Chapters IV
(Shoreland Zoning) and VI (Building Regulations). (Shoreland Zoning) and V (Site Plan Review).
| — Submit a building permit application addressing — Submit a site plan application addressing the
: the standards and wait for approval. 1 standards, participate in Planning Board
| — If the permit is approved, carry out the activity in } meetings and hearings, and wait for approval.
. compliance with applicable standards and permit | — |Ifthe approval is granted, carry out the activity
| conditions. | | in compliance with applicable standards and

. conditions of approval.
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

— Subdivisions: If you want to create a subdivision, refer to Chapter VI for the subdivision application process.

— “Grandfathered” Lots, Uses, and Structures: If your property is already developed and the lot or the uses and
structures on the lot do not meet the requirements of the Code, refer to Chapter Il (Nonconforming Uses,
Structures, and Lots) for details on what uses you may carry out and what structural changes you may make.

— Variances: If you need a variance, refer to Section |-13.

— Appeals: If you want to appeal a Code Enforcement Officer or Planning Board decision, refer to Section I-12.



HOW IS THE BRIDGTON LAND USE CODE ORGANIZED?
The Bridgton Land Use Code is organized into the following Chapters:
Chapter 1. Administration. Chapter I provides information on:

— Which activities require permits or approvals and which ones do not

—- What types of permits or approvals are needed

— What must be included in an application

- How are applications processed, and by whom

- What is the process for appealing a decision of the Code Enforcement Officer or Planning Board
- How to request a variance or a waiver

Chapter 11. Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots. Chapter I sets out the rules for lots, structures,
and uses that lawfully existed before this Code was enacted or amended and, as a result, don’t comply with
one ot more of the Code’s requirements (such as dimensional standards).

Chapter 1I1. Land Use Districts. The Town has established land use districts to protect the Town’s
character and prevent conflicts between incompatible uses. Chapter Il describes these districts and, in
Section I1I-2, identifies the activities that are allowed in each district as follows:

— Uses allowed without a permit (marked “Yes” in the schedule of uses)
— Uses requiring a permit or site plan approval (marked “P” or “S” in the schedule of uses)
—— Uses that are prohibited (marked “No” in the schedule of uses)

Section II1-3 describes the dimensional standards that apply to each district, including minimum lot size,
minimum frontage, maximum lot coverage, minimum and maximum setbacks, and minimum and
maximum height requirements. Section If[-4 describes the space and bulk standards that apply in each land
use district.

Chapter IV, Shoreland Zoning. In addition to its land use district, the Town has established shoreland
zoning districts to protect important natural resources. Chapter 1V describes these districts and, in
Section [V-2.B, identifies the activities that are allowed in each district as follows:

— Uses allowed without a permit (marked “Yes” in the schedule of uses)

— Uses requiring a permit or other approval (marked “CEO” or “LPI” or “PB” in the schedule of uses)
— Uses that are prohibited (marked “No” in the schedule of uses)

Section IV-3 and Section 1V-4 spell out the review criteria that applications must meet to get a permit from
the Code Enforcement Officer or the Planning Board, Section IV-5 allows the Planning Board to approve
single-family dwellings in the RP district by special exception.

Chapter V, Site Plan Review, Chapter V explains the process and review standards for obtaining site plan
approval from the Code Enforcement Officer or the Planning Board. Tt identifies special review standards
for projects involving large-scale water extraction, mineral extraction, and marijuana establishments,

Chapter V1. Subdivision Regulations. Chapter IV explains out the process and review standards for
obtaining subdivision approval from the Planning Board.

Chapter VII. Building Regulations, Chapter VII spells out the process and review standards for obtaining
a building permit from the Code Enforcement Officer.

Chapter VIII Legal. Chapter VII contains miscellaneous legal provisions.

Chapter IX, Rules of Construction, Acronyms, and Definitions. Chapter IX contains rules for how the
Code should be interpreted, and lists acronyms and definitions used in the Code.




CHAPTER 1. ADMINISTRATION

Scction I-1.
Section [-2.
Section -3,
Section 1-4,
Secction 1-5.
Section 1-6,
Section 1-7,
Section 1-8,
Section -9,
Section 1-10.
Section 1-11.
Section 1-12.
Section I-13.
Section [-14,

CHAPTER II. NONCONFORMING USLES, STRUCTURES, AND LOTS

Section 11-1,
Section 11-2.
Section I1-3.
Section {1-4.
Scction 11-5.
Section II-6,

TOWN OF BRIDGTON LAND USE CODE
TABLE OF CONTENTS

What Are the Purposes 0f This Code? ......c.iviiininiiniccinrcicisne i oessssessessesssssrass 1
To Which Activities Does This Code APPIY? oo s 1
Who Is Responsible for Administering This Code? ........cciiviiniiniimnnneneerreeneseeenn |
Which Activities Do Not Require Permits or Approvals Under This Code? ..o, 3
Which Activities Require Permits or Approvals Under This Code? ...oovviviiiicnicincninnnnnn 4

What Types of Permils or Approvals Are Required? ......cov oo 3
What Must Be Included in An Application for a Permit or Approval? ..o 8
What Are the Procedures for Administering Permits and Approvals Under This Code?....... 7
How Must an Applicant Give Notice to Abuiting Property Owners? .......c.ovivevivinniienniennns 8
What Time Limits Apply to Work Authorized by a Permit or Approval? ... 8
What Activities Require a Certificate of Occupancy? ..o oo 3

What Is the Process for Appealing a Decision of the CEO or Planning Board? .................... 9
What is the Process for Seeking a VAriance? ... siesisssesesesseenes 10
What is the Process for Seeking Waivers? ........oocoiiiiieiiciceeeeeeee e e eeae et emers 13

PUIPOSE vt vt srcrarcesaeer e s e essmcrec b s pre e s s sae s sresa e vacratesseraarnsessesrasnnsensanesasassaasns LD

GEIBTAL .1ttt etk e sh e e ran s 15
INONCONTONING USES. .ottt iee et r st ire et me st et s ete s tesbeesmeenbanarnenen 15
Nonconforming Structures 16

NOnconforming LOS ...t esieessiessssnsesesssesssessssnes 20

Lots in Two MUnicipalilies ..o esssreenssensssssseensessneeenseess 22

CHAPTER TT1. LAND USE DISTRICTS. .. iiiieiinsiinisimseissiim s e sae sassa e sessasassesssss4a1a 1054184000118 010 401804 101001018 23
Section I1I-1, Land TISe DISEIICES . coieieie ettt et s e e et e e e n st rnpn st e e 23
Section I11-2, Schedule 0T USES i s 28
Section [11-3, Dyimensional StAnAadS ..o e e s e s sn bt den 36
Section Hl-4, District-Specific Space and Bulk Standards ... 44

CHAPTER IV. SHORELAND ZONING ...ttt s e e s ressssssasssssssnesesss 54
Section IV-1, Shorefand Zoning Established ... 34
Section 1V-2, Schedule of Uses for the Shoreland Zone ... s sesens 56
Section IV-3. General Review CrIETIA ...t it ettt bbb bbb 60
Section IV-4. Land Use Standards in the Shoreland Zone....ooiiiooccicciccreeeneeneenn . 60
Section IV-5. SPECIAE EXTEPHONS |.reververseneeeeesemienteie st esatenesetea e eeaneesesasmsesersensenssressentetesressissasssssress enns 76



CHAPTER V, SITE PLAN REVIEW ..o s 78

Section V-1. AP DA B e s oo T R S e B A T R P T T I S T e 78
Section V-2. Delegation of Reviewing Authority; REPOItING .......ocovvevevivenienenieiriiecveeresenesssessassesseeene 78
Section V-3. Review Procedures—CEO REVISW ..uiiisssossiuiiatsiesionssiisisios stonsssisions ssssnssssessiiistansisoesas 78
Section V-4, Review Procedures—Planning Board REVIEW ......ccccivveeicisiniiiisiccieiiee s eeee s 79
Section V-5. Application Submission REGUITEMENtS wnusnunnmosnnaimmmimnrmeiammamimia ol
Section V-6. OEneral Ry W C I O IA o ucurnnsinsmmsssnvomsmnnsmssesss asssns s ssassnanssivtss shs e pam Ty TSt SR RS 83
Section V-7. Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Large-Scale Water Exfraction....................87
Section V-8. Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Mineral EXfraction ...........c.ccvevvvveevierenneenns 94
Section V-9. Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Marijuana Establishments ....................... 100
Section V-10. Post-ApProval ReqUITIMENES i soisisini vsvorssinvissaissssvn sisssaiasssiassss sores s saassi susatssiossaiassvs 106
Section V-11. Amendments to Approved Site PLAns.......ccoccciririniiniinienieeiesiesieniesieesesrnsssssssessesaesesnees 106
CHAPTER VI SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS c..icusssuessssissssssasasssssnsvisnssiosssssacesnsssssssssasdssssissssisanssosi susnisassass 107
CHAPTER VII. BUILDING REGULATIONS ...ccoitiiimimerienmnisoieimemermimmeismmemsmiisssenisssassssssesssass 108
Section VII-1. Applicability; Building Permit Requited,.mmosmsrmnusmsimmmuam i amimmm s maaian s 108
Section VII-2. ReVIEW SANAAIAS ....ooveeviiiieeieice ettt ettt ene e 108
CHAPTER VILL: LEGA T yucuuisscrsssunsistinsnsonssssssssimssisssnssvsssvsssssssass sansssssssrassvesssiasissssss oo msassdsta s fasuisiaossn 109
Section VIII-1. Authority; Availability of Code......ccoccouiriiiniiiiiiiiieeriiceiceie e eneeaessessesneseeseens 109
Section VIII-2. Contents; Certain Ordinances Not Affected by Code.......ccevicnniennaninsssessissnsosessressessissasss 109
Section VIII-3. How This Code Is Designated and Cited ..........cccoevieeiinieiiniiniiinsnseirsessesseisssesrsssssessnes 109
Section VIII-4. ELTCCHVE DRI s sinsioss i vy i s i i i s v e S B e A S s 109
Section VIII-5. Date Of APPHCADIIILY 1eiviriiireiiir e e e sre e ras s resaesss e ssesbesbsessensesrnsssssanes (]
Section VIII-6. Conflicts with Other Ordinances or Code Provisions...........occvnverenninsnsnenecninessseenneen 111
Section VIII-7. ANEIAIMIEIIES ..ottt ee e e e e b b e e sbs et s eb e besbe st ebaebssnsensebensens 111
Section VIII-8. Effectof Repeal arAtEndtieht v e s 112
Section VIII-9. Compliance.and Enforcement; Penalties.. ... i anvissomspinmaasms 113
Section VIII-10.  Performance GUATANIEE ........ccoouiriirieriiriiriieneseresesesiesessessssssesesseensessesssssssessessesssesaassasane 114
Section V=11,  Validity and Severability . imsammmsmmavmsvmmanvimivmvviassesamsaimal LO
CHAPTER IX. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION, ACRONYMS, AND DEFINITIONS........coonaresressnsanseesasans 117
Section IX-1. Rules of ConStraetion . e snmsississmsmviss esmsoiossesivs 5 vism dsessis i sisisgin 117
Section IX-3. ACTOIYITIS 1uvvviriuiitisiieesirte ettt et b e bbb nd bbbt sb et b st s b e bbb 118
Section IX-5. DTN OGS . covvuvonimossasassivmasaiarcatssssass 500 S9S s S a8 T a0 VIS b oo he T S F e 435 119
APPENDICES.....cciiitimminiesitiniseesssientasesssiassnesessssasssssessssassssssssssasssssssssses seess ssses bessasssssss sassessesss sesssss essessassssessssass A-1
Appendix A. Official Land Use District MAaDs . .comammmsmssisnmossssismsimsisviwssiissssossooivsresssir Aml
Appendix B. Official Shoreland Zoning Maps .......c.ooeieiiieiecnie sttt ee st esenessnssseseses B-1
Appendix C. Standards Adopted by Referentein ol mummmimnnmim e au s s i ssma C-1

Note: The above Cover Sheet, Road Map and Table of Contents, as well as the pagination of this document,

are not a part of the officially adopted Bridgton Land Use Code and are subject to change by the Town at
any time. The Road Map and Table of Contents are included here for convenience to the reader.



Section I-1,

CHAPTER L. ADMINISTRATION

What Are the Purposes of This Code?

The purposes of this Code are to:

A.

B.

H.

Section I-2.

Promote and conserve the health, safety, and general welfare of the inhabitants of the
Town,

Implement the vision and goals of the Town of Bridgton Comprehensive Plan;

Ensure compatible, orderly, and beneficial development of the Town and the most
appropriate use of land in keeping with the purposes of the land use districts in which
developmenit is proposed, and minimize the adverse effects of development;

Protect the character of the Town while protecting residents from incompatible uses and
preserving the private property rights of its inhabitants;

Provide inceantives to direct commercial growth to appropriate growth areas;

Expand and nurture economic growth that contributes to the vitality of the downtown and
plan for commercial development in designated growth areas along the inner Route 302
and Route 117 corridors;

Retain and protect the historic character of the downtown and the outlying villages through
thoughtful planning and the use of development and design standards;

Encourage development that is human scale, walkable, pleasant, dense, and acecessible; and

Protect and conserve the Town’s natural resources, and further the maintenance of safe and
healthful conditions in the watersheds and shoreland areas of the Town; prevent and control
water pollution; protect fish spawning grounds, aquatic life, and bird and other wildlife
habitat; protect buildings and land from flooding and accelerated erosion; protect historical,
cuitural, and archaeological resources; protect forested and freshwater wetlands; control
building sites, placement of structures, and land uses; conserve shore cover, as well as
visual and actual points of access to inland waters; conserve natural beauty and open space;
and anticipate and respond to the impacts of development in shoreland areas.

To Which Activities Does This Code Apply?

This Code applies to any structure, or any part of a structure, that is proposed to be erected, altered,
improved, renovated, enlarged, moved {inchiding removed from, moved onto, or moved within a lot), or
demolished; land that is used or occupied; any proposed use, or a change or expansion of a use; and the
creation or conveyance of a lot.

Section I-3.

Who Is Responsible for Administering This Code?

The CEO, Planning Board, and Board of Appeals of the Town are responsible for administering this Code.




CEO. The CEO has the following duties and powers in administering and enforcing
this Code:

1. Review and act on all building permit applications in accordance with Chapter VII
(Building Regulations) and issue disability structures permits in accordance with
Section I-13.F.

2. Determine whether uses, structures, and lots comply with Chapter I
{(Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots),

3. For applications and matters that are not subject to the jurisdiction of the Planning
Board, determine whether a proposed use, or any structure associated with or
devoted to such use, is allowed pursuant to Chapter III (Land Use Districts).

4, Review and act on all matters requiring CEO approval in Chapter 1V (Shoreland
Zoning).
5. For applications and matters that are not subject to the jurisdiction of the Planning

Board, review and act on all site plan applications in accordance with Chapter V
(Site Plan Review). Otherwise, refer the site plan application to the Planning

Board.
6. Refer all subdivision applications to the Planning Board.
7. Issue certificates of occupancy.
8. Interpret the Official Land Use District Maps, Official Shoreland Zoning Maps,

and the location of land use district and shoreland zoning district boundaries.

9. Enforce the provisions of this Code and the terms and conditions of permits or
approvals issued under this Code, by inspecting premises, investigating
complaints, issuing notices of violation, suspending or revoking permits or
approvals, participating in legal prosecution of violations as needed, and
processing or acting on consent agreements.

0. Keep written records of all essential transactions under this Code, including
applications submitted, permits and approvals granted or denied, variances granted
or denied, revocation and suspension actions, appeals, inspections, violations
investigated, notices of violation, legal prosecution of violations, court actions,
consent agreements, fees collected, penalties imposed, and proposed and enacted
amendments to this Code.

11. Interpret the provisions of this Code, including the meaning of terms used in this
Code, when performing the duties in the preceding subsections A.1-10.

Planning Board. The Planning Board, duly established pursuant to the Establishment of
the Bridgion Planning Board Ovdinance, has the following duties and powers in
administering this Code:

i, For applications and matters that are not subject to the jurisdiction of the CEQ,
determine whether a proposed use, or any structure associated with or devoted to
such use, is allowed pursuant to Chapter 111 (Land Use Districts).

2. Review and act on all matters requiring Planning Board approval in Chapter IV
{Shoretand Zoning).



3. For applications and matters that are not subject to the jurisdiction of the CEQ,
review and act on applications for site plan approval in accordance with Chapter V
(Site Plan Review).

4, Review and act on subdivision applications in accordance with Chapter VI
{(Subdivision Regulations).

5. Serve as the municipal reviewing authority for purposes of holding public hearings
pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4352 concerning proposed amendments to the Code,
the Official Land Use District Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps.

6. Recommend to the Municipal Officers whether or not an article to amend the Code,
the Official 1.and Use District Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps should
be included in the warrant for a regular or special Town meeting,

7. Interpret the provisions of this Code, including the meaning of terms used in this
Code, when performing the duties in the preceding subsections B.1-6.

Board of Appeals. The Board of Appeals, duly established and organized pursuant to
30-A M.R.S.A. § 2691, has the following duties and powers in administering this Code:

i. Upon written application of an aggrieved party, hear and decide any appeal from
any written decision or failure to act of the CEO or Planning Board in the
administration of this Code, except that the Board of Appeals does not have
jurisdiction to hear appeals from notices of violation, enforcement orders,
suspensions or revocations of permits or approvals, written determinations of no
violation, or any other enforcement decisions of the CEQ,

2, Upon written application, review and act on variance requests.

3. Interpret the location of land use district and shoreland zoning district boundaries
upon referral from the CEO.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S AL § 4352 (MUNICTPAL REVIEWING AUTHORITY): § 2691 (BOARD OF APPEALS).

Section 1-4.

Which Activities Do Not Require Permits or Approvals Under This Code?

No permit or approval from the reviewing authority is required for the following activities under this Code
as long as the activities are conducted in compliance with applicable standards:

A,

Land uses, and any structures associated with or devoted to such uses, that are identified
as allowed without a permit in the schedules of uses in Chapter III (Land Use Districts) or
Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning).

Repair, maintenance, and improvement of a structure within the footprint of the structure,
including insulation, plumbing, painting, re-roofing, and minor efficiency upgrades such
as replacement doors or windows, but not replacement foundations. If in the shoreland
zone, such activities must comply with Section I11-4.G.

Non-structural residential gardening, agricultural, and landscaping activities. If in the shoreland
zone, such activities must comply with any applicable dimensional standards in Section 111-3
and land use standards in Section 1V-4.

Non-structural use of land for agricultural or forestry purposes. If in the shoreland zone,
such activities must comply with any applicable dimensional standards in Section I11-3 and
land use standards in Section IV-4, Note that forest management activities, including



timber harvesting activities, are regulated by the DACF Bureau of Forestry pursuant to 12
M.R.S.A. §§ 88606 et seq.

E. Enclosure of a pasture or area with a fence.

Outside of the shoreland zone, erection of free-standing structures that are accessory to
residential uses, not more than 100 square feet in floor area, and not exceeding 10 feet in
height,

G. Outside of the shoreland zone, construction of farm or fire ponds. Note that a DEP NRPA
permit may be required for such activities.

H. Creation or conveyance of a lot that is not part of a subdivision, as defined in
30-AM.R.S.A. § 4401(4).

L Repair and maintenance of an existing road culvert, or replacement of an existing road
culvert as long as (a) the replacement culvert is not more than 25% longer than the culvert
being replaced and not longer than 75 feet, (b) erosion control measures are taken to prevent
sedimentation of the atfected water body, and (c) the culvert does not block fish passage.
Ancillary culverting activities, including excavation and filling, are included in this
exemption.

I Archacological excavation, as long as the excavation is conducted by an archaeologist
listed on Level 1 or Level 2 approved list in accordance with the State Historic Preservation
Officer’s Standards for Archaeological Work in Maine, 94-089 CM.R. ch. 812, and

adequate erosion control measures are taken to prevent sedimentation of any affected water
baody.

K. Outside of the shoreland zone, outdoor storage or stockpiles of winter abrasives (sand and
salt) used for the maintenance of private or public roads, except for any storage or
stockpiles associated with mineral extraction.

L. Replacement or reconstruction of damaged or destroyed public utility transmission and
distribution lines and related egnipment.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 440/ (SUBDIVISIONS; DEFINITIONS); 38 M.R.S.A § 438-A (MANDATORY
SHORELAND ZONING; MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY); 38 M.R.S.A. § 480-A ET SEQ. (NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION
ACTY; 94-089 C.M.R. ¢ 812 (STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER’S STANDARDS FOR ARCHAEOLOGICAL WORK
IN MAINE),

Section I-5.  Which Activities Require Permits or Approvals Under This Code?

A written permit or written approval from the CEO or Planning Board is required before undertaking any
of the following activities, unless the activity is listed as not requiring a permit in Section I-4:

A, Erecting, altering, improving, renovating, enlarging, moving (including removing from,
moving onto, or moving within a lot), or demolishing a structure, or any part of a structure.

Establishing, changing, or expanding a land use.
Renewing a discontinued nonconforming use.

Creating a ot that is part of a subdivision or seiling, leasing, developing, building upon, or
conveying any land in a subdivision, as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4401(4).



Land uses, and any structures associated with or devoted to such uses, that are identified
as allowed with a permit in the schedules of uses in Chapter Il (Land Use Districts) and
Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning).

Permits or approvals will be issued only if the reviewing authority determines that the application materials,
plans, and proposed structures and uses comply with the requirements of this Code and any other applicable
Town ordinances, regulations, and rules. Any permits required by this Code are in addition to any other
permits or approvals required by other law, rule, or ordinance.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4401 (SUBDIVISIONS; DEFINITIONS).

Scction 1-6.
A,

What Types of Permits or Approvals Are Required?

Building Permits. A building permit from the CEOQ is required before undertaking any of
the following activities:

1.

Allowed Uses. Any use, and any structure associated with or devoted to such use,
listed in the schedules of uses in Chapter III {Land Use Districts) or Chapter IV
{Shoreland Zoning) as requiring a permit from the CEO,

Site Plan Approvals. Any use, and any structure associated with or devoted to such
use, that has been granted site plan approval pursuant to Chapter V (Site Plan
Review).

Site Plan Approval. Site plan approval from the CEO or Planning Board pursuant to
Chapter V (Site Plan Review) is required before undertaking any of the following activities:

L.

4.

Allowed Uses. Any use listed i the schedules of uses in Chapter I1I (Land Use
Districts) or Chapter IV {Shoreland Zoning) as requiring site plan approval, any
change of use to another land use category listed in the schedules of uses that
requires site plan approval, and any expansion of any such use.

Allowed Structures. Any structure associated with or devoted to a use listed in the
schedules of uses in Chapter Il (Land Use Districts) or Chapter IV (Shoreland
Zoning) as requiring site plan approval, including the construction, alteration, or
enlargement of any existing structure associated with or devoted to a use requiring
site plan approval.

Packing, Loading, Outdoor Display. The expansion of any parking, loading,
outdoor display, or storage area of any nonresidential use.

Amendments. Any modifications or changes to an approved site plan.

Subdivision Approval. Subdivision approval from the Planning Board pursuant to
Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations) is required before selling, leasing, developing,
building upon, or conveying for consideration any land in a subdivision, as defined in
30-A MLR.S.A. § 4401(4). Such activitics may occur only after a final subdivision plan has
been reviewed, approved, and endorsed by the Planning Board as required by Chapter VI
(Subdivision Regulations), and an attested copy of the approved and endorsed plan has
been recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4401 (SUBDIVISIONS; DEFINITIONS).




Section I-7.  'What Must Be Included in An Application for a Permit or Approval?

Any application for a permit or approval required under this Code must be submitted in writing to the
reviewing authority on forms provided by tire Town for that purpose and signed and dated by the applicant.
Each application must be accompanied by:

A, The name, address, and telephone number of the applicant and the name, address, and
telephone number of the property owner, if different from the applicant.

A fee as provided in the Town of Bridgton Uniform Fee Ordinance.

Except for building permit applications, proof of adequate techunical and financial capacity
to carry out the proposed activifics in conformance with this Code.

Proof that the applicant holds right, title, or interest in the property.
E. If the applicant is not the property owner, a letter of authorization from the owner.

A layout or plot plan drawn to scale showing, at minimum:

1. The dimensions of the lot to be built upon and all roads on or adjacent to the lot;

2. The location and size of all existing structures and other significant features of the
lot;

3. The exact size and location of all structures proposed to be erccted, altered,
enlarged, moved, or demolished;

4, The existing and proposed use of each existing and proposed structure;

5. Any areas within the shoreland zone, all water bodies and wetlands within 250 feet

of the property boundaries, and all shoreline buffers;
All maximum and minimum setback lines;
Al district boundaries, including shoreland zoning district boundaries;

Where applicable, the location of floodplains and floodplain elevations; and

o N

Where applicable, the location of soil test pits, subsurface wastewater disposal
systems, site drainage, parking fots, driveways, roads, signs, buffer strips, fences,
and private wells.

G. Copies of any notices required by this Code, including verification of mailing of notices to
abutters and the Town Manager.

H. If the property is not served by a public sewer and the nature of the proposal requires the
installation of a subsurface wastewater disposal system, a valid plumbing permit or a
completed application for a plumbing permit, including the subsutface wastewater disposal
system application (HHE-200 form) approved by the local plumbing inspector.

1 Any submission requirements specific to the type of permit ar approval being sought,
including the following:

1. For building permit applications, a written statement and other evidence
demonstrating that the proposal satisfies each of the review standards in
Section VII-2.




2. For activities located in the shoreland zone that are allowed with a permit,
pre-construction photographs of the shoreline vegetation and development site,
and a written statement and other evidence demonstrating that the proposed
activity satisfies the applicable dimensional requirements in Section 111-3, each of
the review criteria in Section IV-3, the applicable land use standards in Section IV-
4, and the special exception requirements of Section 1V-5, if applicable.

3. For site plan applications, the application submission requirements identified in
Chapter V (Site Plan Review).

4, For subdivision applications, the application submission requirements identified in
Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations).

Such other information as may be required by the reviewing authority to determine
conformance with this Code.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 439-A(10) (PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORD REQUIRED).

Section I-8.

A.

What Are the Procedures for Administering Permits and Approvals Under This
Code?

Dated Receipt—Subdivision Applications. When a subdivision application is received,
the reviewing authority will give a dated receipt to the applicant.

Completeness Review. Within 30 days of the date of receiving a written application for a
permit or approval, the reviewing authority must determine whether the application is
complete for review. If the application is found incomplete, the reviewing authority must
notify the applicant in writing and direct the applicant to submit any omitted or incomplete
information within a specified period of time. If the omitted or incomplete information has
not been submitted by then, the reviewing authority may return the application as
incomplete and conclude its review. If the application is found complete for review, the
reviewing authority must notify the applicant and begin its full evaluation of the proposal.

Woritten Decision. The reviewing authority must issue a written decision to approve,
approve with conditions, or deny each application for a building permit, shoreland zoning
approval, site plan approval, or subdivision approval which is deemed complete for review.

L. Decision; Time Limits—Subdivision Applications. The Planning Board must issue
a written decision on a subdivision application within 30 days of a public hearing
or, if no hearing is held, within 60 days of finding the application complete for
review.

Burden of Proof. The applicant has the burden of proving, by demonstrable evidence, that
a proposal complies with the requirements of this Code.

Access to and Display of Permits and Approvals. The permit holder must have a copy
of all written permits or approvals on site while the authorized work is performed. Building
permits must be displayed conspicuously on or adjacent to the project site, must be clearly
visible from the principal traveled road, and must remain displayed until the work is
completed. A building permit issued for a mobile accessory structure will be assigned a
number, which must be affixed in a visible and permanent location on the mobile accessory
structure for identification purposes.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4403(3) (NOTICE OF SUBDIVISION APPLICATIONS).



Scetion 1-9.

How Must an Applicant Give Notice to Abutting Property Owners?

Whenever a provision of this Code requires the notification of owners of abutting properties of an
application submission, public meeting, public hearing, site visit, or other filing or event, the following
requirements apply unless otherwise specified;

A,

The applicant must send a notice, in form acceptable to the reviewing authority, to the
owners of property located within 100 feet of the boundary of the lot affected by the
proposal and to the Town Manager. The notice must contain a description of the application
and sketch plan, together with the date, time, and location of any public meeting, public
hearing, site visit, or other event (collectively, “Event™). The notice must be sent using
certified mail, return receipt requested, at least 12 days before the date of the Event,
For purposes of this Section 1-9, the “owners of property” are the persons listed in the most
recent version of the Town of Bridgton Assessing Office Property Owner Lists, prepared
by the Assessing Department and amended periodically, and available at the Town Office.

In addition, for subdivision and site plan applications, the Town must send the notice
described in subsection A, above, to (i) the municipal clerk and the reviewing authority of
any municipalities that abut or include any portion of the subdivision or site plan, and
(ii) the public drinking water supplier if the subdivision or site plan is within its source
water protection area.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M. R .S A, § 4403(3) (NOTICE OF SUBDIVISION APPLICATIONS).

Section I-10.
A,

‘What Time Limits Apply to Work Authorized by a Permit ox Approval?

Substantial Start. If the work authorized under a permit or approval is not substantially
started within two years of the date of issuance of the permit or approval, the permit or
approval lapses and becomes void.

Substantial Completion. A permit or approval expires if the authorized work is not
substantially completed within two years of the date of issuance of the permit or approval,
except that a building permit expires if the authorized work is not substantially completed
within one year of the date of issuance of the permit.

Conditions of Approval. Notwithstanding subsections A and B, above, the Planning
Board may condition its permits and approvals to require authorized work to be phased in
or to set a longer or shorter timeframe for the substantial start or the substantial completion
of the authorized work if the circumstances of a proposal so require.

Extensions. The reviewing authority may grant a one-year time extension for a lapsed or
expired permit or approval upon a showing of good cause by the permit holder. Extensions
beyond one year require a new permit or approval and must comply with all applicable
requirements in effect at that time.

Discontinuation of Use, A permit or approval expires if the use for which the permit or
approval was granted is discontinued for 12 or more consecutive months.

Expiration of Permits. A permit has no expiration date, except that a large-scale water
extraction site plan approval expires on the fifth anniversary of the issuance of approval.




Section I-11.

What Activities Require a Certificate of Occupancy?

After a structure, or any part of a structure, has been constructed, erected, altered, improved, renovated,
enlarged, relocated, or demolished and before a use has been initiated, changed, or expanded, a certificate
of occupancy must be obtained from the CEO before occupancy or use. A certificate of occupancy is also

required for:

A,
B
C.
D

Section I-12.
A,

Any increase in the number of dwelling units in a structure or on a lot,
The establishment or change of use of a home occupatiosn.
A change of use of a nonconforming structure or lot.

Occupancy and use, or change of use, of vacant land.

What Is the Process for Appealing a Decision of the CEO or Planning Board?

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the CEO or Planning Board may appeal such
decision to the Board of Appeals within 30 days of the written decision by filing an appeal
at the office of the Town Clerk on forms approved by the Board of Appeals.

I. Notwithstanding subsection A, above, notices of violation, enforcement orders,
suspensions or revocations of permits or approvals, written determinations of no
violation, or any other enforcement decisions of the CEQ are advisory only and
may not be appealed.

All appeals and requests for reconsideration must be accompanied by a fee as provided in
the Town of Bridgton Uniform Fee Ordinance.

Appeals from decisions of the CEO, and decisions of the Planning Board made without
conducting a public hearing, are de novo. The CEO must transmit to the Board of Appeals
the decision and all documents and other evidence on which the decision was based, which
may be considered as evidence in the de novo proceeding. The Board of Appeals must
conduct a public hearing at which all persons have the right to present additional testimony
and documentary evidence. Al the public hearing, any party has the right to cross-examine
witnesses. The standard of review is whether, on the basis of the evidence before the Board
of Appeals, the application complies with the requirements of the Code. The burden of
proof is on the applicant for the permit or approval. The Board of Appeals has authority to
grant or deny a permit or approval or to remand the matter to the CEQ or Planning Board
for further proceedings.

Appeals from decisions of the Planning Board made after conducting a public hearing are
purely appellate. The CEO nust transmit to the Board of Appeals the decision of the
Planning Board and all documents and other evidence comprising the record on which the
Planning Board decision was based. The Board of Appeals must conduct a public
proceeding at which all persons have the right to present legal argument concerning the
decision of the Planning Board. The Board of Appeals may not permit the introduction of
additional testamentary or documentary evidence. The standard of review is whether the
decision of the Planning Board was arbitrary or capricious, based on ervor of law, or based
on findings of fact not supported by substantial evidence in the record. The Board of
Appeals has authority to sustain or reverse a decision of the Planning Board or to remand
the matter to the Planning Board for further proceedings.



The Board of Appeals may not continue a public hearing on an appeal to a future date
except for good cause.

The affirmative vote of no less than three members of the Board of Appeals is necessary
to grant an approva} or permit on appeal from a decision of the CEQO or to grant an appeal
from a decision of the Planning Board, The failure of the Board of Appeals to issue a
written notice of its decision, directed to the appeliant by registered mail, within 35 days
of the close of the public hearing constitutes a denial of the appeal.

Any aggrieved party may appeal a decision of the Board of Appeals to the Maine Superior
Court within 45 days of the date of the vote of the Board of Appeals in accordance with
30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 2691 and 4353, and Rule 80B of the Maine Rules of Civil Procedure.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S. A. § 2691 (BOARD OF APPEALS); 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4353 (ZONING ADHISTMENT).

Section I-13.
A.

‘What is the Process for Seeking a Variance?

Review Procedures. Except as provided in subsection F, below, the Board of Appeals
hears and decides variance requests in accordance with the following review procedures:

1. Variance Application. An application for a variance must be submitted in writing
to the Board of Appeals on forms provided by the Town for that purpose and signed
and dated by the applicant. Each application must be accompanied by:

(a) A fee as provided in the Town of Bridgton Uniform Fee Ordinance.

(b) A written statement and other evidence demonstrating that the proposal
satisfies each of the applicable standards in subsection B, C, D, or E.

2, Copy_of Variance Application to DEP. For any variance request within the
shoreland zone, the Board of Appeals must forward a copy of each variance
request, including the application and all supporting information supplied by the
applicant, to the DEP Commissioner at least 20 days prior to action by the Board
of Appeals. Any comments received from the DEP Commissioner prior to the
action by the Board of Appeals must be made part of the record and must be
considered by the Board of Appeals prior to taking action on the variance request.

3. Notice and Public Hearing. The Board of Appeals must hold a public hearing on
each variance request. The applicant must give notice of the public hearing in
accordance with Section 1-9. Failure of any property owner to receive a notice of
the public hearing will not necessitate another public hearing or invalidate any
action of the Board of Appeals.

4. Written Decision. The Board of Appeals must state the reasons and basis for its
decision in writing. The Board of Appeals must cause written notice of its decision
to be mailed or hand-delivered within seven days of the decision to the applicant
and, when a variance is issued for property located within shoreland zone, to the
DEP Comunissioner.

5. Certificate; Recording. If the Board of Appeals grants a variance pursuant to this
Section I-13, a certificate indicating the name of the current property owner,
identifying the property by reference to the last recorded deed in its chain of title,
and indicating the fact that a variance, including any conditions on the variance,
has been granted and the date of the granting, must be prepared in recordable form.

10




This certificate must be recorded by the applicant in the Cumberland County
Registry of Deeds within 90 days of the date of the final written approval of the
variance or the variance is void. The variance s not valid until recorded as
provided in this subsection. For the purpose of this subsection, the date of the final
written approval is the date stated on the writlen approval.

Conflict with State Law. In the event of a conflict between this Section [-13 and
30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 4353(4), 4353(5), or 4353-A, the state law provision controls.

Undue Hardship. The Board of Appeals may grant a variance if a proposed structure or
use complies with all of the provisions of this Code except for the specific provisions from
which relief is sought, and only when strict application of this Code to the applicant and
the applicant’s property would cause undue hardship. The term “undue hardship™ as used
in this subsection B means:

1.
2.

4

The land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless a variance is granted;

The need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not
to the general conditions in the neighborhood;

The granting of the variance will not alter the essential character of the locality;
and

The hardship is not the result of action taken by the applicant or a prior owner.

The establishment of a new usc or the cxpansion of an existing usc that is otherwise
prohibited in the disirict in which the use is located is not allowed by variance.

Variance from Dimensional Standards; Practical Difficulty.

1.

The Board of Appeals may grant a variance from the dimensional standards of this
Code when strict application of the dimensional standards to the applicant and the
applicant’s property would cause a practical difficulty and when the following
conditions exist:

(a) The need for a variance is due fo the unique circumstances of the property
and not to the general conditions of the neighborhood;

) The granting of a variaince will not produce an undesirable change in the
character of the neighborhood and will not unreasonably detrimentally
affect the use or market value of abutting properties;

(c) The practical difficulty is not the result of action taken by the petitioner or
a prior owner;

(d) No other feasible alternative to a variance is available to the applicant;

(e) The granting of a variance will not unreasonably adversely affect the
natural environment; and

() The property is not located in whole or in part within the shoreland zone.

As used in this subsection C:

(a) “Dimensional standards” means and is limited to those provisions of this
Code relating to lot area, lot coverage, lot frontage, and setback
requirements,

11




(b) “Practical difficulty” means that the strict application of the dimensional
standards of this Code to the property for which a variance is sought would
preclude the ability of the applicant to pursue a use of the property which
is allowed in the district in which the property is located and would result
in significant economic injury to the applicant.

(¢ “Significant economic injury” means the value of the property if the
variance were denied would be substantially lower than its value if the
variance were granted. To satisfy this standard, the applicant need not
prove that denial of the variance would mean the practical loss of all
beneficial use of the land.

Setback Variance for Single-family Dwellings. The Board of Appeals may grant a
variance from the minimum and maximum setback requirements of this Code for a single-
family dwelling that is the primary year-round residence of the applicant only when the
Board of Appeals determines that strict application of the Code to the applicant and the
applicant’s property would cause an wundue hardship. A variance granted under this
subsection D may not exceed 20% of the applicable setback requirement and may not be
granted if the variance would cause the area of the single-family dwelling to exceed the
maximum lot coverage. For purposes of this subsection D, “undue hardship” means:

1. The need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not
to the general conditions in the neighborhood,;

2. The granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the locality;

3. The hardship is not the result of action {aken by the applicant or a prior owner;

4, The granting of the variance will not substantially reduce or impair the use of
abutting property; and

5. The granting of a variance is based upon demonstrated need, not convenience, and

no other feasible alternative is available,

Disability Vehicle Storage Variance. The Board of Appeals may grant a variance to an
owner of a dwelling unit who resides in the dwelling unit and who is a person with a
permanent disability for the construction of a place of storage and parking for a
noncommercial vehicle owned by that person and no other purpose. The width and length
of the structure may not be larger than two times the width and length of the noncommercial
vehicle. The owner must submit proposed plans for the structure with the request for the
variance pursuant to this subsection E to the Board of Appeals.

1. The person with the permanent disability must prove by a preponderance of the
evidence that the person’s disability is permanent.

2. For purposes of this subsection E, “nonconunercial vehicle” means a motor vehicle
as defined in 29-A M.R.S.A. § 101(42) with a gross vehicle weight of no more
than 6,000 pounds, bearing a disability registration plate issued pursuant to
29-A MR.S.A. § 521, and owned by the person with the permanent disability.

3. The Board of Appeals may impose conditions on any variance granted under this
subsection E.

12



=1

4. All medical records submitted to the Board of Appeals and any other documents
submitted for the purpose of describing or verifying a person’s disability are
confidential.

CEO Authority to Issue Disability Structures Building Permit. The CEO may issuc a
building permit to an owner of a dwelling unit for the purpose of making that dwelling unit
accessible to a person with a disability who resides in or regularly uses the dwelling unit.
If the building permit requires a variance, the permit is deemed to include that variance
solely for the installation of equipment or the construction of structures necessary for
access to or egress from the dwelling unit by the person with the disability.

1. The CEO may impose conditions on the permit granted under this subsection F,
including limiting the permit to the duration of the disability or to the time that the
person with the disability lives in the dwelling unit.

2. All medical records submitted to the CEO and any other documents submitted for
the purpose of describing or verifying a person’s disability are confidential.

3. For purposes of this subsection F, the term “structures necessary for aceess to or
egress from the dwelling unit” mmcludes ramps and associated railings, walls, or
roof systems necessary for the safety or effectiveness of the ramps,

4, Certificate; Recording. If the CEO issues a building permit under this subsection
F, a certificate indicating the name of the current property owner, identifying the
property by reference to the last recorded deed in its chain of title, and indicating
the fact that a disability structures building permit, including any conditions on the
permit, has been granted and that the permit is deemed to include a variance, and
the date of the issuance, must be prepared in recordable form. This certificate must
be recorded by the applicant in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds within
80 days of the date of the issuance of the building permit or the variance is void.
The variance is not valid until recorded as provided in this subsection. For the
purpose of this subsection, the date of the issuance of the building permit is the
date stated on the building permit.

STATE LAW REFERENCE-—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4353(4) (VARIANCE); 38 M.R.S.A. § 438-A(6-A) (VARIANCES IN THE
SHORELAND ZONE).

Section I-14, 'What is the Process for Seeking Waivers?

Upon written request from an applicant, the Planning Board may grant the following waivers.

A,

Submission Requirements. The Planning Board may waive any of the submission
requirements contained in this Code if it finds that: (i) due to special circumstances of the
application, the information is not necessary for it to determine compliance with the
standards governing its review of the application; and (ii) granting a waiver would not
adversely affect abutting properties or the general health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the Town and would be consistent with federal and state law.

Site Plan Review. The Planning Board may modify or waive any of the review criteria
contained in Chapter V (Site Plan Review) if it finds that: (i) due to special circumstances
of the site, the standards ave not applicable or wounld be an unnecessary burden upon the
applicant; and (ii) granting a waiver would not adversely affect abutting properties or the
general health, safety, and weifare of the residents of the Town.

13




Subdivisions. Where the Planning Board finds that extraordinary and unnecessary
hardship may result from strict compliance with the regulations contained in Chapter V1
(Subdivision Regulations), or where there are special circumstances of a particular plan,
the Planning Board may waive any of the regulations contained in Chapter VI (Subdiviston
Regulations) as long as such waiver would not be contrary to law or have the effect of
nullifying the purpose of this Code, the Town of Bridgton Comprehensive Plan, or any
other ordinance. In granting a waiver, the Planning Board must require such conditions as
will, in its judgment, secure substantially the objectives of the requirements so waived.

14



CHAPTER II. NONCONFORMING USES, STRUCTURES, AND LOTS

Secction 11-1.

Purpose

It is the intent of this Chapter that all nonconforming conditions comply with this Code over time.
Nonconforming conditions that legally existed before the effective date of the provisions of this Code, or
that are created by amendments to this Code, are allowed to continue if they comply with the requirements
in this Chapter IT (Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots).

Section I11-2.
AL

Scction I1-3.

General

No Greater Nonconformity, Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter 11
{(Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots), a nonconforming condition may not become
more nonconforming,

Conversion to Conformity. Once converted to a conforming condition, a lot, structure, or
use may not revert to a nonconforming condition.

Prohibited Nonconformity, A nonconformity not expressly allowed by this Chapter 11
(Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots) is prohibited and must cease or be corrected
immediately.

Burden of Proof. The burden of establishing that a nonconformity is legally existing rests
on the owner of such nonconformity and not upon the Town or any reviewing authority.

Transfer of Ownership. Legally existing nonconforming uses, structures, or lots may be
transferred, and the new owner may continue the nonconforming use or continue to use the
nonconforming structure or lot, subject to the provisions of this Chapter IT (Nonconforming
Uses, Structures, and Lois).

Nonconforming Uses

The nonconforming use of a structure or lof, or any portion of a structure or lot, may be continued but only
in strict compliance with the following requirements:

A.

Actual and Substantial Use, A use is nonconforming if (i} the use existed prior to the
enactment of the Code provision that restricts or prohibits the use; (ii) the preexisting use
was actual and substantial, as demonsirated by substantial investment in the use or
substantial financial loss if the use is discontinued; and (i11) the nonconforming use reflects
the original nature and purpose of the preexisting use, is not different in quality or character
as well as in degree of the preexisting use, and is not different in kind in its effect on the
neighborhood where it is located.

Expansion of Nonconforming Use—Qutside Shoreland Zone. Outside of the shoreland
zone:

1. A nonconforming use may be expanded within the boundaries of a lot if the
expanded use complies with dimensional standards to the greatest extent
practicable, as determined by the CEO, except as provided in subsection B.2,
below.

15



2. A nonconforming use may be expanded within one or more existing residential
structures located on an existing lot if the residential structures comply with the
minimum and maximum setback requirements of this Code to the greatest extent
practicable, as determined by the CEQ.

C. Expansion of Nonconforming Use—Within Shoreland Zone. Within the shoreland
zone, the expansion of a nonconforming use is prohibited except that a nonconforming
residential use may be expanded within one or more existing residential structures or within
any expansions of such structures allowed pursuant to Section 11-4.C. For purposes of this
subsection C, and notwithstanding the definition of expansion in Section 1X-3, “expansion”
means an enlargement in the footprint, floor area, or ground area devoted to a use; a change
in the location of a use; or the addition of one or more months to a use’s operating season.

D. Resumption Prohibited. Except as provided in subsection E, below, if a nonconforming
use ceases or is discontinued for any reason for a period of 12 or more consecutive months,
any subsequent use must comply with the requirements of this Code in all respects.
The Planning Board may, for good cause shown by the applicant, grant up to a 12-month
extension to that time period. If a nonconforming use is superseded by a conforming use
for any period of time, the prior nonconforming use must not be resumed.

E. Resumption of Nonconforming Residential Uses. A nonconforming residential use on a
lot may resume if it is discontinued for any reason for a period of 12 or more consecutive
months, but not more than a period of five years, as long as the residential structures on the
lot comply with the minimum and maximum setback requirements of this Code to the
greatest extent possible, as determined by the CEO.

F. No Change of Nonconforming Use. Except as provided in subsection G, below,
a nonconforming use may not be changed to another nonconforming use.

Q. Change of Use of a Nonconforming Structure in the Shoreland Zone. The use of a
nonconforming structure located in the shoreland zone may be changed to another use if
the Planning Board, after receiving a written application, finds that the new use will have
no greater adverse impact on the water body, tributary stream, or wetland, on the subject
property and resources, or on adjacent properties and resources than the existing use.

In finding that no greater adverse impact will occur, the Planning Board must require
written documentation from the applicant regarding the probable effects on public health
and safety, erosion and sedimentation, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, vegetative
cover, visual and actual points of public access to waters, natural beauty, floodplain
management, archaeological and historic resources, conunercial fishing, and other
functionally water-dependent uses.

38 M.R.S.A. § 435 ET sEQ. (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000 (GUIDELINES FOR
MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES).
Section I1-4. Nonconforming Structures

A nonconforming structure may be continued, but only in strict compliance with the following
requirements:

A, Repair, Maintenance, and Improvement. A nonconforming structure may be
maintained, repaired, and improved within the footprint of the structure as it existed at the
time the structure became nonconforming.

I6




Expansion of Nonconferming Structure—OQutside Shoreland Zone, A nonconforming
structure located owtside of the shoreland zone may be added to or expanded only ift

I.

The addition or expansion satisfies all applicable dimensional standards, including
height limits and setback requirements, of the district in which the structure is
located;

The addition or expansion results in no new nonconforming conditions; and

The addition or expansion does not cause or worsen safety problems (including
reduction of sight distances from driveways, entrances, or intersections) and does
not increase any adverse impact on adjacent properties.

Expansion of Nonconforming Structure—Within Shoreland Zone. A nonconforming
structure located in the shoreland zone may be added to or expanded as follows:

I.

All new principal and accessory structures, excluding functionally water-
dependent uses, must comply with the mininmim shoreland setback requirements
in Section III-3.B. A nonconforming structure may be added to or expanded after
abtaining a permit from the same reviewing authority as that for a new structure,
if such addition or expansion does not increase the nonconformity of the structure
and complies with subsections C.1.(a) and C.1.(b), below.

(a) Expansion of any portion of a structure within 25 feet of the normal high-
water line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland
is prohibited, even if the expansion will not increase nonconformity with
the minimum shoreland setback requirement, Expansion of an accessory
structure that is located closer to the normal high-water line of a water
body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland than the principal
structure is prohibited, even if the expansion will not increase
nonconformity with the minimum shoreland setback requirement.

(b) Notwithstanding subsection C.1.(a), above, if a legally existing
nonconforming principal structure is entirely located less than 25 feet from
the normal high-water line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland
edge of a wetland, that structure may be expanded as follows, as long as
all other applicable standards are met and the expansion is not prohibited
by subsection C.1;

i. The maximum total footprint for the principal structure may not
be expanded to a size greater than 800 square feet or 30% larger
than the footprint that existed on January 1, 1989, whichever is
greater. The maxinmum height of the principal structure may not
be made greater than 15 feet or the height of the existing structure,
whichever is greater.

{c) All other legally existing nonconforming principal and accessory
structures that do not comply with the minimum shoreland setback
requirements may be expanded or altered as follows, as long as other
applicable standards are met and the expansion is not prohibited by
subsections C.1 or C.1.(a), above:

17




i. For structures located less than 75 feet from the normal high-water
line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland,
the maximum combined total footprint of all structures may not
he expanded to a size greater than 1,000 square feet or 30% larger
than the footprint that existed on Januvary 1, 1989, whichever is
greater. The maximum height of any structure may not be made
greater than 20 feet or the height of the existing structure,
whichever is greater.

ii. For structures located less than 100 feet from the normal high-
water line of a great pond or a river flowing to a great pond, the
maximum combined total footprint for all structures may not be
expanded to a size greater than 1,500 square feet or 30% larger
than the footprint that existed on January 1, 1989, whichever is
greater, The maximum height of any structure may not be made
greater than 25 feet or the height of the existing structure,
whichever is greater. Any portion of those structures located less
than 75 feet from the mormal high-water lme of a water body,
tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland must comply with
the footprint and height limits in subsections C.I.(b).(i) and
C.1.{c).(1), above.

iti. In addition to the limitations in subsections C.1.(c).(i) and
C.1.(c).(ii), above, for structures that are legally nonconforming
due to their location within the RP district when located at less
than 250 feet from the normal high-water line of a water body or
the upland edge of a wetland, the maximum combined total
footprint for all structures may not be expanded to a size greater
than 1,500 square feet or 30% larger than the footprint that existed
at the time the RP district was established on the lot, whichever is
greater. The maximum height of any structure may not be made
greater than 25 feet or the height of the existing structure,
whichever is greater, cxcept that any portion of those structures
focated less than 75 feet from the normal high-water line of a
water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland must
comply with the footprint and height limits in
subsections C.1.(b).(1) and C.1.{c).(i), above.

(d) An approved plan for expansion of a nonconforming structure must be
recorded by the applicant in the Cumberiand County Registry of Deeds
within 90 days of approval. The recorded plan must show the existing and
proposed footprint of the nonconforming structure, the existing and
proposed structure height, the footprint of any other structures on the
parcel, the shoreland zoning district boundary, and evidence of approval
by the review authority.

Foundations—Within Shoreland Zone. Whenever a new, enlarged, or replacement
foundation is constructed under a nonconforming structure Iocated in the shoreland zone,
the structure and new foundation must be placed such that the minimum shoreland setback
is met to the greatest extent possible, as determined by the reviewing authority, basing its
decision on the considerations specified in the definition of “greatest extent possibie.”

18



Relocation. A nonconforming structure may be relocated within the boundaries of the lot
on which the structure is located as long as (i) the site of relocation complies with all
setback requirements to the greatest extent possible as determined by the reviewing
authority, and (i) the existing subsurface wastewater disposal system or replacement
system, if any, complies with the requirements of the state wastewater disposal rules. In no
circumstance may a structure be relocated in a manner that causes the structure to be more
nonconforming.

1. In determining whether the relocation of a structure complies with setback
requirements to the preatest extent possible, the Planning Board must base its
decision on the considerations specified in the definition of “greatest extent
possible.”

2. When if is necessary to remove vegetation within the water or wetland setback area
in order to relocate a structure, the Planning Board must require replanting of
native vegetation to compensate for the destroyed vegetation in accordance with
Section IV-4.R (Revegetation Requirements). Tn addition, the area from which the
refocated structure was removed must be replanted with vegetation. Replanting
must comply with the following provisions:

(a) Trees removed to relocate a structure must be replanted with at least one
native tree, three feet in height, for every tree removed. If more than five
trees are planted, no one species of tree may make up more than 50% of
the number of trees planted. Replaced trees must be planted no farther
from the water body or wetland than the trees that were removed.

Other woody and herbaceous vegetation, and ground cover, that are
removed or destroyed in order to relocate a structure must be reestablished.
An area at least the same size as the area where vegetation and ground
cover was disturbed, damaged, or removed must be reestablished within
the minimum shoreland setback area. The vegetation and ground cover
must consist of similar native vegetation and ground cover that was
disturbed, damaged, or removed.

{b) Where feasible, when a structure is relocated on a parcel, the original
location of the structure must be replanted with vegetation which may
consist of grasses, shrubs, or trees.

Reconstruction or Replacement—OQutside Shoreland Zone, A nonconforming structure
located outside of the shoreland zone that is removed, demolished, damaged, or destroyed,
regardless of the cause, may be reconstructed or replaced within the footprint of the
structure as it existed immediately prior to the event of destruction. Reconstruction or
replacement of the structure must commence within two years of the event of removal,
demolition, destruction, or damage; otherwise, the reconstiucted or replacement structure
must comply with all requirements of the district in which the structure is located. In no
case may a structure be reconstructed or replaced so as to increase its nonconformity.
A structure reconstructed or replaced pursuant to this subsection F may be added to or
cxpanded pursuant to subsection B, above.

19




G.

Reconstruction or Replacement—Within Shoreland Zone.

1.

A nonconforming structure in the shoreland zone that is located less than the
required setback from a water body, tributary stream, or wetland that is removed,
damaged, or destroyed, regardless of the cause, by more than 50% of the market
value of the structure before such renioval, damage, or destruction may be
reconstructed or replaced as long as (i) a permit is obtained within 18 months of
the date of the removal, damage, or destruction and (ii} such reconstruction or
replacement is in compliance with the minimum shoreland setback requirement to
the greatest extent possible, as determined by the Planning Board.

In no case may a structure be reconstructed or replaced so as to increase its
nonconformity.

If the reconstructed or replacement siructure is less than the required setback it
must not be any larger than the original structure, except as allowed pursuant to
subsection.C.1, as determined by the nonconforming footprint of the reconstructed
or replaced structure at its new location. If the total footprint of the original
structire can be relocated or reconstructed beyond the required setback area, no
portion of the relocated or reconstructed structure may be replaced or constructed
at Jess than the setback requirement for a new structure.

When it is necessary to remove vegetation in order to replace or reconstruct a
structuge, vegetation must be replanted in accordance with subsection E
{Relocation).

A nonconforming structure that is located less than the required setback from a
water body, tributary stream, or wetland and which is removed by 50% or less of
the market value, or damaged or destroyed by 50% or less of the market value of
the structure, excluding normal maintenance and repair, may be reconstructed in
place if a permit is obtained from the CEO within one year of such damage,
destruction, or removal.

In determining whether the reconstruction or replacement complies with the
setback to the greatest extent possible, the Planning Board must base its decision
on the considerations specified in the definition of “greatest extent possible,”
as well as the physical condition and type of foundation present, if any.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 435 £ SEQ. (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000
{GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES); 10-144 C.M.R. CH. 241 (MAINE SUBSURFACE
WASTEWATER DISPOSAL RULES),

Seetion I1-5.
A,

Nonconforming Lots

Nonconforming Lots. A nonconforming lot of record may be built upon, without the need
for a variance, if the lot is in separate ownership and not contiguous with any other iot in
the same ownership, and if all provisions of this Code except the minimum lot size, lot
frontage, and shore frontage requirements can be met.

Merger of Contiguous Lots, Vacant or Partially Built. Two or more nonconforming lots
of record that are in or become under single or joint ownership of record must be
consolidated to form a single lot if:

20




L. At least one of the lots is nonconforming with respect to lot size; and
2. At least one of the lots is vacant or does not have a principal structure.

Merger of Contiguous Lots, with Principal Structure. One or more nonconforming
vacant lots of record adjoining a lot in single or joint ownership of record that contains a
principal structure must be consolidated so as to bring the nonconforming vacant lot into
conformity to the greatest extent possible.

Re-division. Lots consolidated by operation of subsections B or C, above, may be
re-divided if:

1. As a result of the re-division, no ot is smaller than the minimum lot size required
by the district in which the lot is located; and

2, No lot becomes nonconforming in any respect to the dimensional standards of the
district in which the lot is located,

Multiple Principal Structures on Single Lot. If two or more principal structures exist on
a single lot of record, each may be transferred or sold on a separate lot of record, as long
as the separate lots are each in compliance with all applicable setback requirements, the
state minimum lot size law, and the state wastewater disposal rules.

Contiguous Subdivision Lots. The lot merger provisions in subsections B and C, above,
do not apply to two or more nonconforming lots that are in single or joint ownership of
record in an approved subdivision.

Merger of Contiguous Lots—Within Shoreland Zone. The lot merger provisions in
subsections A and B, above, do not apply to lots in the shoreland zone. The following lot
merger provisions apply in the shoreland zone:

L. Contiguous Built Lots. If two or more contiguous lots are in a single or joint
ownership of record on June 12, 1996, if all or part of the lots do not conply with
the dimensional standards of this Code, and if a principal use or structure exists on
each lot, the nonconforming lots may be conveyed separately or together, as long
as the lots comply with the state minimum lot size law and the state wastewater
disposal rules.

If two or more principal uses or structures existed on a single lot of record on
June 12, 1996, each may be sold on a separate lot as long as each lot complies with
the state minimum lot size law and the state wastewater disposal rules. When such
lots are divided, each lot thus created must conform to the dimensional standards
of this Code to the greatest extent possible.

2. Contiguous Lots, Vacant or Partially Built. If two or more contiguous lots or
parcels are in single or joint ownership of record on June 12, 1996, if any of these
lots do not individually comply with the dimensional standards of this Code and if
one or more of the lots are vacant or contain no principal structure, the lots must
be combined to the extent necessary to comply with the dimensional standards.

This provision does not apply to two or more contiguous lots, at least one of which
is nonconforming, owned by the same person on June 12, 1996, and recorded in
the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds as long as the lot is served by a public
sewer or can accommodate a subsurface wastewater disposal system in compliance
with the state wastewater disposal rules and:

21




(a) Fach lot contains at least 100 feet of shore frontage and at least 20,000
square feet of lot area; or

(b) Any lots that do not comply with the shore frontage and ot size
requirements of subsection G.2.(a), above, are reconfigured or combined
so that each new lot contains at least 100 feet of shore frontage and at ieast
20,000 square fect of lot area.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—12 M R.S.A. § 4807 £7 s£0. (MiMUM LOT SIZE); 38 M.R.S.A §§ 435-448 (MANDATORY
SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000 (GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES);
10-144 C.M.R. CH. 241 (MAINE SUBSURFACE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL RULES).

Section H-6. Lots in Two Municipalities

When a ot is transected by a municipal boundary, this Code applies only to that portion of the lot located
in the Town.

22




Section 111-1.

CHAPTER III. LAND USE DISTRICTS

L.and Use Districts
A. Land Use Districts Established. To implement the provisions of this Chapter I
{Land Use Districts), the Town is divided into the following land use districts:

Land Use ' o S 'Comprehensive Plan
District Lanql _l;]sa(:n:lslrlgt Characteristics Land Use Designation
Symbol {for historical reference)

DVB-| Downtown Village Village commercial, Downtown Village

Business | District high-density growth area; Business District
business, retail, and
enterfainment uses; pedestrian-
oriented with historic buildings
DVB-Ii Downtown Village Low-density mixed use Downtown Village
Business Il District {ransition to downtown Business District
DVN Downtown Village Designated growth area; Downtown Village
Neighborhood District | residential and historic areas Neighborhood

IC Inner Corridor District | Designated growth area for Inner Corridor

mixed-use development

0C Outer Corridor District | Highway auto-oriented mixed Outer Corridor

use, lransitional area
MUC Mixed Use Corridor Low-density, mixed-use Version of Outer
District development along rural Corridor
highway
LN Lakeside Primarily low-density | akeside Neighborhood
Neighborhood District | single-family homes oriented
foward a lake
ov OQuter Village District | Village nades providing Quter Village
transition to rural areas
RN Rural Neighborhood | Low-density residential areas Rural Naighborhood
District
B. Official Land Use District Maps. The location and boundaries of the land use districts

are established as depicted on the Official Land Use District Maps for the Town, which are
made part of this Code and attached as Appendix A. The Official Land Use District Maps
are certified by the attested signature of the Town Clerk and are on file with the

Town Clerk.

C, Relationship to Shoreland Zoming. Shoreland zoning districts, as established by
Section IV-1.B and depicted on the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps, are overlay districts.
Accordingly, uses, structures, and lots located in the shoreland zone are also located in one
or more land use districts,

23




Interpretation of Land Use District Boundaries.

1.

Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of roads,
highways, public utilities, or rights-of-way follow such center lines,

Boundaries indicated as approximately following established lot lines or Town
boundaries follow such lines.

Boundaries indicated as approximately following shorelines of any water body
follow the normal high-water line of the water body. Boundaries indicated as
approximately following the thread of a stream follow the lower edge of the
stream. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the edge of a wetland
follow the upland edge of the wetland.

Boundaries indicated as being parallel to or extensions of any of the features listed
in subsections D.1, D.2, or D.3, above, are so construed.

Distances not specifically indicated on the Official Land Use District Maps are
determined by the scale of the maps.

Any conflict between the Official Land Use District Maps and a description by
metes and bounds is resolved in favor of the description by metes and bounds.

The CEQ has the initial authority to interpret the Official Land Use District Maps
and the location of land use district boundaries. Any minimum shoreland setback
must be determined by actual site measurement. Where physical or natural features
existing on the ground are at variance with those shown on the Official Land Use
District Maps or in other circumstances where the CEO cannot definitely
determine the location of a district boundary by the rules in this subsection D, the
CEOC may refer the matter to the Board of Appeals. Referrals of the CEO and
appeals from boundary interpretation decisions of the CEO are de novo. The Board
of Appeals is the final administrative authority as to the location of district
boundaries.

Description and Purpose of Land Use Districts

I.

Downtown Village Business District 1 (DVB-I}). Refer to Official Land Use
District Map for this district in Appendix A, Map 3 of 1 1.

(a) Description. The DVB-1 district encompasses Bridgton’s traditional
downtown along its Main Street and includes Depot Street and the Post
Office block. In this area are located Town government uses including
police and fire departments; the District Court; public services such as the
Bridgton Public Library and Bridgton Community Center; parks; retail,
professional, and service businesses, including restaurants and bars; along
with single family homes and apartments. Pondichesry Park lies in the
center of Town along Stevens Brook. Both on-street and off-street parking
are available,

) Purpose, The purpose of the DVB-I district is to achieve a lively, highly
functional downtown supporting an intentional mix of retail, office,
institutional, and residential uses at relatively high densities.
The rehabilitation of older buildings is encouraged. Businesses are
encouraged to remain as unique, independent enterprises offering
complementary yet diverse goods and services appealing to both residents

24



and visitors. The scale, pattern, and character of Bridgton’s historic town
center should be maintained. While commercial use of the ground floor is
required, second story residential use is permitted and encouraged.

Downtown Village Business District 11 (DVB-1I). Refer to Official Land Use

District Map for this district in Appendix A, Map 4 of 11,

(2)

(b)

Description. The DVB-II district, located at the edges of the downtown
along Portland Road, Harrison Road, and North High Street, creates a
transition into Bridgton’s downtown, where the traffic slows and the road
character changes.

Purpose. The purpose of the DVB-II district is to maintain the historic
pattern while enriching the experience for people coming into Town.
The enhancement of pedestrian activity from and to the downtown, the
residential neighborhoods, and into outlying districts is a major goal for
development in this area. Rehabilitation of existing buildings is
encouraged, and new construction should respect the existing scale
location, and massing of adjacent buildings and driveways so as to limit
clutter and driver confusion. New development should seek to combine
driveways, signage and parking wherever possible.

Downtown Village Neighborhood Disirict (DVN). Refer to Official Land Use

District Map for this district in Appendix A, Map 5 of 11.

(2)

&)

Description. The DVN district includes historically residential areas
surrounding Bridgton’s historic downtown, having a mixture of classic
New England homes, converted multifamily dwellings, and single-family
homes.

Purpose, The purpose of the DVN district is to retain and expand the
residential opportunities within walking distance to the downtown.
Permitted uses include mixed density residential, low impact community
services, and appropriately scaled home-based business uses suitable for a
central business area and mixed-use village.

Inner Corridor District (IC). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for this

district in Appendix A, Map 6 of 11.

(a)

(b)

Description. The IC district is the area between the historic business
districts and the more rural OC and MUC districts, encompassing lots
fronting Portland Road (Route 302) from near Willett Road south to near
Sandy Creek Road. This area is served by water and sewer.

Purpose, The IC district is a growth area. New development and expansion
of existing development should utilize shared entrances and parking,
connecting sidewalks, lighting, and signage, and should provide for the
installation and maintenance of active and passive green space. Flexible
design for modern business development is encouraged to limit clutter and
driver confusion, A mix of uses at higher densities is intended to allow
residential, commercial, recreation, and employment uses in proximity to
cach other.

25




Quter Corridor District (OC). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for this

district in Appendix A, Map 7 of 11,

(a)

(b

Description. The OC district is characterized by scenic highway
approaches into Bridgton from Naples to the south, encompassing lots
fronting Portland Road (Route 302) from near Sandy Creek Road to the
Naples town line. This section of Route 302 lends residents, visitors, and
passers-through an appealing vision of rock outcroppings, woods, and
swamps, with a smattering of residences, businesses, and side roads along
the way.

Purpose. The OC district offers a transitional area supporting a wide range
of uses, at medium and low densities, with requirements to balance
development with open space. To minimize conflicts between large-scale
development and single-family dwellings, larger scale multi-family
housing is encowraged in this district. Buffer and landscape requirements
are intended to preserve the natural wooded vistas along the coriidor into
town. Side road access, shared entries, and rear access roads are all
required in order to acconumodate the higher speed of travel,

Mixed Use Corridor District (MUC). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for

this district in Appendix A, Map 8 of 11.

(a)

(b)

Description. The MUC district extends along Route 302 west to the
Fryeburg town line, along Route 117 north to the Harrison town line and
along Route 117 south to the Denmark town line. The MUC district
contains extensive rural areas, with some existing residential and
commercial uses.

Purpose. The purpose of the MUC district is to encourage an appropriate
mix of low-impact commercial and recreational uses along with continued
residential development, and to preserve the overall rural and scenic
characteristics of this district.

Lakeside Neighborhood District (LN). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for

this district in Appendix A, Map 9 of 11.

(a)

(b)

Description. The LN district includes the mostly residential areas that
swrround Bridgton’s lakes. Along with all properties in the shoreland zone,
this district also includes land and development outside of the shoreland
zone, including lake associations and their roads as they abut other
districts. There are many seasonal businesses, including summer camps,
campgrounds, and lodging, in this district.

Purpose. The purpose of the LN district is to protect access for residents
while also protecting lakes from excessive development activity and
supporting the continued use of seasonal businesses located this district.
New construction should be compatible with adjacent structures. Special
care should be taken to protect existing native vegetation in these critical
watershed areas.

26



8. Quter Village District (OV). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for this
district in Appendix A, Map [0 of 11.

{(a) Description. The OV district includes areas of the community that are
largely settled around a central node and are suitable for medium density
development not requiring expansion of municipal facilities. These areas
do not include significant agricultural production, natural resources, or
large areas of undivided and undeveloped land. The areas of North
Bridgton and South Bridgton located along and off the highway corridors
each have their own distinct history and identity.

(b) Purpose. The OV district represents the small village nodes, where
residential density has developed over time. The purpose of this district is
to protect special and historic neighborhood features and identities, and
support small, compatible, community-serving businesses. These
neighborhoods provide limited suburban or rural residential development
opportunities as a transition to rural areas.

9. Rural Neighborhood District (RN). Refer to Official Land Use District Map for
this district in Appendix A, Map 11 of 11.

(a) Description. The RN district reflects the countryside of Bridgton’s village
and roral development pattern. It encompasses the large majority of
Bridgton’s land, is the largest district, and is home to a majority of its
residents.

M Purpose. The purpose of the RN district is to protect the rural character
and natural beauty of these areas, while supporting low-density residential
development at no more than one unit per two acres. Cluster housing
development, allowing smaller lots or condominium clusters to occupy a
percentage of the land in order to preserve open space and environmental
features, is encouraged. Smali-scale, low intensity, rural-serving
commercial and agricultural uses should be located at intersections of
arterial roads or major crossroads.

STATE LAW REFERENCE-—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4352(3) (ZONING MAP REQUIRED),

27



Section I11-2, Schedule of Uses

A, Symbols Used in the Schedule of Uses. The symbols contained in the schedule of uses in
subsection B, below, have the following meanings:

I. Land Use District Symbols
DVB-I Ground Story | Downtown Village Business District I—Ground Story
DVB-I Upper Stories | Downtown Village Business District I—Upper Stoties
DVB-II Downtown Village Business District 11
DVN Downtown Village Neighborhood District
IC Inner Corridor District
oC Outer Corridor District
MUC Mixed Use Corridor District
LN Lakeside Neighborhood District
ov Outer Village District
RN Rural Neighborhood District
2. Permit Symbols

The use, and any structures associated with or devoted to

Yes such use, is allowed without a permit

The use, and any structures associated with or devoted to
such use, is allowed with a building permit from the CEO

The use, and any structures associated with or devoted to
S siech use, is allowed with site plan approval from the
Plaming Board or the CEO

The use, and any structures associated with or devoted to

No such use, is prohibited

Numbers adjacent to letter symbols refer to notes at the
1,2, 3, etc. end of the schedule of uses containing additional
requirements and conditions

28



B. Schedule of Uses.

DVB-[ | DVB. :
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground | Upper | DVB-ll] DVN Ic OC | MUC | LN ov RN
Story! | Stories? i ' '

Accessory Use’ PI/S P/s PIS P/S P/S PIS PIS PIS P/S PIS

Agriculture, Commercialt No No No No P P p No No P

Agriculture, Eco-Tourism No No No No No No P P P P

Agriculfure,

Noncormmercial No No Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Agriculture, Piggery - _' 1 WNo No No No No No No No No S
Agriqult_ure, Poultry No No No No No No No No No S

Agriculture, Products No No No No No S S No No S

Processing

Ambulance Service No No No No S S S No S S
AnimalSheter | No | No | No | No | S | s | s | No| M| S
Aquaculture . R No No No S S S S No | No | No
Assisted Living FacEIiEy 1 No No No S S S S No No S

Auction / Auction House No No No No S S S No S S

Auto Repair Service No No No No S S S No No No
Auto Sales and Service ' No No No No S S S No No No
Auto Washing Service | No N | No| No| 8| s S | No | No | No

! If a structure is composed of a single story, the uses listed as allowed in the DVB-1 Upper Stories column of the
schedule of uses are also uses alfowed within the DVB-I Ground Story as long as (i) the uses are not clearly visible
from any public lot line, and (ii) one or more of the uses listed as allowed in the DVB-I Ground Story column occupies
a portion of the ground story that is most proximate to and visible from any public 1ot line,

2 The uses listed as allowed in the DVB-I Upper Stories column of the schedule of uses are also allowed within the
roof of any structure where the roof is configured as a half-story.

3 Accessory uses, and any structures associated with such uses, are allowed with a permit from the reviewing authority
designated to review the principal use in this schedule of uses.

4 Principal structures other than a barn or stable are allowed with site plan approval from the Planning Board.

29




DVB- | DVB- : _
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground{ Upper {DVB-I| DVN | "1C § OC | MUC | EN | OV | RN
Story! | Stories? -
Bank S S No No S S S No S No
Darl J:"em J Cocktail S s | s || s | s ]| s ]| Nn]| s | N
IE[:end and Breakfast / Small S s s 3 3 s 3 s 3 5
Boarding House P P P P P No P No P P
Boarding Kennel No No No No S S 8 No No S
Boat Launching Facility No No No No No No No s No No
gfoiggg’ﬁidﬁgi‘”ce and e | N | No | N S| S| s s | M| s
gf;;gg'eg Seviceand | wo | No | No | Mo | S| s | s | s | NS
aj;“;’ewfy’ Distilery/ .~} ¢ S s | N | s | s| s {n]| s N
Building Materials Yard No No No No No S S No No S
Caxﬁpgrou_nd _ No No No No No No B S No S
Ceme_tery ] No No No No No P P P No P
Children's Summer Camp No No No No No No S S No S
Communication Service No No No No S S S No No S
Communiiy Center S 8 S No S S S S S B}
CQmmunity Garden No No No Yes No Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Day Care Facility No No S No S S S S S S
Dweling, Above N | Pl el el P NPl Pl r]| P

Commercial

30




DvB- | DVBA
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground| Upper |[DVBH| DVN | IC | OC | MUC| LN | OV | RN
Story! | Stories? ' ' '

Dwelling, Atfached In-law

Apariment No P Pl ep|lPp|leplPple]P| P
g;;:gmgh?etached naw ) v | N (Nl P | Pl Pl R Pl PP
Dwelling, Multi-family 1o s s | sl s s| s | s| s/| s
Dwelling, Single-family . | No P Pl |l Pl P Pl P] P]eP
Dwelling, Two-family No P P P P P P P P P
Education Facility S S S No S S S No S S
Equestrian Facility S No No No No No S 5 No Na S

Equipment Rental Service | No No No No S S S No No No

Essential Sevices . | S S s|s | s|s}|s| s| s | s

Farmers Market / Fam . 3 No g No s S S No S S

Stand®

Firewood__P_rocessing and No No No No 3 S S No No S
Sal_e_s _ e

Forest 'Managemént o
Activities / Timber Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes Yes Yes
Harvesting Activities®

Fuel Storage Depot, Bulk No No No No No S 3 No No No

Function Hall / Lodge / No No I No S S 5 No S ]

Clubhouse -

Funerél Hbme - S S S No S S S No S No
Garden Malerilallls.Yard : | No No No No S S S No No S
GasStaton | No No No | No S S S No | No | No

5 Farm stands are allowed with a building permit from the CEO.

¢ Forest management activities, including timber harvesting activities, are regulated by the DACF Bureau of Forestry
pursuant to 12 M.R.S.A. §§ 8866 ef seq.

31



DVB-1 | DVB-
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground | Upper {DVBdI] DVN | IC § OC | MUC{ LN ov RN
Storyt | Stories? o
General Contractor Yard? No No No No No S S Nao No S
Goxferr}mental and S g 3 3 s s 3 s 3 S
Institutional
Group Home, Large No No No No S No S No No S
Group Home, Small No No P p P No P P P p
Heaith Institution No No No No S S ) No No S
Home Occupation P P P P P P P P P P
Hospice Facility o No Ne No No S S S S S 8
Hotel /Largeln | S S S No S S s S S No
Laundry Service - - No No No No S S S No S No
Liquor Store - . - S No S No S S S No No No
Live Theater f Music /
Entertainment : 5 No S No S S 8 8 S S
Livestock, Personal Use No No No No No Yes | Yes | Yes No Yes
Manufacluring, Heavy No No No No No S S No No No
Manufacturing, Light - No S No No S S S No No S
Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana No No No No S S No Ne No No
Registered Dispensary
Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana
Large-Scale Caregiver No No No No S S No No No No
Operation
Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana Multiple
Registered Caregiver No No No No S S No No No No
Facility

7 Temporary storage of materials and equipment on site of a construction project is allowed without a permit.

32



DVB- | DVB- g
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground| Upper | DVB-Il] DVN Ic ] oC | MUC| LN OV | RN.
Story! | Storles? . '

Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana Mo No No No S 3 No No No No
Caregiver Retail Store

Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana
Inhevently Hazardous No No No No S S No No No No
Substances Extraction
Operation

Marijuana Establishment,
Medical Marijuana Testing { No No No No S S No No No No
Facilty - -~ - -

Marijuana Establishment,
Aduli Use Marijuana . - | No No No No S S No No No No
Cultiyaiion Facllity

Marijuana Establishment,

Adult Use Marijuana Store No No No No S S No No No No

Marijuana Establishment,
Adult Use Marijuana
Products Manufacturing
Facility -~ -~ -~

No No No No S S No No No No

Marijuéna Establishment, .'
Adult Use Marijuana 1 No No No No S 8 No No Mo No
Testing Facility :

Mari_juafla Home . Yes Yes Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Culivation

Marina . - ol No No No | No | No | No | No S No | No
MassGathering | S | No | S | No| s | s | s ]| s]| s|s
Medical Marijuana

Small-Scale Caregiver -] No No Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes [ Yes [ Yes
Operation =~ -

Midway/Fair | S No | s | N | s | s | s | Nn]| s s
Mineral Exiraction® - No No No No No No S No No 3

8 Mineral extraction is allowed with a building permit from the CEO if (i) the mineral extraction area contains less
than two acres, and (ii) no more than 1,500 cubic yards of material are removed, handled, or processed within any
12-month period.

13




DVB-l { DVB4
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground | Upper | DVB-Il| DVN Ic OC | MUC | LN oV RN
Story! | Stories?
Minimart No No Mo No S S S No No No
Mobile Home Park No No No No No No S No No S
Mobite Temporary Vendor P No P No P P P No P Mo
Motel No No S No 8 S S S S No
Movie Theater S S S No S § S No No No
(Nlifygnoirer;ﬁdStore S S S No S S S S S No
Office Building, Large S S S No S S S No S No
Ofﬁce qul_djng, Small S S S No S S ) S S No
g;gﬁ%fﬁ;ﬂ?keﬁ L o | N | NN |N|s|s|n]|s]|s
Parking Géragé s | so | s | N| s | s s | N]| N | N
Pawﬁ Shop . No No No No S 8 S No No No
Publ.ic. Open Spa_ce Yes Yes Yes 1 Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
Recreation, .Indoor _ B 8 No S No S 3 ) No No S
Eg;i?::ie%?ﬁyu Yes Yes Yes | Yes § Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes j Yes
Recfeét_ien, ._Ouidoor No No No No S 8 8 No No S
?fa‘;ff‘;‘;‘g‘cgﬁge‘_‘yc'i“gf Ao | N | s N | s | s| s | N| N | N
Rengiou; A:ss'emmy s S s| s sl s| s| s sjs
Research Facility No S S No S S S S S S

? Structures, entries, and exits may not front or utilize Main Street.
19 Structures, entries, and exits may not front or utilize Main Street.

1 Structures accessory to low-intensity recreation are allowed with a building permit from the CEO.

34




DVB-f | DVBA
LAND USE CATEGORY | Ground | Upper | DVB-Il| DVN IC [ OC -} MUC | LN oV RN

Story! | Stories? ' - ' o
Restaurant S S S No S S 8 No S No
Restaurant,
Drive-Through No No No No S s 8 No No No
Retail Business, Large No No No No S 8 S No No No
Retail Business, Small S S 8 S S S s No S ]
Retail Fue| Distributor .- No No No No No No S No No No
Salvage Yard No No No No No S S No No No
Sawmil No | No | No | No | No| $ | S | No| No| 8
Self-Storage Facility - - No No No No No 8 S No No No
Solar Farm No No No No No 3 No No No S
Vehidle and Small Engine | o | No | No | No | No | S | § | No | Mo | S
Repair Shop
Veterinary Service No No Mo No S S S No No S
Warehousing and -
Dist_ﬁbulion No No No No No 5 S No No No
Water Extraction, '
Large-Scale No No No No No S No No No No
Water Extraction, -
Small-Scale _ No No No No S S S No No S
Wind Farm No No No No No No No No No No

3s




Uses Not Listed in Schedule of Uses.

1.

No use is allowed unless it is Jisted as an allowed use in the schedule of nses in
subsection B, above, except as provided in subsection C.2, below, and, if located
in the shoreland zone, it is also listed as an allowed use in the schedule of uses in
Section 1V-2.B. Any use not expressly allowed or expressly prohibited in a land
use district is prohibited in that district.

For any proposed use not listed in the schedule of uses in subsection B, above, as
an allowed use in a land use district, the Planning Board must determine if such
use is similar to a use that is listed as an allowed use in that district. In determining
similarity of uses, the Planning Board must consider the following factors: size and
appearance, impact on abulting properties, scale of operations, ftraffic,
environmental impacts, the purposes of the district, and compliance with the
provisions of all Town codes and ordinances. It no case may this subsection be
used to allow & prohibited use, or to allow a use which does not comply with all
dimensional requirements and performance standards of this Code. If the Planning
Board so finds, the proposed use is allowed in that district, as long as it complies
with all requirements that apply to the similar allowed use.

Scetion 111-3. Dimensional Standards

A,

Purpose and Intent, The reasons for regulating the dimensional standards listed in
subsection B, below, are as follows:

l.

QOpen Space and Buildable Area. To preserve and enhance the density, character,
and historic form of the districts to which these dimensional standards apply; to
create an attractive balance of building and green space, thereby encouraging high-
value development; and to preserve and enhance the balance of natural vegetation
in the LN district, thereby protecting the watershed from over-development.

Placement of Structures on Lots. To preserve and enhance the visual interest of the
historic form while allowing for commercial development in the DVB-I and DVB-II
districts; to create a high-functioning and attractive growth area in the IC district; to
preserve the wooded and undeveloped feel of the OC district; to preserve and enhance
the character of the MUC district; and to preserve the natural and wooded character of
the LN district.

Height, To enswre that new structures will coexist in harmony with the Town’s varied
and eclectic skyline.

Schedule of Dimensional Standards. Except as provided in Section VI-7(K)
(Dimensional Standards for Subdivision Lots), all uses, structures, and lots must comply
with the following dimensional standards. The land use district symbols contained in the
schedule of dimensional standards have the meanings set forth in Section III-2.A.1.
“N/A” means “not applicable in this district.”

36



pVB4 | DVBL | DWN |l ].ooc | Muc | LN | ov | RN
Open Space and Buildable Area

2500 | 20000 | 20000 | 40,000 | 80000 | 80,000 | 50,000 | 20000 | H00%0/

80,00013
if in the shoreland zone:
Minimum lot size™2 50,000 for any residential use, per dwelling unit.
{square feet) : - 60,000 for any governmental, institutional, commercial, or industrial use, per principal structure.
' | 40,000 for any low-intensity recreation use.
20,000 for any use in the GD-I district.™
5,000/ 1,000 for any use in the GD-H district.15
o OGS None | None | 00 | f00 | t00 | 20 | f00 | 75 | 100
S 200 for any residential use, per dwelling unit.
Minimum shore frontage .- 300 for any governmental, institutional, commercial, or industrial use, per principal structure.
{in the shoreland zone)
feety 200 for any low-intensity recreation use,
e 0 for any use in the GD- or GD-ll districts.
N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A 50% 30% N/A 30%

' if in the shoreland zone:
Maximum lot coverage (%)
. BRI 70% for any lot in the GD-| or GD-II district.

20% for any lot in any other shoreland zoning district.!?

Minimum contiguous

L4}
Diivate opon arba® (%) NIA 15% NA | 15% | NA

NIA ’ N/A N/A N/A

12 Except that a minimum lot size of 25 acres is required for salvage yards, and a minimum lot size of 100 acres is required for large-
scale water extraction, The minimum lot size standards for land use districts do not apply to any lot created as part of a subdivision
approved by the Planning Board pursuant to Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations); refer to Section VI-7.K. If a lot is within the
shoreland zone, the more restrictive minimum lot size standard applies.

13 40,000 square feet for retail business use; 80,000 square feet for all other uses.

4 Except that the following fots must contain a minimum of 5,000 square feet per dwelling unit; principal governmental, institutional,
commercial, or industrial structure or use; or combination thereof: Map 23 Lot 132; Map 23 Lot 133; Map 23 Lot 134; Map 23 Lot 135.

15 5,000 square feet or 1,000 square feet per bedroom, whichever is greater.

16 The minimum lot frontage standards do not apply to any lot created as part of a subdivision approved by the Planning Board pursuant
to Chapter V1 (Subdivision Regulations); refer to Section VI-7.K,

7 The 20% maximum lot coverage does not apply to public boat launching facilities, regardless of the shoreland zoning disirict in which
the facility is located.

18 A contiguous private open area of at least 15% of the buildable area must be preserved on each lot located in the DVB-Il or IC districts.

37




“DVBA | DVBJI | DVN | a6 oc  loMuc | LN ovo | RN
Placement of Structures on Lots

Maximum front setback line

{applicable to principal 6 15 25 25 NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A
buildings)® (feet)

Minimum front setback line A the Atthe

(applicable to ali structures) public 10 pubic lot 15 751 25% 75 20 20 75
(feat) _ - lot line line

Minimum setback line

from any common lot line ’ »

{applicable to all structures) 2 5 10 15 15/ 25 | 15125 10 10 2
{feet)

Minimum setback line from

any DVN, MUC, LN, OV, or NIA N/A N/A 20 20 N/A NIA NIA N/A

RN district boundary (fesf)
' = {Ifinthe shoreland zone:

112 from the normal high-water fine of great ponds and rivers that flow to great ponds, if the structure
has or will have a solid wall foundation.

100 from the normal high-water line of great ponds and rivers that flow to great ponds, if the struclure

Minimum_ sho;e!ai}d does not or will not have a solid wall foundation {e.g., deck or patio).

sethack line (applicable to . , , .

principal and accessory 75 from the norntal high-water line of other water bodies, tributary sireams, or the upland edge of
structures, unless otherwise | wetlands.

provided in Section |V*4)23._ 50 in the GD-I or GD-} district, from the normat high-water line of great ponds, rivers that flow to

feety . great ponds, tributary streams, or wetlands,

250 in the RP district, from the normal high-water line of great ponds, rivers that flow o great ponds,
tributary streams, or wetlands, except for structures, roads, parking spaces, or other activities
specifically allowed in the RP district in which case the minimum shorefand setback line specified
above applies.

12 Unless DOT regulations require a principal building to be located farther from a state highway than the maximum front setback iine
allows, in which case the principal building must be located at the DOT-required minimum setback from the state highway.

2075 feet from the public lot lime of Route 302 (Portland Road); 25 feet from any other public lot line. Note that this dimensional standard
applies to all structures, including display areas for outdoor flea markets / open-air markets.

21 15 feet for accessory residential structures; 25 feet for all other structures.
22 15 feet for single-family dwellings; 25 feet for all other structures.

2 The minimum shoreland setback line does not apply to (i) structures that require direct access to the water body or wetland as an
operational necessity, such as docks and retaining walls or other functionally water-dependent uses, or (ii) campgrounds and individual
campsites; refer to Section HI-3.E.

?* The Planning Board may reduce this setback requirement by up to 50% in accordance with Section 111-3.D.

38



DV | DvBa | DVWN | ac ol oc | Muc | LN | OV | RN
Height
Maximum height of The fessor of.
principal structure or 35 ifin the shoreland zone, 2 or :
accassary structure (feet) 35 3 3 45 | 60m |35/607 | 35 35 3
Minimum height of
principal structure (feet) 18 i8 N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A
Ground story floor oo | 24T
elevation height 0-211in. 0-21 .28 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
C. Rules for Determining Conformance with Dimenstonal Standards,
I. For uses, structures, and lots in the shoreland zone:
(a) Land below the normal high-water line of a water body or upland edge of

a wetland and land beneath roads serving more than two lots are not
included in calculating minimum lot size,

(b) Lots located on opposite sides of a public or private road are each a
separate lot, unless such road was established by the property owner on
both sides of the road after September 22, 1971.

{c) The minimum width of any portion of any lot within 100 feet of the normal
high-water line of a water body or upland edge of a wetland must be equal
to or greater than the minimum shote frontage for a lot with the proposed use.

2, If more than one dwelling unit or principal governmental, institutional,
commercial, or industrial structure or use is constructed or established on a single
parcel, afl dimensional standards must be met for each dwelling unit, principal
structure, or use,

% The 35-foot maximum height standard in the shoreland zone does not apply to:
(i) A structure having no floor area, such as a transmission tower, windmill, antenna, and similar structures; or

(i) A feature that is not habitable and is mounted on a building roof for observation purposes, such as a cupola, dome, widow’s walk,
and similar features, as long as the feature: (a) is on a legally existing conforming structure, (b) is not located in the RP or SP
district, {c) does not extend beyond the exterior walls of the existing building, (d) has a floor area of 53 square feet or less, and
() does not increase the height of the existing building by more than seven feet.

26 The maximum height standard in the QC district does not apply to telecommunications facilities, communication towers, or wind
energy systems.

M 35 feet for single-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, and multi-family dwellings; 60 feet for all other principal structures
{including commercial structures); 35 feet for any accessory structures,

2 The average ground story finished floor elevation within 30 feet of the maximum front setback line must not be lower than the front
sidewalk elevation and must not be higher tlian 21 inches above the front sidewalk unless a higher elevation is required to comply with
floodplain or flood insurance requirements,

¥ For residential uses, the average ground story finished floor elevation is 2 minimum of two feet and a maximum of four feet above
the exterior sidewalk or front yard elevation at the maxinmum front setback line. For commercial uses, the average ground stery finished
floor elevation within 30 feet of the maximum front setback line must not be lower than the front sidewalk or front yard elevation and
must not be higher than 21 inches above the sidewalk or font yard elevation.

39




D.

Rules for Determining Conformance with Dimensional Standards.

1.

For uses, structures, and lots in the shoreland zone:

(a) Land below the normal high-water line of a water body or upland edge of
a wetland and land beneath roads serving more than two lots are not
inchuded in calculating mininnnn fot size.

(b) Lots located on opposite sides of a public or private road are each a
separate lot, unless such road was established by the property owner on
both sides of the road after September 22, 1971,

{(c) The minimum width of any portion of any lot within 100 feet of the normal
high-water line of a water body or upland edge of a wetland must be equat
to or greater than the minimum shore frontage for a lot with the proposed
use.

If more than one dwelling unit or principal governmental, institutional,
commercial, or industiial structure or use is constructed or established on a single
parcel, all dimensional standards must be met for each dwelling unit, principal
structure, or use.

Dimensional Standards for Shorefront Common Areas. The following dimensional
standards apply to shorefront common areas located within the shoreland zone:

1.

Shorefront common areas must confain a minimum of two acres. For shorefront
common areas that serve fewer than three dwelling units or grant less than three
rights of use to the common area, the minimum lot size is one acre.

Shorefront comman areas must have a minimum shore frontage of 25 feet for each
dwelling unit with access to the shorefront common area and for each right of use
granted o any dwelling unit or other legal entity.

Use of shorefront common areas within a subdivision must be limited to dwelling
units contained within the subdivision.

Accommodations for motorized watercraft are limited to one watercraft per 25 feet
of shore frontage. This limit does not apply to motorized watercraft of transient
users who remain at the shorefront common area for less than 48 hours and
watercraft with motors of less than 10 horsepower.

The provisions of this subsection D do not apply to municipal beach facilities or
to shorefront common areas established before June 8, 1987 if there has been no
increase in rights of use granted since said date. Such shorefront common areas
may be improved with temporary docking facilities with approval of the Planning
Board, subject to Section IV-4.D.

Dimensional Standards for Campgrounds and Individual Private Campsites.
The following dimensional standards apply to campgrounds and individual private

campsites:
L. Campgrounds.
{a) Minimum Lot Size. Campgrounds must contain a minimum of 5,000 square

feet of land, not including roads and driveways, for each site. Land

40



supporting wetland vegetation and Jand above the normal high-water line
of a water body are included in calculating land area per site.

{b) Minimum Shoreland Setback. The areas intended for placement of a
recreational vehicle, tent, or shelter, and utility and service buildings must
be set back a minimum of 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a
great pond or a river flowing to a great pond and 75 feet from the normal
high-water line of other water bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge
of a wetland.

Individual Private Campsites.

{a) Mininum Lot Size. One campsite per lot existing as of June 12, 1996, or
30,000 square feet of lot area within the shoreland zone, whichever is less.

{b) Multiple Structures or Uses. When an individual private campsite is
proposed on a lot that contains another principal use or structure, the lot
must comply with the minimum dimensional standards for the principal
structure or use, as well as the individual private campsite separately.

{c) Minimum Shoreland Setback. Campsite placement on any lot, including
the area intended for a recreational vehicle or tent platform, must be set
back 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a great pond or river
flowing to a great pond and 75 feet from the normal high-water line of
other water bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge of a wetland.

(d) Additional Review Standards. Refer to Section IV-4.E for additional land
use standards applicable to individual private campsites located in the
shoreland zone.

Dimensional Standards for Long-Term Siting of Temporary Shelters, When a
recreational vehicle, tent, or similar shelter is placed on-site for more 120 days per year, all
requirements for residential structures must be met, including the installation of a
subsurface wastewater disposal system in compliance with the state wastewater disposal
rules, unless served by public sewage facilities.

Dimensional Standards for Parking Areas.

L.

Minimum Shore Frontage. Parking areas must comply with the minimum shore
frontage standards for structures for the shoreland zoning district in which they are
located.

Minimum Shoreland Setback. The minimum shoretand setback for parking areas
serving public boat launching facilities in any shoreland zoning district other than
the GD-I or GD-II districts is 50 feet from the shoreline or tributary stream if the
CEQ finds that no other reasonable alternative exists farther from the shoreline or
tributary stream.

Dimensional Standards for Roads and Driveways.

1.

Roads and driveways must be set back at least 100 feet from the normal high-water
line of a great pond or a river that flows to a great pond and 75 feet from the normal
high-water line of other water bodies, tributary sireams, or the upland edge of a
wetland unless no reasonable alternative exists as determined by the Planning
Board. If no reasonable alternative exists, the minimum shoreland setback for

41




roads and driveways is 50 feet upon clear showing by the applicant that effective
techniques will be used to prevent sedimentation of the water body, tributary
stream, or wetland, Such techniques may include the installation of settling basins,
and the use of additional ditch relief culverts and turnouts placed so as to avoid
sedimentation of the water body, tributary stream, or wetland.

On slopes of greater than 20%, the minimum shoreland setback for roads and
driveways is increased by 10 feet for each 5% increase in slope above 20%.

This subsection H does not apply to approaches to water crossings or to roads or
driveways that provide access to permitted structures, and facilities located near to
the shoreline or tributary strecam due to an operational necessity, excluding
permanent or temporary docks for recreational uses. Roads and driveways
providing access to permitted structures within the setback area must comply with
this subsection H except for that portion of the road or driveway necessary for
direct access 1o the structure.

Reduction in Minimum Shoreland Setback in the GD-I and GD-II Districts.
The Planning Board may reduce the minimum shoreland setback for structures in the
GD-I and GD-II districts by up to 50% upon a positive finding that, for each lot of record,
all of the following provisions are met:

I

The total area impacted by the proposed setback reduction does not exceed 25%
of the portion of the lot within 50 feet of the normal high-water mark of any river
or tributary stream.

Infiltration systems must be installed and maintained to infiltrate stormwater
runoff from all man-made impervious surfaces on the property. Systems nst be
sized to accommodate all runoff from a two-inch precipitation event of 24-hour
duration and must be located at least 50 feet from the normal high-water mark of
any river or tributary stream.

There must be a net increase in the arca of the lot that is covered by multi-level
vegetation combining ground cover, bushes, and trees with at least 50% evenly
distributed tree leaf canopy as viewed from above. All areas of the property not
covered by structures must be revegetated and maintained in such a manner.

The proposal must be designed and built to reduce the gross amount of phosphorus
exported from the property by a minimum of 10%.

On a nonconforming lot on which only a residential structure exists, where an
accessory structure cannot be located to comply with the minimum shoreland
setbacks, the CEQ may issue a permit to place a single accessory structure,
containing no utilities, for the storage of yard tools and similar equipment. Such
accessory structure must (i) not exceed 80 square feet in area or eight feet in height,
(ii) be located from the water body to the greatest extent possible, and (iii) comply
with all other applicable standards, including maximum lot coverage and
vegetation clearing limitations. In no case may the accessory structure be located
closer to the water body than the principal structure.

42



K. Exemption from Minimum Shoreland Setback for Decks Extending Over Rivers
Within a Downtown Revitalization Project. The Planning Board may exempt a deck
from the minimum shoreland setback if it finds that:

1. The deck does not exceed 700 square feet;

2. The deck is cantilevered over a segment of a river that is located within the
boundaries of a downtown revitalization project;

3. The deck is attached to or accessory to an allowed commercial use in a structure
that was constructed prior to 1971 and is located within a downtown revitalization
project; and

4, The deck complies with all applicable standards, except the minimum shoreland
setback.

A downtown revitalization project under this subsection J must be defined in a project plan
approved by the legislative body of the Town and may include the revitalization of
buildings formerly used as mills that do not comply with the minimum shoreland setback.
A deck exempt under this subsection may be either privately or publicly owned and
maintained.

L. Exemption from Minimum Shoreland Setback for Walkways and Trails Over Rivers
Within a Downtown Revitalization Project. The Planning Board may exempt a
pedestrian walkway or trail from the minimum shoreland setback if it finds that:

I. The walkway or trail is adjacent to a river segment that is located within the
boundaries of a downtown revitalization project;

2. If cantilevered over a river segment, the walkway or trail does not extend over
the river motre than 10 feet from the normal high-watet line;

3. If cantilevered over a river segment, the walkway or trail is attached to a structure
that was constructed prior to 1971 and is located within a downtown
revitalization project; and

4. If cantilevered over a river segment, there is no practical means to construct the
walkway or trail without cantilevering over that river segment, in which case,
approaches to the cantilevered walkway or trail may also cantilever off adjacent
retaining walls but not more than is necessary to access the cantilevered walkway
or trail; and

5. The walkway or trail complies with all applicable standards, except the minimum
shoreland setback.

A downtown revitalization project under this subsection K must be defined in a project
plan approved by tie legistative body of the Town and may include the revitalization of
buildings formerly used as mills that do not comply with the minimum shoreland setback.
A walkway or trail exempt under this subsection may be either privately or publicly
owned and maintained.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—I2 M.R.S.A. § 4807 £r seo. (MiNmauM Lor SiZE); 38 MRS.A § 438-A £r SEQ.
{MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000 (GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING
ORDINANCES); 10-144 C.M.R. Ct, 241 (MAINE SUBSURFACE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL RULES).

43




Section I1I-4, District-Specitic Space and Bulk Standards

Unless otherwise expressly provided, the standards in this Section I1I-4 apply to any uses, and any structures
associated with or devoted to such uses, that are allowed (with or without a permit or approval) in the
district in which the use or structures are or will be located. This Section 1T1-4 does not apply to the Planning
Board’s review of any subdivision application submitted pursuant to Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations).

A, Downtown Village Business Distriet I (DVB-I).

1.

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements, The following requirements apply

to the maximum front setback area:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(@

At least 65% of the principal building fagade must be located within the
maximum front setback area. To add variety and diversity to a principal
building, up to 35% of a principal building’s fagade may have an
architectural recess.

Protrusions on any portion of a principal building above the ground story
must be cantilevered.

No portion of a principal building fagade within the maximum front
setback area may exceed 60 feet of continuous linear plane.

No portion of any structure may obstruct a public or private sidewalk, or
extend beyond a property line, except as expressly provided herein.

Facade: Fenestration.

(a)

(®

()

(d)

Lengths of fagade uninterrupted by windows or other exterior openings
exceeding 15 feet are prohibited on all ground story fagades.

Ground story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 30% of the ground
story fagade.

Upper story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 20% of the fagade
of each upper story.

Functioning doors are required along the ground story fagade at intervals
of no greater than 50 feet.

Facade: Building Projection.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

No portion of any structure may obstruct a public or private sidewalk, or
extend beyond a property line, except as provided herein.

Awnings on the ground story may project over a public sidewalk as long
as a clearance height of at least eight feet, but no more than 12 feet, is
maintained above the sidewalk.

Signs may project over a public sidewalk as long as a clearance height of
at least 10 feet is maintained above the sidewalk.

Awnings, balconies, stoops, poiches, and walkways must be set back at
feast two feet from a common lot line, except for alleys for which the
property owners have recorded an instrument allowing a lIesser setback.
Walkways and stoops providing access into a structure are not subject to
this requirement,

44



Street Wall.

(a) A street wall of not less than 42 inches in height or greater than four feet
in height is required in connection with new construction on any portion
of a lot which abuts a public road and is not to be occupied by a principal
building, drive, garage entry or pedestrian gate. The street wall must be set
back a maximum of four feet from the structure fagade.

(b) One pedestrian gate or opening no wider than six feet is allowed within
any required street wall,

(c) The street wall height is measured from the adjacent sidewalk, or, when
not adjacent to a sidewalk, from the average finished grade in the
maxinum front setback area.

{d) Lots containing open public spaces and parks are exerapt from the street
wall requirements in subsections (), (b), and {(c}, above.

Garage and Parking.

(a) All parking lots must be set back a minimum of 15 feet from the front
public lot line.

()] Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, curb cuis must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
18 fect. To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street.

)] Openings for parking garage access must have a maximum clearance
height of 16 feet and an access width no greater than 24 feet.

(1) Parking lots and garages on lots with frontage on Main Street and another
road may not use Main Street for vehicular access.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Landscaping in Conjunction with Project Development. Not regulated in this
district. Developers are encouraged to plant trees where appropriate and create
attractive green space as part of a project.

Sidewalks. Sidewalks are required along any arterial or public lot line of the
property, untess (i) otherwise required by DOT or (ii) an alternate trail, bike path,
or transit stop is provided.

Downtown Village Business District II (DVB-II)

I.

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. The following requirements apply
to the maximum front setback arca:

(a) At least 65% of the principal building fagade must be located within the
maximum front setback area. To add variety and diversity to a principal
building, up to 35% of a principal building’s facade may have an
architectural recess.

45



(b)

(©)

(d)

Protrusions on any portion of a principal building above the ground story
must be cantilevered.

No portion of a principal building facade within the maximum front
sethack area may exceed 60 feet of continuous linear plane.

No portion of any structure may obstruct a public or private sidewalk, or
extend beyond a property line, except as expressly provided herein.

Facade; Fenestration.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Lengths of fagade uninterrupted by windows or other exterior openings
exceeding 15 feet are prohibited on all ground story fagades.

Ground story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 25% of the ground
story fagade.

Upper story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 15% of the fagade
of each upper story.

Functioning doors are required along the ground story fagade at intervals
of no greater than 50 feet.

Facade: Building Projection,

@

(&)

(0)

(d)

No portion of any structure may obstruct a public or private sidewalk, or
extend beyond a property line, except as provided herein.

Awnings on the ground story may project over a public sidewalk as long
as a clearance height of at least eight feet, but no more than 12 feet, is
maintained above the sidewalk.

Signs may project over a public sidewalk as long as a clearance height of
at least 10 feet is maintained above the sidewalk,

Awnings, balconies, stoops, porches, and walkways must be set back at
least two feet from a common lot line, except for alleys for which the
property owners have recorded an instrument allowing a lesser sethack.
Walkways and stoops providing access info a structure are not subject to
this requirement.

Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

Garage and Parking.

(a)

(b)

(©)

All parking lots must be set back a minimum of 20 feet from the front
public lot line.

Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, cwrb cuts must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
22 feet. To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street.

Openings for parking garage access must have a maximum clearance
height of 16 feet and an access width no greater than 24 feet.

46




@

(e

Garage entries may be set back up to a maximum of two feet behind the
front fagade of the structure.

Parking lots and garages on lots with frontage on more than one road must
use the fesser road for vehicular access.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Landscaping in Conjunction with Project Development.

(2)

(&)

(©)

(d)

(©
®

(2)

Shade trees must be placed in the minimum setback area and the maximum
front setback area at a minimum density of one tree per 50 linear feet of
lot frontage. Native species must be used. Trees planted or saved to
comply with this requirement must be a minimum of two inches in
diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level, for new trees and a
minimum of four inches in diameter, measured at 4 feet above ground
level, for existing trees. No existing trees may be counted toward this
requirement if they are included on the Maine invasive plant list,

Medium sized trees must be placed on the property at a minimum density
of one tree per 900 square feet of pervious area. Existing medium sized
trees may be saved on the property to comply with this requirement.
Planted or existing trees must be at least six to eight feet in height for
evergreen and multi-stemmed trees and 1% to two inches in diameter,
measured at 4% fect above ground level, for flowering deciduous trees.

Plantings, including shrubs, perennials, and native ornamental grasses and
ferns, must be placed in the setback area so as to cover at least 15% of the
sethack area. Plants must be installed in continuous beds and spaced and
sized appropriately for the species. Plant sizing mwust be two-quart
minimum for perennials, grasses, and ferns and two-gallon minimum for
woody shrubs.

Any constructed berms with slopes greater than 10% must be planted with
groundcover, perennials, or native ornamental grasses so as to cover at
least 50% of the berm area.

Any front yard fence or wall may not be more than four feet in height.

All required plantings must be installed prior to the issuance of a certificate
of occupancy.

There must be a guaranteed 85% survival rate of plantings after one year.
If the survival rate is not met after one year, additional plantings are
required to comply with the 85% rule.

Sidewalks. Sidewalks are required along any arterial or public lot line of the
property, unless (i) otherwise required by DOT or (ii) an alternate trail, bike path,
or transit stop is provided.

47



C. Downtown Village Neighborhood District (DVN)

1. Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district,

Facade; Fenestration. Not regulated in this district.

2
3. Facade; Building Proiection. Not regulated in this district.
4 Street Wall, Not regulated in this district.

5

Garage and Parking.

(a) All parking lots must be set back a minimum of 30 feet from the front
public lot line.

(b) Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, curb cuts must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
22 feet, To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street.

() Openings for parking garage access must have a maximum clearance
height of 16 feet and an access width no greater than 24 feet.

{d) Garage entries may be set back up to a maximum of two feet behind the
front fagade of the structure.

(e) Parking lots and garages on lots with frontage on more than one road must
use the lesser road for vehicular access.

6. Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road,

7. Landscaping in Conjunction_with Project Development. Not regulated in this
district. Developers are encouraged to plant trees and create green space where
appropriate to enhance the livability of the neighborhood.

8. Sidewalks, Not regulated in this district.
D. Inner Corridor District (IC)

1. Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. The following requirements apply
to the maximum front setback area:

(a3) At least 65% of the principal building fagade must be located within the
maximum front setback area. To add variety and diversity to a principal
building, up to 35% of a principal building’s fagade may have an
architectural recess subject to the requirements of subsection (b}, below.
For lots with multiple principal buildings, at least one principal building
must comply with this requirement.

(b) No portion of a principal building fagade within the maximum front
setback arca may exceed 200 feet of continuous linear plane.

48




Facade: Fenestration.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Lengths of fagade uninterrupted by windows or other exterior openings
exceeding 15 feet are prohibited on all ground story fagades.

Ground story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 30% of the ground
story facade.

Upper story fenestration must comprise a minimum of 20% of the fagade
of each upper story.

Facade; Building Projection.

(a)

(b)

No portion of any structure may obstruct a public or private sidewalk, or
extend beyond a property line, except as provided herein.

Awnings on the ground story may project over a public sidewalk as long
as a clearance height of at least eight feet, but no more than 12 feet, is
maintained above the sidewalk.

Street Wall, Not regulated in this district.

Garapge and Parking.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

All parking lots must be set back a minimum of:

1. 25 feet from any public ot line,
i, 15 feet from any common lof line, and
iit. 20 feet from any rear lot line.

Vehicle parking areas must be located behind the parking minimum
setback lines set forth in subsection (a), above, except where parking is
underground.

Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, curb cuts must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
22 feet. To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street.

Openings for parking garage entries must have a maximum clearance
height of 16 feet and an access width no greater than 22 feet,

Garage entries may be set back up to a maximum two feet behind the
surrounding facade.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable

standards with respect to each road.

49



Landscaning in Conjunction with Project Development.

{a) Auy applicant whose proposal requires a permit from the Planning Board
must prepare and submit to the Planning Board a landscaping plan for the
mininum setback area which provides green space within the lot
boundaries and complies with the requirements of subsections (b), (c), and
(d), below.

by Any constructed berms with slopes greater than 10% must be planted with
groundcover, perennials, or native orpamental grasses so as to cover at
least 50% of the berm area.

{c) Any front yard fences or walls may not be more than four feet in height.

(d) There must be a guaranteed 85% survival rate of plantings after one year.
If the survival rate is not met after one year, additional plantings are
required to comply with the 85% rule.

Sidewalks. Sidewalks are required along any arterial or public lot line of the
property, unless (i) otherwise required by DOT or (ii) an alternate trail, bike path,
or transit stop is provided.

Outer Corridox District (OC)

I.

2
3
4,
5

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Fenestration. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Building Projection. Not regulated in this district.

Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

Garage and Parking,
(a) Minimum front setback line: 75 feet from public lot line.

()] Minimum side and rear setback line: 20 feet from any public lot line or
common lot line.

(c) Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, curb cuts must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
24 feet. To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Landscaping in Conjunction with Project Development.

(a) Any applicant whose proposal requires a permit from the Planning Board
must prepare and submit to the Planning Board a landscaping plan for the
75-foot minimum setback area for commercial uses on a major artery
which preserves the wooded buffers and undeveloped character of this

minimum setback area and complies with the requirements of subsections
(b) and (c), below.

50



8.

(b)

(c)

To the extent wooded buffers exist within the 75-foot mininmum setback
area, maintaining such buffers is preferable to planting.

There must be a guaranteed 85% survival rate of plantings after one year.
If the survival rate is not met after one year, additional plantings are
required to comply with the 85% rule.

Sidewalks. Not regulated in this district.

Mixed Use Corridor District (MUC)

1.

2
3
4.
5

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Fenestration, Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Building Projection. Not regulated in this district.

Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

Garage and Parking.

(2)
(b)

(©)

Minimum front setback line: 75 feet from public lot line.

Minimum side and rear setback line: 20 feet from any public lot line or
common lot line.

Unless otherwise required by DOT or unless the reviewing authority finds
that a greater curb cut width is necessary to provide for safe vehicular
access, curb cuts must have a maximum clear width of no greater than
24 fect. To the greatest extent practicable, development must utilize shared
egress and minimize the number of curb cuts on Route 302, Route 117,
and Main Street,

Corner Lats. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Tandscaping in Conjunction with Project Development.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Any applicant whose proposal requires a permit from the Planning Board
must prepare and submit to the Planning Board a landscaping plan for the
75-foot minimum setback area for commercial uses on a major artery
which preserves the wooded buffers and undeveloped character of this

minimum setback area and complies with the requirements of subsections
{b) and {c), below.

To the extent wooded buffers exist within the 75-foot minimum setback
area, maintaining such buffers is preferable to planting.

There must be a guaranteed 85% survival rate of plantings after one year.
If the survival rate is not met after one year, additional plantings are
required to comply with the 85% rule.

Sidewalks. Not regulated in this district.

51



L.akeside Neighborhood Distriet (LN)

1.

bR e e

o

8.

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Fenestration. Not regulated in this district.

Facade: Building Projection. Not regulated in this district.

Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

Garage and Parking. Not regulated in this district.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner fots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Landscaping in Conjunction with Proiect Development. Not regulated in this
district. Careful planning and oversight is encouraged so that native vegetation is
preserved wherever possible and tree plantings and green spaces are created in
keeping with the purposes of this district.

Sidewalks. Not regulated in this district.

Outer Village District (OV)

1.

2
3
4,
5

8.

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Fenestration. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Building Projection. Not regulated in this district.

Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

Garage and Parking.

(a) Commercial parking must be located at the side or back of the principal
building.

(b) Driveways:
L. Residential: maximum width, 15 feet.
ii. Commercial: minimum width, 20 feet; maximum width, 22 feet.

Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

Landscaping in Conjunction with Project Development, Not regulated in this
district. Developers are encouraged to plant trees and create green space where
appropriate to enhance the livability of the neighborhood.

Sidewalks. Not regulated in this district.

Rural Neighborhoeod District (RN)

I
2.

Maximum Front Setback Area Requirements. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Fenestration. Not regulated in this district.

Facade; Building Projection, Not regulated in this district.

52




4. Street Wall. Not regulated in this district.

5, Garage and Parking.

{a) Commercial parking must be located at the side or back of the principal
building.

(b) Driveways:
i Residential: maximum width, 15 feet.
il. Commercial: mininmem width, 20 feet; maximum width, 22 feet.

6. Corner Lots. All structures located on corner lots must comply with all applicable
standards with respect to each road.

7. Landscaping in Conjunction with Project Development. Not regulated in this
district.

8. Sidewalks. Not regulated in this district.

53




|
|

Section IV-1.
A.

CHAPTER IV. SHORELAND ZONING

Shoreland Zoning Established

Applicability. The provisions of this Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning) apply to uses,
structures, and lots located within the shoreland zone.

Shoreland Zoning Districts Established. To implement the provisions of this Chapter IV
(Shoreland Zoning), the Town is divided into the following shoreland zoning districts:

Shoreland Zoning Shoreland Zoning
District Symbol District Name

RP Resource Protection District
LR Limited Residential District

GD-l General Development | District

GD-ll General Development Il District
SP Stream Protection District
LG Limited Commercial District

Official Shoreland Zoning Maps. The location and boundaries of the shoreland zoning
districts established in subsection B, above, are depicted on the Official Shoreland Zoning
Maps for the Town, which are made part of this Code and are attached as Appendix B.
The Official Shoreland Zoning Maps must be drawn at a scale of not less than
one inch equals 2,000 feet. Shoreland zoning district boundaries must be clearly delineated
and a legend indicating the symbols for each district must be placed on the map.
The Official Shoreland Zoning Maps are certified by the attested signature of the Town
Clerk and are filed with the Town Clerk.

Relationship to Land Use Districts. Shorcland zoning districts are overlay districts.
Accordingly, uses, structures, and lots located in the shoreland zone are also located in one
or more land use districts.

Interpretation of Shoreland Zoning District Boundaries.

1. Shoreland zoning district boundaries are interpreted in accordance with the rules
for the interpretation of land use district boundaries in Section III-1.D, subsections
1 through 6. Any conflict between the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps and the
shoreland zoning district descriptions in subsection F, below, are resolved in favor
of the shoreland zoning district descriptions.

2 The CEO has the initial authority to interpret the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps
and the location of shoreland zoning district boundaries. Any minimum shoreland
setback must be determined by actual site measurement. Where physical or natural
features existing on the ground are at variance with those shown on the Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps or in other circumstances where the CEO cannot definitely
determine the location of a district boundary by the rules in this Section IV-1.E,
the CEO may refer the matter to the Board of Appeals. Referrals of the CEO and
appeals from boundary interpretation decisions of the CEO are de novo. The Board
of Appeals is the final administrative authority as to the location of district
boundaries.

54



Description of Shoreland Zoning Districts

1.

Resource Protection (RP) District. The RP district includes areas in which
development would adversely affect water quality, productive habitat, biological
ecosystems, or scenic and natural values. This district includes the following areas
when they occur within the limits of the shoreland zone, exclusive of the
SP district, except that areas which are currently developed and areas which
comply with the criteria for the GD-I, GD-II, LC, and LR districts need not be
included within the RP district:

(a) Floodplains.

(b) Areas of two or more contiguous acres with sustained slopes of 20% or
greater.
(c) Areas of two or more contiguous acres supporting wetland vegetation and

hydric soils, which are not part of a freshwater wetland and which are not
surficially connected to a water body during the period of normal high
water. These areas usually consist of forested wetlands abutting water
bodies and non-forested wetlands.

(d) Land areas along rivers subject to severe bank erosion, undercutting, or
river bed movement.

Limited Residential (LR) District. The LR district includes areas suitable for
residential and recreational development. It includes areas other than those in the
RP or SP districts, and areas which are used less intensively than those in the LC,
GD-I, and GD-II districts.

General Development (GD-I and GD-II) Districts. The GD-I and GD-II districts
include the following types of existing, intensively developed areas:

(2) Areas of two or more contiguous acres devoted to commercial, industrial,
or intensive recreational activities, or a mix of such activities, including:

i. Areas devoted to manufacturing, fabricating, or other industrial
activities;
ii. Areas devoted to wholesaling, warehousing, retail, trade, and

service activities or other commercial activities; and

iii. Areas devoted to intensive recreational development and
activities, including amusement parks, race tracks, and
fairgrounds.

(b) Areas otherwise discernible as having patterns of commercial, industrial,

or intensive recreational uses.

Portions of the GD-I and GD-II districts may also include residential development,
but no area may be designated as a GD-I or GD-II district based solely on
residential use. In areas adjacent to great ponds and adjacent to rivers flowing to
great ponds, the designation of an area as a GD-I or GD-II district must be based
upon uses existing as of June 12, 1996. No new GD-I and GD-II districts or
expansions in area of existing GD-I and GD-II districts adjacent to great ponds or
adjacent to rivers that flow to great ponds may be established.

55



4, Stream Protection (SP) District. The SP district includes all land areas within
75 feet of the normal high-water line of a stream, exclusive of those areas within
250 feet of the normal high-water line of a great pond or river or within 250 feet
of the upland edge of a freshwater wetland, which are regulated under the
shoreland zoning district associated with that water body or wetland.

5. Limited Commercial (LC) District. The LC district includes areas of mixed, light
commercial and residential uses, exclusive of the SP district, which should not be
developed as intensively as the GD-I or GD-II districts. This district includes areas
of two or more contiguous acres in size devoted to a mix of residential and low
intensity business and commercial uses. Industrial uses are prohibited.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 435 (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING; SHORELAND AREAS); 06-096
C.M.R, CH. 1000 (GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES).

Section IV-2. Schedule of Uses for the Shoreland Zone

A, Symbols Used in the Schedule of Uses. The symbols contained in the schedule of uses in
subsection B, below, have the following meanings:

1. Shoreland Zoning District Symbols
RP Resource Protection District
LR Limited Residential District

GD-1 General Development I District

GD-II General Development II District

SP Stream Protection District

LE Limited Commercial District

2. Permit Symbols

Yes Allowed without a permit, subject to applicable standards

CEO Allowed with a building permit from the CEO

LPI Allowed with a permit from the local plumbing inspector

Allowed with site plan approval or a shoreland zoning permit
PB .
from the Planning Board

No The use, and any structures associated with or devoted to such
use, is prohibited

Numbers adjacent to letter symbols refer to notes at the end of the
1, 2,3, etc. |schedule of uses containing additional requirements and
conditions

56



B. Schedule of Uses in the Shoreland Zone.

LAND USES SP RP LR GD-l GD-Il LC
1. Non-intensive recreational uses not

requiring structures, including hunting, Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

fishing, and hiking
2 :\ggtdosri:ﬁg \t/rc;?liscular traffic on existing Yiis Yes Ves Vs Y& Yes
® Galiies o hn ke nansing | CEO | CEO® | Yes Yes Yes | Yes
4. Fire prevention activities Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
5. Wildlife management practices Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
6. Soil and water conservation practices Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
7. Mineral exploration No Yes | CEQ3' | Yes/CEQ3® | Yes/CEQ3 | Yes/CEQ319 | Yes/CEOQ3!
8. Mineral extraction, including sand and

gravel extraction:

A. Mineral extraction, small No No / CEQ32 CEO CEO CEO CEO

B. Mineral extraction, large No | No/pB: PB PB PB PB
9. Surveying and resource analysis Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
10. Emergency operations Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
11. Agriculture No No No No No No
12. Aquaculture PB PB PB PB PB PB
13. Principal structures and uses:

R o | | o | o | w0 | ao

B. Errwt::?: n:ﬁ; Zic‘gl.;ei:‘gmily dwelling PR PB CEO CEO CEO CEO

C. Multi-family dwelling No No PB PB PB PB

30 In the RP district, not allowed within 75 feet of the normal high-water line of a great pond, except to remove safety hazards.
31 Allowed with a building permit from the CEO if 100 square feet or more of surface area, in total, is disturbed.

32 In the RP district, not allowed in areas so designated because of wildlife value; otherwise, allowed with CEO or Planning Board
approval as indicated in the schedule of uses.

33 In the RP district, single-family dwellings are allowed by special exception subject to Section IV-5; two-family dwellings and
multi-family dwellings are prohibited.

57



LAND USES SP RP LR GD-l GD-ll LC

D. Commercial No No3¥ No343 PB3s pPB334 PB3

E. Industrial No No No pPB3 PB4 No

F. Governmental and Institutional No No No PB PB

G. Small non-residential facilities for

educational, scientific, or nature No No CEO CEO CEO CEO
interpretation purposes

14, Structures accessory to allowed uses No No CEO Yes Yes CEO
15. Docks, bridges, and other structures

and uses extending over or below the

normal high-water line or within a

wetland:

A. Temporary3 CEQO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO

B. Permanent® PB PB PB PB PB PB
16. Conversions of seasonal residences to

year-round residences L Ll LH LP1 LA LAl
17. Home occupations PB No PB Yes Yes PB
18. Private sewage disposal systems for

Altmad s LPI LPI LPI LPI No LPI
19. Essential services pBas PB PB PB PB PB
20. Service drops to allowed uses Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
21. Recreation, low-intensity PB PB PB CEO CEO CEOQ

3 Except for commercial uses otherwise listed in this schedule of uses, such as marinas and campgrounds, that are allowed in the

respective shoreland zoning district.

33 Except for the following new commercial and industrial uses, which are prohibited within 250 feet of the normal high-water line of

any great pond or river and within 75 feet of the normal high-water line of any stream which flows to a great pond:

)
(b)
(©)
(d)

(e)
®
(g)
(h)
(M
G)

(k)
M

Auto washing facilities

Auto or other vehicle service or repair operations, including body shops
Chemical and bacteriological laboratories
Storage of chemicals, including herbicides, pesticides or fertilizers other than amounts normally associated with individual

households or farms

Commercial painting, wood preserving, and furniture stripping

Dry cleaning establishments
Electronic circuit assembly

Laundromats, unless connected to a sanitary sewer
Metal plating, finishing, or polishing
Petroleum or petroleum product storage or sale except storage on same property as use occurs and except for storage and sales

associated with marinas
Photographic processing
Printing

36 Structures which remain in or over the water for less than seven months in any period of 12 consecutive months.

37 Structures which remain in or over the water for seven months or more in any period of 12 consecutive months.
38 Refer to further restrictions in Section 1V-4.K.2.

58




LAND USES SP RP LR GD-| GD-Il LC
22. Individual private campsites CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO
23. Campgrounds No No / PB% PB PB PB PB
24, Road construction PB Nod0 PB PB PB PB
25. Parking facilities No No39 PB PB PB PB
26. Marinas PB No PB PB PB PB
27. Filling and earthmoving of less than

10 cubic yards No CEO Yes Yes Yes Yes
28. Filling and earthmoving of

10 cubic yards or more o kE GEQ ke CED CEQ
29. Signs Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
30. Uses similar to allowed uses CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO
31. g:f;itsimllar to uses requiring a CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO
32. Uses similar to uses requiring a PB PR PB PB PR °n PB

approval
33. Earthmoving, vegetation removal, or

construction affecting more than 100

square feet but less than 10,000 CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO

square feet of land area on any —

property parcel within any two year

period
34. Earthmoving, vegetation removal, or

construction affecting 10,000 square

feet or more of land area on any PB PB PB PB PB PB

property parcel within any two year

period

[0 Uses Not Listed in Schedule of Uses. No use is allowed in the shoreland zone unless it is

listed as an allowed use in the schedule of uses in subsection B, above, and it is also listed
as an allowed use in the schedule of uses in Section III-2.B in the applicable land use
district. Any use not expressly allowed or expressly prohibited in a shoreland zoning
district is prohibited in that district.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 ML.R.S.A. § 435 ET SEQ. (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000
(GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES).

3 Except when area is zoned for resource protection due to floodplain criteria, in which case a permit is required from the
Planning Board.

10 Except as provided in Section IV4.G.

59



Section IV-3., General Review Criteria

For structures and uses ocated in the shoreland zone that are allowed with a permit from the CEO or the
Planning Board in the schedule of uses in Section IV-2.B, the proposal must comply with the following
general review criteria:

A,

S o ow

=1

Wikl maintain safe and healthful conditions;
Will not result in water pollution, erosion, or sedimentation to surface waters;
Will adequately provide for the disposal of all wastewater;

Will not have an adverse impact on spawning grounds, fish, aquatic life, bird, or other
wildlife habitat;

Will conserve shore cover and visual, as well as actual, points of access to inland waters;
Wil protect archacological and historic resources;
Will avoid problems associated with floodplain development and use; and

Ts in conformance with the dimensional standards in Section III-3 and all applicable
provisions of Section [V-4 and Section IV-3,

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 435 E7 5£Q, (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000
{GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES).

Section IV-4. Land Use Standards in the Shoreland Zone

In addition to complying with all other applicable standards (including the dimensional standards in
Section 1I1-3, the applicable district-specific space and bulk standards in Section 111-4), all uses, structures,
and lots in the shoreland zone must comply with the following standards, as applicable:

A,

Retaining Walls. Retaining walls that are not necessary for erosion control must comply
with the minimum setback for structures in the shoreland zone, except if all of the
following conditions are met:

L. The site where the retaining wall will be constructed has been previously altered
and an effective vegetated buffer does not exist;

2. The retaining wall is at least 25 feet from the normal high-water line of a water
body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland;

3. The site where the retaining wall will be constructed is legally existing lawn or
is a site eroding from lack of naturally occurring vegetation, and which cannot
be stabilized with vegetative plantings;

4, The total height of the retaining waltl is no more than 24 inches;
5. The retaining wall is located outside of a floodplain;
6. The area behind the retaining wall is revegetated with grass, shrubs, or trees, and

no further structural development (including patios and decks) will occur within
the setback area; and

60




7. A vegetated buffer area is established within 25 feet of the normal high-water
line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland when a natural
buffer area does not exist. The buffer area must comply with the following
characteristics:

(a) The buffer must include shrubs and other woody and herbaceous
vegetation. Where the natural ground cover is lacking the area must be
supplemented with leaf or bark mulch;

(b Vegetation plantings must be in quantities sufficient to retard erosion and
tation planting q
provide for effective infiltration of stormwater runoff;

{©) Only native species may be used to establish the buffer area; and

(d) A footpath not to exceed the standards in subsection (.2{a) may traverse
the vegetated buffer area,

Stairways. Stairways or similar structures are allowed with a building permit from the
CEOQ to provide shoreline access in areas of steep slopes or unstable soils as long as (i) the
structure is limited to a maximum of four feet in width, (it) the structure does not extend
below or over the normal high-water line of a water body or upland edge of a wetland
unless permitted by DEP pursuant to 38 MR.S.A. § 480-C, and (iif) the applicant
demonstrates that no reasonable access alternative exists on the property.

Minimum Floor Elevation in Floodplain. The lowest floor elevation or openings of all
buildings including basements must be elevated at least one foot above the elevation of the
floodplain. Accessory structures may be placed in accordance with the Town of Bridgton
Floodplain Management Ordinance and need not comply with the elevation requirements
of this subsection C.

Docks, Bridges and Other Structures and Uses Extending Over or Below the Normal
High-Water Line of a Water Body or Within a Wetland.

I No more than one dock, wharf, or similar structure extending or located below the
norimal high-water line of a water body or within a wetland is allowed on a single
lot; except that when a single lot contains at least twice the minimum shore
frontage as specified in Section ITI-3.B, a second structure may be allowed and
may remain as long as the lot is not further divided.

2. Access from shore must be developed on soils appropriate for such use and
consfructed so as to control erosion.

3. The location must not interfere with existing developed or natural beach areas,
4. The facility must be located so as o minimize adverse effects on fisheries,
5. The facility must be no larger in dimension than necessary to cairy on the activity

and be consistent with the surrounding character and uses, of the area. A temporary
dock must not be wider than six feet for noncommercial uses.

6. No new structure may be built on, over, or abutting a dock or other structure
extending beyond the normal high-water line of a water body or within a wetland
unless the structure requires direct access to the water body or wetland as an
operational necessity.

61



16.

Il

New permanent docks are not allowed unless it is clearly demonsirated to the
Planning Board that a temporary dock is not feasible, and a NRPA permit has been
obtained from DEP.

Existing structures built on, over or abutting a dock or other structure extending
beyond the normal high-water body or within a wetland may not be converted to
dwelling units in the shoreland zone.

Except in the GD-I or GD-1I districts, structures built on, over, or abutting a dock
or other structure extending beyond the normal high-water line of a water body or
within a wetland must not exceed 20 feet in height above the dock or other
structure.

Temporary structures that are specifically designed and manufactured to be
removed from the water on a seasonal basis may be installed once ice has melted
in the spring and must be removed prior to the formation of ice in the fall.

Vegetation may be removed in excess of the standards in subsection O (Clearing
or Removal of Vegetation) to conduct shoreline stabilization of an eroding
shoreline, as long as a permit is obtained from the Planning Board. Construction
equipment must access the shoreline by barge when feasible, as determined by the
Planning Board.

(a) When necessary, the removal of trees and other vegetation to allow for
construction equipment access to the stabilization site by land must be
limited to no more than 12 feet in width. When the stabilization project is
complete, the construction equipment accessway must be restored.

b Revegetation must occur in accordance with subsection O (Clearing or
Removal of Vegetation).

Individual Private Campsites. Individual, private campsites not associated with
campgrounds are allowed if the following standards are met;

1. Only one recreational vehicle is allowed on a campsite. The recreational vehicle
must not be located on any type of permanent foundation except for a gravel pad,
and no structure except a canopy may be attached to the recreational vehicle.

2. The clearing of vegetation for the siting of a recreational vehicle, tent, or similar
shelter in the RP district is limited to 1,000 square feet.

3. A written subsurface wastewater disposal plan describing the proposed method and
location of sewage disposal is required for each campsite and must be approved by
the local plumbing inspector. If disposal is proposed to be off-site, written
authorization from the receiving facility or property owner is required.

Parking Areas,

1. Parking areas must be adequately sized for the proposed use and designed to

prevent stormwater runoff from flowing directly into a water body, tributary
stream, or wetland and, where feasible, to retain all runoff on-site.

62




Parking areas must be sized as follows:

(a) Typical parking space: Approximately 10 feet wide and 20 feet long,
except that parking spaces for a vehicle and boat trailer must be 40 feet
long.

(b) Internal travel aisles: Approximately 20 feet wide.

Roads and Driveways. The following standards apply to the construction of roads or
driveways and drainage systems, culverts, and other related features.

1.

Existing public roads may be expanded in width within the legal right-of-way
regardless of their setback from a water body, tributary stream, or wetland,

New roads and driveways are prohibited in the RP district except that the Planning
Board may grant a permit to construct a road or driveway to provide access to
permitied uses within the district. A road or driveway may also be approved by the
Planning Board in an RP district upon a finding that no reasonable alternative route
or location is available outside of the district. When a road or driveway is permitted
in an RP district, the road or driveway must be set back as far as practicable from
the normal high-water line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a
wetland.

Road and driveway banks must be no steeper than a slope of two horizontal to one
vertical, and must be graded and stabilized in accordance with subsection S
(Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standards).

Road and driveway grades must be no greater than 10% except for segments of
less than 200 feet.

To prevent road and driveway surface drainage from directly entering water
bodies, tributary streams, and wetlands, roads and driveways must be designed,
constructed, and maintained to empty onto an unscarified buffer strip at Ieast
50 feet plus two times the average slope in width between the cutflow point of the
ditch or culvert and the normal high-water line of a water body, tributary stream,
or upland edge of a wetland. Surface drainage that is directed to an unscarified
buffer strip must be diffused or spread out to promote infiltration of the runoff and
to minimize channelized flow of the drainage through the buffer strip.

Ditch relief (cross drainage) culverts, drainage dips, and water turnouts must be
installed in a manner effective in directing drainage onto unscarified buffer strips
before the flow gains sufficient volume or head to erode the road, driveway, or
ditch.

63



H.

{(a) Ditch relief culverts, drainage dips and water turnouts must be spaced
along the road or driveway at intervals no greater than indicated in the
following table:

Grade | 'Spacing
(%) “(feet)
0-2 250
3-5 200-135
6-10 100-80
11-15 80-60
16-20 60-45
21+ 40
(b) Drainage dips may be used in place of ditch relief culverts only where the

grade is 10% or less.

{c) On sections having slopes greater than 10%, ditch relief culverts must be
placed at approximately a 30 degree angle downslope from a line
perpendicular to the centerline of the road or driveway.

{d) Ditch relief culverts must be sufficiently sized and properly installed in
order to allow for effective functioning, and their intet and outlet ends must
be stabilized with appropriate materials.

Ditches, culverts, bridges, dips, water tumouts, and other stormwater runoff
control installations associated with roads and driveways must be maintained on a
regular basis to ensure effective functioning,

Signs. The following provisions govern signs in the RP and SP districts:

1.

Signs relating to goods and services sold on the premises must not exceed six
square feet in area or two signs per premises. Signs relating to goods or services
not sold or rendered on the premises are prohibited.

Name signs must not exceed two signs per premises or 12 square feet in the
aggregate.

A single sign relating to the sale, rental, or lease of the premises, no larger than
three square feet in area, may be displayed on residential premises.

Signs relating to trespassing and hunting are allowed wifhout restriction as to
number as long as no such sign exceeds two square feet in area.

Signs relating to public safety are allowed without restriction as to number, size,
height, or lighting.

No sign may be placed higher than 10 feet above the ground.
Sipns may be illnminated only by shielded, non-flashing lights.

64




K.

Stormwater Runoff.

1.

All new construction and development must be designed to minimize stormwater
runoff from the site in excess of the natural pre-development conditions. Where
possible, existing natural runoff control features such as berms, swales, terraces,
and wooded areas must be retained in order to reduce runoff and encourage
infiltration of stormwater,

Stormwater runoff control systems must be maintained as necessary to ensure
proper functioning.

Septic Waste Disposal. All subsurface wastewater disposal systems must be installed in
conformance with the state wastewater disposal rules and the following standards:

1.

Clearing or removal of woody vegetation necessary to site a new subsurface
wastewater disposal system and any associated fill extensions must not extend
closer than 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a water body or the upland
edge of a wetland.

A holding tank is not allowed for a first-time residential use in the shoreland zone.

The minimum shoreland setback for a new subsurface wastewater disposal system
is 100 feet, except that this minimum setback must be increased within the
shoreland zone to the most suitable location, as determined by the CEO. In making
this determination, the CEO must consider soil suitability, ranofl conditions, and
existing fand uses. The minimum setback distances from water bodies for new
subsurface wastewater disposal systems may not be reduced by variance.

A structure must not be expanded in a manner that causes an increase in wastewater
unless the structure is or can be served by a subsurface wastewater disposal system
that complies with this subsection I.

When a new subsurface wastewater disposal system is constructed on a lot, old
systems which do not comply with the standards contained in this subsection J
must be discontinued.

Essential Services.

L.

Where feasible, the installation of essential services must be limited to existing
public rights-of-way and existing service corridors.

The installation of essential services, other than roadside distribution kines, is not
allowed in an RP or SP district, except (i) to provide services to a permitted use
within the district or (ii) where the applicant demonstrates that no reasonable
alternative exists. Where allowed, such structures and facilities must be located so
as to minimize any adverse impacts on surrounding uses and resources, including
visual impacts.

Mineral Exploration. Mineral exploration to determine the nature or extent of mineral
resources must be accomplished by hand sampling, test boring, or other methods which
create minimal disturbance of less than 100 square feet of ground surface. A permit from
the CEO is required for mineral exploration which exceeds this disturbance limitation.
All excavations, including test pits and holes, must be immediately capped, filled, or
secured by other equally effective measures to restore disturbed areas and to protect the
public health and safety.

a5



M. Mineral Extraction.

I3

A reclamation plan must be approved by the Planning Board. The plan must
describe in detail procedures to be undertaken to fulfill the requirements of
subsection M3, below.

No part of any mineral extraction operation, including drainage and ranoff control
features is permitted within (i) 100 feet of the normal high-water line of a great
pond or a river flowing to a great pond; (i) 75 feet of the normal high-water line
of any other water body, tributary stream, or the upland edge of a wetland; or
(iii) 75 feet of any property line, without written permission of the owner of such
adjacent property.

Within 12 months following the completion of mineral extraction operations at any
extraction site, which operations are deemed completed when less than 100 cubic
yards of materials are removed in any consecutive 12-month period, ground levels
and grades must be established as follows:

{(a) All debris, stumps, and similar material must be removed for disposal in
an approved location or buried on-site. Only materials generated on-site
may be buried or covered on-site.

(b) The final graded slope must be 2}4 to one slope or flatter.

{c) Topsoil or loam must be retained to cover all disturbed land arcas, which
must be reseeded and stabilized with vegetation native to the area.
Additional topsoil or loam must be obtained from off-site sources if
necessary to complete the stabilization project.

In keeping with the purposes of this Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning), the Planning
Board may impose such conditions as are necessary to minimize the adverse
impacts associated with mineral extraction on surrounding uses and resources.

N, Agriculture,

1.

All spreading of manure must comply with the Manure Ulilization Guidelines
(DACF, Nov. 1, 2001), the Nutrient Management Act (codified at 7 M.R.S.A.
§§ 4201-4214), and the rules adopted pursuant to the Nutrient Management Act.

Manure must not be stored or stockpiled within 100 feet of a great pond or a river
flowing to a great pond or within 75 feet of other water bodies or wetlands. All
manure storage areas within the shoreland zone must be constructed or modified
such that the facility produces no discharge of effluent or contaminated
stormwater.

Agricultural activities involving tillage of soil greater than 40,000 square feet in
surface area within the shoreland zone require a conservation plan to be filed with
the Planning Board. Agricultural activities must comply with the provisions of the
conservation plan.

New tilling of soil is not allowed within 100 feet of the normal high-water line of
a great pond, within 75 feet from other water bodies, or within 50 feet of tributary
streams or freshwater wetlands, Operations in existence as of June 12, 1996 that
are not in conformance with this provision may be maintained but must not be
enlarged.

66




Newly established livestock grazing areas are not allowed within 100 feet of the
normal high-water line of a great pond, within 75 feet of other water bodies, or
within 25 feet of tributary streams or freshwater wetlands. Livestock grazing
associated with ongoing agricultural activities that are not in conformance with
these setback provisions may continue, as long as such grazing is conducted in
accordance with a conservation plan that has been filed with the Planning Board.

0. Clearing or Removal of Vegetation—-for Activities Other Than Timber Harvesting,

1.

Clearing Vegetation in RP District. In an RP district abutting a great pond, cutting
of vegetation within the strip of land extending 75 feet inland from the normal
high-water line is not allowed, except to remove hazard trees in compliance with
subsection P. Elsewhere in the RP district, the cutting or removal of vegetation is
limited to that which is necessary for uses expressly authorized in the RP district.

Vegetative Buffer Strip. Except in areas as described in subsection O.1, above,
within the shoreline buffer, a buffer strip of vegetation must be preserved as
follows:

{a) Cleared Openings, Footpath. Cleared openings greater than 250 square
feet in the forest canopy (or other existing woody vegetation if a forested
canopy is not present), as measured from the outer limits of the tree or
shrub crown, are not allowed, except that a single footpath not to exceed
six feet in width as measured between tree trunks and shiub stems is
allowed for accessing the shoreline, as long as a cleared line of sight to the
water through the buffer strip is not created.

(5)] Selective Cuiting; Well-Distributed Stand of Trees. Seleclive cutting of
trees within the buffer strip is allowed as long as a well-distributed stand
of trees and other natural vegetation is maintained.

i. Well-Distributed Stand of Trees. A “well-distributed stand of
trees” adjacent to a great pond or a river or stream flowing to a
great pond, is defined as maintaining a rating score of 24 or more
points in each 25-foot by 50-foot rectangular (1,250 square foot)
area as determined by the following rating system:

Di_a:_ﬁeter of Trée__at 4-.1.1_’2 feet L .P(.)i.:lts.. _3_:_ o
Above Ground Level (inches) = - ce T O
2-<4 {
4-<§ 2
g§-<12 4

12 or greater 8

Adjacent to other water bodies, tributary streams, and wetlands, a
“well-distributed stand of trees” is defined as maintaining a
minimum rating score of 16 per 25-foot by 50-foot rectangular
area.

67



(©)

(d)

(e)

4

In applying this point systen:

a. The 25-foot by 50-foot rectangular plots must be
established where the property owner or lawful land
occupant proposes clearing within the required buffer strip;

b. Each successive plot must be adjacent to, but not overlap,
a previous plot;

c. Any plot not containing the required points must have no
vegetation removed except as otherwise allowed by this
subsection O;

d. Any plot containing the required points may have
vegetation remaved down to the minimum points required
or as otherwise allowed by this subsection O;

e. Where conditions permit, no more than 50% of the points
on any 25-foot by 50-foot rectangular area may consist of
trees greater than 12 inches in diameter.

ii. Other Natural Vegetation. “Other natural vegetation” is defined
as retaining existing vegetation under three feet in height and other
ground cover and retaining at least five iree saplings less than two
inches in diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level, for
each 25-foot by 50-foot rectangular area. If five tree saplings do
not exist, no woody stems less than two inches in diameter,
measured at 414 feet above ground level, may be removed until
five tree saplings have been recruited into the plot.

fit. Total Volume Limit. Notwithstanding subsections O.2.(b)(i) and
(ii), above, no more than 40% of the total volume of trees four
inches or more in diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground
level, may be removed in any 10-year period.

Preservation of Ground Cover. Tn order to protect water quality and
wildlife habitat, existing vegetation under three feet in height and other
ground cover including leaf litter and the forest duff layer, must not be cut,
covered, or removed, except to provide for a footpath or other permitted
uses pursuant to subsection 0.2 and 0.2.(a), above.

Pruning Allowed. Pruning of tree branches, on the bottom 1/3 of the tree
is allowed.

Replanting Cleared Openings. In order to maintain a buffer strip of
vegetation, when the removal of stoom-damaged, diseased, unsafe, dead,
or hazard trees results in the creation of cleared openings, these openings
nust be replanted with native tree species in accordance with subsection P,
below, unless existing new tree growth is present.

In order to maintain the vegetation in the shoreline buffer, clearing or
removal of vegetation for allowed activities, including associated
construction and related equipment operation, within or outside of the
shoreline buffer, must comply with the requirements of this
subsection O.2,

68




3, Volume and Cleared Opening Limits—OQutside Shoreline Buffer.

(@)

(b

Outside of the shoreline buffer, selective cutting of not more than 40% of
the volume of trees Tour inches or more in diameter, measured at 4Y4 feet
above ground level, is allowed on any lot in any 10-year period. Tree
removal in conjunction with the development of permitted uses must be
included in the 40% calculation. For the purposes of these standards,
volume may be considered to be equivalent to basal area.

In no event may cleared openings for any purpose, including principal and
accessory structures, driveways, lawns, and sewage disposal areas, exceed
in the aggregate 25% of the lot area within the shoreland zone or 10,000
square feet, whichever is greater, including land previously cleared.
This provision applies to the portion of a lot within the shoreland zone
(including the buffer area), but it does not apply to the GD-I or GD-II
district.

4. No__Enlargement of Nonconforming Cleared Openings. Legally existing

nonconforming cleared openings may be maintained, but must not be enlarged,
except as allowed by this Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning).

5. Reverted Cleared Openings. Fields and other cleared openings that have reverted
to primarily shrubs, trees, or other woody vegetation are regulated under the
provisions of this subsection O.

Hazard Trees, Storm-Damaged Trees, and Dead Tree Removal.

L. Hazard Trees. Hazard trees in the shoreland zone may be removed without a permit
after consultation with the CEQ if the following requirements are met:

(a)

(b)

Within Shoreline Buffer. Within the shoreline buffer, if the removal of a
hazard tree results in a cleared opening in the tree canopy greater than 250
sguare feet, replacement with native tree species is required, unless there
is new tree growth already present. New tree growth must be as near as
practicable to where the hazard tree was removed and be at least two
inches in diameter, measured at 4% fect above ground level,. If new
growth is not present, then replacement trees must consist of native species
and be at least four feet in height, and be no less than two inches in
diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level, Stumps may not be
removed.

Outside Shoreline Buffer. Outside of the shoreline buffer, when the
remaval of hazard trees exceeds 40% of the volume of trees four inches or
more in diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level, in any 10-year
period, or results in cleared openings exceeding 25% of the lot area within
the shareland zone, or 10,000 square feet, whichever is greater,
replacement with native tree species is required, unless there is new tree
growth already present. New tree growth must be as near as practicable to
where the hazard tree was removed and be at least two inches in diameter,
measured at 4'% feet above ground level. If new growth is not present, then
replacement trees must consist of native species and be at least two inches
in diameter, measured at 4% fect above ground level.

69



{c) Standing Dead Treas. The removal of standing dead trees, resulting from
natural causes, is permissible without the need for replanting or a permit,
as long as the removal does not result in the creation of new lawn areas, or
other permanently cleared areas, and stumps are not removed. For the
purposes of this provision, dead trees are those trees that contain no foliage
during the growing scason.

() Evaluation. The CEO may require the property owner to submit an
evaluation from a forester or arborist before any hazard tree can be
removed within the shoreland zone.

(e) Replacement. The CEO may require more than a one—for-one replacement
for hazard trees removed that exceed eight inches in diameter, measured
at 4% feet above ground level.

2 Storm-Damaged Trees. Storm-damaged trees in the shoreland zone may be
removed without a permit after consultation with the CEQ if the following
requirements are met:

(a) Within Shoreline Buffer. Within the shoreline buffer, when the removal of
storm-damaged trees results in a cleared opening in the tree canopy greater
than 250 square feet, replanting is not required, but the area is required to
naturally revegetate, and the following requirements must be met:

i. The area from which a storm-damaged tree is removed may not
result in new lawn areas or other permanently cleared areas;

i, Stumps from the storm-damaged trees may not be removed;

iit. Limbs damaged from a storm event may be pruned even if they
extend beyond the bottom one-third of the tree; and

iv. If after one growing season, no natural regeneration or regrowth
is present, replanting of native tree seedlings or tree saplings is
required at a density of one tree seedling per every 80 square feet
of lost canopy.

(b) Ouiside Shoreline Buffer. Outside of the shoreline buffer, if the removal
of storm-damaged trees exceeds 40% of the volume of trees four inches or
more in diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level, in any 10-year
period, or results, in the aggregate, in cleared openings exceeding 25% of
the lot area within the shoreland zone or 10,000 square feet, whichever is
greater, and no natoral regeneration occurs within one growing season,
then native tree seedlings or tree saplings must be replanted on a one-for-
one basis.

Exceptions to Clearing and Vegetation Removal Requirements. The following
activitics are exempt from the standards in subsection O (Clearing or Removal of
Vegetation), as long as all other applicable requirements of this Chapter IV (Shoreland
Zoning) are complied with, and the removal of vegetation is limited to that which is
necessary:

1. The removal of vegetation that occurs at least once every two years for the
maintenance of legally existing areas that do not comply with the vegetation
standards in this Chapter IV {(Shoreland Zoning), such as cleared openings in the

70



canopy or fields. Such areas may not be enlarged, except as allowed by this
subsection Q. If any of these areas, due o lack of removal of vegetation every two
years, reverts back to primarily woody vegetation, the requirements of
subsection O apply;

2. The removal of vegetation from the location of allowed structures or allowed uses,
when the shoreland setback requirements of Section I11-3.B are not applicable.

3. The removal of vegetation froni the location of public swimming areas associated
with allowed public low-intensity recreation areas.

4, The removal of vegetation associated with allowed agricultural uses, as long as
best management practices are utilized and all requirements of subsection N
(Agriculture) are complied with,

5. The removal of vegetation associated with brownfields or voluntary response
action program (VRAP) projects, as long as the removal of vegetation is necessary
for remediation activities to clean up contamination on a site in a GD-1 or GD-II
district or other equivalent zoning district approved by the DEP Commissioner that
is part of a state or federal brownfields program or a voluntary response action
program pursuant 38 M.R.S.A. § 343-E and that is located along a river that does
not flow to a great pond pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 465-A.

6. The removal of non-native invasive vegetation, as long as the following minimum
requirements are mel:

(a) If removal of vegetation occurs by wheeled or tracked motorized
equipment, the wheeled or tracked motorized equipment must be operated
and stored at least 25 feet from the shoreline, except that wheeled or
tracked equipment may be operated or stored on existing structural
surfaces such as pavement or gravel;

(b) Removal of vegetation within 25 feet from the shoreline oconrs by hand
tools; and
{©) If applicable clearing and vepetation removal standards are exceeded due

to the removal of non-native invasive vegetation, the area must be
revegetated with native species so as to achieve compliance.

7. The removal of vegetation associated with emergency response activities
conducted by DEP, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and their agents.

Revegetation Requirements. When revegetation is required in response to violations of
the vegetation standards in subsection O (Clearing or Removal of Vegetation), to address
the removal of non-native invasive species of vegetation, or as a mechanism to allow for
development that may otherwise not be permissible due to the vegetation standards,
including removal of vegetation in conjunction with a shoreline stabilization project, the
revegetation must comply with the following requirements:

71




Revegetation Plan,

(a) The property owner must submit a revegetation plan, prepared with and
signed by a qualified professional, that describes revegetation activities
and maintenance, The plan must include a scaled site plan, depicting where
vegetation was or is to be removed, where existing vegetation is to remain,
and where vegetation is to be planted, including a list of all vegetation to
be planted.

{b) If part of a permitted activity, revegetation must occur before the
expiration of the permit. If the activity or revegetation is not completed
before the expiration of the permit, a new revegetation plan must be
submitted with any renewal or new permit application.

Revegetation in Same Area; Comparable Density. Revegetation must occur along
the same segment of shoreline and in the same area where vegetation was removed
and at a density comparable to the pre-existing vegetation, except where a
shoreline stabilization activity does not allow revegetation to occur in the same
arca and at a density comparable to the pre-existing vegetation, in which case
revegetation must occur along the same segment of shoreline and as close as
possible to the area where vegetation was removed.

Trees and Tree Saplings. Revegetation activities must comply with the following
requirements for trees and tree saplings:

(a) All trees and tree saplings removed must be replaced with native
non-invasive species.

() Replacement vegetation must at a minimum consist of tree saplings.

(c) If more than three trees or tree saplings are planted, then at least three
different species must be used.

(d) No one species may make up 50% or more of the nomber of trees and tree
saplings planted.

() I revegetation is required for a shoreline stabilization project, and it is not

possible to plant trees and tree saplings in the same area where trees or tree
saplings were removed, then trees or tree sapling must be planted in a
location that effectively reestablishes the screening between the shoreline
and structures.

€4, A survival rate of at Ieast 80% of planted trees or tree saplings is required
for a minimum five-year period.

Woody Vegetation; Vegetation Under Three Feet in Height. Revegetation
activities must comply with the following requirements for woody vegetation and
other vegetation under three feet in height:

(a) All woody vegetation and vegetation under three feet in height must be
replaced with native non-invasive species of woody vegetation and
vegelation under three feet in height as applicable,

2




(b) Woody vegetation and vegetation under three feet in height must be
planted in quantities and variety sufficient to prevent erosion and provide
for effective infiltration of stormwater.

{c) If more than three woody vegetation plants are to be planted, then at least
three different species must be planted.

{d) No one species may make up 50% or more of the number of planted woody
vegetation plants.

(e) Survival of planted woody vegetation and vegetation under three feet in

height must be sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards
contained within this Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning) for a minimum of

five years.

5. Ground Vegetation; Ground Cover. Revegetation activities must comply with the
following requirements for ground vegetation and ground cover:

(a) All ground vegetation and ground cover removed must be replaced with
native herbaceous vegetation in quantities and variety sufficient to prevent
erosion and provide for effective infiltration of stormwaiter.

b Where necessary due to a lack of sufficient ground cover, an arca must be
supplemented with a minimum four-inch depth of leaf mulch or bark
mulch to prevent erosion and provide for effective infiltration of
stormwater,

{c) Survival and functionality of ground vegetation and ground cover must be
sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards contained within this
Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning) for minimum of five years.

S. Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standards.

I All activities involving filling, grading, excavation, or other similar activities
which result in destabilized soil conditions and require a permit also require a soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan. The plan must be submitted to the
reviewing authority for approval and must include, where applicable,
provision for:

(a) Mulching and revegetation of disturbed soil;

(b) Temporary runoff control features such as hay bales, silt fencing, or
diversion ditches; and

(c) Permanent stabilization structures such as retaining walls or riprap.

2. To create the least potential for erosion, development must be designed to fit with
the topography and soils of the site. Areas of steep slopes where high cuts and fills
may be required must be avoided wherever possible, and natural contours must be
followed as closely as possible.

3. Erosion and sedimentation control measures apply to all aspects of the proposed

project involving land distirbance, and must be in operation during all stages of
the activity. The amount of exposed soil at every phase of construction must be
minimized to reduce the potential for erosion.

13



10,

11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

Any exposed ground area must be temporarily or permanently stabilized within
one week from the time it was last actively worked by use of riprap, sod, seed,
mulch, or other effective measures. In all cases permanent stabilization must occur
within nine months of the initial date of exposure. In addition:

(a) Where mulch is used, it must be applied at a rate of at least one bale per
500 square feet and must be maintained until a catch of vegetation is
established.

(b) Anchoring the mulch with netting, peg and twine or other suitable method

may be required to maintain the mulch cover.

(c) Additional measures must be taken where necessary to avoid siltation into
the water. Such measures may include the use of staked hay bales/or silt
fences.

Natural and man-made drainage ways and drainage outlets must be protected from
erosion from water flowing through them. Drainage ways must be designed and
constructed to carry water from a 25-year storm or greater, and must be stabilized
with vegetation or lined with riprap.

No activity may cause unreasonable soil erosion or reduction in the capacity of the
tand to hold water so that a dangerous or unhealthy condition may result.

Adequate provision must be made for surface drainage so that removal of surface
waters will not adversely affect neighboring properties, downstream water quality,
or soil erosion. On-site absorption must be utilized to minimize discharges
whenever possible.

In areas where ground cover is removed, with the exception of roads and parking
areas, permanent seeding must be placed as soon as is practical but not later than
30 days from the start of construction.

Ground cover must not be removed between October 1 and May 1 from areas with
an average slope in excess of 8% without approval of the reviewing authority.

Water channels, including ditches, culvert inlets, culvert outlets, and detention
basin outlets, must be stabilized.

Cut and fill slopes must not exceed a three to one slope unless no reasonable
alternative exists, as determined by the CEO. Cut and fill slopes must be stabilized
with vegetation, rock, or other suitable measures.

Until a disturbed area is permanently stabilized, sediment in runoff water must be
trapped by the use of debris basins, sediment basins, silt traps, filter berms, check
dams, or other suitable measures.

Existing catch basins and culverts on or adjacent to the site must be protected from
sedimentation.

Stone check dams must be built and maintained at all points where newly-
constructed ditches channelize runoff flows to an adjacent property parcel.

Roof runoff from any newly-constructed or entarged portion of an existing
structure must drain to a roof drip edge collection system with the capacity to
infiltrate and store runoff from a two-inch in 24-hour rainfall event.

74



16. Phosphorus export from any proposal required to obtain a permit from the Planning
Board must not result in total annuat export from the entire property parcel that
exceeds 0.05 pounds per acre, as determined by using methods described in the
Maine Stornnvater Management Design Manual: Phosphorus Control Manual,
Vol. I (DEP, Mar. 2016).

Soils. All uses and structures must be located on soils in or upon which the proposed uses
or structures can be established or maintained without causing adverse environmental
impacts, including severe erosion, mass soil movement, improper drainage, and water
pollution, whether during or after construction. For uses requiring subsurface wastewater
disposal and for commercial or industrial development and other similar intensive land
uses, a soils report prepared by a professional consultant such as a soil scientist, engineer,
geologist, or other person with training and experience in the recognition and evaluation of
soil properties must be submitted to the reviewing authority. The soils report must be based
upon the analysis of the characteristics of the soil and surrounding land and water areas,
maximum groundwater elevation, presence of ledge, drainage conditions, and other
pertinent data which the evaluator deems appropriate. The soils report must include
recommendations for a proposed use to counteract soil limitations where they exist.

Water Quality.

I, No activity may deposit on or into the ground or discharge to the waters of the
State any pollutant that, by itself or in combination with other activities or
substances, will impair designated uses or the waler classification of the water
body, tributary stream, or wetland.

2. One of the following methods of phosphorus mitigation must be employed if the
footprint of any structure is enfarged within the minimum shoreland setback area:

(a) The existing undisturbed natural wooded buffer strip between the structure
and the water body must be at least 50 feet in depth;

(b) A 50-foot natural wooded buffer strip must be created by allowing a
50-foot strip to revert to natural vegetation. Woody vegetation must be
planted if lacking; or

{c) An infiltration system designed to accommodate the runoff from the entire
structure that would be generated by a 24-hour two-inch rainfall must be
constructed following reviewing authority approval.

3. Wells may be located within the minimum shoreland setback area if all of the
following provisions are met:

(a) The access corridor for equipment does not exceed 20 feet in width and
must follow any existing or proposed footpath. The reviewing authority
may expand this 20-foot limit to the minimum extent needed where access
is difficult.

(b) All slag must be removed from the ground, and no erosion or
sedimentation may enter any adjacent water body.

(c) All areas not covered by a fooipath must be stabilized immediately and
fully revegetated within nine months.

75



No provision of this Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning) may prohibit the revegetation
or stabilization of a disturbed area if a stabilization plan is filed with and approved
by the reviewing authority.

The use of fertilizer containing phosphorus within the shoreland zone is prohibited
except as part of an approved stabilization plan.

Subdivisions in Shoreland Zone. Applications for proposed subdivisions located
partially or completely within the shoreland zone must contain information
indicating the anticipated water quality impact of the subdivision relative to its
proportional area within the watershed of any great pond. The Planning Board must
consider such information, particularly how projected phosphorous loading relates
to existing phosphorous levels and the ability of the water body to maintain its
existing water quality, when reviewing the proposed subdivision.

V. Archeological Sites. Any application for a proposed land use activity involving structural
development or soil disturbance on or adjacent to sites listed on, or eligible to be listed on
the National Register of Historic Places, as determined by the permitting authority, must
be submitted by the applicant to the Maine Historic Preservation Commission, for review
and comment, at least 20 days prior to action being taken by the reviewing authority.
The reviewing authority must consider comments received from the Commission prior to
rendering a decision on the application.

W. Photographic Record. Any application for a proposed land use activity involving

structural development or soil disturbance within the shoreland zone must provide to the

reviewing authority pre-construction photographs and, no later than 20 days after

completion of construction, post-construction photographs of the shoreline vegetation and

development site.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 435 ET SEQ. (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1000
(GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES); 38 M.R.S.A. § 480-A ET SEQ. (NATURAL
RESOURCES PROTECTION ACT); 10-144 C.M.R. CH. 241 (MAINE SUBSURFACE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL RULES).

Section IV-5. Special Exceptions

The Planning Board may approve a permit for a single-family dwelling unit in the RP district by special
exception if the applicant demonstrates that all of the following conditions are met:

A. The proposal satisfies the review criteria of Section IV-3 and, as applicable, the land use
standards of Section IV-4.

B. There is no location on the property, other than within the RP district, where the structure
can be built.

C. The lot on which the structure is proposed is undeveloped and was established and recorded
in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds before the adoption of the RP district.

D. All proposed buildings, sewage disposal systems, and other improvements are:
L Located on natural ground slopes of less than 20%; and

2.

Located outside of the floodplain or, in the case of principal buildings including
basements, elevated at least one foot above the 100-year floodplain elevation, and
the development is otherwise in compliance with the Town of Bridgion Floodplain
Management Ordinance.

76



E. The total combined footprint of all principal and accessory structures is limited to a
maximum of 1,500 square feet. This limitation may not be altered by variance.

F. All structures, except functionally water-dependent structures, are set back from the normal
high-water line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland to the greatest
extent possible, but not less than 75 feet. In its determination of setback to the greatest
extent possible, the Planning Board must base its decision on the considerations specified
in the definition of *“greatest extent possible,” as well as the proposed building site’s

elevation in regard to the floodplain and its proximity to moderate value and high-value
wetlands.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 435 £r 560, (MANDATORY SHORELAND ZONING); 06-096 C.M.R. CH. 1600
{(GUIDELINES FOR MUNICIPAL SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES).

77



Section V-1.

CHAPTER V. SITE PLAN REVIEW

Applicability

Site plan review and approval under this Chapter V (Site Plan Review) is required for the following

activities:

Al

Section V-2.
A.

Section V-3,
A.

Any use, or any structures associated with or devoted to such use, identified in the schedules
of uses in Section HI-2 or Section IV-2 as allowed with site plan approval, including:

L. The construction, alteration, or enlargement of any existing structure associated
with or devoted to a use requiring site plan approval; and

2. Marijuana establishments, including new marijuana establishments, enlargements
of existing marijuana establishments, changes of use to other types of marijuana
establishment, or the addition of other types of marijuana establishments to
existing marijuana establishments.

Expansion of a use conducted in one or more existing structures or on land when such
expanded use would (i) employ new materials or processes or (ii) involve the sale of goods
not normally associated with the original use.

Delegation of Reviewing Authority; Reporting

Delegation of Reviewing Authority. The CEO is delegated the authority to review site
plan applications for:

1. Principal structures that do not exceed 600 square feet in floor area.

2, Structures accessory to an existing principal use or structure that (i) do not exceed
600 square feet in aggregate floor area and (ii) do not have sanitary plumbing
(toilets, showers, or sinks).

3. Expansions of the floor area of existing structures which (i) over a five-year period,
amount an aggregate floor area expansion of no more than a 25% or 3,000 square
feet, whichever is less, and (ii) are proposed to accommaodate an existing use.

The Planning Board is delegated the authority to review all other site plan applications.

Reporting. The CEO must inform the Planning Board of all actions taken on site plan
applications at the next regularly scheduled mecting of the Planning Board.

Review Procedures—CEO Review

Site Plan Application Submission; Completeness Review. The applicant must submit a
site plan application in accordance with Section V-5. The CEO must determine if the
application is complete for review in accordance with Section I-8.B except that if the
application is found to be incomplete, the CEO must notify and direct the applicant to
submit any omitted information within seven days of notice of incompleteness. If the
omissions have not been submitted by then, the CECQ must return the application as
incomplete and conclude its review,

78




Section V-4,
A.

Impact Statements. At any time after receiving an application, the CEO must solicit
impact statements from Department Heads, and must consider any statements received in
rendering a decision. The Department Heads must cite to the provision of this Code or
other applicable ordinance, statute, rule, or law when making an impact statement and must
submit their impact statements to the CEO within five days of the request.

Review and Written Decision. Within 15 days of receipt of an application that is complete
for review, the CEOQ must make a written decision containing findings of fact and
conclusions of law as to whether the application complies with the general review criteria
in Section V-6 and must provide the decision to the applicant.

Right of Full Review by Planning Board. If the CEO denies the site plan application, the
applicant may proceed to the Planning Board for a full review pursuant to Section V-4,

Review Procedures—Planning Board Review
Pre-Application Meeting—Sketch Plan (Optional).

1. Before submitting a site plan application, the applicant may appear at a regular or
special meeting of the Planning Board to informally discuss the proposed
development. The pre-application meeting is informal and informational in nature,
and the purposes of the pre-application meeting are to (i) allow the Planning Board
to understand the nature of the proposed structures and uses, (i) allow the
applicant to understand the review process and required submissions, and
(iii) identify issues that need to be addressed in future submissions.

2. The applicant must give notice of the pre-application meeting in accordance with
Section [-9.

3. The applicant may present to the Planning Board at the pre-application meeting,
for informal review and comment, a sketch plan of the proposed development.
The sketch plan consists of a rough description of the proposed development, and
may be a free-hand, penciled sketch of the subject property showing the proposed
exterior and layout of structures, roads, and other existing and proposed features
relevant to site plan review. The applicant may identify and discuss any requests
for waivers pursuant to Section [-14.

4, The Planning Board may request that the applicant arrange for a site visit with the
Planning Board and the public. The applicant must give notice of the site visit in
accordance with Section [-9.

5. No binding commitments may be made between the applicant and the Planning
Board at this stage. No vested interests will attach or accrue as a result of any
pre-application meeting, and such meeting will not cause an application to be
deemed complete for review pursuant to Section [-8.B.

Site Pian Application Submission; Completeness Review. The applicant must submit a
site plan application in accordance with Section V-5. The Planning Board must determine
whether the application is complete for review pursuant to Section 1-8 B.

Impact Statements. At any time after receiving an application (including prior to the
Planning Board’s determination that the application is complete for review; prior to the
meeting or hearing held pursuant to the subsection D, below; and whenever an applicant
modifies the proposal), the Planning Board may solicit impact statements from the

79




Deepartment Heads. The Department Heads must cite to the provision of this Code or other
applicable ordinance, statute, rule, or regulation when making an impact statement, and
must submit their initial impact statements to the Planning Board within five days of the
solicitation,

Meeting or Hearing. After finding an application complete for review, the Planning Board
may decide, in its discretion, to schedule a public hearing in accordance with
subsection D.2, below. In deciding whether to hold a public hearing, the Planning Board
may consider, among other factors, whether the application presents matters or issues of
substantial controversy or public importance, or whether a public hearing would likely
unearth new information relevant to the Planning Board’s review.

1. If no public hearing is held, the application will be placed on the agenda of the
Planning Board’s next regularly scheduled meeting for review. The applicant must
give nofice of the application and the Planning Board meeting in accordance with
Section I-9. The applicant must attend the meeting of the Planning Board when the
application is reviewed. If the Planning Board finds, during its review, that the
application presents matters or issues of substantial controversy or public
importance or a public hearing would likely unearth new relevant information, the
Planning Board may, in its discretion, schedule a pubiic hearing in accordance with
subsection 1.2, below.

2. I the Planning Board decides to hold a public hearing, the hearing must be
scheduled within 30 days of the Planning Board’s finding that the application is
complete for review. The Town must publish the time, date, and place of the hearing
at least 12 days prior to the hearing in a newspaper of area-wide circulation, and the
applicant must give notice of the hearing in accordance with Section I-9,

Site Visits, At any time during its review of a site plan application, the Planning Board
may request that the applicant arrange for a site visit with the Planning Board and the
public. The applicant must give notice of the site visit in accordance with Section I-9.

Supplemental Information; Proposed Modifications by Applicant. At any time during
its review of a site plan application, the Planning Board may accept, in its discretion,
supplemental information or proposed modifications to the application which the applicant
requests to submit. Any such supplemental information or proposed modifications must be
submitted to the Planning Board at least 12 days prior to the meeting or public hearing
scheduled pursnant to subscction D, above.

Additional Information. At any time during its review of the application, the Planning
Board may request additional information from the applicant. If the information requested
by the Planning Board is not submitted by the applicant within three months from the date
the Planning Board made the request, the application must be returned as incomplete.
The Planning Board may grant an extension of the 3-month deadline upon written request
and a showing of good cause by the applicant.

Written Decision. The Planning Board must issue a written decision in accordance with
Section I-8.C.

80




Section V-5.
A,

Application Subinission Requirements

Copies. The applicant must submit one paper copy and one electronic PDF of the site plan
application and any supporting documents or evidence, except that 15 paper copies must
be submitted of all documents (including site plans) that are farger than 8% x 11 inches.

Application Submission Requirements. In addition to the application submission
requirements in Section 1-7, the applicant must submit the following materials unless
waived by the Planning Board in accordance with Section I-14:

I. A site plan or plans prepared at a scale of not less than one inch to 100 feet on
paper size no smaller than 24 x 36 inches containing:

(2)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

(e)

®

(8

(h)

The name and address of the applicant, the name of proposed
development, and the name and address of the property owner, if different.

The date the plan was prepared with the name, address, and contact
information of the person who prepared the plan.

Any land within 500 feet of the proposed development area in which the
applicant has rigly, title, or interest.

A soil survey (including a soils map, location of soil test pits, soil narrative
veport, and soil profile log description) of existing soil conditions,
conducted by a professional consultant such as a soil scientist, engineer,
or geologist according to the Guidelines for Maine Certified Soil Scientists
for Soil Identification and Mapping (Maine Association of Professional
Soil Scientists, Mar. 2009). The intensity level of the soil survey within
the buildable area must be:

i. Class A (high intensity) for proposed structures and uses on a lot
less than two acres with on-site subsurface wastewater disposal.

il. Class B (high intensity) for proposed structures and uses on a lot
less than two acres with a public sewer connection.

fii. Class C (medium-high intensity) for structures and uses on a lot
two acres or greater with on-site subsurface wastewater disposal.

1v. Class D {medium intensity) for all other proposals and for all areas
outside of the buildable area.

Topographic contours at elevation intervals of two, five, 10, or 20 feet, as
specified by the Planning Board.

Municipal tax map and lot numbers and names of property owners within
100 feet of the property lines of the proposed development area.

A perimeter survey of the parcels encompassing the proposed development
area and interior lot layout made and certified by a land surveyor relating
to reference points, showing true north point, graphic scale, comers of
parcels, date of survey, lot size, lot frontage, lot coverage, any contiguous
private open space, maximum and minimun setback lines, and total acreage.

Existing and proposed locations and dimensions of any essential services,
utility lines, sewer lines, water lines, easements, drainage ways (including

81



()

)

(k)
e
{m)

all existing and proposed storm drainage facilities and dimensions of
culverts and pipes), roads, and public or private rights-of-way.

If the development is not proposed to be served by public sewer, an on-site
soils investigation report by a licensed site evalnator or engineer. The report
must contain the types of soil, location of test pits, and proposed location
and design of the subsurface wastewater disposal system for the proposed
development. If an engineered subsurface wastewater disposal system is

proposed to serve the development, approvals of such system design from
DHHS must be subimitted.

The location and dimensions of on-site pedestrian and vehicular access
ways, parking areas, loading and unloading facilities, design of entrances
and exits of vehicles to and from the site onto public roads, and curb and
sidewalk lines,

The location of all land use and shoreland zoning district boundaries.
The location of mapped aquifers and aquifer recharge areas.

The location of floodplains and floodplain elevations.

Drawings and descriptions showing:

(2)

(b

(©)

(d)
(e)

The exterior of existing and proposed structures, including additions and
expansions, identifying structire height, ground story floor elevation
height (if applicable), exterior materials, texture, and color. Drawings and
descriptions must demonstrate how structures will comply with applicable
land use district fagade requirements (including fenestration and building
projection standards) and garage and parking requirements in Section 1114,

A floor plan of existing and proposed structures showing location,
footprint, floor area, pround coverage, and placement on site.

A landscaping plan showing approximate placement and types of existing
and proposed vegetation, berms, hedges, tree lines, fencing, and screening,
The plan must demonstrate compliance with applicable district-specific
landscaping requirements in Section I111-4.

The location, description, and placement of signs.

The location, description {including intensity, type, size, and direction),
and placement of exterior lighting.

A wriften statement consisting of’

@)

(b)

©

A description of the existing and proposed uses of the site, and any existing
or proposed structures, including quantity and type of dwelling units, if any.

The floor area and footprint of each existing and proposed structure, and
the lot coverage by each structure, each impervious surface, and all
structures and impervious surfaces in the aggregate,

Information relating to projected numbers and types of clients, staff and
duties in sufficient detail to allow the Planning Board to evaluate the
availability of municipal services.

82




(d) A summary of existing and proposed easements, restrictions, and
covenants placed on the development area.

{(e) A description of the proposed method of solid waste disposal.

() A soil erosion and sedimentation control plan prepared in accordance with
the Maine Erosion and Sediment Comtrol Best Management Practices
(BMPs): Manual for Designers and Engineers (DEP, Oct. 2016).

{g) An evaluation of the availability and suitability of off-site public facilities
that will serve the proposed development.

(h) A proposed plan for fire protection services, including an evaluation of the
availability and suitability of fire hydrants, fire ponds, and other fire
protection services,

(i) A statement that any proposed road construction will comply with all
applicable ordinances, rules, and regulations of the Town and any
recommendations of the Public Works Director.

G4) A construction schedule identifying all major stages of construction and
including an estimate of the date when construction will start and be
substantially completed.

(k) A plan for protecting existing vegetation during construction and replacing
vegetation that may become damaged by construction.

1) A decommissioning plan containing, at minimum, a proposed
decommissioning schedule and statements and plans addressing physical
removal of all facilities and structures; disposal of all solid and hazardous
waste in accordance with applicable laws and rules; stabilization or
revegetation of the site to minimize erosion and return the site to
substantially its pre-development state; and an estimate of costs for
decommissioning (including methodology and data supporting the
estimate), prepared by an engineer,

Section V-6. General Review Criteria

For structures and uses that are allowed with site plan approval in the schedule of uses in Section {11-2.B,
the proposal must comply with the following review criteria:

A. General.

1. The proposed uses, and any structures associated with or devoted to such uses, are
allowed within the land use and shoreland zoning district in which they are
proposed to be located and comply with all standards applicable to uses and
structures located in that district;

2. The proposal complies with alf other applicable requirements of this Code and the
Town’s ordinances, rules, and regulations; and

3. The proposal is consistent with the Town of Bridgton Comprehensive Plan.

83



Preservation and Enhancement of the Landscape. The landscape must be preserved in
its natural state by minimizing disturbance of soil and removal of existing vegetation during
construction. A landscaping plan must be incorporated into the final site plan, and
fandscaping must be designed and planted to (i) define, soften, or screen off-street parking
areas from the public roads and abutting properties; (ii) enhance the physical design of
existing and proposed buildings and the site; and (iii) minimize adverse audiovisual
impacts on neighboring kand uses. Invasive plants may not be used in any landscaping plan.

Relationship to Surroundings. Proposed structures or additions fo existing structures
must:

1. Be of compatible scale and size to existing buildings in the vicinity;

2. Be of compatible architectural style, incorporating features such as simple
rectangular shape, gable roof or other traditional compatible roof line, dormers,
compatible windows, doors and trim;

3. Include as an integral element of design varying roof lines, awnings and canopies
above windows or doors and other architectural elements to reduce bulk or scale
of buildings. Designs must seek to eliminate unadorned or blank walis through use
of varying architectural elements, windows, or other reflective surfaces, If
applicable, designs must comply with the fagade requirements in Section I1-4. The
Planning Board may consider the use, location, and surroundings of the structure
when determining the appropriateness of the building’s facade;

4. Have exterior of wood, stone, brick, or other material having the same architectural
and visual properties; and

5. Avoid or minimize disruption to natural features, including slope, soil type, and
drainage ways.

Vehicular and Pedestrian Traffic. The proposat must not cause vehicular and pedestrian
traffic conditions to become unsafe or to exceed reasonable traffic limits for the
neighborhood. In evaluating this standard, the Planning Board may consider the lacation,
number and control of access points, adequacy of adjacent roads, traffic flow, traffic
volume, sight distances, turning lanes, existing or proposed traffic signalization, and
pedestrian-vehicular contacts. To the greatest extent practicable, applicants must
mcorporate shared driveways to provide common access to adjacent properties and reduce
curb cuts on the main road. In addition, for any proposal that crosses municipal boundaries,
the proposal must not cause unreasonable traffic congestion or unsafe conditions with
respect to the use of existing public ways in an adjoining municipality in which part of the
proposal is located.

Traffic Circulation. The design of walkways, crosswalks, interior drives and parking
areas must promote safe, clearly delineated, and convenient traffic patterns for pedestrian,
vehicular and service use. The proposed layout must also provide adequate turning capacity
for public safety vehicles.

Parking. The proposal must provide adequate parking to accommodate the projected needs
of the proposed development, including projected numbers of employees and customers.
Parking lots serving multiple establishments or providing general off-street parking are
strongly encouraged. Applicants may satisfy this parking requirement by (i) demonstrating
that existing public parking areas accommodate projected needs of the proposed
development; (ii) entering into a written lease or other legally binding agreement, having

84



a minimum duration of five years plus two consecutive five-year automatic renewal
periods, with another property owner or with the Town to use, exclusively or on a shared
basis, private or municipal parking lots that are proximate to the proposed development
site and allow overnight and winter parking; or (iii) proposing an alternative agreement or
arrangement sufficient to address the parking needs of the proposed development.

Surface Water Drainage. Adequate provision must be made for surface drainage so that
removal of surface waters will not adversely affect neighboring properties, downstream
water quality, soil erosion, or the public storm drainage system. On-site absorption must
be utilized to minimize discharges whenever possible. All drainage calculations nwst be
based on a 10-year storm frequency. Additionally, for multi-family dwelling units, there
must be provided a stormwater easement or drainage right-ofsway conforming
substantially with the lines of such watercourse and such further width or construction, or
both, as will assure that no flooding occurs and all stormwater can be disposed of properly.
Such easement or right-of-way must be not less than 30 feet in width.

Impervious Surfaces, No impervious surface may be constructed or installed within any
minimum setback area, other than vehicular or pedestrian entrances to and exits from the
site.

Public Utilities. The proposal must not unreasonably burden public utilities,

Advertising Features. Lighted signs and other lighted advertising structures or features
must be shielded and non-flashing. Signs and other advertising structures or features nmst
not detract from the design of any proposed sfructures or swrrounding structures and
properties.

Special Features of the Development. Exposed storage areas, exposed machinery
installation, service areas, truck and service loading areas, utility buildings, and similar
structures must be sufficiently set back and screened from public roads, abutting properties,
and proposed buildings to provide an audiovisual buffer sufficient to minimize their
adverse impact on land uses within the development area and on surrounding properties.
Loading areas must be separated from general parking areas.

Exterior Lighting. All exterior lighting must be shielded, non-flashing, and energy
efficient and must be designed to ensure safe movement of people and vehicles. Lighting
must be located so as to minimize glare and reflection on adjacent properties and roads.

FEmergency Vehicle Access. Provision must be made for convenient and safe emergency
vehicle access to the proposed development, including all existing and proposed structures.

Municipal Services. The proposal must not have an unreasonable adverse impact on
municipal services including municipal road systems, fire protection, police services,
emergency medical unit services, solid waste program, schools, public open spaces,
recreational programs and facilities, and other municipal services and facilities.

Water Quality. The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with existing activities,
have an unreasonable adverse impact on water quality. In making this determination, the
Planning Board must consider:

85




1. The elevation of land above sea level and its relation to floodplains;

2. The nature of soils and subsoils, and, as applicable, their ability to adequately
support subsurface wastewater disposal or any other approved or licensed
discharge;

The stope of the land and its effect on effluents;
The impact on aquifers and aquifer recharge areas;
The existence of streams and surface runoff characteristics;

The cumulative impact of increased phosphorus export to water bodies; and

Moo kW

Any other applicable federal, state, and local laws and rules pertaining to water
quality.

Groundwater Quantity and Quality. The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with
existing activities, have an unreasonable adverse impact on the quality or quantity of
groundwatet.

Air Quality. The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with existing activities, have
an unreasonable adverse impact on air quality. The applicant must consult federal and state
authorities to determine applicable air quality laws and regulations and must furnish
evidence to the Planning Board of compliance with such laws and regulations.

Water Supply. Sufficient water must be available for the reasonably foreseeable needs of
the proposed development, and the proposal must not cause an unreasonable burden on any
existing water supplies.

Soils and Erosion Control. The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with existing
activities, cause unreasonable soil erosion or a dangerous or unhealthy reduction in the
capacity of the land fo hold water.

Sewage Disposal. The proposal must provide for adequate sewage disposal.

Scentc Impacts. The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with existing structures,
have an unreasonable adverse effect on the scenic or natural beauty of the Town, including
its aesthetics, historic sites, and rare and irreplaceable natural areas.

Noise.

! The proposal must not, alone or in conjunction with existing activities, raise noise
fevels to the extent that abutting or nearby residents or properties are adversely
affected.

2, Excessive noise at unreasonable hours must be muffled so as not to be
objectionable due to internmittence, beat frequency, or shrillness.

3. Except as provided in subsection V.4, below, the maximum pennissible sound

pressure level of any continuous regular or frequent source of sound produced by
any activity must not exceed the following sound pressure level limits:

7:00 2. = 8:00 pm. | 8:00 p.m. — 7:00 a.m.
70 dB(A) 55 dB(A)

86



Section V-7.

A.

Sound pressure levels must be measured on a sound level meter at all major lot
lines of the proposed development area, at a height of at least four feet above the
ground surface,

4, The following activities are exempt from the sound pressure level limits of

subsection V.3, above:

(a) Noises created by construction and maintenance activities between
6:30 a.m. and 8:00 pan,

(b) Noises of safety signals, warning devices, and emergency pressure relief
valves and any other emergency activity.

{c) Traffic noise on public roads.

Location in Floodplain. If the proposal, or any part of it, is in a floodplain, the applicant
must determine the 100-year flood elevation and flood hazard boundaries within the
proposed development area. Principal structares must be constructed with their lowest
floor, including basement, at least one foot above the 100-year flood elevation and the
proposal otherwise comply with the Town of Bridgton Floodplain Management Ordinance.

Adequate Technical and Financial Capacity. The applicant must have adequate financial
and technical capacity to comply with the review standards in this Section V-6.

Special Regulations.

I. An institutional use requiring federal or state licensing must obtain such license
before site plan approval is granted by the Planning Board.

2. All residential childcare and educational institutions and facilities must comply
with the DHHS Rules for the Licensing of Child Care Facilities, codified at 10-148
C.M.R. ch. 32,

3. Any industrial use which is found by the Planning Board to constitute a public

nuisance by reason of the emission of dust, fumes, gas, smoke, odor, noise,
vibration, or other disturbance is prohibited. No such finding may be made by the
Planning Board until after a public hearing has been held in accordance with
Section V-4.D.

4, Any outdoor storage of articles, supplies, and materials must not be located within
the minimum setback area and nmst be screened from view from abutting
residential property owners or roads by a solid wall or vegetative hedge.

Road Design. For multi-family dwellings, the subdivision road design standards in
Section VI-7.N apply.

Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Large-Scale Water Extraction
Applicability,

I. Except as provided in subsection A.2, below, the extraction of more than
50,000 gallons on any given day or 1,000,000 annually of groundwater, spring
water, surface water, or water from an aquifer by any person, regardless of the
number of extraction facilities utilized, must comply with the additional site
plan review procedures and standards of this Section V-7.

87



This Section V-7 does not apply to:

{a) Extraction of groundwater to be used within the Town for standard
agricultural purposes;

{b) Extraction of groundwater for any part of a community water system,
as defined under the Maine Rules Relating to Drinking Water, codified
at 10-144 C.M.R. Ch. 231.

{c) Domnestic water supply to residential dwelling units within the Town;
(d) Water supply for public facilities, schools, or fire suppression; or

(e Existing residential, conunercial, agricultural, or industrial use and
consumption within the Town.

Review Procedures. Notwithstanding Section V-4:

1.

Notice to Abutting Property Owners. The applicant must give notice of the
filing of an application for large-scale water extraction in accordance with
Section 19, except that the applicant must notify the owners of property
located within 1,000 feet of the proposed extraction sites.

Completeness Review. The Planning Board has 30 days from the date of
submission to conduct a preliminary review of the application solely for the
purpose of determining whether the application is compiete for review.
Applications will not be accepted until all required state and federal permits
are complete and approved by the agencies charged with reviewing and
approving such permits. The applicant must furnish to the Planning Board
copies of all applicable permits required by state or federal law. If within the
30 day period the Planmming Board determines the application is incomplete in
any material or relevant respect, it must inform the applicant, either in writing
or verbally at a regularly scheduled mecting of the Planning Board at which
the applicant is present, after which the applicant must be given a reasonable
period of time, not to exceed 60 days to complete its application. Tailure to
complete the application in such time will cause the application to be deemed
incomplete, 1f by the end of the 30 day period for review of completeness the
Planning Board has not informed the applicant that the application is
incomplete, the application is deemed complete,

Public Hearing. The Planning Board must hold a public hearing within 30 days
of the determination of application completeness. The applicant nuist give
notice of the hearing in accordance with Section [-9.

Decision. Within 30 days of the public hearing, or within such other time Iimit
as may be otherwise mutually agreed to by the Planning Board and the
applicant, the Planning Board must hold a public meeting to render a decision
as to whether to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the application. No
later than 30 days following the meeting at which the Planning Board renders
its decision, the Planning Board must issue a written decision with findings of
fact and conclusions of law.

88



Applicatien Submission Requirements. In addition to the requirements in
Section V-3, an application for large-scale water extraction must include the following:

1.

An application stamped and certified by an engineer or a geologist and
accompanied by site plans stamped by a land surveyor.

A statement of total maximum quantity of water to be extracted, as the annual
total, then maximuwm monthly total and the maximum daily total from all
extraction points operated by the same individual or entity, or consortium or
association of individuals or entities. This statement must also inchude:

(a) The location of points of extraction;
(b) The method of extraction; and
(©) The proposed use for which the water is to be extracted, including the

identity of any end user of the extracted water whose facilities for use,
processing, transporting, storage, bottling, shipping, piping, sales or
other similar activities are located outside of the Town.

A copy of any related application and cxhibits, reports, and public
correspondence for such extraction and related facilities filed or to be filed
with any other municipal authority, the state, or the federal government,
including as required by NRPA, 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 481-490 (site location of
development), 22 MR.S.A. § 2660 ef seq. (transportation of water for
commercial purposes) or under other applicable DEP or DHIIS laws and rules.

A copy of any related permit, approval, or denial for such extraction or related
facilities as may have been issued by the state or federal government, including
any DHHS bulk water transport permit, DHHS public water supply approval,
DEP site location license, or DEP wetlands alteration permit. Such permits
must be granted prior to application being made to the Planning Board,

A written teport of a hydrogeologic investigation conducted, prepared,
stamped, and certified by an engineer, a geologist or a hydrogeologist.
The report must be based on a hydrogeologic investigation of sufficient detail
to provide but not be limited to the following information:

(a) A map of the entire topographic drainage basin upgradient of the water
extraction sites showing the basin boundaries, sub-basin boundaries
that may be of significance to the recharge of the water extraction
sites, and the location of the extraction siies.

(b) Two maps of the aquifer as specified below showing the springs,
wells, or excavations from which water is to be extracted and the
wetlands (including significant vernal pools) and water bodies within
2,000 feet of the extraction sites. The maps must be at a scale of one
inch to 100 feet and must depict topographic contours at an interval of
20 feet or less. The maps must show the following information:

L Map 1: Water table contours under ambient conditions, and

ii. Map 2: Water table contours under actual pumping conditions
at the completion of a five-day constant rate pumping test at a
rate at or above that proposed for operation.

89




(©)

(d)

(e)

®

()

()

The maps nust be based on water table elevation measurements from
monitoring wells and water bodies in the vicinity of the extraction sites
and must include estimated surface water elevations for more distant
locations. The applicant must take rcasonable measures to obtain such
data from land not owned by the applicant but is not required to
include such data if other property owners do not allow access.

A map showing the long-term zone of contribution to the extraction
sifes based on maximum proposed extraction rates, and a quantitative
water budget analysis that includes precipitation inpuf,
evapotranspiration losses, surface water runoff, groundwater flux, and
discharge-recharge relationships between surface water and
groundwater,

Two scaled geclogic cross-sections effects of long-term water
extraction on local and regional groundwater levels, wetlands, ponds
or lakes Ievels, base flow in streams, and any water quality changes in
groundwater and surface water bodies due to the proposed use.

Locations and logs of all subsurface explorations, including test pits,
borings, probes, and geophysical data. Instaliation diagrams of all
wells, including, as applicable, depth, screened intervals, casing
length, elevation of ground surface and top of casing materials used,
Iength of seals, and other relevant information.

Background water level and water quality data, including, as
applicable, stream flow, spring flow, wetland boundaries and hydro
period, and other information as determined to be necessary by the
Planning Board.

Precipitation data from a location or locations and for a period
determined to be acceptable by the Planning Board.

The aquifer characteristics including hydraulic conductivity and
transimissivity, average daily, monthly, and annual extraction rates,

A small-scale site plan showing;

()

(b)

()
d

(e)

Existing network of public or private roads leading to or by the
extraction points.

Any proposed new roads or driveways to be constructed for access to
and egress from the extraction points, and the points of intersection of
such proposed roads or driveways with existing roads.

The location and type of monitoring and test wells.

Any existing or proposed pipes, pipelines, aqueducts, or similar that
are intended to facilitate transport of the extracted water from the
extraction points towards the intended end user.

Any existing or proposed utility lines to be used in the extraction
operations.

90




() A detailed plan of the extraction points including wellheads, pumping
facilities, monitoring or test wells, lighting, all structures {including
buildings, sheds, tanks, and silos), paving, vehicular drives, parking
and turnaround, wutility lines, fencing, pipelines, access roads or
driveways, elevation and contour lines.

(2) Any other relevant material details bearing on the proposed extraction
process and whose omission would tend to hinder the ability of the
reviewing authority, affected property owners, or the public from
developing a full understanding of the scope and impact of the
proposal.

Additional Review Criteria. In addition to the general review criteria in Section V-6,
a large-scale extraction operation must comply with the following review criteria:

I.

Any vehicular demand on existing Town roads or public easements occasioned
by the operation of the extraction and related storage and transfer facility must
not exceed the capacity of those roads, as determined by the Town Road
Commissioner, or cause the premature failure, aging, or diminished utility of
those roads.

If the extraction facility will be served by pipes, pipelines, aqueducts or similar
installations, such installations must be sited and constructed so as to not
interrupt the public’s use of any existing road; interrupt the public’s access to
any private facility, great pond, or public property; interrupt private access to
private property; or pose the risk of damage to any property along or through
which such installations traverse as a result of any failure or malfunction which
nright cause ponding, erosion, stormwater runoff, or sedimentation.

The proposed extraction and activities incident to such extraction, including
increased traffic (volume and type), parking, noise, glare from lights, or similar
potential for nuisances, must not cause a negative impact on adjacent
properties or the nearby vicinity as a whote. The Planning Board may
condition approval of the proposal by limiting hours of operation.

Provision must be made for vehicular access to the extraction facility and for
circulation, loading, and unloading upon the lot in such manner as to safeguard
against hazards to traffic and pedestrians on adjacent roads and to avoid traffic
congestion and traffic safety hazards, or other safety risks.

Any driveways or access roads to the extraction facility must be designed in
profile and grading and located so as to provide sight distances as specified by
DOT.

Driveways and access roads to the extraction facility must comply with the
subdivision road standards in Section VI-7.

AH water extraction meters must be calibrated, certified, and sealed annually
by DACF Division of Quality Assurance and Regulation with all costs to be
paid by the applicant or the extractot.

The quantity of groundwater to be extracted must not have a negative impact
on groundwater flow patterns relating to the aquifer, its recharge areas, or other
groundwater sources within the Town,

91



10.

11

12.

13,

14,

5.

The quantity of groundwater to be extracted must not negatively impact,
diminish, or alter any surface waters within the Town, including during any
periods of drought.

The quantity of groundwater to be extracted must not cause any ground
subsidence beyond the property lines of the applicant’s property.

The quantity of groundwater to be extracted must not adversely affect the long-
term sustainability of the aquifer, or its recharge areas, including during
periods of drought.

The quantity of groundwater to be extracted must not negatively impact the
quality of the groundwater in the aquifer.

Trucks transporting water must only use roads approved by the Planning
Board.

The CEQ, Police Chief, and TFire Chief must have access to all wells and
facilities for oversight purposes.

Extraction wells must not have a negative impact on the water quality or
quantity of any public or private wells or spring in the Town.

Post-Approval Requirements,

1.

Every extraction well site must be provided with a minimum of three
monitoring test wells, and the location of these monitoring test wells must first
be approved by the CEO. These wells must monitor the same geclogic unit
that is producing the groundwater for the exfraction well. Any private wells
within the zone of contribution must be monitored.

The applicant of an approved project must provide the CEO with quarterly
hydro geologic status reports docwmeniing compliance with the site plan
approval, the effects of the extraction on the local and regional groundwater
system, and confirmation that the extraction is not degrading water quality or
quantity. The report must include but not be limited to a tabulation of
groundwater extraction volumes on a daily and monthly basis; monthly
groundwater level trends from each monitoring well set associated with the
extraction well, and a discussion of any variation in the effects of extraction
compared to predicted hydro geologic response. All guarterly reports must be
submitted to an independent expert selected by the Planning Board for review.
The costs of the independent expert review must be paid for by the applicant.

The applicant must submit quarterly operating records to the Planning Board.
Such reports must show daily, monthly, and yearly totals of water exiracted
and the amount stored and shipped for each interval. Detailed records must
also be kept as to the vehicles on which water is shipped, including the loading
weight and the vehicle gross weight, the departure time, and the intended
destination.

Groundwater samples must be collected on an annual basis during the month
of August and analyzed for an appropriate suite of water quality parameters.
Samples must be collected from at least two hydraulically upgradient locations
and two hydraulically downgradient locations. In addition, representative
samples from 10% of the private wells within the zone of contribution must be

92



included in the August water quality analysis. The water quality parameters
and sample locations must be approved beforehand by the CEO. An itemized
report defining sample locations and results must be submitted to the CEO no
later than 30 days following the collection of such samples.

5. If in any seven days out of a 12-day rolling window, the flows are below 120%
of the proposed minimum base flows, the alert level is triggered. While on alert
status, the reporting frequency will increase to weekly reporting of flow
monitoring and inchude a weekly description of operational modifications to
ensure that the minimum base flows are not reached, Operational modification
will entail reduction in pumping. The reduction in pumping will vary between
a complete stop of pumping to no reduction in pumping, If the alert level is
triggered, the applicant must notify the CEO before the end of the following
workday (weekends and holidays excluded). The applicant must implement,
within 24 hours, any operational changes (potentially including cessation or
reduction in pumping rate and/or supplementing existing flows) required by
the CEQ following review of the weekly reports. The CEO will determine
whether and when the previously approved reporting schedule may be
resumed.

F. Enforeement. In addition to Section VII-11, the following enforcement provisions
apply to large-scale water extraction operations:

1. The applicant assumes any and all liability for the loss, interruption,
degradation or interference with the pre-existing beneficial domestic use of
groundwater by a property owner or lawful land occupant, or other public or
private water supply, caused by applicant’s withdrawal or extraction of water.

2, Liability for harmful groundwater withdrawal is governed by 38 M.R.S.A.
§ 404.
3. The applicant’s liability is for compensatory damages only, and is limited to

the following:

(a) All costs necessary to restore the property owner or lawful land
occupant to a status which is reasonably equivalent in terms of
quantity and quality of groundwater, made available on a similarly
accessible and economiic basis;

(b) Compensatory damages for loss or damage to the property, including
the loss of habitability of residence, caused to the property owner or
lawful land occupant by reason of the interference prior to restoration
of the status provided for in subsection a; and

{c) Reasonable costs, including expert witness and attorney fees incurred
in initiating and prosecuting an action when necessary to secure a
judgment granting the relief provided for under this Section V-7.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—38 M.R.S.A. § 404 (GROUND WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM).

93




Section V-8.
A.

B.

Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Mineral Extraction

Applicability. The additional site plan review procedures and standards in this Section V-8
apply to surface and subsurface mineral extraction operations.

Review Procedures. In addition to the requirements of Section V-4, the applicant must
give notice of the filing of an application for surface or subsurface mineral extraction in
accordance with Section I-9, except that the applicant must notify the owners of property
located within 1,000 feet of the proposed extraction site and such notice must additionally
include an explanation of the intent, scope, and location of the proposed extraction in terms
readily understandable to a layperson.

Application Submission Requirements, In addition to the requirements in Section V-3,
an application for surface or subsurface mineral extraction must include the following:

I. A map of the proposed extraction site prepared at a scale of not less than one inch
to 40 feet and not more than one inch to 100 feet containing:

(a) Notwithstanding Section V-5.B.1.{e), contour lines showing elevations in
relation to mean sea level at appropriate intervals to show the effect on the
land of existing and proposed grades for areas proposed to be excavated
or filled. Contour intervals must be a maximuam of five feet.

(b) Notwithstanding Section V-5.B.1.(f), municipal tax map and lot numbers
and the names of all the property owners within 1,000 feet of the property
Iines of the proposed development.

(c) The location of existing and proposed mineral extraction activities and
structures on the property.

(d) The approximate location of residential structures on properties within
1,000 feet of the proposed activity.

(e) The location and identification of any existing public and private roads
and rights-of-way associated with the property.

{H) The location of any proposed access roads to the mineral extraction
activity from public roads.

{2 The location of all vegetated buffers, open space, conservation areas, and
protected natural resources.

() The location of known existing wells within 1,000 feet of the proposed
activity, if five acres or more, or within 500 feet of the proposed activity
if less than five acres; and all wells on the property.

i) The location of proposed hazardous material storage areas, including fuel
storage and handling, and washdown areas, per DEP specifications.

2. The name of the proposed manager of operations,
3. An estimate of the average daily traffic and a traffic impact narrative during

periods of operation projected to be generated by the activity.

4. A narrative description of the surface and groundwater impacts, including
protection plans and the identification of any significant mapped aquifers.

94



i1
12,

3.

14,

A reclamation plan in conformance with the requirements of subsection D.4,
below, and showing the final grades, including a revegetation plan, and any
phasing of the plan.

A narrative description of the project’s impact on the wildlife habitat, and the
location of any deer yards or other significant wildlife habitat designated by
MDIFW, including any proposed mitigation measures.

A narrative description of the present use of the parcel and property within 500
feet of the activity.

The estimated longevity of the operation, including phasing.
The proposed hours and days of operation.

If any petroleum products or other materials with potential to contaminate
groundwater will be stored on site, a spill prevention, control and containment
(SPCC) plan in accordance with subsection D.5 and DEP regulations.

A blasting plan, if any proposed blasting activity is to occur.

Copies of all submissions made to any federal or state agencies concerning the
property.

For rock mining/extraction operations, a surveyed report of the quarry material on
site to be excavated, calculated and certified by an engineer,

A valid DEP permit for the mineral extraction activity or a complete pending DEP
application, if available at the time of filing the site plan application.

Addifional Review Criteria. In addition to the general review criteria in Section V-6,
asurface or subsurface mineral extraction operation must comply with the following
review criteria:

1.

Generally.

(a) Mineral extraction activities nwst comply with all applicable federal and
state flaws and local ordinances, rules, and regulations.

(b The owner and operator of a mineral extraction operation must be
responsible, both jointly and severally, for ensuring the maintenance of ail
infrastructure, structures, and their sites.

(c) Mineral extraction activities in the shoreland zone nwist comply with the
provisions of Section IV-4.M.

(@) Sediment must not leave the parcel or enter a protected natural resource,

Internally Drained Projects. If the project is internally drained:

(a) Land must be restored and stabilized according to a reclamation plan in
compliance with subsection 4, below, as approved by the Planning Board.

(b) A volume calculation must be provided demonstrating that the area will
safely hold a volume of precipitation at least equal to that which may be
expected in the area from the 10-year, 24-hour storm event for the region.

95




Externally Drained Projects, If the project is externally drained:

(a)

(b)

If surface water flows out of and away from the proposed site during and
after the site is excavated, the site plan must ensure proper erosian control
and prevent siltation of downstream waters, Temporary erosion control
measures, such as hay bale barriers, silt fencing, and riprap, must be
included in the project design. Plans must show the location and
installation details and include a description of the timing of installation,
inspection and maintenance of erosion control measures.

The site plan must show pre-construction and post-construction contours,
and if applicable, phased contours. The plan must aiso show the watershed,
on- and off-site watershed boundaries, and hydrologic surface water flow
lines.

Reclamation Plan. The affected land must be restored to a condition or physical

state that is either similar to and compatible with that which existed prior to any
development, or encowages the productive use of the land, The reclamation plan
must comply with the following specifications:

(a)

(®)

(©)

(@

Soil Stockpiling. Soil that is stripped or removed must be stockpiled for
use in reclaiming disturbed land, unless it is demonstrated to the Planning
Board that it is not needed for reclamation purposes. Soil stockpiles must
be seeded, mulched, or otherwise stabilized. At least four inches of any
previously stripped topsoil must be used for final cover.

Regrading. A slope no greater than the natuaral angle of deposition for the
type of material being deposited must be used.

Vegetative Cover. Vegetative cover must be established on all affected
land. Topsoil musi be placed, seeded, and mulched within 30 days of final
grading. Vegetative material used in reclamation must consist of grasses,
legumes, herbaceous plants, or woody plants. Plant material must be
planted during the first growing season following the reclamation phase.
Selection and use of vegetative cover must take into account soil and site
characteristics, including drainage, pH, nutrient availability, and climate.

Within one growing season of seeding, the planting of trees and shrubs
must result in a permanent stand, or regeneration and succession rate,
sufficient to ensure a 50% survival rate and the planting results in 90%
ground coverage.

Petroleum Usage.

(@)

®)

(c)

If any petroleum products or other materials with potential to contaminate
groundwater are proposed to be stored on the site, a spill prevention,
control and containment (SPCC) plan must be prepared in accordance with
DEP reguiations and this subsection D. 5.

Crankcase oil, hydraulic fluids, or similar products must not be disposed
of within the excavation area or otherwise violate DEP regulations.

Any discharge or leak of petroleum product over a gallon must be
immediately reported to the CEQ. All discharges or leaks of any size must
be cleaned up promptly in accordance with DEP regulations.

96



Vegetated Buffers.

(a)

(b)

(c)

To minimize visual impacts and provide for wildlife, a 75-foot undisturbed
natural vegetated buffer must be maintained from property boundaries.
This buffer may be reduced to no less than 25 feet with written permission
of an abutting property owner, or may be eliminated between abutting
properties as long as written permission is obtained and erosion and
stormwater control standards on both properties are met. Any written
permission to reduce or eliminate the vegetated buffer must be in the form
of a legal instrument approved and signed by the abutters, must provide
that such permission remains in effect until mining operations cease, and
must be recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds.

A 30- foot undisturbed natural vegetated buffer must be maintained from
the closest edge of an existing residence, business structure, or farm
building used for livestock. This buffer may be reduced with written
permission of the owner of the existing residence, business structure or
farm building. Any written permission to reduce the vegetated buffer must
be in the forin of a legal instrument approved and signed by the owner of
the existing residence, business structure, or farm building; must provide
that such permission remains in effect until mining operations cease; and
must be recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds.

A 100-foot undisturbed natural vegetated buffer from the closest edge of
the shoulder of a public road must be maintained,

Road Design, Circulation, and Traffic Impacts.

()

(b)

The intersection of any road within the development area and an existing
public road must comply with the following standards:

. The angle of an intersection must be 60 to 90 degrees.

il, The maximum permissible grade within 75 feet of the intersection
is 5%.

ii. A minimum sight distance of 10 feet for every mile per hour of

posted speed limit on the existing road must be provided. Sight
distances must be measured from the driver’s seat of a vehicle that
is 10 feet behind the curb or edge of the shoulder line with the
height of the eye 3% feet above the pavement and the height of
object 4V feet.

iv. The center line of any road within the project intersecting an
existing public road must be no less than 125 feet from the center
line of any other road intersecting that public road.

Turning lanes, traffic directional islands, frontage roads, and traffic
controls must be provided on Town roads at the applicant’s expense where
necessary, in the judgment of the Planning Board, to safeguard against
hazards to traffic or pedestrians or avoid traffic congestion,

97




(c)

(d)

(e)

(H

All access or egress roads leading to or from the extraction site to paved
public roads must be treated with suitable materials to reduce dust and mud
and paved or maintained hard surface for a distance of at least 200 feet
from the paved public road.

Where mineral extraction activity traffic proposes to use Town maintained
roads, the activity scope must be suitable and appropriate to the projected
daily traffic impacts.

The road giving access to the mineral extraction activity and neighboring
roads which can be expected to carry traffic to and from the mineral
extraction activity site must have traffic carrying capacity. If this is a Town
road, the Plaiming Board may determine that it be suitably improved to
handle the carrying capacity from the project. Necessary studies and road
improvements are at the applicant’s expense.

Routing. Where necessary to safeguard against hazards to pedestrians, to
avoid traffic congestion, or to avoid adverse impacts to Town roads,
alternative routing may be required by the Planning Board.

Groundwater Impacts.

(a)

(»

The proposed mineral extraction activity must not cause an adverse impact
to groundwater quality and guantity.

To provide an adequate buffer for groundwater and allow for filtration of
impurities from surface water, mineral extraction must not be any closer
than two feet above the maximum seasonal high-water level unless an
application has been submitted to and approved by DEP for excavation
below tiie seasonal high groundwater table and all other applicable review
criteria of this Code are met. The applicant must provide documentation
of the groundwater table. The Planning Board may require monitoring of
groundwater levels and quality to ensure there are no adverse impacts to
any water supplies or wells within 500 feet of the perimeter of the work
site.

Water Supply Setback.

(a)

(b)

A 300-foot separation must be maintained between the limit of excavation
and any pre-development private drinking water supply. Separation may
be reduced to no less than 100 feet with written permission of the property
owner. Any written permission to reduce the 300-foot separation must be
in the form of a legal instrument approved and signed by the owner, must
provide that such permission remains in effect until mining operations
cease, and must be recorded in the Camberland County Registry of Deeds.

A 1,000-foot separation must be maintained between the Hmit of
excavation and any well or spring which qualifies as a public drinking
water supply. The Planning Board may require larger sethacks from water
supplies if a hazard is shown to exist due to the mineral extraction activity.

98



16,

M.

12.

14.

Water Use. A mineral extraction activity nwst not withdraw more than 5,000
gallons of groundwater per day, unless a hydrogeologic study which supports
withdrawal of more than 5,000 gallons per day is submitted by a qualified
professional.

Standards for Acceptable Groundwater Quality Impacts.

(a)

(b)

()

Projections of groundwater quality must be based on the assumption of
drought conditions (assuming 60% of annual average precipitation) based
on a 10-year average.

No mineral extraction activity may increase any coutaminant
concentration in the groundwater to more than % of the National Primary
Drinking Water Regulations (NPDWRS), codified at 40 C.F.R. parts 141
and 142, No mineral extraction activity may increase any contaminant
concentration in the groundwater to more than the National Secondary
Drinking Water Regulations (NSDWRs), codified at 40 CFR Part 143.

If groundwater contains contaminants in excess of any NPDWR, and the
mineral extraction activity is to be served by on-site groundwater supplies,
the applicant must demonstrate how water quality will be improved or
treated to comply with the requirements of subsection {b), above.

Solid Waste Disposal. No solid waste, including stumps and grubbings, may be

placed, stored, or disposed of in the mineral extraction activity site unless it
complies with DEP requirements.

Hours of Operation.

(a)

(b)

The hours of operation must not be earlier than 7:00 a.m. and no later than
7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, no earlier than 7:00 a.m. and no later
than 2:00 p.m. Saturday, and are prohibited from operating on Sunday.
These hours of operation limits may be adjusted by the Planning Board
upon written request by the applicant and consideration of potential
disruptions to surrounding properties and uses. Excluded from the hours
of operation limits are hours related to general office duties, general
maintenance and repair of equipment, and any unforeseen emergency.

The hours of operation for rock crushing and blasting activity associated
with gravel pits must not be earlier than 7:00 a.m. and no later than
5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no later
than 12:00 p.m. Saturday, and are prohibited from operating on Sunday.
Rock crushing and blasting activity associated with gravel pits must be
limited to three periods consisting of six consecutive days within a single
three-year period. The Planning Board may adjust these hours of operation
limits and rock crushing and blasting activity limits upon written request
by the applicant and a showing of just cause for the adjustment. Any time
not used during a three-year period cannot be carried over to the next three
year period.

Rock Mining/Extracting Limit. The maximum limit of material that may be

extracted from a rock mining/extracting operation per year is 100,000 cubic yards.

99



Section V-9,
A.

Post-Approval Requirements.

1.

Annual Inspection Report. An annual inspection report identifying the quantity of
materials extracted each year must be prepared by an engineer at the applicant’s
expense. The annual inspection report must be submitted to the CEQ.

{(a) Reclamation,; Performance Guarantee. As determined by the annual
inspection report, once the surface area of the extraction operation exceeds
five acres, the property owner/applicant must comply with the
performance guarantee requirements of Section VII-10.

Recording Final Plan. No mineral extraction activity site plan may be recorded in
the Cumberfand County Registry of Deeds until a final plan has been approved and
signed by the Planning Board in accordance with this Code.

Prohibition on Unapproved Sale of Materials. No person may sell or offer to seli
any materials in a mineral extraction activity site if the sale or offer to sell has not
been approved by the Planning Board.

Additional Procedures and Review Criteria for Marijuana Establishments

Applicability; Local Limitation on Number of Medical Marijuana Registered

Dispensaries
L. Applicability. This Section V-9 applies any marijuana establishment located or

proposed to be located wholly or partially within the geographic boundaries of the
Town. Any application for a marijuana establishment, including any proposed
amendments to a previousty authorized medical matrijuana registered dispensary,
requires review and approval by the Planning Board.

Local Limitation on Number of Medical Marijuana Registered Dispensaries.
The number of medical marijuana registered dispensaries within the geographic
boundaries of the Town is limited to two. For purposes of this limitation, each
parcel of land, including any structures thereon, that is being used for the
acquisition, possession, cultivation, manufacture, delivery, transfer, transport, sale,
supply, or dispensing of medical marijuana or related supplies and educational
materials is counted as one medical marijuana registered dispensary. Planning
Board approval of an application for a medical marijuana registered dispensary is
prima facie evidence of the existence of a medical marijuana registered dispensary.

Application Submission Requirements. In addition to the requirements in Section V-5,
an application for a marijuana establishment must include the following:

1.

Documentation of any required state approvals connected with the marijuana
establishment, including the licensing or registration of entities engaged in such
aperation.

Proposed hours of operation for the marijuana establishment.

Property and building security plans must be submitfed to the Bridgton Police
Department at the time of filing a site plan application, If the site plan application
is approved, the applicant must aiso submit amendments, if any, to such security
plans to the Bridgton Police Department at the time such amendments are made.

100




Written statements, maps, and other documentation addressing cach of the
additional review criteria set forth in subsection C, below., At minimum, such
documentation must include:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(g)

(b)

Setbacks from Sensitive Uses. A drawn-to-scale map of all lots within
1,000 feet of the lot lines of the site on which the marijuana establishment
is proposed to be located. The map must identify the location of any of the
sensitive uses and setback areas identified in subsections C.1, C.2, and C.3,
below.

Statements that the marijuana establishment will be operated from a
permanent, indoor location; will not have drive-through pick-up facilities;
and will not display marijuana, marijuana products, or marijuana
paraphernalia so as to be visible from outside of the premises.

Documentation evidencing compliance with the security and police
services impacts criteria in subsection C.6.

A detailed odor and emissions control plan describing and documenting
the equipment, practices, and technologies proposed to be used to controi
odors and emissions in accordance with subsection C.8.

An operations plan for proper disposal of marijuana, marijuana products,
and related by-products.

For any proposed marijuana cultivation area, the proposed plant canopy
size, the location of the marijuana cultivation area in relation to property
lines and setbacks, and a proposed plan for visually buffering the
marijuana cultivation area from view from all property lines.

Illustrations and graphics of all proposed signage and advertising
associated with the marijuana establishment.

Evidence of compliance with state and local labeling and packaging laws
and rules for marijuana and marijuana products.

For inarijuana establishments proposing to provide any goods containing
marijuana for human consumption, plans for the storage of goods in a
secure area and documentation evidencing that the goods will not be
prepared, produced, or assembled so as to appeal to persons under 21 years
of age.

C. Additional Review Criteria. In addition to the general review criteria in Section V-6,
a marijunana establishment must comply with the following review criteria:

1.

Setbacks from Sensitive Uses. No marijuana establishment may be located within

1,000 feet of the lot lines of any sensitive use.

@

(b)

The distances this subsection C.1 must be measured between the lot lines
of the proposed site for the marijuana establisiunent and the lot lines of the
site of the sensitive uses at their closest points.

A marijuana establishment may continue to operate in its present location
as a pre-existing use if a sensitive use later locates within the 1,000-foot
sethack area, but the marijuana establishment does so at its own risk and

101




Town-issued permits or approvals provide no protection or
indemnification against enforcement of federal or other applicable laws
that may prohibit operation of a marijuana establishments proximate to
such sensitive use.

Setbacks from Residential Uses. The primary entrance of any marijuana
establishment must be sited no closer than 100 feet, as measured along the normal
course of travel, from the primary entrance of an abutting residential property.

Setbacks from Other Marijuana Establishments. A property containing a structure
housing one or more marijuana establishments may not be located within 300 feet
of another property housing one or more marijuana establishments. This setback
area must be measured from the lot lines of the properties at their closest points.
This setback does not apply as between those medical marijuana registered
caregivers that are operating in the same medical marijuana multiple registered
caregiver facility.

A marijuana establishment must be operated from a permanent, indoor location,;
must remain in its approved location; and may not operate as a mobile
establishment or operation. The prohibition on operating as a mobile establishment
or operation does not apply to the delivery of marijuana or marijuana products by
a medical marijuana large-scale caregiver operation to qualitying patients.

No_Drive-Throughs, Marijuana establishments are prohibited from having
drive-through pick-up facilities.

Security, Impact on Local Police Services. The owner or operator of a marijuana
establishment must:

(a) Install security surveillance cameras, recording and operating 24 hours a
day, seven days a week, to monitor all entrances and the exterior of the
premises to discourage and facilitate the reporting of criminal acts and
nuisance activities occurring at the premises. All video surveillance
recordings must be retained for a minimum of 15 calendar days. Upon
request, the security recordings must be made available to the Bridgton
Police Department.

(b) Provide the Bridgton Police Department with the name and functioning
telephone number of a 24-hour on-call staff person to whom notice of any
operating problems associated with the marijuana establishment may be
given, and must keep the name and contact information updated.

() Maintain and provide, upon request, all property and building security
plans to the Bridgton Police Department.

(d) Install door and window intrusion robbery and burglary alarm systems
with audible and notification components that are professionally
monitored and maintained in good working condition.

(e) Maintain a locking safe or its functional equivalent permanently affixed to
the premises that is suitable for storage of all marijuana, including
marijuana products, and cash stored overnight on the premises.
A “functional equivalent” may include the provision of secure and

102



restricted access to indoor spaces housing plant canopy, immature
marijuana plants, or scedlings.

Display. No marijuana, marijuana products, or marijuana paraphernalia may be
displayed or kept so as to be visible from outside of the premises of the marijuana
establishment,

Conirot of Odors, Emissions, and Trash.

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The odor of marijuana must not be perceptible beyond the property
boundary lines of any marijuana establishiment.

Adequate provision must be made to prevent smoke, debris, dust, fluids,
and other noxious gases, fumes, and substances from exiting a marijuana
establishment at all times. All such substances must be controlled and
disposed of in a safe, sanitary, and secure manner.

A marijuana establishment must have in place an operations plan for the
disposal of marijuana, marijuana products, and related by-products in a
safe, sanitary, and secure manner and in accordance with all applicable
taws and regulations.

Dumpsters and frash containers must not be oveiflowing, and the
surrounding area must be kept free of litter and trash. All dumpsters and
containers must be screened from public view. All trash receptacles on the
premises of a marijuana establishment that are used to discard marijuana
and marijuana products must have a metal cover or lid that is locked at all
times.

Marijuana Cultivation Areas.

(@

(b)

()

(d)

Outdoor cultivation of marijuana associated with any marijuana
establishment is prohibited.

For any marijuana cultivation areas associated with a medical marijuana
multiple registered caregiver facility, the aggregate plant canopy of all
marijuana cultivation areas within the facility may not exceed 7,000 square
feet.

For any adult use marijuana cultivation facility, the plant canopy may not
exceed 20,000 square feet, except that any adult use marijuana cultivation
facility may request an expansion of the plant canopy to up to 30,000
square feet. These plant canopy limitations apply to each adult use
marijuana cultivation facility that is co-located with any other adult use
marijuana cultivation facility.

Notwithstanding subsection C.1.9.(c), above, no more than two Tier 4
adult use marijuana cuitivation facilities are allowed to operate within the
Town. For purposes of this subsection C.1.9.(d), a “Tier 4 adult use
marijuana cultivation facility” is an adult use marijuana cultivation facility
that has been granted a Tier 4 culiivation facility license by the state
licensing authority to allow cultivation by a licensee of not more than
20,000 square feet of plant canopy, putrsuant to 28 M.RS.A. § 301(4).

103




10.

11.

12,

(e) All marijuana cultivation areas must be visually buffered from view from
all property lines.

Signage and Advertising, All signage and advertising associated with a marijunana
establishment must comply with the Town of Bridgton Sign Ordinance and the
following additional standards:

{a) Use of advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that
is designed to appeal to a person under 21 years of age is prohibited.

(b) Exterior signs may not advertise marijuana strains by name.

Labeling, Packaging, and Food Products.

(a) All medical marijuana (including any medical marijuana products) sold,
prepared, produced, or assembled by a marijuana establishment must be
packaged and labeled as required by the laws of the state licensing
authority, including 22 M.R.S.A. § 2429-A.

(b) All adult use marijuana (including any adult use marijuana products) sold,
prepared, produced, or assembled by a marijuana establishment must be
packaged and labeled as required by the laws of the state licensing
authority, including 28-B M.R.S.A. § 701.

() No food products may be sold, prepared, produced, or assembled by a
marijuana establishment except in compliance with all operating and other
requirements of state and local laws and regulations, including food
establishment licensing requirements.

(d) Any goods containing marijuana for human consumption must be stored
in a secure area,

(e) Any goods containing marijuana for human consumption must not be
prepared, produced, or assembled so as to make the goods specifically
appeal to persons under 21 years of age.

Inspections.

(a) The CEQ, Police Chief, Fire Chief, and Health Officer must inspect every
marijuana establishment prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy by
the CEQ to verify that the marijuana establishment is constructed and can
be operated in accordance with the application submitted, the site plan
approval, and the requirements of this Code, local and state building codes,
electrical codes, fire codes, and any other applicable life safety codes.
No marijuana or marijuana products associated with a marijuana
establishment will be allowed on the premises until the inspection is
complete and a Certificate of Occupancy has issued.

(b) The CEO, Police Chief, Fire Chief, or Health Officer may additionally
inspect a marijuana establishment as part of their ordinary duties and
responsibilities.

104



D, Additional Requirements for Marijuana Manufacturing Facilities

1.

Additional Submission Requirements for Marijuana Manufacturing Facilities.

In addition to the requirements in Section V-5 and subsection B, the applicant of a
proposed marijuana manufacturing facility must provide:

(a)

®)

(c)

(d)

Certification from an engineer of the safety of the equipment used for
marijuana extraction and the location of the equipment and the engineer’s
approval of the standard operating procedures for the marijuana extraction;

Documentation from an engineer or a state or local official authorized to
certify compliance that the equipment used for marijuana extraction and
the location of the equipment comply with state law and all applicable
local and state building codes, electrical codes, and fire codes, including
the chapters of the most recent NFPA Fire Code relating to marijuana
extraction facilities;

Documentation from the manufaclurer of the marijuana extraction system
or an engineer showing that a professional grade, closed-loop extraction
system that is capable of recovering the solvents used to produce
marijuana concentrate is used by the person; and

Evidence that the person provided notice to the state reviewing authority
prior to August 1, 2019 of the person’s intent to engage in marijuana
extraction using inherently hazardous substances and the location where
the marijuana extraction will occur prior to engaging in marijuana
extraction using inherently hazardous substances, in accordance with
22 M.R.S.A. § 2423-F(3), or has received the necessary state HIS
registration to engage in this activity.

Additional Review Criteria for Marijuana Manufacturing Facilities. In addition to

the requirements in Section V-6 and subsection C, a marijuana manufacturing
facility must:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

0

Acquire and maintain in good working order marijuana extraction
equipment which is certified by an engineer to be safe for marijuana
extraction;

Utilize a professional grade, closed-loop extraction system that is capable
of recovering the solvents used to produce marijuana concentrate is used
by the person;

Locate all marijuana extraction equipment in a location which is certified
by an engineer to be safe for marijuana extraction;

Prepare and maintain standard operating procedures for the marijuana
extraction operation that are approved by an engineer;

Include ventilation systems that mitigate noxious gases or other fumes
used or created as part of the manufacturing or extraction operation; and

Comply with all applicable local and state building codes, electrical codes,
and fire cades concerning the marijuana extraction equipment used and its
location, including the chapters of the most recent NFPA TFire Code
relating to marijuana extraction facilities.

105



%
z
|

E.

Section V-10,
A,

Section V-11.
A.

Additional Requirements for Marijuana Testing Facilities

1. Additional Submission Requirements for Marijuana Testing Facilitics. In addition
to the requirements in Section V-5 and subsection B, a marijuana testing facility
must provide its ISO/IEC accreditation and state license or registration.

2. Additional Review Criteria for Marijuana Testing Facilities. In addition to the
requirements in Section V-6 and subsection C, a marijuana testing facility must:

(a) Obtain and be able to produce upon demand by the CEO its ISO/IEC
accreditation and proof of state licensing.

(b) Include ventilation systems that mitigate noxions gases or other fumes
nsed or created as part of testing.

Post-Approval Requirements

Incorporation of Approved Plan. One copy of the approved site plan must be included
with the application for a building permit for the project, and all construction activities
must comply with the approved plan and any conditions of approval and incidental changes
made pursuant to Section V-11.B,

Performance Guarantee. The Planning Board may require the filing of a performance
guarantee in accordance with Section VIII-10.

As-Built Drawings. Any project involving the construction of more than 20,000 square
feet of total floor area or 50,000 square feet of imperviouns surface must submit to the CEOQ
within 30 days of the issuance of a certificate of occupancy a set of construction plans
showing the buildings, structures, and site improvements as actually constructed on the site.

Amendments to Approved Site Plans

Prior to making any change or revision to a site plan that has been approved by the Planning
Board, the applicant must submit a site plan amendment application to the Planning Board,
except as provided in subsection B, below. The amendment application is subject to the
same review procedures, application submission requirements, review standards, and other
provisions of this Code as apply to a site plan application.

The following incidental changes or revisions to approved site plans may be approved by
the CEQ, if in the judgment of the CEO such changes or revisions will not alter any of the
Planning Board’s determinations with respect to any applicable review criteria or alter the
essential nature of the approved site plan:

i. Stripping, grading, grubbing, filling, or excavation of less than 1,000 square feet
of land.
2. Paving existing or approved parking areas.

Immaterial corrections to locations of property boundary lines, setback lines,
rights-of-way, easements, existing natural features, and existing or proposed
structures,

4. Typographical, clerical, or scrivener’s errors.

Any such changes or revisions must be endorsed in writing on the approved plan by the
CEO.

106




CHAPTER VL. SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

The subdivision regulations adopted, and amended from time to time, by the Planning Board pursuant to
30-A M.R.S.A. § 4403(2) are attached hereto and codified as Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations).
The Planning Board may, under the authority of and in accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4403(2), adopt,
amend, or repeal additional reasonable regulations governing subdivisions, which control and which are
automatically incorporated into this Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations). Any such codification shall not
be deemed an act of the legislative body of the Town to amend, repeal, or replace such regulations.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 4403(2) (SuBDIVISIONS; MUNICIPAL REVHW AND REGUEATION);
30-A M.R.S.A. § 3004 {ORDINANCES; REVISION, CODIFICATION AND PUBLICATION).

107



CHAPTER VIL BUILDING REGULATIONS

Section VII-1. Applicability; Building Permit Required

Prior to starting any construction, placement, replacement, remodeling, relocating, or razing, plumbing
(such as internal, external, or subsurface wastewater disposal) of any principal building, structure, accessory
structure, mobile accessory structure, or parts of a building or structure, the property owner must obtain a
building permit from the CEO authorizing the proposal.

Section VII-2. Review Standards

Before issuing a building permit, the CEO nwst find that:

A.

B.

The proposal is an allowed use, or is a structure associated with an atlowed use, in the
applicable land use district.

The proposal, if located in the shoreland zone, is an allowed use, or is a structure associated
with an allowed use, in the applicable shoreland zoning district, and complies with all
applicable requirements of Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning).

The proposal, if it concerns a nonconforming use, structure, or lot, complies with all
applicable requirements of Chapter Il (Nonconforming Uses, Structures, and Lots).

The proposal complies with afl applicable dimensional standards in Section III-3,
district-specific space and bulk standards in Section 111-4.

Site plan approval was granted for any activities that require site plan review.
The lot on which the proposed structure or use is to be located is a legally existing lot.

The proposal complies with state minimum lot size law and the state wastewater disposal
rules, as applicable.

The proposal complies with the Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code.

If mobile accessory structures are proposed, the proposal complies with the following
additional standards:

1. Any and all mobile accessory structures, including box trailers, mobile homes,
recreational vehicles, buses, or the like, used for the purpose of storage nwst be
located on the same lot and must be accessory to the principal strueture or use.

2. The mobile accessory structure must not remain on the site for more than 90 days
from the date of the permit authorizing it, at which time it must be removed.

This subsection I does not apply to trailers commonly used to fransport recreational
personal property (including snowmobiles, boats, AT Vs, and motorcycles), which are used
to store personal property that is in serviceable condition.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—I2 M.R.S.A. § 4807 rr seo. (MmimuMm Lot S1zE); 10-144 CM.R. CH. 241 (MAINE
SUBSURFACE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL RULES).

108




CHAPTER VIII. LEGAL

Section VII-1. Authority; Availability of Code

This Code is adopted pursuant to Article VIII, Part Second, of the Maine Constitution; 30-A MRS A.
§§ 2101-2109, 2691, 3001-3014, 4311-4331, 4351-4362, and 4401-4408; 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 435-449;
22 M.R.S.A. § 2429-I); 28-B M.R.S.A. § 401, and any other enabling statutes.

A certified copy of this Code must be on file with the Town Clerk and be accessible to the public, Copies
must be made available to the public, at reasonable cost, at the expense of the person making the request.
Notice that this Code is available must be posted.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 3005 (ORDINANCES AVAILABLE),

Section VHI-2. Contents; Certain Ordinances Not Affected by Code

This Code codifies, reorganizes, and combines the following previously separate Town ordinances in order
to simplify and clarify their provisions, and to reduce or eliminate conflicting, inconsistent, or redundant
provisions among them. The ordinances that are combined into this Code are;

A, Town of Bridgton Building, Razing and Plumbing Perntit Ordinance
B. Town of Bridgton Land Use Ordinance

C. Town of Bridgton Shoreland Zoning Ordinance

D, Town of Bridgton Site Plan Review Ordinance

Additionally, the Town of Bridgton Subdivision Regnlations adopted, and amended from time to time, by
the Planning Board pursuant to 30-A MLR.S.A. § 4403(2) are codified herein as Chapter VI (Subdivision
Regulations).

Nothing in this Code affects any other ordinances, regulations, or rules of the Town that are not inconsistent
with this Code and all such other ordinances, regulations, and rules are recognized as contimuing in full
force and effect. Such other ordinances, regulations, and rules are on file in the Town Clerk’s office.

Section VIII-3. How This Code Is Designated and Cited

The ordinances and regulations contained in the chapters and sections herein constitute the “Town of
Bridgton Land Use Code” and may be so cited. This Code may also be cited as the “Bridgton Land Use
Code.”

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 3004 (CODIFICATION AUTHORITY).

Section VIII-4, Effective Date

A, General. The effective date of this Code is immediately upon its adaption by a majority
vote of the legislative body of the Town in accordance with the Town of Bridgfon
Ordinance Requiring a Referendum 1o Enact or Repeal a Town Ordinance except as
follows:

1. Shoreland Zoning. The shoreland zoning provisions of this Code, composed of the
provisions listed in subsection A.l1.(a), below, and the Official Shoreland Zoning
Maps do not become effective unless approved by the DEP Commissioner.
A certified copy of this Code, attested and signed by the Town Clerk, must be

109



2.

submitted by the Town to the Commissioner following adoption by the legislative
body of the Town for approval. If the Commissioner fails to act on any amendment
to the shoreland zoning provisions of this Code within 45 days of the
Commissioner’s receipt of the amendment, the amendment is automatically
approved. Any application for a permit or approval submitted to the Town within
such 45.day period is governed by this Code as if Commissioner approval of the
amendment has been granted. If amendments are made to the shoreland zoning
district boundaries or any other matter portrayed on the Official Shoreland Zoning
Maps, such changes must be made on the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps within
30 days after the amendment has been approved by the Commissioner.

{a) For purposes of subsection A.1, above, the following provisions constitute
the shoreland zoning provisions of this Code:

i, All provisions within Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning).

ii. Any provisions within Chapter I (Nonconforming Uses,
Structures, and Lots) that concern uses, structures, and lots located
in the shoretand zone.

iii. Any provisions in Section I-13 (What is the Process for Secking a
Variance?) that affect uses, structures, and lots located in the
shoreland zone.

iv. Any provisions in Section 1II-3.C (Dimensionat Standards) that
concern uses, structures, and lots located in the shoreland zone.

v. Any provisions in Section IX-3 {Definitions) that concern uses,
structures, and lots located in the shoreland zone.

Vi. The Official Shoreland Zoning Maps,

Subdivision Regulations. Refer to Section VI-13.A.

B. Effective Dates, Historical Notes.

L.

Town of Bridgton Building, Razing and Plumbing Permit Ordinance. Enacted
June 9, 1993, Amended June 14, 2005; June 12, 2007; and June 1, 2019. Codified,
reorganized, and combined into this Code on November 2, 2021,

Town of Bridgton Land Use Ordinance. Enacted June 11, 2019. Amended
November 5, 2019; and July 14, 2020. Codified, reorganized, and combined into
this Code on November 2, 2021,

Town of Bridgton Shoreland Zoning Ordinance. Enacted June 12, 1996. Amended
June 11, 1997; June 10, 1998; March 23, 1999; June 12, 2002; June 10, 2003;
June 12, 2007; June 9, 2009; June 14, 2011; December 13, 2011; June 10, 2014;
June 9, 2015; and June 14, 2016, Codified, reorganized, and combined into this
Code on November 2, 2021.

Town of Brideton Site Plan Review Qrdinance. Enacted June 10, 1998, Amended
June 14, 2000; June 14, 2005; June 12, 2007; June 10, 2008; June 14, 2011;
December 13, 2011; June 12, 2012; June 10, 2014; June 9, 2015; June 14, 2016;
June 11, 2019; and July 14, 2020. Codified, reorganized, and combined into this
Code on November 2, 202].

110



5. Town of Bridgton Subdivision Regulations. Refer to Section VI-13.B.

6. This Code. Enacted November 2, 2021. Amended June 14, 2022.

Section VIII-5. Date of Applicability

Notwithstanding 1 M.R.S.A. § 302, this Code applies to an action or proceeding, including a petition or
application for permits or licenses required by law at the time of their filing, when the reviewing authority
has deemed the petition or application complete for review.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—1 M.R.S.A. § 302 (CONSTRUCTION AND EFFECT OF REPEALING AND AMENDING ACTS).

Section VIII-6. Conflicts with Other Ordinances or Code Provisions

Whenever a section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Code conflicts with or is inconsistent
with another section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Code or another ordinance, regulation,
or rule administered by the Town, the more restrictive section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase
controls.

Section VIII-7. Amendments

Except for the provisions in Chapter VI (Subdivision Regulations), which may be amended by a vote of the
Planning Board under the authority of and in accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4403(2), the remaining
chapters of this Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, and the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps may
be amended as follows. For purposes of this Section VIII-7, use of the term “Code” excludes Chapter VI
(Subdivision Regulations).

A. This Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, and the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps
may be amended by the legislative body of the Town in accordance with the Town of
Bridgton Ordinance Requiring a Referendum Vote to Enact, Amend or Repeal a Town
Ordinance.

B. Amendments to the text of this Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, or the Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps may be proposed by the Municipal Officers, by the Planning
Board, or upon the written petition of registered voters of the Town pursuant to
30-A M.R.S.A. § 2528. In addition, amendments to the Official Land Use District Maps
may be proposed by any landowner within the Town by making a written petition to the
Planning Board, which must contain, at minimum:

1, A map showing the properties to be affected by the proposed amendment and
properties located within 500 feet of such properties;

ii. A map showing the existing land uses at the time of application of the above-
identified properties;

iii, A narrative and other evidence demonstrating that the proposed amendments are
consistent with the Town of Bridgton Comprehensive Plan; and

iv. A narrative and other evidence demonstrating the need for the proposed
amendments.

BC. A public hearing on any proposed amendments to the Code, the Official Land Use District
Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps must be conducted by the Planning Board.

111



€D. Notice of the public hearing must be given pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4352 and, if

property is being considered for placement in the RP district, pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A.
§ 438-A(1-B).

DE.  Following the public hearing, the Planning Board must recommend to the Municipal
Officers whether or not an article to amend the Code, the Official Land Use District Maps,
or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps should be included in the warrant for a regular or
special Town meeting. In making its recommendation, the Planning Board may
recommend amendments to the text of the Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, or
Official Shoreland Zoning Maps that deviate from the original proposed amendments. The
Planning Board will endeavor to submit its recommendation to the Municipal Officers
within 30 days of the conclusion of the public hearing. Planning Board action under this
Section VIII-7 is not a decision subject to any rights of appeal.

EF. After receiving the recommendation from the Planning Board, the Municipal Officers, by
a majority vote, must determine whether to place an article to amend the Code, the Official
Land Use District Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps in the warrant for a regular
or special Town meeting and, if so, must conduct a public hearing on the subject of the
article in accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2528(5).

EG.  The public hearings required to be held by the Planning Board and the Municipal Officers
under this Section VIII-7 may be combined into a single consolidated hearing attended by
both boards as long as the notice requirements applicable to both the Planning Board and
Municipal Officers’ hearings are satisfied.

GH. Any amendments made to the district boundaries or any other matter portrayed on the
Official Land Use District Maps or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps must be
(a) immediately shown on the Official Land Use District Maps or (b) shown within 30 days
after an amendment to the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps_has been approved by the
Commissioner in accordance with Section VIII-4.A (Effective Date).;-and Tthe amended
Official Land Use District Maps or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps must be certified
by the attested signature of the Town Clerk and be filed with the Town Clerk.

HI The DEP Commissioner must be notified of any amendments made to the shoreland zoning
provisions of this Code in accordance with Section VIII-4.A (Effective Date).

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 2528(5) (SECRET BALLOT, REFERENDUM QUESTIONS); 30-A M.R.S.A.
§ 4352 (ZONING ORDINANCES, NOTICES; GENERAL REQUIREMENTS); 38 M.R.S.A. § 438-A(1-B) (SHORELAND ZONING;
NOTIFICATION TO LANDOWNERS).

Section VIII-8. Effect of Repeal or Amendment

Whenever a provision of this Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning
Maps is repealed or amended, such repeal or amendment must not be construed to revive such former
provision unless it is so expressly provided therein.

The repeal or amendment of a provision of this Code, the Official Land Use District Maps, or the Official
Shoreland Zoning Maps will not affect any enforcement action or penalty incurred before the repeal or
amendment took effect, nor any suit, prosecution, or proceeding to which this Code, the Official Land Use
District Maps, or the Official Shoreland Zoning Maps applied at the time of the repeal or amendment, for
an offense committed or cause of action arising under the repealed or amended provision.

112



Section VIII-9. Compliance and Enforcement; Penalties

A,
B.

Nuisance. Any violation of this Code is deemed to be a nuisance.

Enforcement Authority. The CEO is responsible for enforcing the provisions of this Code
and the terms and conditions of any permit or approval issued under this Code. The CEO
is appointed or reappointed annually and, if certified in accordance with 30-A MR.S.A. §
4451, has all of the powers and authorities described in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452,

Inspections; Investigation of Complaints. The CEO may conduct site inspections to
ensure compliance with all applicable laws and all terms and conditions attached to permits
and approvals under this Code. The CEO may also investigate all complaints of alleged
violations of this Code.

Right of Entry. The CEO has a right to enter any propetty or enter any building pursuant
to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452(1).

Notice of Violation. If, after investigation, the CEO finds that any provision of this Code
or any terms or condition of a permit or approval issued under this Code has been violated,
the CEO must give writfen notice of the violation, in person or by certified mail return
receipt requested, to the owner or oceupant of the premises and to any other person
responsible for the violation, indicating the nature of the violation and ordering any action
necessary to correct it (including discontinuance of illegal use of structures or lots;
discontinuance of work being done; removal or relocation of illegal structures; and
abatement of nuisance conditions) within some designated reasonable time., A copy of each
such notice of violation must be submitted to the Municipal Officers.

Suspension and Revocation of Permits and Approvals. A permit or approval may be
suspended or revoked by the CEQ if the CEO determines that:

1. The permit or approval was issued on materiaily incomplete or false information;

2. Continuation of the work authorized under the permit or approval would result in
a violation of federal or state law, this Code, or any other Town ordinances,
regulations, or rules;

3. Continuation of the work authorized under the permit or approval is endangering
or may endanger the public health, safety, or welfare;

4. The permit holder exceeded the scope of the work authorized under the permit or
approval;

5. A term or condition of the permit or approval issued under this Code has been

violated; or
6. The CEO is unable to determine the continued validity of a permit or approval.

The CEO must give written notice of suspension or revocation to the permit holder stating
the reason for the suspension or revocation and, in the case of suspension, the measures
that must be taken by a date certain to correct the violation.

A suspension remains in force until the CEO determines that (i} the permit holder can and
will pursue the work authorized under the permit or approval without continuing,
extending, or creating a violation; (ii) the violation has been abated or otherwise
discontinued; or {iii) a new permit or approval has been issued, When cause for a
suspension has been removed or cotrected, the CEO must so certify in writing. If, within

113



the time specified for correction, cause for the suspension has not been removed or
suspended, the CEO may continue the suspension or revoke the permit or approval.

No work authorized under a suspended or revoked permit or approval may continue except
work that is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, as authorized in
wriling by the CEO.

G. Legal Prosecution of Violations. If, after notice and demand, a violation has not been
abated within the time specified in the notice of violation, the CEO must refer the matter
to the Municipal Officers, who may institute in the name of the Town any and all actions
and proceedings, in law or in equity, including seeking injunctions of violations and the
imposition of fines, that the Municipal Officers determine are appropriate or necessary o
prevent, correct, restrain, or abate any violation of this Code.

H. Consent Agreements. The Municipal Officers are authorized to enter into administrative
consent agreements for the purpose of resolving violations of this Code and recovering
fines without legal prosecution.

1. With regard to violations of the provisions of Chapter IV (Shoreland Zoning), an
administrative consent agreement must not allow an illegal structure or use to
continue unless there is clear and convincing evidence that the illegal structure or
use was constructed or conducted as a direct result of erroneous advice given by
an authorized Town official and there is no evidence that the owner or occupant
acted in bad faith, or unless the removal of the structure or use will result in a threat
or hazard to public health, safety, and welfare or will result in substantial
environmental damage.

2. In determining what, if any, monetary penalty to impose as part of an
administrative consent agreement, the Municipal Officers may consider (1) how
long the violation has existed; (ii) the nature and circumstances of the violation
and the violator; (iii) whether a penmit or approval was issued for the work;
(iv) whether the violation was the result of survey work that caused a shift of
boundary lines; (v) the statutory minimum and maximum penalties for land use
violations set forth in 30-A MR.S.A. § 4452; and (vi) such other facts and
considerations as the Municipal Officers deem relevant.

L Fines and Penalties. Any person who violales any term or condition of a permit or
approval or who violates or continues to violate any provision of this Code after receiving
notice of such violation is subject to such fines, penalties, actions and orders as are
authorized by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452. A fine or penalty may be imposed for each violation.
Each day that a violation continues constitutes a separate offense.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 2691(4) (RIGHT OF APPEAL OF ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS); 30-A M.LR.S A,
§ 4452 (ENFORCEMENT OF LAND USE LAWS AND ORDINANCES); 38 M.R.S.A. § 441(3) (CEOs, POWERS AND DUTIES).
Section V1I1-10, Performance Guarantee

Whenever one or more performance goarantees are required by this Code or as a condition of approval of
a permit or approval issued by a reviewing authority pursuant to this Code, the following requirements
apply:

114




Review; Delegation. The performance guarantee must be satisfactory to the Planning
Board as to scope, amount, form, sufficiency, manner of execution and surety.
The Planning Board may delegate to the Town Manager the review and acceptance of a
performance guarantee in accordance with this Section VIII-10.

Form. The performance guarantee must be in the form of a performance bond, a certified
check payable to the Town, an escrow account, an irrevocable letter of credit, or some other
form of guarantee that is acceptable to the Planning Board.

Scope; Amount, The performance guarantee must be of an amount sufficient to cover the
full cost of all required site improvements, reclamation of disturbed land, and/or
decommissioning of any facilities or improvements associated with the proposal, as
determined by the Planning Board. Separate performance guarantecs may be required by
the Planning Board for any required site improvements, reclamation work, and
decommissioning work.

1. For reclamation and decommissioning work, the permit holder must arrange for
the costs to be recalculated by an engineer every five years, and the amount of the
performance guarantee may be adjusted by the Planning Board if the calculated
cost of reclamation or decommissioning materially changes.

Schedule. The performance guarantee must contain (i) a schedule and cost estimates for
each major phase of required site improvements, reclamation work, or decommissioning
work, taking into account inflation; (ii) a basis for estimating costs; (iii) provision for the
release of part or all of the performance guarantee to the permit holder; and (iv) a date after
which the permit holder will be in default and the Town must have access to the guaranteed
funds to complete required site improvements, reclamation work, or decommissioning
work, The Planning Board may approve phased performance guarantees when activity is
approved in separate and distinct phases.

1. Time for Completing Required Site Improvements. A period of one year, or such
period as the Planning Board may determine appropriate and necessary, not to
exceed three years, must be set forth in the performance guarantee as the time
within which any required site improvements must be completed. The Planning
Board may extend this deadline by 12 months upon a showing of good cause.

Inspections.

1. Escrow; Selection of Inspector. At least seven days prior to commencing
construction of any required site improvements, and at least 30 days prior to
commencing any reclamation work or decommissioning work, the permit holder
must deposit in escrow with the Town funds to cover the costs of site inspections
to be conducted by an engineer mutually acceptable to the permit hotder and the
Planning Board. The contractual rate and all indirect charges constitute the
expenses for which the permit holder’s escrow account will be charged. The
Planning Board must determine the type and frequency of inspections reasonably
necessary to protect the environmental quality or general welfare of the Town and
the amount required to be placed in escrow. Any part of this escrow payment in
excess of the final costs for inspections must be returned to the permit holder.

2. Building Permits. No building permits will be issued for any project and no work
will begin until an escrow payment has been made for the site inspections related
to any required site improvements.

115



3. Inspections; Addressing Deficiencies. If the inspector finds, upon inspection of the
required site improvements, reclamation work, or decommissioning work, that any
of the improvements or work has not been done in accordance with the plans and
specifications filed by the applicant, the long term management plan, the
reclamation plan, the decommissioning plan, or any applicable conditions of
approval, the inspector must so report to the Town Manager. The Town Manager
must then notify the permit holder. The Town Manager may take any necessary
steps to preserve the Town’s rights under the performance guarantee and to remedy
any insufficiencies identified by the inspector. The Town Manager may, in the
Town Manager’s discretion, allow the permit holder a period of time not to exceed
90 days, to remedy any insufficiencies identified by the inspector.

4. Certification. Before a permit holder may be released from any performance
guarantee obligation, the inspector must certify to the Town that all required site
improvements, reclamation work, and decommissioning work has been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with conditions of approval, reclamation
plans, decommissioning plans, long-term maintenance plan, and applicable state,
federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations.

F. Release. Upon certification in accordance with subsection E.1, above, the permit holder
may apply to the town Manager for the release of all or part of the performance guarantee.
Prior to the release of any part of a performance guarantee, the Town Manager must
determine that the required site improvements, reclamation work, and decommissioning
work comply with the requirements for that portion of the work for which a release is
requested.

G. Required Site Improvements, Defined. For purposes of this Section VIII-10, “required
site improvements” means all public and private roads; drainage structures and ditches;
erosion, sedimentation, and stormwater control measures; utilities; landscaping; and
recreational structures.

Section VHI-11. Validity and Severability

The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Code are severable. If any section,
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Code is declared unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality, invalidity, or unenforceability does not affect
the validity of any remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Code.

116




CHAPTER IX. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION, ACRONYMS, AND DEFINITIONS

Section IX-1. Rules of Construction

It is the legislative intent of the voters of the Town, in adopting this Code, that all provisions of this Code
be liberally construed to protect and preserve the health, safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Town.
In the construction of this Code, the following rules apply, unless (i) such construction is inconsistent with
the plain meaning of the affected provision of the Code and the context clearly otherwise requires, or
(ii) a definition is otherwise provided in this Code:

A Applicant. The word “applicant” means a person with sufficient right, title, or interest to
submit an application for a permit or approval to a reviewing authority pursuant to this
Code, and includes any duly authorized designee or agent of the applicant.

B. Code. The word “Code” means the Bridgton Land Use Code and any amendments thereto.

Computation of Time, Whenever a notice is required to be given or an act to be done a
certain length of time before any proceeding, the day on which such notice is given or such
act is done is not counted in computing the time, but the day on which such proceeding is
to be held is counted.

D. Corporate or Town Limits. Reference to the corporate limits, Town limits, or geographic
boundaries of the Town means the legal boundaries of the Town of Bridgton, Maine.

E. Delegation of Authority, Whenever a provision of this Code requires a department head
or some other officer of the Town to do some act or perform some duty, reference to such
department head or officer authorizes such department head or officer to designate,
delegate, and authorize subordinates to perform the required act or duty, unless the
provision specifies otherwise,

F. District. The word “district” refers to the land use districts established in Chapter I1l and/or
the shoreland zoning districts established in Chapter 1V, as the context may dictate.

G. Including. The word “including” means “including, but not limited to.”

H. Inhabitant, Resident, The word “inhabitant” or “resident” means a person having an
established residence in the Town.

L Municipal Officers. The phrase “Municipal Officers” means the members of the Bridgton
Select Board.

i Number, A word importing the singular number only includes the plural, and the plural
number includes the singular.

K. Oath. The word “oath” includes an affirmation, when affirmation is allowed, Affirmation
is allowed when a person required to be sworn is conscientiously scrupulous of taking an
oath.

L. Or, And. The word “or” may be read “and,” and the word “and” may be read “or” as the
context dictates.

M. Owner, Property Owner, The word “owner” or “property owner,” appliced to a building

or land, includes any part owner, joint owner, tenant in common, tenant in partnership, or
joint tenant of the whole or of a part of such building or land.

117




Person. The word “person” means any individual, firm, partnership, corporation,
company, association, club, joint venture, estate, trust, governmental agency, municipality,
other legal entity, or any group or combination acting as a unit and the individuals
constimting such group or unit.

Professional Consultants. All references to professional consultants, including arborists,
engineers, foresters, geologists, hydrogeologists, land surveyors, and soil scientists, mean
professionals that are licensed or registered by the Maine Office of Professional and
Occupation Regulation and its licensing boards and programs in accordance with
applicable Maine laws and rules.

References to Chapters or Sections. All references to chapters or sections are to the
chapters and sections of this Code, unless otherwise specified.

References to State Statutes and Rules. References to Maine statutes and Maine state
department or agency rules include any amendments and successor provisions thereto,

Shall, Must, Will, May. The words “shall” and “must” and “will” and “may not” are
mandatory and not discretionary. The word “may” is permissive.

State, The words “the state™ or “this state” mean the State of Maine.

State Law References and History Notes. The state law references and history notes
scattered throughout the Code are for the benefit of the user of the Code and have no legal
effect.

Technical Words. Unless specifically defined in this Code, words and phrases must be
construed according to their customary dictionary meanings, except that technical words
and phrases that have acquired a peculiar meaning in law must be construed according to
such meaning,

Tense. Words used in the present or past tense include the future tense, as well as the
present and past fense.

Text Controls. In case of any difference of meaning or implication between the text of this
Code and any figure or illusiration, the text controls.

Town. The word “Town,” “Bridgton,” “the Town of Bridgton,” and to any board, official,
or officer means the Town of Bridgton, Maine, an incorporated municipality in the County
of Cumberland, State of Maine, and its municipal boards, officials, and officers.

STATE LAW REFERENCE—FOR SIMIEAR PROVISIONS, SEE | M.R.S.A.§ 72,

Section IX-2,
CEO
DACF

DEP

DHHS

Acronyms
Code Enforcement Officer

Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry, and any successor
state department or agency

Maine Department of Environmental Protection, and any successor state
department or agency

Maine Department of Health and Human Services, and any successor state
department or agency

118




DOT Maine Department of Transportation, and any successor state department or

agency

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency

MDIFW Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, and any successor state
departiment or agency

NRPA The Natural Resources Protection Act, codified at 38 M.R.S.A. § 480-A ef seq.

M.R.S.A. The latest edition of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated

NFPA National Fire Protection Association

Section IX-3. Definitions

Accessory Structure or Accessory Use — A structure or use that is subordinate and customarily incidental
to the principal structure or principal use on the same lot. Accessory uses, when aggregated, must not
subordinate the principal use of the lot. A deck or similar extension of the principal structure or a garage
attached to the principal structure by a roof or comimon wall is considered patt of the principal structure,

Addition — An extension or increase in floor area or height of a building or structure.

Adult Use Marijuana Cultivation Facility — A “cultivation facility” as that term is defined in
28-B M.R.S.A. § 102(13).

Adult Use Marijuana Products Manufacturing Facility — A “products manufacturing facility” as that
term is defined in 28-B M.R.S.A. § 102(43).

Adult Use Marijuana Store — A “marijuana store” as that term is defined in 28-B M.R.S.A. § 102(34).

Adult Use Marijuana Testing Facility — A “testing facility” as that term is defined in 28-B M.R.S.A.
§ 102(54).

Aggrieved Party or Aggrieved Person — A person who participated in a public hearing, if one is held
under this Code, and (i) whose property is directly or indirectly affected by the grant or denial of a permit,
approval, or variance under this Code; (ii) whose land abuts land for which a permit, approval, or variance
has been granted under this Code; or (iii) who suffers a particularized injury as a result of the grant or denial
of a permit, approval, or variance under this Code.

Agriculture — The production, breeding, keeping, or maintenance, for sale or lease, of plants or animals,
including forages and sod crops; grains and seed crops; dairy animals and dairy products; poultry and
poultry products; livestock; fruits and vegetables; and ornamental and green house products. This definition
does not include forest management activities / timber harvesting activities, or sawmills.

Agriculture, Commercial — An agriculture use whereby the principal use is any combination of
agriculture, including agricultural composting operations, agricultural products, and agricultural support
services, as those terms are defined in 7 MUR.S.A. § 152. This definition includes accessory on-site retail
and off-site distribution.

Agriculture, Eco-Tourism — A range of activities, services, and amenities provided by farmers and rural
people to attract tourist to their area in order to supplement income for their primary business. This
definition does not include piggery agriculture or pouliry agriculture.

Agriculture, Noncommercial — Agriculture use primarily for household use. This definition does not
include does not include piggery agriculture or poultry agriculture.

119



Agriculture, Piggery — A premises, area, fenced enclosure, building, or structure, or portion thereof, used
or designed for the production, keeping, or breeding of pigs, with more than two sows or 20 head or of any
smaller number if designed or operated in a manner that results in nuisance impacts on abutting or nearby
properties.

Agriculture, Poultry — A premises, area, fenced enclosure, building, or structure, or portion thereof, used
or designed for the production, keeping, or breeding of poultry or fowl or production of eggs, for
commercial purposes as a principal use; or for any purpose or as an accessory use, if designed or operated
in a manner that results in nuisance impacts on abutting or nearby properties.

Agriculture, Product Processing — The processing of agricultural products into non-agricultural
products, including food and drink products. This definition does not include piggery agriculture or poultry
agriculture.

Air-blast — A horn or signal before blasting.

Alley — A public or private right-of-way less than 22 feet wide that is primarily designed to serve as a
secondary access to the rear or side of those properties whose principal lot frontage is on another road.

Alteration — A change or modification requiring movement in the location of major structural members
of a building, including bearing walls, columns, beams, girders, or substantial remodeling, but not including
cosmetic, decorative, or appliance/fixture upgrades or routine maintenance or repair of a building,

Ambulance Service — A facility for emergency ambulance or paramedic services that treats iflnesses and
injuries that require an urgent medical response and provides out-of-hospital treatment and transpott to
definitive care.

Animal Breeding or Animal Production — The process of selective mating of animals; refer to
“agriculture.”

Animal Shelter — A facility used to house or contain stray, homeless, abandoned, or unwanted animals
that is owned, operated, or maintained by a public body, a humane society, or other nonprofit organization
devoted to the welfare, protection, and humane treatment of animals.

Antenna — A device for radiating or receiving radio waves, which is situated on a permanent ot temporary
foundation.

Appropriate Suite of Water Quality Parameters — All organic or inorganic primary and secondary
federal drinking water standards, including bacteria.

Aquaculture — The growing or propagation of harvestable freshwater, estuarine, or marine plant or animal
species.

Aquifer — A saturated permeable geologic unit consisting of unconsolidated sediment or bedrock that can
yield economically valuable quantities of water. This definition includes all arcas specifically mapped as
aquifers by the Maine Geological Survey or a geologist.

Assisted Living Facility — A residence for the elderly that provides housing, limited care, meals, personal
care, and supervision, and which may provide other services such as recreational activities, financial
services, and fransportation.

Attic Story — The space enclosed within the roof of a structure that is not used for any commercial or
residential purposes.

Auction / Auction House — A facilily or place used for a public sale in which goods or property are sold
to the highest bidder.

120




Auto Repair Service — An establishment primarily engaged in the maintenance and repair of passenger
vehicles, pickup trucks, commercial trucks, and similar vehicles.

Auto Sales and Service — The use of any building, land, or other premises principally for the display,
sale, rental, or lease of new or used automobiles, light trucks, vans, trailers, or recreational vehicles. This
definition includes any vehicle preparation, watranty, or repair work conducted as an accessory use.

Auto Washing Service — A facility used to clean the exterior and, in some cases, the interior of motor
vehicles.

Awning — A secondary covering on a frame attached to the exterior wall of a building which, when open,
projects away from that exterior wall.

Balcony — A projecting platform that is open and roofless and is suspended or cantilevered from, or
supported solely by, a principal building.

Bank — A financial institution open to the public that is engaged in deposit banking or performs closely
related functions such as making loans, investments, and fiduciary activities,

Bar / Tavern / Cocktail Lounge — A facility or structure primarily devoted to the serving of alcoholic
beverages, with the service of food incidental to the consumption of such beverages. This definition
includes meeting places or other facilities of nonprofit organizations that are licensed to serve alcoholic
beverages.

Basal Area — The area of cross-section of a tree stem at 4% feet above ground level and inclusive of bark.

Basement — Any portion of a structure with a floor-to-ceiling height of six feet or more and having more
than 50% of its volume below the existing ground level.

Bed and Breakfast / Small Inn — A private residence, which is the innkeeper’s principal residence, that
offers sleeping accommodations to lodgers in eight or fewer rooms for rent with no provision for cooking
in any individual guest room. A lodger is a person who rents a room in a bed and breakfast / small inn for
less than 30 days.

Blasting — The controlled use of explosives to excavate or remove rock.

Boarding House - A residential structure in which six or fewer rooms, or rooms and meals, ate provided
to cccupants for at least one week, with meals available only to the occupants. The structure must be
oceupied by a resident owner or manager. There may be no provision for cooking in any individual guest
room. Housekeeping services may be included.

Boarding Kennel — A place where domestic pets are housed temporarily for a fee,

Boat Launching Facility — A facility designed primarily for the launching and landing of watercraft,
which may include an access ramp, docking area, and parking spaces for vehicles and trailers.

Boat Sales, Service and Storage, Indoor — The sale, maintenance, and storage of watercraft wholly
within an enclosed structure.

Boat Sales, Service and Storage, Outdoor -— The sale, maintenance, and storage of watercraft wholly or
partially in the open.

Brewery / Distillery / Winery — An establishment or place where beer, liquor, or wine is made
commercially, which may also be licensed to sell on the premises as a bar / tavern / cocktail lounge.

Buffer or Buffer Strip — A defined and described lot, or portion of a lot, that (i) must remain unaltered,
vegetated, revegetated, unscarified, undisturbed, and/or in its natural state, or (ii) serves to minimize

121



environmental impacts to natural resources or audiovisual impacts to surrounding properties, as the context
may dictate.

Buildable Area — The surface area of a lot, minus the area of all required minimum setback areas and
open space requirements.

Building — Any structure arranged, designed, intended, or used for the shelter, housing, or enclosure of
persons, animals, processes, equipment, or property.

Building Materials Yard — An outside storage area for materials used in building and construction, such
as roofing, fill material, wood, equipment, vehicles, machinery, paints, pipes, or electrical components.

Campground —— An area devoted to overnight recreational or educational use on a short-term or long-term
basis, where land area is divided into campsites or lots in order to accommodate transient living quarters
such as tents, recreational vehicles, or other temporary shelters.

Canopy — The more or less continuous cover formed by tree crowns in a wooded area.

Cemetery — An area devoted to the burial of the dead, including mausolenms, and related sales and
maintenance facilities. This definition includes mortuaries when operated within the boundary of a
cemetery,

Children’s Summmer Camp — A seasonal camp that may include seasonal buildings providing room,
board, and recreation for children during all or part of a vacation period, normally the summer, for a fee.

Clay — A fine grained material consisting mainly of hydrated aluminum silicates that occurs naturally in
soil and sedimentary rock and is used in making bricks, ceramics, and cement.

Cluster Housing Development — Detached or attached residential dwelling units placed on individual
lots within an overall tract, with the remaining area devoted to common open space.

Commercial Use — The use of land, buildings, or structures to buy and sell goods or services, which use
is intended for and results in the production of income. This definition does not include a home occupation
or the rental of residential buildings or dwelling units.

Common Lot Line — A lot line shared between properties other than a public lot line.

Common Open Space — A parcel or area of land, or land and water, designed and intended for the use or
enjoyment of residents and property owners living within a development area, such as a cluster housing
deveiopment. Common open space may contain such complementary structures and improvements as are
necessary, and must be freely accessible to all residents and property owners living within the development
area.

Communication Service — Public and private companies in the telecommunications (landiine and
wireless), internet, cable, satellite, and managed services businesses. This definition does not include
communication towers.

Communication Tower — Any structure, whether free-standing or in association with a permanent
building or permanent structure, that is designed and constructed primarily for the purposes of supporting
one or more antennas, including self-supporting lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. This
definition includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, common-carrier towers,
celtular phone towers, and alternative tower structures,

Community Center — A place or building used by the public for meetings for social, educational, or
recreational activities, or similar uses, none of which are operated for profit.

122



Community Garden — A piece of public or private land gardened collectively by a group of people
utilizing either individual or shared plots.

Comprehensive Plan — Any part or element of the overall plan and policy for development of the Town,
as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. §8§ 4301-4357, or the Town of Bridgton Comprehensive Plan, as the context
dictates.

Condominium — A form of housing tenure and other real property where a specified part of real estate is
individually owned while use of and access to common facilities (such as hallways, heating system,
elevators, and exterior areas) is executed under legal rights associated with individual ownership and
controlied by the association of owners that jointly represent ownership of the whole part.

Complete for Review — A determination by the reviewing authority that an application is accepted and
ready for substantive review by the reviewing authority based on whether the application is accompanied
by the proper application fee; contains sufficient documentation of right, title, or interest; and contains
sufficient information for the reviewing authority o begin its review,

Corner Lot — A lot abutting and at the intersection of two or more roads.

Curb Cuf - The connection to a road, or opening along the curb line, at which point vehicles may enter
ot Jeave the road,

Day Care Facility — A Maine-licensed facility operated for the purpose of providing care and protection
during part of a 24-hour day to children or adults. This definition does not include the provision of day care
services in a dwelling unit where the property owner is the proprietor of the business and the use otherwise
satisfies the requirements of a home occupation.

Density — Buildable area divided by the number of units.

Department Heads — The Town’s fire chief, public works director, police chief, and transfer station
manager.

Development — A change in land use involving alteration of the land, water, or vegetation; or the addition
or alteration of structure; or other construction not naturally occurring.

Dimensional Standards — The minimum lot size; minimum lot frontage; minimum shore frontage;
maximum lot coverage; minimum contiguous private open area; maximum front setback line; minimum
front setback line; minimum setback line from any conunon lot line; minimum setback line from the DVN,
MUC, LN, OV, or RN district boundary; minimum shoreland setback line; maximum height; minimum
height; and ground story floor elevation height, all as provided in Chapter iII (Land Use Districts).

Disability — A “physical or mental disability,” as that term is defined in 5 M.R.S.A. § 4553-A.

Driveway — A vehicular access route or right-of-way less than 500 feet in length serving or intended to
serve any structure, use, or vacant lot, except if such a driveway is proposed as part of a subdivision
application in which case it is a road.

Dwelling, Above Commercial — A dwelling unit located on a floor above a commercial business.

Dwelling, Attached In-law Apartment — A separate living space attached to or located within a single-
family dwelling as a small accessory apartment. An attached in-law apartment must have its own entrance,
kitchen, bathroom, and living space.

Dwelling, Detached In-law Apartment — A separate living space detached from, but accessory to, a
single-family dwelling, such as a small guest house. A detached in-law apartment must have its own
entrance, kitchen, bathroom, and living space.

123



Dwelling, Multi-Family — A building consisting of three or more attached dwelling units.

Dwelling, Single-Family — A building designed or intended to be used exclusively for residential
occupancy by one family, and containing one dwelling unit or one dwelling unit with an in-law apartment.

Dwelling, Two-Family — A building consisting of two attached dwelling units.

Dwelling Unit — A structure or portion of a structure containing one or more rooms or group of rooms
designed, built, and used for permanent or seasonal human habitation, with each such unit containing
cooking, sleeping, and toilet facilities. “Dwelling unit” includes manufactured homes (including mobile
homes and modular homes), as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4358, but does not include motel units, hotel
units, boarding houses, recreational vehicles, or other residential units intended primarily for transient
occupancy. The rental of a dwelling unit is considered a usual and normal use associated with a dwelling
untt.

Tasement — The authorization of a property owner for the use by another, and for a specified purpose, of
any designated part of the owner’s property.

Education Facility — Any building or facility used for academic instruction of enrolled students, including
any nursery school, public or private school, college, university, medical school, law school, or career and
technical education school.

Emergency Operations — Operations conducted for the public health, safety, or general welfare,
including protection of resources from immediate destruction or loss, law enforcement, and operations to
rescue human beings, property and livestock from the threat of destruction or injury.

Equestrian Facility — A facility for the purpose of accommodating, training, or competing equids,
especially horses. Based on its use, an equestrian facility may be known as a barn, stables, or riding hall
and may include commercial operations described by terms such as a boarding stable, livery yard, or livery
stable.

Equipment Rental Service — A retail service providing machinery, equipment, and tools of various kinds
and sizes (from earthmoving to powered access, from power generation to hand-held tools) for a limited
period of time to final users that is stored in an enclosed indoor or ontdoor space. It may be part of a larger
retail building or facility such as a hardware store.

Fssential Services — Gas, clectrical, or communication facilities; steam, fuel, electric power, or water
transmission or distribution lines; towers and related equipment; telephone cables or lines, poles, and related
equipment; gas, oil, water, slurry, or other similar pipelines; municipal sewage lines; collection or supply
towers, poles, wires, mains, drains, pipes, conduits, cables, fire alarms and police call boxes, traffic signals,
hydrants, and similar accessories. This definition does not include service drops or buildings that are
necessary for the furnishing of essential services.

Exempt Caregiver — A natural person who is a medical marijuana registered caregiver for no more than
two family members or members of the caregiver’s houschold, is exempt from registration pursuant to
22 M.R.S.A. § 2423-A(3)(C), and may not possess more than eight pounds of marijuana.

Expansion of a Structure — An increase in the footprint, floor area, or height of a structure, including all
extensions such as decks, garages, porches, and greenhouses.

124




Expansion of a Use -—— An enlargement of the footprint, floor area, or ground arca devoted to a use;
a change in the location of a use; addition of one or more months to a use’s operating season; or a change
in character, amount, ot intensity of a use. A change in use from one land use category to another land use
category in the schedules of uses in Chapter 11l (Land Use Districts) or Chapter 1V (Shoreland Zoning) is
prima facie evidence of a change in character of a use.

Txplosive — A substance that contains a great amount of stored energy that can provide an explosion, a
sudden expansion of the material after initiation, usually accompanied by the production of light, heat,
sound and pressure.

Extraction Point — The physical location where water is extracted, whether by well, pump, pipeline,
catchments, or other similar method,

Family — One or more persons occupying a dwelling unit, whether or not related to each other by birth,
adoption, or marriage.

Farmers Market / Farm Stand — The seasonal selling or offering for sale at retail of home-grown
vegetables or produce, or food products from such vegetables or produce, occurring in pre-designated areas
where the vendors are generally individuals or registered farms who have raised the vegetables or produce
or have taken the same on consignment for retail sale.

Farmland — A lot used for commercial farming (i) that consists of five or more contiguous acres; (ii) that
has produced a gross income averaging no less than $300 per acre for three or more of the previous six
calendar years; (iii) where use of agricultural chemicals has occurred; and (iv) that includes only the land
on which the crop is produced. This definition does not include iand used for woodlots, Christmas tree
production, dwelling units, farm buildings, roads, pastures, lawns, or any area covered with non-crop
vegelation that borders abutting land.

Fenestration — The design, location, or arrangement of windows and other exterior openings of a fagade.

Firewood Processing and Sales —— Cutting and splitting logs to produce firewood with machinery or
manual handling for sale to retail customers.

Floodway — The channel of a river or other watercourse and adjacent land areas that must be reserved in
order to discharge the 100-year flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation by more
than one foot in height.

Floodplain — A flood-prone area along rivers or artificially formed great ponds along rivers, defined by
the 100-year floodplain as designated on FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps or Flood Hazard Boundary
Maps, by the flood of record, or in the absence of these, by soil types identified as recent floodplain soils.

Floor Area — The sum of the horizontal areas of the floors of a building (excluding basement and attics),
measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls or, in the case of a common wall separating two buildings,
from the center line of the common wall.

Footprint — The entire area of ground covered by a building or structure on a lot, including cantilevered
or similar overhanging extensions, as well as unenclosed structures such as patios and decks.

Forest Management Activities / Timber Harvesting Activities — “Timber harvesting activitics” as that
term is defined in 12 M.R.S.A. § 8868(5). Forest management activities / timber harvesting activities are
not regulated pursuant to this Code, but are regulated by the DACF Bureau of Foresiry pursuant to
i2 M.RS.A. §§ 8866 ef seq.

Foundation — The supporting substructure of a building or structure, including basements, slabs, frost
walls, or other base consisting of concrete, block, brick or similar material, but excluding wooden sills and
post supports,

125



Fuel Storage Depot, Bulk — A stand-alone facility for the bulk storage of fossil fuels, including gasoline,
diesel, propane, or natural gas, primarily for distribution by motor vehicle to other locations. This definition
does not include underground storage tanks at gas stations.

Function Hall / Lodge / Clubhouse — A building or portion of a building for the purpose of hosting a
party, banquet, wedding or other reception, or other social event, such as functions halls, lodges, or club
houses.

Functionally Water-Dependent Uses — Those uses that require, for their primary purpose, Jocation on
submerged lands or that require direct access to, or location in, inland waters and which cannot be located
away from these waters, Functionally water-dependent uses include commercial and recreational fishing
and boat launching facilities, waterfront docks and facilities, marinas, and navigation aids, basins, and
channels, shoreline siructures necessary for erosion control purposes, industrial uses dependent upon water-
borne transportation or requiring large volumes of cooling or processing water that cannot reasonably be
located or operated at an inland site, and uses that primarily provide general public access to inland waters.
Recreational boat storage buildings are not a functionally water-dependent use.

Funeral Home — A facility or building for the preparation of the deceased for burial or cremation, the
display of the deceased, and rituals connected with burial or cremation, which may include a crematory.

Garage — An accessory structure on a residential lot for parking residents’ vehicles.

Garden Materials Yard — An open space for the storage of plants, trees, and shrubs, and associated
materials and tools used for their cultivation for sale to a retail user.

Gas Station — A facility, building, land area, or other premises used for the retail dispensing or sales of
vehicular fuels, or as an accessory use to the sale of lubricants, tires, batteries, and similar vehicle
accessories,

General Contractor Yard — An open area that a construction contractor uses for the storage of materials
and equipment used for construction projects, which may include the contractor’s office.

Governmental Use — A use exclusively for public purposes by any department or branch of government,
such as post office, public safety, public works, and public utilities and services,

Gravel — Small stones and pebbles, or a mixture of small stones and pebbles with sand.

Gravel Pit — An excavation for removal, processing, or storage of borrow, topsoil, loam, gravel, rock,
sand, clay, silt, or other similar non-metallic earth materials, whether alone or in combination, and which
does not require the use of explosives.

Great Pond — Any inland body of water which in a natural state has a surface area in excess of 10 acres,
and any inland body of water artificially formed or increased which has a surface area in excess of 30 acres
except where the artificially formed or increased inland body of water is completely surrounded by land
held by a single owner.

Greatest Extent Practicable — Feasible or capable of being done or caried out with reasonable effout,
taking into account sound science and engineering principles; the state of available technology; the
economics of improvements in relation to the benefits to the public health, safety, and welfare; and other
societal and socioeconomic considerations.

Greatest Extent Possible — Feasible or capable of being done or carried out taking into account the size
of the lot, the slope of the land, the potential for soil erosion, the location of other structures on the property
and on adjacent properties, the location of subsurface wastewater disposals systems and on-site soils
suitable for such systems, and the type and amount of vegetation to be removed to accomplish the intended
activity.

126




Groundwater — Underground water located in unconsolidated sediment or bedrock below the water table
and includes ground water emanating to the surface in the form of springs.

Ground Cover — Small plants, fallen leaves, needles, and twigs, and the partially decayed organic matter
of the forest floor.

Ground Story — The first floor of a building, other than a basement.

Group Home, Large — A home where more than six unrelated people in need of care, support, or
supervision can live together, such as elderly persons or persons with a disability.

Group Home, Small — A home where six or fewer umeclated people in need of care, support, or
supervision can live together, such as elderly persons or persons with a disability.

Health Institution — A hospital, ¢linic, nursing or rehabilitation facility, or any other place for the care,
treatment, or diagnosis of human ailments. This definition does not include office buildings or hospice
facilities.

Height — The vertical distance of a structure, as measured from the mean original grade (prior to
construction) of the ground at the downhill side of the structure to the highest point of the roof or any
rooftop structure or feature such as a deck, fence, railing, or widow’s walk, but excluding the vertical
distance of any (i) chimney, steeple, heating or cooling appurtenance, ventilator, antenna, transmission
tower, windmill, skylight, tank, bulkhead, solar panel, or similar structure having no floor area, or (ii) dome,
tower, or spire provided such feature is not habitable.

Home Occupation — An occupation or profession which is customarily conducted on residential property
or in a dwelling unit, and which (i) is clearly incidental to and compatible with the residential use of the
property and any surrounding residential uses; (i) employs no more than two persons other than family
members residing in the dwelling unit; and (iii) utilizes no more than 50% of the floor area of the dwelling
unit in which the occupation is carried out.

Hospice Facility — A facility that provides support and care for persons in the last stages of an incurable
disease or condition, and which may include related in-patient and out-patient services and associated
offices, pharmacy services, and storage.

Hotel / Large Inn — A facility having more than eight guest rooms offering transient lodging
accommodations to the general public for a fee, and which may include additional facilities and services
such as restaurants, meeting rooms, entertainment, personal services, and recreation structures.

Impact — A measure of the effects or consequences of an activity or influence upon a neighborhood,
community, Town, or abutter.

Impervious Surface — A low-permeability material that is highly resistant to infiltration by water (such
as asphalt, conerete, or rooftop) and any area that will be compacted through design or use to reduce its
permeability (such as a gravel road or unpaved parking area). Common impervious surfaces include
rooftops, walkways, patios, driveways, parking lots, storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, gravel roads,
packed earthen materials, and macadam or other surfaces that similarly impede the natural infiliration of
stormwater. Pervious pavement, pervious pavers, pervious concrete, and underdrained artificial turf fields
are all congidered impervious surfaces.

In-law Apartment — A living space that must have its own entrance, kitchen, bathroom, and living area
that is attached to or detached from a single-family dwelling,

Individual Private Campsite — An area of land located in the shoreland zone that is not associated with
a campground, which is developed for repeated camping by only one group not to exceed 10 individuals
and which involves site improvements such as gravel pads, parking areas, fire place, and tent platform.

127



Industrial Use — The assembling, fabrication, finishing, manufacturing, packaging or processing of
goods, or the extraction of minerals.

Infrastructure — All common roads, drainage structures, ditches, erosion, sedimentation and stormwater
control measures, utilities, landscaping, fire protection systems, recreation structures, and any additional
common property or basic facilities associated with a development or subdivision,

Institutional Use — A use serving a public or charitable need by a nonprofit or quasi-public institution,
such as church, library, museum, private school, or hospital.

Landscaping — The planting of trees, shrubs, and other plants as foundation plantings in separate bedding
areas and between the property and sidewalk or road so as to enhance the appearance and function of the
property.

Laundry Service — A facility that provides services that wash, dry, dry clean, iron, and press customers’
clothes for a fee.

Liquor Store — A retai] shop that predominantly sells pre-packaged alcoholic beverages, typically in
bottles intended to be consumed off-premises, and which may be a part of a larger retail store.

Live Theater / Music / Entertainment — A facility or venue which provides a form of entertainment that
uses five performers before a live audience in a specific place.

Livestock, Personal Use — Animals kept for personal enjoyment or for the production of animal products
for personal use. This definition does not include piggery agriculture or poultry agriculture.

Lot Area — The area of land enclosed within the boundary lines of a lot, minus land below the normal

high-water line of a water body or upland edge of a wetland and areas beneath roads serving more than two
lots,

Lot Coverage —

Qutside of the shoreland zone: The percentage of area covered by buildings, structures, parking
areas, driveways, and impervious surfaces on a lot.

Within the shoreland zone: The percentage of area covered by buildings, structures, parking areas,
driveways, and all other non-vegetative surfaces on a lot or that portion of a lot located in the
shoreland zone. Naturally occurring ledge and rock outeroppings are not counted as non-vegetated
surfaces when calculating lot coverage for lots of record on March 24, 1990 and in continuous
existence since that date.

Lot Front — The side of a lot that borders a road and, in the case of a corner iot, the side with the longer
lot line bordering a road.

Lot Frontage — The horizontal distance of the lot front measured from one side lot line to the other.
Major Artery — A term to describe Route 302, Route 117, and Route 107,

Manufacturing Use — A use involving the mechanical or chemical transformation of materials or
substances into new products, including the assembling of component parts, the creation of products, and
the blending of materials, such as oils, plastics, resins, or liquors.

Manufacturing, Heavy — A manufacturing use to make, produce, build, construct, assemble, put together,
create, fabricate, turn out, process, or engineer with large, heavy, and capital-intensive machinery and
equipment.

128



Manufacturing, Light — A manufacturing use to make, produce, build, construct, assemble, put together,
create, fabricate, turn out, process, or engincer wholly within an enclosed building with small machinery
and equipment,

Marijuana — The leaves, stems, flowers, and seeds of all species of the plant genus Cannabis, whether
growing or not, but not including “hemp” as defined in 7 M.R.S.A. § 223 1(1-A)(D)).

Marijuana Cultivation Area — An indoor facility used for cultivation of marijuana as part of any
marijuana establishment, which is enclosed and equipped with Jocks and other security devices that permit
access only by a person authorized to have access to the facility.

Marijuana Establishment — Any one of the following uses:
e Adult use marijuana cultivation facility
s Adult use marijuana products manufacturing facility
o  Adult use marijuana store
¢  Adult use marijuana testing facility
*  Medical marijuana caregiver retail store
e Medical marijuana inherently hazardous substances extraction operation
s Medical marijuana large-scale caregiver operation
e Medical marijuana manufacturing facility
e Medical marijuana multiple registered caregiver facility
¢ Medical marijuana registered dispensary
e Medical marijuana testing facility

Unless a general definition (including agriculture, commercial, manufacturing, retail business, home
occupation or accessory use) expressly includes a marijuana establishment, the general definition does not
include a marijuana establishment,

Marijuana Home Cultivation — The cultivation of (i) marijuana for personal adult use by persons
21 years of age or older in accordance with the provisions of 28-B M.R.S.A. § 1502; or (ii) medical
Marijuana by an exempt caregiver or a qualifying patient.

Marijuana Manufacturing Facility — Any one of the following uses:
s Medical marijuana inherently hazardous substances extraction operation
+ Maedical marijuana manufacturing facility

s Adult use marijuana products manufacturing facility

Marijuana Testing Facility — Any one of the following uses:
e Adult use marijuana testing facility

« medical marijuana testing facility
Marina — An establishment having frontage on navigable water and, as its principal use, providing for
hire offshore moorings or docking facilities for boats, and which may also provide accessory services such

as boat and related sales and rentals, boat repair and construction, indoor and outdoor storage of boats and
marine equipment, and tackle shops and marine fuel service facilities.

129



Market Value — The estimated price a property will bring in the open market and under prevailing market
conditions in a sale between a willing seller and a willing buyer, both conversant with the property and with
prevailing general price levels.

Mass Gathering — An event at which at least 500 persons collect, assemble, congregate, or gather
together, in a group for a period of time greater than four consecutive hours,

Maximum Front Setback Area — The portion of a lot that is located between the maximum front setback
line and the public lot line which it paraliels.

Maximum Front Setback Line — A line paralleling a public lot line along the full length of the public lot
line, which is the farthest distance a building facade can be from the public lot line.

Medical Marijuana Caregiver Retail Store — A location, building, or facility operated by a medical
marijuana registered caregiver that is used to sell medical marijuana to qualifying patients and that has
attributes generally associated with retail stores, including a fixed location, a sign, regular business hours,
accessibility to the public and sales of goods or services directly to a consumer.

Medical Marijuana Inherently Hazardous Substances Extraction Operation — “Marijuana
extraction” using “inherently hazardous substances” by a “qualifying patient,” the “caregiver” of a qualified
patient, or any other person authorized under 22 M.R.S.A. § 2423-F(3) to engage in “marijuana extraction”
using “inherently hazardous substances,” as those terms are defined in 22 MIR.S.A. § 2422,

Medical Marijuana Large-Scale Caregiver Operation — A commercial or noncommercial use by a
medical marijuana registered caregiver other than: (i) a medical marijuana caregiver retail store, (ii) a
medical marijuana multiple caregiver facility, (iil) a medical marijuana inherently hazardous substances
extraction operation, (iv) marijuana home cultivation by a qualifying patient or exempt caregiver, or (v) a
medical marijuana small-scale caregiver operation.

Medical Marijuana Manufacturing Facility — A registered tier 1 or tier 2 manufacturing facility, as
defined in 22 ML.R.S.A. § 2422.

Medical Marijuana Multiple Registered Caregiver Facility — A building or facility housing more than
one medical marijuana registered caregiver.

Medical Marijuana Registered Caregiver — A caregiver who is registered by the State licensing
authority pursuant to 22 M.R.S.A. § 2425-A.

Medical Marijuana Registered Dispensary — A building or facility operated by a person or entity
registered under 22 M.R.S.A. § 2425-A that acquires, possesses, cultivates, manufactures, delivers,
transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses medical marijuana or related supplies and educational
materials to qualifying patients and the caregivers of those patients as defined in 22 M.R.S.A. § 2422(6).

Medical Marijuana Small-Seale Caregiver Operation -—— A commercial or noncommercial use by a
medical marijuana registered cavegiver who sells or dispenses marijuana solely out of the caregiver’s
residential dwelling or accessory structure to no more than five individual registered patienis in any one
calendar month; does not process or manufacture marijuana using chemicals or solvents; and cultivates no
more than 30 mature marijuana plants.

Medical Marijuana Testing Facility — A public or private laboratory that (i) is authorized in accordance
22 M.R.S.A. § 2423-A(10) to analyze contaminants in the potency and cannabinoid profile of samples; and
(ii) is accredited pursuant to standard ISO/IEC 17025 of the International Organization for Standardization
by a third-party accrediting body or is certified, registered or accredited by an organization approved by
DHHS.

130




Midway / Fair — A temporary event where there are displays of goods, animals, amusements, games of
chance or skill, and competitions.

Mineral — A naturally occurring solid chemical substance that is formed through geological processes and
that has a characteristic chemical composition, a highly ordered atomic structure, and specific physical
properties. By comparison, a rock is an aggregate of minerals or mineraloids and does not have a specific
chemical composition. Minerals range in composition from pure elements and simple salts to very complex
silicates with thousands of known forms,

Mineral Exploration - Hand sampling, test boring, or other methods of determining the nature or extent
of mineral resources, which create minimal disturbance to the land and include reasonable measures to
restore the land to its original condition.

Mineral Extraction — Any excavation or removal, storage, handling or processing of sand, gravel,
aggregates, borrow, stone, rock, clay, minerals, metals, or topsoil. This definition includes sand pits, gravel
pits, clay pits, borrow pits, quarries, mines, and topsoil mining or removal operations.

Mineral Extraction Area — All of the land area used, disturbed, and developed as part of mineral
extraction operation, including any access roads and cleared areas adjacent to a pit or excavation area.

Mineral Extraction, Handling or Processing — The washing, screening, crushing, mixing, or storage of
sand, gravel, aggregates, bortow, stone, rock, clay, minerals, metals, or topsoil, including washing or
screening operations; concrete mix or asphalt batching plants; blasting or mining operations; storage of
material; disposal, placing, or storing of any material that will not be used in conjunction with the mineral
extraction; or ore concentration processes.

Mineral Extraction, Large — Mineral extraction which removes 100 cubic yards or more of material
within any [2-month period.

Mineral Extraction, Small — Mineral extraction which removes less than 100 cubic yards of material
within any 12-month period.

Minimart — A convenience store that is located on the same lot and is accessory to a gas station.

Minimum Front Setback Line — A line paralieling a public lot line along the full length of the public lot
line, which is the closest distance a building fagade can be from the public lot line.

Minimum Lot Frontage — The minimum lot frontage on a lot.
Minimum Lot Size — The minimum acreage of a lot for each principal building located on the lot.

Minimum Lot Width — The closest distance between the side lot lines of a lot. When only two lot lines
extend into the shoreland zone, both lot lines are deened side lot lines.

Minimum Setback — The horizontal distance from the nearest part of a structure, parking area, or other
regulated object or area to a lot line, road line, the normal high-water line of a water body, or the upland
edge of a wetland, as the context may dictate.

Minimum Setback Area — The portion of a lot that is located between the minimum setback line and the
tot line which it parallels.

Minimum Setback Line — A line paralieling a lot line which indicates the closest distance a structure or
parking area can be from any given lot line.

Minimum Shoreland Setback — The horizontal distance from the nearest part of a structure, parking area,
or other regulated object or area to the normal high-water line of a water body, or the upland edge of a
wetland, as the context may dictate.

131



Mobile — Capable of moving or being moved.
Mebile Home or Modular Home — Refer to “dwelling unit.”

Mobile Home Park — A lot under unified ownership used or intended to be used for the placement of

three or more manufactured homes (including mobile homes and modular homes), as that term is defined
in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4358.

Motel — A building or group of attached or detached buildings containing guest rooms, most of which
have separate outside entrances and parking spaces nearby, intended to be used by automobile transients
for a fee.

Maovie Theater — An establishment where movies are shown for public entertainment.
Native Species or Native Tree or Native Vegetation — Indigenous to Maine ecosystems.

Neighborhood Convenience Store — A retail establishment of up to 1,500 square feet in aggregate floor
area with extended operating hours and located in a convenient location within a district, which sells
primarily food products, household items, newspapers and magazines, candy, and beverages, and a limited
amount of freshly prepared foods such as sandwiches, pizzas, and salads.

Nonconforming Lot, Structure, or Use or Nonconforming Condition — A lof, structure, or use that
fawfully existed immediately prior to the enactment of this Code, or an amendment to this Code, and which,
as a result of the enactment or amendment of this Code, presently fails to comply with any one or more of
the requirements of this Code, including the dimensional standards or other standards applicable in the
district in which the lot, structure, or use is located.

Non-Native Invasive Vegetation — Species of vegetation listed by DACF as being invasive in Maine
ecosystems and not native to Maine ecosystems.

Normal High-Water Line — A line that is apparent from visible markings, changes in the character of
soils due to prolonged action of the water, or changes in vegetation, and which distinguishes between
predominantly aquatic and predominantly terrestrial land. Areas contiguous with rivers and great ponds that
support non-forested wetland vegetation and hydric soils and that are at the same or lower elevation as the
water level of the river or great pond during the period of normal high-water are considered part of the river
or great pond.

Office Building — A building, or portion of a building, within and from which a person conducts a business
providing a trade or professional service to clients or customers or conducts bureaucratic work, including
offices for plumbing, electrical, and other construction trades; offices for architectural firms or construction
contractors (including headquarters); offices for lawn care services and building cleaning companies; and
offices for lawyers, doctors, accountants, engineers, and other professional consultants.

Office Building, Large — An office building having a floor area of more than 2,500 square feet.
Office Building, Small — An office building having a floor area of 2,500 square feet or less.

Outdoor Flea Market / Open-Air Market — The outdoor display, sale, exchange or barter of
merchandise for profit, which may include accessory structures such as restrooms or buildings for storage
of goods when not in business. This definition does not include garage sales or yard sales on the premises
of a residential properly, except if such sales occur more than four times a year on the same residential
property. This definition does not include occasional sales and promotional activities at retail buildings that
place merchandise outside of their building or farmers markets.

132




Overlay District — A special zoning district, placed over one or mote land use districts, that identifies
special provisions that apply to land uses in addition to or in lieu of the provisions of the underlying land
use districts. An overlay district can share common boundaries with the underlying land use districts or cut
across land use district boundaries., Regulations or incentives may be attached to an overlay district to
protect a specific resource or to guide development within a special area.

Parking Garage — A structure used for the limited term parking of vehicles but excluding automotive
services or comimercial storage of vehicles.

Parking Setback Line — The closest the outer edge of a parking lot to a property line.

Pawn Shop — A business or facility designed to loan out money for items, with the intention that the
customer comes back and repays the loan for the items pawned.

Planned Unit Development — An integrated design for development of residential, commercial, industrial
or other uses, or a mix of such uses, on one or more contiguous lots in accordance with a concept plan
approved by the Planning Board.

Principal Building or Principal Structure — A building or structure where the principal use of the lot is
conducted,

Principal Use — A use other than one that is wholly incidental or accessory to another use on the same lot,

Privacy Wall ~— An unroofed structure which has a foundation and vertical surface of masonry, wood,
plaster, concrete, or stones to enclose, divide, or protect an area.

Private Open Area — A contiguous space for plant materials containing no more than 50% impervious
surface for courtyards or seating areas.

Public Drinking Water Supply — Any publicly or privately owned system of pipes or other constructed
conveyances, structures, and facilities through which water is obtained for or sold, furnished, or distributed
to the public for human consumption, if such a system has at least 15 service connections, regularly serves
an average of at least 25 persons daily at least 60 days out of the year, or bottles of water for sale. Any
publicly or privately owned system that only stores and distributes water, without treating or collecting it;
obtains all its water from, but is not owned or operated by a public water system; and does not sell water or
bottled water to any person, is not a “public water system,” The term “public water system” includes any
collection, treatment, storage or distribution pipes, or other constructed conveyanees, structures, or facilities
under the control of a supplier of water and used primarily in connection with such a systein, and any
collection or pretreatment storage facilities not under that control that are used primarily in connection with
such a system. The system does not include the portion of service pipe owned and maintained by a customer
of the public water system.

Public Lot Line — Any property line that directly abuts a public road.

Public Open Space — Land set aside for active or passive recreation by the public and either owned by a
public entity or protected as open space in perpetuity through a conservation easement or other legally
binding deed restriction.

Qualifying Patient — A person who has been a resident of Maine for at least 30 days and who possesses
a valid written certification regarding medical use of marijuana in accordance with 22 M.R.S.A. § 2423-B.

Quarry — An excavation or pit, usually open to air, from which building stone, slate, construction
aggregate, riprap, or the like, is obtained by cutting, blasting, etc.

Raze — To tear down, demolish, burn, or otherwise destroy or do away with,

133



Recent Floodplain Soils — The following soil series as described and identified by the National
Cooperative Soil Survey: Fryeburg; Hadley; Limerick; Lovewell; Medomak; Ondawa; Alluvial; Cornish;
Charles; Podunk; Runmey; Saco; Suncock; Sunday; Winooski.

Reelamation — The restoration or continued maintenance of the area of land affected by mining under a
reclamation plan, including grading and shaping of the land, the creation of lakes or ponds, the planting of
forests, the seeding of grasses, legumes, or crops for harvest, or the enhancement of wildlife and aquatic
resources,

Reclamation Plan — A plan which depicts how a project will be restored, or maintained, after excavation
is complete. Such a plan usually includes final grading and revegetation plans, of any given phase.

Recreation, Indoor — A nonresidential use conducted totally within a structure designed and equipped
for play, amusement, relaxation, sports or other similar diversions, such as a bowling alley, skating rink,
fitness center, gymmasium, squash or tennis facility, or indoor swimming pool.

Recreation, Low-intensity — A use conducted outdoors in a public or private place designed and equipped
for low-intensity recreational activities that involve minimal structural development (such as benches,
picnic tables, trail kiosks, and boardwalks), including a park, nature preserve, open space area, greenway,
and hiking trail system. This definition does not include boat launching facilities, indoor recreation, or
outdoor recreation.

Recreation, Outdeor — A nonresidential use conducted primarily outdoors but involving significant
structural development designed and equipped for play, amusement, relaxation, sports or other similar
diversions, such as a playground, sports field, golf driving range, miniature golf course, water slide, outdoor
swimming pool, and outdoor tennis court.

Recreational Vehicle — A vehicle or an attachment to a vehicle designed to be towed, and designed for
temporary sleeping or living quarters for one or more persons, including a pick-up camper, travel trailer,
tent trailer, camp trailer, or motor home. To be considered as a vehicle and not as a structure, the recreational
vehicle must remain with its tires on the ground, and must be registered with a state division of motor
vehicles.

Redemption / Recycling / Transfer Facility — A facility where a redeemer can deposit empty beverage
containers in exchange for their refund value, or any facility that contracts with one or more dealers or
distributors to collect, sort, and obtain the refund value and handling fee of empty beverage containers for,
or on behalf of them; or a specialized plant that receives, separates, and prepares recyclable materials for
transfer or marketing to end-user manufacturers.

Religious Assembly — A church, synagogue, temple, mosque, or other facility that is used for worship or
prayer by persons of similar beliefs; or a special purpose building that is architecturally designed and
particularly adapted for the primary use of conducting formal religious services on a regular basis.

Relocate — To meve a building to another position or location on the same or a different lot.
Repair — To restore a building to sound condition.

Replace — To put back in place, or to substitute something which is not structurally sound for something
which is structurafly sound.

Replacement System — A subsurface wastewater disposal system intended to replace (i) an existing
system which is either malfunctioning or being upgraded with no significant change of design flow or use
of a structure, or (ii) any existing overboard wastewater discharge.

134




Research Facility — An institution involved in the intellectual or physical study and analysis of materials,
plants or organisms. This definition does not include medical marijuana testing facilities.

Restaurant — A establishment, at which food is sold for consumption on or off the premises, which may
serve alcoholic beverages with food and may contain event or function space. This definition does not
include drive-through restaurants or snack bar or refreshment stands for the convenience of patrons at a
public or private indoor or outdoor recreation establishment.

Restaurant, Drive-Through — A restaurant that includes a facility to order and pick up food from an
antomobile.

Re-subdivision — The division of a previously subdivided lot at any future point in time.
Retail — Connected with the sale of goods for direct use by the consumer, and not for trade ot resale.

Retail Business, Large — A structure containing more than 1,500 square feet of floor area that is designed
and used for the provision of goods or services for a fee directly to the consumer for primarily personal or
household use, and not for trade or resale.

Retail Business, Small — A structure containing less than 1,500 square feet of floor area that is designed
and used for the provision of goods or services for a fee directly to the consumer for primarily personal or
household use, and not for trade or resale.

Reviewing Authority — The Town’s CEQ, Planning Board, or Board of Appeals, as the context may
dictate.

Riprap — Rocks, irregularly shaped, and at least six inches in diameter, used for erosion control and soil
stabilization, typically used on ground slopes of two units horizontal to one unit vertical or less.

River — A free-flowing body of water including its associated floodplain wetlands from that point at which
it provides drainage for a watershed of 25 square miles to its mouth.

Road — A route or track consisting of a bed of exposed mineral soil, gravel, asphalt, or other surfacing
material constructed for or created by the repeated passage of motorized vehicles. This definition does not
include driveways.

Rock — A naturally occurring solid aggregate of minerals or mineraloids. In general rocks are of three
types: igneous, sedimentary and metamorphic.

Rock Crushing — A process of reducing large rocks into small rocks, gravel or rock dust, or changing the
form of waste materials so they can be more easily disposed of or recycled, or to reduce the size of a solid
mix of raw materials so that pieces of different composition can be differentiated.

Salvage Yard — A place where disused vehicles or other machinery are stockpiled and processed for
resale.

Sawmill — A facility in which logs are cut into boards or timber by a mill or machine.

Self-Storage Facility — A building or group of buildings consisting of individual, self-continued units that
are leased for self-service storage of personal property, with no commercial transactions permitted other
than the rental of storage units.

135



Sensitive Uses — The following structures or uses:

e A juvenile or adult halfway house, correctional facility, or substance abuse rehabilitation or
treatment center.

e A Maine licensed child care facility.
e A Maine licensed family home child care facility.

o Areas designated as safe zones, and areas within 1,000 feet of property comprising designated safe
zones, as shown on an official Town of Bridgton Safe Zone Map which has been made part of the
Town of Bridgton Ordinance to Regulate the Establishment of Safe Zones.

o A public preschool program, or a public or private elementary, secondary, or post-secondary
school, or related athletic fields. For purposes of this definition, the term “school” means a “public
school” as that term is defined in 20-A M.R.S.A. § 1(24); a “private school” as that term is defined
in 20-A M.R.S.A. § 1(22); and a “public preschool program” as that term is defined in 20-A
M.R.S.A. § 1(23-A). For purposes of this definition, the term “post-secondary school” means a
community college, college, or university authorized by the State to award associate, baccalaureate
or higher degrees.

¢ A church, synagogue, or other house of worship.
Service Drop — A utility line extension that does not cross or run beneath any portion of a water body.

In the case of electric service: (i) the placement of wires or the installation of utility poles must be
located entirely upon the premises of the customer requesting service or upon a road right-of-way,
and (ii) the total length of the extension must be less than 1,000 feet.

In the case of telephone service: (i) the extension, regardless of length, must be made by the
installation of telephone wires to existing utility poles; or (ii) or, if the extension requires
installation of new utility poles or placement underground, the total length of the extension must
be less than 1,000 feet.

Setback Area — The area between the maximum setback line and the minimum setback line.

Setback, Shoreland — The nearest horizontal distance from the normal high-water line of a water body or
tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland, to the nearest part of a structure, road, parking space or other
regulated object or area.

Shore Frontagse — The length of a lot bordering on a water body or wetland measured in a straight line
between the intersections of the lot lines with the shoreline.

Shorefront Common Area — Any land area having shoreline frontage on any water body regulated by
this Ordinance and intended for use by more than one residential dwelling unit or family unit or other legal
entity, excluding visitors and guests. This definition includes areas for which easements, rights-of-way, or
other use rights are granted or sold.

Shoreland Zone — The shoreland zone is composed of:

1. All land areas within 250 feet of (i) the normal high-water line of any great pond or river and (ii) the
upland edge of a freshwater wetland;

All land areas within 75 feet of the normal high-water line of a stream; and

3. Any structures built on, over or abutting a dock, wharf or pier, or other structure extending or
located below the normal high-water line of a water body or within a wetland.

Shoreline — The normal high-water line, or the upland edge of a wetland.

136



Shoreline Buffer — A strip of land extending 100 feet inland from the normal high-water line of a great
pond or a river flowing to a great pond, or a strip of land extending 75 feet from any other water body,
tributary stream, or the upland edge of a wetland.

Shrub — A woody plant, deciduous or evergreen, hardy for Plant Zones 4 or 5, which may have a single
trunk or multiple trunks and normally achieves a height at maturity of no more than 15 feet and no less than
three feet.

Sidewalk — A way for pedestrian traffic located parallel to a road, which is constructed with pavement,
pavers, bricks, and other similar surfaces but not gravel.

Silt — A granular material of a grain size between sand and clay derived from soil or rock. Silt may occur
as a soil or as suspended sediment in a surface water body. It may also exist as soil deposited at the bottom
of a water body.

Solar Farm — An installation or area of land on which a collection of solar panels is set up in order to
generate electricity for commercial purposes.

Solid Wall Foundation — A foundation comprised of materials that form walls or wall segments such as
a typical poured concrete foundation. This definition does not include “sono-tube” supports installed with
minimal disturbance methods like a post hole digger.

State Minimum Lot Size Law — The Maine Minimum Lot Size Law, codified at 12 M.R.S.A. Ch. 423-A,

State Wastewater Disposal Rules — The Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, codified at
10-144 C.M.R. ch. 241,

Story — That part of a building between the surface of the floor and the ceiling immediately above, not
including the basement. A half-story is an uppermost story in which a sloping roof replaces the upper part
of the front wall.

Stream — A free-flowing body of water from the outlet of a great pond or the confluence of two perennial
streams as depicted on the most recent, highest resolution version of the national hydrography datasct
available from the United States Geological Survey on the website of the United States Geological Survey
or the national map to the point where the stream becomes a river or where the stream meets the shoreland
zone of another water body or wetland. When a stream meets the shoreland zone of a water body or wetland
and a channe! forms downstream of the water body or wetland as an outlet, that channel is also a stream.

Street Wall — A fence, wall, or strip of vegetation that maintains a continuous visual definition along a
lot line,

137




Structure —

Outside of the shoreland zone: Anything constructed, erected, or placed on the ground that is
permanent, temporary or mobile, including buildings, mobile homes, recreational vehicles, piers
and pads, parking lots, and storage and processing facilities. This definition does not include
boundary walls, fences, walkways, patios, flagpoles light poles, and signs.

Within the shoreland zone: Anything temporarily or permanently located, built, constructed, or
erected for the support, shelter, or enclosure of persons, animals, goods, or property of any kind or
anything constructed or erected on or in the ground. “Structure” includes structures temporarily or
permanently located, such as parking lots, decks, patios, and satellite dishes. This definition does
not include fences; poles and wiring and other aerial equipment normally associated with service
drops, including guy wires and guy anchors; subsurface waste water disposal systems as defined in
30-A M.R.S.A. § 4201(5); geothermal heat exchange wells as defined in 32 M.R.S.A. § 4700-E(3-
C); or wells or water wells as defined in 32 M.R.S.A. § 4700-E(8).

Subdivision Plan, Final — The final drawings on which a subdivision plan is presented to the Planning
Board for its consideration and which, if approved, nwst be filed with the Town and recorded in the
Cumberland County Regisiry of Deeds.

Subdivision Plan, Preliminary —- The preliminary drawing indicating the proposed layout of a
subdivisions presented to the Planning Board for its consideration.

Substantial Completion — Completion of 70% of a project, measured as a percentage of the total project
amount.

Substantial Start — Completion of 30% of a permitted structure or use measured as a percentage of
estimated total cost.

Sustained Slope — A change in elevation where the referenced percent grade is substantially maintained
or exceeded throughout the measured area.

Timber Harvesting — “Timber harvesting” as that term is defined in 12 M.R.S.A. § 8868.

Topsoil — The upper, outermost layer of soil, usually tie top two inches to eight inches, which has the
highest concentration of organic matter and microorganisms and is where most biological soil activity
occurs.

Tree — A woody perennial plant with a well-defined trunk at least two inches in diameter, measured at 44
feet above ground level, with a more or less definite crown, and reaching a height of at least 10 feet at
maturity.

Tree, Hazard or Hazard Tree — A tree with a structural defect, combination of defects, or disease
resulting in a structural defect that under the normal range of environmental conditions at a site exhibits a
high probability of failure and loss of a major structural component of the tree in a manner that will strike
a target. A “normal range of environmental conditions” does not include meteorological anomalies such as
hurricanes, hurricane-force winds, tornados, microbursts, or significant ice storm events, A “target” is the
area where personal injury or property damage could occur if the tree or a portion of the tree fails, and
includes roads, driveways, parking areas, structures, campsites, and any other developed area where people
frequently gather and linger. This definition includes trees that pose a serious and imminent risk to bank
stability.

Tree, Medium Sized — A woody deciduous plant, hardy for Plant Zones 4 or 5, that normally grows with
one main trunk and normally achieves a height at maturity of 30 to 50 feet.

138



Tree Sapling — A tree species that is less than two inches in diameter, measured at 4%; feet above
ground level,

Tree Seedling — A young tree species that is less than 4% feet in height above ground level,

Tree, Shade or Shade Tree — A woody deciduous plant, hardy for Plant Zones 4 or 5, that normally grows
with one main trunk, normally achicves a height at maturity of 30 feet or more and has a canopy that screens
and filters the sun.

Tree, Storm-Damaged or Storm-Damaged Tree— A tree that has been uprooted, blown down, is lying

on the ground, or that remains standing and is damaged beyond the point of recover as the result of a storm
event,

Tributary Stream — A channel between defined banks created by the action of surface water, which is
characterized by the lack of terrestrial vegetation or by the presence of a bed, devoid of topsoil, containing
waterborne deposits or exposed soil, parent material, or bedrock; and which is connected hydrologically
with other water bodies. This definition does not include (i) rills or gullies forming because of accelerated
erosion in disturbed soils where the natural vegetation cover has been removed by human activity, or (i)
streams. This definition only applies to that portion of the tributary stream focated within the shoreland
zone of the receiving water body or wetland,

Upland Edge of 2 Wetland — The boundary between upland and wetland. For purposes of a freshwater
wetland, the upland edge is formed where the soils are not saturated for a duration sufficient to support
wetland vegetation; or where the soils support the growth of wetland vegetation, but such vegetation is
dominated by woody stems that are six meters (approximately 20 feet) tall or taller.

Use — The purpose or activity for which land or structures are designed, arranged, or intended or for which
land or structures are occupied or maintained.

Variance — A relaxation of the provisions of this Code as permitted by state law and Section 1-13.

Vegetation —— All live trees, shrubs, and other plants including trees both over and under four inches in
diameter, measured at 4% feet above ground level.

Vehicle and Small Engine Repair Shop — An establishment where automobile and low-power internal
combustion engines or electric motors are repaired and maintained by mechanics and technicians, This
definition does not include the sale of gasoline.

Veterinary Service — An establishment where animals and pets are given medical or surgical treatment
and are cared for during the time of such treatment, including the incidental, short-term use of such an
establishment as a kennel.

Wareliousing and Distribution — A facility for storage and distribution of manufactured products,
supplies, and equipment, including the wholesaling of goods not manufactured on the premises.

Water Body — A great pond, river, or stream.

Water Crossing — A structure or feature extending from one bank to the opposite bank of a river, stream,
tributary stream, or wetland whether under, through, or over the river, stream, tributary stream, or wetland,
including roads, fords, bridges, culverts, water lines, sewer lines, and cables as well as maintenance work
on such water crossings. This definition includes crossings for timber harvesting equipment and related
activities,

Water Extraction, Large-Scale — The extraction of water from groundwater sources, aquifers, springs
or wells of more than 50,000 gallons on any given day or more than 1,000,000 gallons annually, as extracted

139




by a person or a consortium or association of persons, regardless of the number of extraction facilities
utilized.

Water Extraction, Smali-Scale -— The extraction of water from groundwater sources, aquifers, springs or
wells of 50,000 gallons or less on any given day or 1,000,000 gallons or less annually, as extracted by a
person or consortium ot association of persons, regardless of the number of extraction facilities utilized.
This definition does not include extraction of water which is accessory to residential uses or dwelling units.

Water Table — The underground water surface at which the pressure is equal to that of the atmosphere.

The water table elevation changes throughout the year in response to precipitation recharge and the level
of nearby surface water.

Wetland or Freshwater Wetland — A freshwater swamp, marsh, bog, or similar area, other than a forested
wetland, that: (i) covers 10 or more contiguous acres, or less than 10 contiguous acres and is adjacent to a
surface water body, excluding any river, strean or brook, such that in a natural state, the combined swiface
area is in excess of [0 acres; and (ii) is inundated or saturated by surface water or groundwater at a frequency
and for a duration sufficient to support, and which under normal circumstances does support, a prevalence
of wetland vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soils. A freshwater wetland may contain small
stream channels or inclusions of land that do not comply with the criteria of this definition.

Wetland, Forested — A freshwater wetland dominated by woody vegetation that is six meters tall or tatler.

Wind Farm — A facility that uses equipment that converts, stores, and transfers energy from wind into
usable forms of energy including any base, blade, foundation, generator, nacelle, rotor, tower, transformer,
turbine, vane, wire, and other component of the system.

Woody Vegetation — Live trees or woody, non-herbaceous shrubs.

Zone of Contribution — The area of an aquifer that contributes water to a well or other extraction point
under the most severe pumping and recharge conditions that can be realistically anticipated within the
Town. It is bounded by the groundwater divides that result from pumping the well and by the contact of the
aquifer with less permeable materials such as till or bedrock. In some cases, streams or lakes may act as
recharge boundaries. In all cases the zone of contribution extends upgradient to its point of infersection with
prevailing hydrogeologic boundaries {(a groundwater flow divide, a contact with till or bedrock, or a
recharge boundary).

140



APPENDICES

Appendix A. Official Land Use District Maps
NOTE: NO AMENDMENTS ARE PROPOSED TO THE OFFICIAL LAND USE DISTRICT MAPS.

A-1



Appendix B.  Official Shoreland Zoning Maps

NOTE: MAPS D2 AND D3 (DATED JULY 2021), ATTACHED HERETO, ARE PROPOSED TO BE DELETED AND

REPLACED BY MAPS D2 AND D3 (DATED MARCH 2022), ATTACHED HERETO. NO AMENDMENTS ARE
PROPOSED TO THE REMAINING OFFICIAL SHORELAND ZONING MAPS.

B-1



WaS © JO Ul RIRMAUBIY [eu0U ) J0399) 52 | S

pue ‘puepam RIEmysdy) € Jo 96pd puekin a JO 19 0ST

3y Jo puod 06 € JO Jul] JIEM-YBIY [eULU L3 JO 3} |-

0ST VIWRIM STAIC puL] || SIPNDU] JUOZ PURIIOYS UL 'T

k= P

1202 Ain :pojeos) dopw

NYYEND

aqyvaoom

-

v
100 4 E—
000'F 000'Z 000"

spoed | |
seuepuncg paysieiem [ |

salpoquaiem [ |
SWEBNS JUBPILLIBW] = = =
SWEeaNS [euualdd ——
PUISIQ UORDN0Id WeaNS [ |
1LSIQ [eRURPISY PayIWN [ ]
11 PLasIa JWswdojeasq [eauaD [ |
1 P1sIQ wewdopAq [BrRUBD [
jo1s1Qq uonasjald aaunesey [ |
SPUBRSM Jalemyssid = 7]

pusbaq

‘zz0z yorew |

pejep ‘zq depy Aq peoejdal
pue pajejap aq o) pesodo.d st
‘120z AInr pajep ‘2 dep siyL
deyy Buiuoz puejaloys

uojbpug Jo umo)




*SUGRAIDIIP PAASIP G JO J0AT) U
POAIOSU 4T IPOT) 50 PuUE] UCIEPLG I Uf SUCRALDSIP
19351p Bujuoz puriouoys AR pue sdey Buiuoz pueiuoys | | |
1RO R LIIMIIG IDJUCD AUy Aju S350dind dapeash|

Joj ppudY] 5| e BUILOZ PUBRIOYS 1RO SIUL T |

“WeANS B JO DU JO3em-yBIY [BULIOU U JO 3 5L
pue ‘pueRIm JjeMYs3Y € J0 86pd pueidn U 40 129) 05T

53ap 0 puod 3euB © Jo | DteMm-yBiy eusou A Jo39) |
0SZ UILiM STIIE PUE |2 SIPNPU| JUOZ PURIAICLS UL T .,

=N

2202 Yoo pojmos) dew
NYHHNN

sppoded [ | N
sauepunog paysisiem ]
salpoquaiem [
SWeass JUSRILLIBW - - =
SWEANS [BIUUSIDY we
PUISIQ UORIRI0N WeaNS [
[epsswwo) paywr] [
PinsIq lequapissy pawn [ |
1] 3UIsIq JuawdoEasq (eseuey ||
1 30W3s1Q Juswdojeasq [edBusD [
JoU}SIg U090 @2inosay [
SPUBRIM Ja3emysald =]

puaba

2202 HOYYW a3Lvd
'2d d¥YW J3S0d08d

deyy Buiuoz puejaioys
uo)bpug jo umol




*SUORULOSIP PIASIP 3 JO JOAL,} L)

PIASAI 2 3POJ ) PUTT UOIEPIE HA U SUORANISIP
1U5IP BUIUOE PURKUCYS U Put sdel BUUOZ PURIIOUS
[EPIO 243 UIIMIG 3Mu0a Auy *4juo sasodind dapeasny|
o) Papuu| 31 el BujuoZ PURRIOYS [BRWO SIL T
*LURAAS © JO W] JNEM-BIY [BI0U AU JO 33D 5L
pue ‘puciom SIeMysDL © Jo 95pD puekdn au3 JO 1305 05T
4 10 pucd 326 © JO U JDIEM-YBIY [EULIOU d) JO 339
052 UIYiiM SEIIE puB (|8 SIPNPU) JUOZ PURIDIONS UL ‘T

1202 Ainr ipojeaid dew

NYHENIN
Qyvaoom

’1‘
-y

sjgosed [ |
saliepunog paysialem 1
salpoqsaiem [
SWEaNS JUBNIULIBI| = = =
SWEANS [BIUUBIRY =

PLISIQ LONDSI0Nd Weans
DIAsiq [eRuspPIS3Y payw [
11 31351 JUBLWdojEARQ [e48URD
13°ms1q JuswdoaAaq [esRuad [
191S1(] UORDB)0Id 8aJnosay [[TT]
SPUBRIA Ja1emysald [= 7]

puaba

zeoe yorew

pajep ‘eq dew Aq paoejdal
pue pajejep 8q o) pesodeud s1
‘120z AInr pejep ‘ed dep iyl

depy Buiuoz puejaioys
uojbpug Jo umoy




*SuCRANDZP PYSIP AR JO KAL) U]

PIAOSII UL PO 6N PULT UOIERLE R Uf SUORAIISP
19351 BUIUOZ PURIONS MR Pue sdejy Buiuoz puBRioys
1OPUIO 2 LDINGAQ 12(UGD Ay “Ajuo sasodind aageasnil
20 popuayuy 5| dejy BujuoZ PUBRIOS [TPO SIUL T
"Weans @ JO duy| JNem-yBiY [BLLIOU M JO 139 5L

Ppue ‘puERIM jemysdy; e o aBpd puedn i JO 199) 0ST
53 J0 puod 305 © JO Juf| Dem-yBiy |PULoU Y JO 339}
052 Ul ST PUR (| SIPAPU] JUOZ PURIAIOLS w#m

2202 Yoo pajuo) dew

NYYEND
auvaoom

’..‘
-y
v

[ g 000 000'% o

sjeored [ |
saulepunog paysiaiem 1
sa1pogssiem [
SWEaNS JUINIULIA] = ~ -
SWEaNS [BIUURd ——
PUISIQ UOIDSI0d Weans [
[erpsRwwod paywr [
PIOSIQ |enuapisay paywn [
11 PL3sig Juawidopsq [esuan [
1391siq JuRwdoRASq [edsuaD [
JouIsIg UoRodj0ld #ainosay [
SpUERaM Jejemysaid [=]

puaba

Y

2202 HOdYW a3Lva
‘€0 d¥W J3S0d0dd

dep Buluoz puejaioys
uojbpug Jo umoy




Appendix C. Standards Adopted by Reference in Code

The following standards are adopted by reference in this Code, and a copy of each is on file in the office of
the Town Clerk and is available for public use, inspection, and examination:

1, DOT Best Management Practices for Erosion and Sedimentation Control
(DOT, Feb. 2008).

2, DOT Standard Specifications, Division 700—Materials (DOT, Dec. 2002).

3. Guidelines for Maine Certified Soil Scientists for Soil Identification and Mapping
(Maine Association of Professional Soil Scientists, Mar. 2009).

4, Maine Stormwater Management Desien Manual: Phosphorus Control Manual, Vol. 1I
(DEP, Mar. 2016).

3, Manure Utilization Guidelines (DACF, Nov. 1,2001).

STATE LAW REFERENCE—30-A M.R.S.A. § 3003 (MUNICIPALITIES; ADOPTION OF CODES BY REFERENCE).



MRS Title 30-A, §2528. SECRET BALLOT

next ballot printed or shall call a special town meeting for its consideration. A petition or order under
this subsection is subject to the filing provisions governing nomination papers under subsection 4.

The municipal officers shall hold a public hearing on the subject of the article at least 10 days before
the day for voting on the article. The public hearing must be held in a manner that solicits and allows
for a discussion on the merits of the article. At least 7 days before the date set for the hearing, the
municipal officers shall give notice of the public hearing by having a copy of the proposed article,
together with the time and place of hearing, posted in the same manner required for posting a warrant
for a town meeting under section 2523. The municipal officers shall make a return on the original
notice stating the manner of notice and the time it was given.

A. The requirement for public hearing is not a prerequisite to the valid issuance of any bond, note
or other obligation of a municipality authorized to borrow money by vote under any such particular
article. [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989,
c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

B. If a particular article to be voted on by secret ballot requests an appropriation of money by the
municipality, the article, when printed in the warrant and on the ballot, must be accompanied by a
recommendation of the municipal officers.

(1) If by town meeting vote or charter provision, a budget committee has been established to
review proposed town expenditures, the recommendations of the budget committee shall be
printed in addition to those of the municipal officers.

(2) If the action affects the school budget, a recommendation by the school board shall be
printed in addition to those of the municipal officers and the budget committee, if any. [PL
1987, ¢. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6
(AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

C. If the warrant for a town meeting contains only articles for the election of the moderator and
one or more referendum questions to be voted on by secret ballot, the municipal officers may
specify the same voting places as those used by the town for federal, state or county elections. [PL
2003, c. 569, §2 (NEW).]

[PL 2021, c. 185, §1 (AMD).]

6. Ballots, specimen ballots and instruction cards. The clerk shall prepare ballots, specimen
ballots and instruction cards according to the following provisions.

A. The ballot shall contain the names of properly nominated candidates arranged under the proper
office designation in alphabetical order by last name. It may contain no other names. [PL 1987,
c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL
1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

B. At the end of the list of candidates for each office, there must be left as many blank spaces as
there are vacancies to be filled in which a voter may write in the name and, if residence in the
municipality is not a requirement to hold office, municipality of residence of any person for whom
the voter desires to vote. A sticker may not be used to vote for a write-in candidate in any municipal
election other than a primary election. [PL 1991, c. 83, §2 (AMD).]

C. Any question or questions required by law to be submitted to a vote must be printed either
below the list of candidates or on a separate ballot from the ballot listing candidates.
Notwithstanding the provision of Title 21-A, section 906, subsection 7 requiring sequential
numbering of ballot questions, the questions may be listed on the ballot using sequential capital
letters of the alphabet instead of sequential numbers in accordance with section 2501, subsection
4. All other provisions of Title 21-A, section 906, subsection 7 apply. If a separate ballot is used,
this ballot must be a different color than the ballot listing candidates. [PL 2019, c. 68, §2 (AMD).]

1.10.2021 §2528. Secret ballot | 3



TM Warrant Reconciliation FY'22-'23

Article 12

Revenues

UFB: $800,000
Bridgton Trust: $41,551
Moose Pond: $53,637
Art 21: TIF $306,000

Article 13
011-Administration
012-Assessing

013-Code Enforcement
014-Community Dev
015-Municipal Complex
016-General Assistance
017-Town Clerk
019-Finance

022-BOS/PB & AB

Art 16: SB/PB Salaries
071-Recreation
291-Insurances
292-Employee Benefits
Long-Term Debt
299-8-8040 Debt Principal
299-8-8050 Debt Interest
299-4-4090 Legal
029-9-9010 Contigency

Article 14

031-Police

032-Fire

033-Animal Control
034-Civil Emergency
035-Health Officer
049-Other Public Safety

Article 15

018-Town Hall
051-Public Works
052-Town Garage
053-Vehicle Maintenance
054-Transfer Station
073-Cemeteries
074-Parks
076-Pondicherry Park
077-HAM Complex
294-Capital Expenses

299-4-4340 Septic Disposal

4,658,577

inc

inc

inc
(306,000)
4,352,577

407,630

58,000
152,292
194,775
115,838

21,484
247,259
170,467

21,564
(16,500)
506,023
189,603
973,342

824,028
271,746
15,000
30,000
4,182,551

981,583
342,111
24,327
31,392
4,114
346,744
1,730,271

28,475
812,170
30,562
378,487
667,072
58,192
222,780
5,400
89,691
625,000
750
2,918,579

Article 16
022-1-1090 Stipends

Article 17
293-Outside Agencies

Article 18

072-Library
075-Community Center
029-6-6240

Article 19
299-8-8010 County Tax
299-8-8020 Dispatch

Article 21
010-0298 Transfers In

16,500
16,500

45,118
45,118

90,000
97,429
35,000

222,429

809,718
129,057
938,775

306,000

306,000

Grand Net Total 5,395,646



Town of Bridgton
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING

Tuesday, June 14, 2022
State of Maine County of Cumberland, ss

TO: Phillip A. Jones, a resident of the Town of Bridgton.

Greetings: In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the voters of
the Town of Bridgton in said County and State, qualified by law to vote in town affairs to meet at the
Town Hall located on North High Street in said Town on Tuesday, the 14th day of June at 8:00 o’clock